LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
PROPOSED AGENDA
WORK SESSION, MONDAY, DECEMBER 8, 2025, 8:30 A.M.
REGULAR SESSION, TUESDAY, DECEMBER 9, 2025, 5:30 P.M.
327 N. Ashley Street - 2nd Floor

1. Call To Order
Invocation

Pledge Of Allegiance To The Flag

A 0N

Presentations

a.  GFOA Distinguished Budget Presentation Award
Recommended Action:
Documents:

b.  Georgia Firefighters Burn Foundation Check Presentation (Work Session)
Recommended Action:
Documents:

c.  Historic Preservation Award Presentation by Daughters of the American Revolution (Regular
Session)

Recommended Action:
Documents:

d.  Recognition of EMA Director Ashley Tye for receiving the Prestigious Clayton R. Christopher
Memorial Award by the International Association of Emergency Managers (Regular Session)
Recommended Action:

Documents:
5. Minutes For Approval

a.  Work Session & Regular Session - November 12, 2025
Recommended Action:  Approve
Documents:

6. Appointment

a.  Greater Lowndes Planning Commission
Recommended Action:  Board's Pleasure
Documents:

b.  Lowndes County Board of Assessors
Recommended Action:  Board's Pleasure
Documents:

c. Lowndes County Library Board
Recommended Action:  Board's Pleasure



Documents:

d. Valdosta-Lowndes County Conference Center and Tourism Authority
Recommended Action:  Board's Pleasure
Documents:

Public Hearing

a. Basic Decorative Street Lighting Districts — Grove Pointe, Phase V, Sec. 3, The Landings, Phase
4, and Val Del Estates, Phases 4 & 5

Recommended Action:  Approve
Documents:

b. REZ-2025-16 Copeland Road Subdivision, 2480 Copeland Rd, ~18ac, County Utilities, R-10/c to
R-10
Recommended Action:  Option 2
Documents:

C. REZ-2025-17 Shiloh Road, ~8.2 ac 6641 Shiloh Road, E-A to R-A, Well & Septic
Recommended Action:  Approve
Documents:

For Consideration

a. FY2027 5311 Rural Transit Authorizing Resolution
Recommended Action:  Adopt
Documents:

b.  Abandonment of Grice Road
Recommended Action:  Option 1
Documents:

C. PI# 0016280 Twin Lakes Road Paving and Drainage Improvements Georgia Power Relocation
Agreement

Recommended Action:  Option 1
Documents:

d. P10016280 Twin Lakes Road Right of Way Purchases for Parcels 19 and 20
Recommended Action:  Option 1
Documents:

e. Pl10016280 Twin Lakes Road Right of Way Purchases for Parcels 2, 6, and 10
Recommended Action:  Option 1
Documents:

f. Transportation Investment Act (TIA) Local Delivery Application for Hickory Grove Road Shoulder
Widening and Skipper Bridge Road Shoulder Widening

Recommended Action:  Option 1
Documents:

g. Transportation Investment Act (TIA) Local Delivery Application for Val Del Road Widening
Recommended Action:  Option 1



10.
1.
12.

Bid

Documents:

Design-Build Contract for Lowndes County Animal Shelter
Recommended Action:  Option 1
Documents:

Quit Claim Deed (QCD) for Navigable Waters, LLC at 4939 Bemiss Road

Recommended Action:  Option 1
Documents:

Adoption of 2027 Budget Calendar
Recommended Action:  Adopt
Documents:

2026 Public Defender Contracts
Recommended Action:  Approve
Documents:

2026 ACCG Workers' Compensation Insurance Renewal
Recommended Action:  Board's Pleasure
Documents:

2026 Stop Loss Insurance Coverage Renewal
Recommended Action:  Board's Pleasure
Documents:

Enhancement and Innovation/Law Enforcement Grant
Recommended Action:  Board's Pleasure
Documents:

Motorola Migration Assurance Plan (MAP)
Recommended Action:  Approve
Documents:

LAS Pump Station Upgrade
Recommended Action:  Approve
Documents:

Reports - County Manager

Citizens Wishing To Be Heard - Please State Your Name and Address

Adjournment



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: GFOA Distinguished Budget Presentation Award
Work

DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular
Session

BUDGET IMPACT:

FUNDING SOURCE:

() Annual
() Capital
() N/A
() SPLOST
() TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: GFOA Distinguished Budget Presentation Award

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and
Canada is pleased to announce that Lowndes County has received GFOA's Distinguished Budget Presentation
Award for its Fiscal Year 2026 Budget. The award represents a significant achievement and reflects a
commitment to meeting the highest recognized guidelines for effective budget presentation. These guidelines
assess how well an entity's budget serves as a policy document, a financial plan, an operations guide and a
communications device. Budgets must be rated proficient or higher in all four categories and in fourteen
mandatory criteria within those categories to receive the award. There are over 1,700 participants in the
award program throughout the United States and Canada. Lowndes County has received this award for
twenty consecutive years.

OPTIONS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

DEPARTMENT: Finance DEPARTMENT HEAD: Stephanie Black

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Recognition of EMA Director Ashley Tye for receiving the
Prestigious Clayton R. Christopher Memorial Award by the
International Association of Emergency Managers (Regular Session)

Regular Session
DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025

BUDGET IMPACT:
FUNDING SOURCE:
() Annual

() Capital

() N/A

() SPLOST

() TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON:

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: The Awards & Recognition Committee of the U.S. Council of the International
Association of Emergency Managers (IAEM-USA) recently selected Ashley Tye, AEM, as the 2025 recipient of
the prestigious Clayton R. Christopher Memorial Award. Ashley was recognized and presented with the award
during the President’s Banquet and Awards Program at the 73rd IAEM Annual Conference in Louisville,
Kentucky. The Clayton R. Christopher Memorial Award recognizes the career achievements of an emergency
management director at the local level of government for outstanding contributions and commitment to a
local emergency management program. A peer nominated Ashley for this award, and his nomination packet
included letters of recommendation and support from a number of the local partners with whom he works,
further highlighting his commitment to his community. Beyond his operational excellence, Ashley was
selected for this award for his humility, mentorship, and genuine care for people. He has elevated
preparedness across his region and inspired countless others through his leadership and service.

OPTIONS:

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

DEPARTMENT: Emergency Management DEPARTMENT HEAD: Ashley Tye

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Greater Lowndes Planning Commission
Work
DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular
Session
BUDGET IMPACT:
FUNDING SOURCE:
() Annual
() Capital
(X) N/A
() SPLOST
() TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Appoint/Reappoint a Member

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: The term of Mr. Tommy Willis on the Greater Lowndes Planning Commission
expired October 25, 2025. Mr. Willis has expressed an interest in being reappointed to the board. Mr. John
MccCall has also expressed an interest in being appointed to the board.

OPTIONS: 1. Appoint/reappoint a member.
2. Board's Pleasure

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Board's Pleasure

DEPARTMENT: County Manager DEPARTMENT HEAD: Paige Dukes

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



Print

Lowndes County Board/Agency Appointee Information Sheet - Submission #194

Date Submitted: 10/23/2025

Date: Board/Agency Applying For:
10/23/2025 Planning Commission Appointment
Last Name First Name
Willis William (Tommy)
Street Address City/State/Zip
Valdosta GA 31601
Phone Number Email Address
/
Occupation
Farmer, CEO of Southern Regional EMS, Paramedic

Professional Experience

20+ yrs on planning commission, business owner, farmer.

Knowledge & Skills

Being on the board for 20+ years, business owner as a decision making body

What knowledge or skills do you possess that would contribute to the Board/Agency to which you are requesting to be
appointed?

Please list the Board/Agency that you have been or are currently a member of:

Greater Lowndes Planning Commission

Extra Activities & Community Organizations

On advisory board at Wiregrass Technical College

Please list any extracurricular activities and/or community organizations you are affiliated with.



Print

Lowndes County Board/Agency Appointee Information Sheet - Submission #196

Date Submitted: 11/6/2025

Date: Board/Agency Applying For:
11/6/2025 Greater Lowndes Planning Commission

Last Name First Name

McCall John

Street Address City/State/Zip

31602

Phone Number Email Address
Z

Occupation

Architecture / Construction

Professional Experience

| have worked in the field of Architecture and Construction in Lowndes County for 20 years. Through my projects
completed and clients served, | have extensive experience dealing with residential and commercial property development.

Knowledge & Skills

Experience developing projects that are directly affected by zoning ordinances, and local state and federal building codes,
all local utility departments and providers, and state and local transportation departments. My extensive experience
includes developing projects for all the major employers within Valdosta and Lowndes County including projects for
Lowndes County, City of Valdosta, South Georgia Medial Center, Valdosta State University, Lowndes County Schools, and
Moody Air Force Base, as well as area businesses and institutions. As a result, | have in-depth knowledge of the Greater
Lowndes County Planning Commission’s requirements and their effects on building projects. My tenure on the Zoning
Board of Appeals has given me a greater knowledge and appreciation of the overarching plan for the growth of Lowndes
County. | feel that | can use that to contribute to the GLPC’s work of carefully managing that growth through the policies
and ordinances which govern it.

What knowledge or skills do you possess that would contribute to the Board/Agency to which you are requesting to be
appointed?



Please list the Board/Agency that you have been or are currently a member of:

-Lowndes Valdosta Zoning Board of Appeals: January 2013 to present/Chairman since 2019
-Suwannee-Satilla Regional Water Planning Council; since 2020
-Harley Langdale, Jr. College of Business Advisory Board: Member since 2005/past Chairman

Extra Activities & Community Organizations

Volunteer: Second Harvest of South GA

Please list any extracurricular activities and/or community organizations you are affiliated with.



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Lowndes County Board of Assessors
Work
DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular
Session
BUDGET IMPACT:
FUNDING SOURCE:
() Annual
() Capital
(X) N/A
() SPLOST
() TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Appointing/Reappointing a Member

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: The term of Mrs. Felicia Williams will expire December 31, 2025. Mrs. Williams
has expressed a desire to continue to serve on the board. Mrs. Gretchen Quarterman has also expressed a
desire to serve on the board.

OPTIONS: 1. Appoint/reappoint a member.
2. Board's Pleasure

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Board's Pleasure

DEPARTMENT: County Manager DEPARTMENT HEAD: Paige Dukes

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



Print

Lowndes County Board/Agency Appointee Information Sheet - Submission #192

Date Submitted: 10/15/2025

Date: Board/Agency Applying For:

10/15/2025 Board of Assessors

Last Name First Name

Quarterman Gretchen

Street Address City/State/Zip

Hahira, GA 31632

Phone Number Email Address

Occupation

self employed /retired

Professional Experience

Professional Experience: Professional Experience: 20 years in technology at the University at Buffalo
10 years in technology start-ups and self employment

15 years in volunteer community service

4 years as Lowndes County Tax Assessor



Knowledge & Skills

| have previously been a Lowndes County Tax Assessor

| have taken and passed the following classes from the Department of Revenue

C1VT: Course [: Certification for Assessors Virtual Training Online Training Completed - Passed 10/26/2020 AM 92.0 40.0

CSAA: Compliance Standards for Assessors and Appraisers Jekyll Island Convention Center Completed - Passed
07/19/2021 AM 75.0 20.0

CUWVT: CAVEAT Update Workshop Virtual Training Online Training Completed - Passed 11/15/2021 AM 20.0

ES: Specialized Assessments Workshop Southern Regional Technical College - Tifton Completed - Passed 06/13/2022
AM 85.0 20.0

EX: Exempt Properties Workshop Southern Regional Technical College - Tifton Completed - Passed 06/15/2022 PM 96.0
20.0

GAAA: Georgia Assessor Administration Jekyll Island Convention Center Completed - Passed 07/17/2023 AM 94.0 20.0

CA: Course IA: Assessment Fundamentals for Appraisers Uga Tifton Campus Conference Center Completed - Passed
09/25/2023 AM 90.0 40.0

| am always looking for ways to serve the community in a meaningful way and the Board of Assessors is a good match for
my technical and analytical skills.

What knowledge or skills do you possess that would contribute to the Board/Agency to which you are requesting to be
appointed?

Please list the Board/Agency that you have been or are currently a member of:

| previously served 12 years on the Zoning Board of Appeals and 4 years as a Lowndes County Tax Assessor.

Extra Activities & Community Organizations

| continue to be active in the WWALS Watershed Coalition a group focused on water advocacy. | am the South Georgia
coordinator for Georgia EPD Adopt A Stream training program. | attend most Board of Commissioners meeting and Planning
Commission meetings and publish videos of the same for community information

Please list any extracurricular activities and/or community organizations you are affiliated with.



Print

Lowndes County Board/Agency Appointee Information Sheet - Submission #197

Date Submitted: 11/12/2025

Date: Board/Agency Applying For:
11/12/2025 Board of Tax Assessors
Last Name First Name
Williams Felicia
Street Address City/State/Zip
Valdosta, GA 31601
Phone Number Email Address

felicia.williams@lowndescounty.com

Occupation

Chairman of the Lowndes County Board of Tax Assessors

Professional Experience

26 years in the Tax Commissioners office most of which was as the Deputy Tax Commissioner.
6 1/2 years as a board member of the Lowndes County Tax Assessors Office, of which 5 years was served as chairman.

Knowledge & Skills

A combine of 32 1/2 years of experience along with all class hours and certifications from the Georgia Department of
Revenue that is needed to serve on the Board of Tax Assessors.

What knowledge or skills do you possess that would contribute to the Board/Agency to which you are requesting to be
appointed?

Please list the Board/Agency that you have been or are currently a member of:

Lowndes County Board of Tax Assessors



Extra Activities & Community Organizations

Pastor of Hosanna Baptist Church and participate in serval activities to benefit the community.

Please list any extracurricular activities and/or community organizations you are affiliated with.



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Lowndes County Library Board
Work
DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular
Session
BUDGET IMPACT:
FUNDING SOURCE:
() Annual
() Capital
(X) N/A
() SPLOST
() TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Appointing a Member

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: Ms. Catherine Ammons resigned from the Lowndes County Library Board,
leaving an unexpired term that will expire June 30, 2026. Dr. Kendal Crawford, Mr. Dean Poling, and Mr. Gary
Wisenbaker, have all expressed interest in being appointed to fill the unexpired term.

OPTIONS: 1. Appoint a member.
2. Board's Pleasure

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Board's Pleasure

DEPARTMENT: County Manager DEPARTMENT HEAD: Paige Dukes

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



Form Center

My Forms

Lowndes County Board/Agency Appointee Save
Information Sheet Progress

Date: Board/Agency Applying For:

10/09/2025 Lowndes County Library Board

Last Name First Name

Crawford Dr. Kendal

Street Address City/State/Zip

Valdosta GA 31602

Phone Number

Email Address

Occupation

Director of Instructional Technology and Media Services: Valdosta Cit




Professional Experience

Valdosta State University 1 Card System Administrator and Manager
Cook High School Librarian

Valdosta High School Computer Science and Business Education
Teacher

Director Instructional Technology & Media Services Valdosta City
Schools

Certified in Library and Media Services
Doctorate Degree in Education

Knowledge & Skills

As an experienced educator, | bring a deep understanding of i~
literacy development, curriculum design, and the barriers that

prevent students from reading at grade level. | have worked

directly with students, families, and fellow educators to implement
evidence-based strategies that support literacy growth, particularly
among struggling readers.

My background also includes collaborating with community
organizations to bridge the gap between schools and local
resources—something the library is uniquely positioned to support.
| understand how critical early exposure to reading is, and | can
help the library board create or enhance programming that directly
addresses the needs of our student population.

4

What knowledge or skills do you possess that would contribute to the
Board/Agency to which you are requesting to be appointed?

Please list the Board/Agency that you have been or are currently
a member of:

Coastal Plains RESA Library Advisory Board Member
Cook County Library Board Member p

Extra Activities & Community Organizations

One of my most meaningful community involvements has been with t

Please list any extracurricular activities and/or community
organizations you are affiliated with.

Receive an email copy of this form.

Email address

kendal.crawford@gocats.org

This field is not part of the
form submission.

Submit

€pP Government Websites by CivicPlus®




Print

Lowndes County Board/Agency Appointee Information Sheet - Submission #193

Date Submitted: 10/20/2025

Date: Board/Agency Applying For:

10/20/2025 South Georgia Regional Library Board of Trustees

Last Name First Name

Poling Dean

Street Address City/State/Zip

31605

Phone Number Email Address
/

Occupation

Retired editor with The Valdosta Daily Times & The Tifton Gazette / Freelance reporter & writer, etc.

Professional Experience

Worked full time with The Valdosta Daily Times for 34 years with various positions, including editor; served three years as
Tifton Gazette editor, while simultaneously overseeing daily operations at The Valdosta Daily Times; served as CNHI state
editor for Georgia; several years on the Times editorial board, etc.

Knowledge & Skills

As reporter and editor covered the library and its programs for decades; have written book reviews for newspaper for the
past 25-plus years, etc.

What knowledge or skills do you possess that would contribute to the Board/Agency to which you are requesting to be
appointed?

Please list the Board/Agency that you have been or are currently a member of:

Does not apply



Extra Activities & Community Organizations

As a representative of the newspaper was involved with numerous organizations in terms of coverage. More closely associated
with various area arts organizations, including Peach State Summer Theatre; led the newspaper's role in the annual toy drive
with the Empty Stocking Fund; Honor Flight program, etc.

Please list any extracurricular activities and/or community organizations you are affiliated with.



Print

Lowndes County Board/Agency Appointee Information Sheet - Submission #195

Date Submitted: 10/30/2025

Date: Board/Agency Applying For:
10/30/2025 South Georgia Regional Library Board
Last Name First Name
Wisenbaker Gary
Wz
Street Address City/State/Zip
Valdosta

Phone Number Email Address

Z
Occupation
Realtor

Yz

Professional Experience

Attorney, 1980-2012; Realtor 2025-present; Political consultant, 2012-2016; Columnist, 2016-present

Knowledge & Skills

Writer (Author, How Great is his Mercy, Trilogy Publishing); communications; leadership

What knowledge or skills do you possess that would contribute to the Board/Agency to which you are requesting to be
appointed?

Please list the Board/Agency that you have been or are currently a member of:

Past member and chair, South Georgia Regional Library Board (2017-2013); Member, VLMPO

Extra Activities & Community Organizations

Membership Chair, Valdosta North Rotary; past State Chair, Georgia Young Republicans; Editorial Board, Valdosta Daily Times;
former Member, Georgia Student Finance Commission; past Chair, Red Cross of South Georgia; VSO choir and Musical
Union;

Please list any extracurricular activities and/or community organizations you are affiliated with.



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Valdosta-Lowndes County Conference Center and Tourism

Authority
Work

DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular
Session

BUDGET IMPACT:
FUNDING SOURCE:
() Annual

() Capital

(X) N/A

() SPLOST

() TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Appointing a Member

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: The term of Mr. Jonathan Vigue will expire December 31, 2025. Mr. Donald
Spiller, lll, Vice President and General Manager of Wild Adventures Theme Park has expressed an interest in
being appointed to the board.

OPTIONS: 1. Appoint a member.
2. Board's Pleasure

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Board's Pleasure

DEPARTMENT: County Manager DEPARTMENT HEAD: Paige Dukes

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



12/4/25, 11:42 AM

Print

lowndescounty.com/Admin/FormCenter/Submissions/Print/199

Lowndes County Board/Agency Appointee Information Sheet - Submission #199

Date Submitted: 12/4/2025

Date: Board/Agency Applying For:
12/4/2025 Valdosta-Lowndes County Conference Center and Tourism Authority Board
4

Last Name First Name
Spiller 11l Donald

/4 /4
Street Address City/State/Zip

Valdosta/GA/31602
4 %

Phone Number Email Address

/e /e
Occupation
Vice President & General Manager - Wild Adventures

4

Professional Experience

31 years of experience in the hospitality industry working at theme parks and water parks operated by Six Flags, Palace

Entertainment and Herschend Family Entertainment.

Knowledge & Skills

Business Management.

What knowledge or skills do you possess that would contribute to the Board/Agency to which you are requesting to be

appointed?

Please list the Board/Agency that you have been or are currently a member of:

Santa Clarita Valley Sheriff's Foundation, Santa Clarita Valley Veteran Services Collaborative.

https://www.lowndescounty.com/Admin/FormCenter/Submissions/Print/199

1/2



12/4/25, 11:42 AM lowndescounty.com/Admin/FormCenter/Submissions/Print/199

Extra Activities & Community Organizations

None at the moment due to my recent move to Valdosta.

Please list any extracurricular activities and/or community organizations you are affiliated with.

https://www.lowndescounty.com/Admin/FormCenter/Submissions/Print/199 2/2



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Basic Decorative Street Lighting Districts — Grove Pointe,
Phase V, Sec. 3, The Landings, Phase 4, and Val Del Estates, Phases 4

&5
Work

DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular
Session

BUDGET IMPACT:
FUNDING SOURCE:
(X) Annual
() Capital
() N/A
() SPLOST
() TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Basic Decorative Street Lighting Districts — Grove
Pointe, Phase V, Sec. 3, The Landings, Phase 4, and Val Del Estates, Phases 4 & 5

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: This request concerns Petitions to add 52 lots of Phase V, Section 3 of The Grove
Pointe Subdivision, 52 lots of Phase 4 of The Landings Subdivision, and 49 lots of Phases 4 and 5 of The Val Del
Estates Subdivision into the County’s basic decorative street lighting district under the Street Lighting
Ordinance. For reference, staff has verified that the Petitions are ready for LCBOC consideration, including
the verification that at least 2/3 of the owners’ signatures for the proposed lot additions have been obtained,
and testing the financial solvency of the addition. Additionally, notice for the proposed district has been
advertised in the VDT and signs have been posted to advertise the public hearing on the Petition. The current
charge for the basic decorative street lighting district is $61.50 per lot per year.

Staff recommends adding the 52 lots of Phase V, Section 3 of The Grove Pointe Subdivision, 52 lots of Phase 4
of The Landings Subdivision, and 49 lots of Phases 4 and 5 of The Val Del Estates Subdivision into the County’s
basic decorative street lighting district as defined on the petitions into the County’s basic decorative street
lighting district through approval of the attached amendment to the current Street Lighting Ordinance.

OPTIONS: 1) Approve the amendment to the Street Lighting Ordinance and accept the lots as described.
2) Redirect

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve

DEPARTMENT: Planning/Zoning DEPARTMENT HEAD: JD Dillard

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



Ordinance No.

ORDINANCE

AN ORDINANCE (“SIXTEENTH AMENDMENT”) BEING THE SIXTEENTH
AMENDMENT TO THAT CERTAIN ORDINANCE (“STREET LIGHTING ORDINANCE”)
CREATING SPECIAL DISTRICTS FOR PROVIDING STREET LIGHTING THEREIN, FOR
THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS TO PAY THE COST OF
PROVIDING STREET LIGHTING THEREIN, AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, ADOPTED BY
THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF LOWNDES COUNTY ON MARCH 27, 2018.

WHEREAS, Brandon Wells, (“Petitioner’’) submitted to the County Manager Petitions for
the Addition of Lots 17 through 39B, 101 through 114, and 135 through 148 comprising Phase V,
Section 3 of The Grove Pointe Subdivision, to the Basic Decorative Street Lighting District for the
purpose of such Lots receiving Basic Decorative Street Lighting (the “Petition”; copies of which
are attached hereto as Attachment I);

WHEREAS, Fleming Williams, (“Petitioner”) submitted to the County Manager Petitions
for the Addition of Lots 91 through 143 of Phase 4 of The Landings Subdivision, to the Basic
Decorative Street Lighting District for the purpose of such Lots receiving Basic Decorative Street
Lighting (the “Petition”; copies of which are attached hereto as Attachment II);

WHEREAS, Sarah Parris, (“Petitioner”) submitted to the County Manager Petitions for the
Addition of Lots 13 through 43, 90 through 106, comprising Phases 4 and 5 of The Val Del Estates
Subdivision, to the Basic Decorative Street Lighting District for the purpose of such Lots receiving
Basic Decorative Street Lighting (the “Petition”; copies of which are attached hereto as
Attachment I11);

WHEREAS, Notice of the Petitions and the public hearing before the Board of
Commissioners at which the Petitions are presented was published in the official legal organ of
Lowndes County at least one time no less than ten (10) days prior to such public hearing; and

WHEREAS, the Petitions are found to meet the requirements of the Street Lighting
Ordinance for presentation to the Board of Commissioners for its consideration and approval,
including without limitation pursuant to Section 7(t) of the Street Lighting Ordinance.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA (“Board of Commissioners”), and it is hereby ordained by
authority of the same, including without limitation, pursuant to the lawful authorities cited in the
Street Lighting Ordinance, as follows:

1. The Street Lighting Ordinance is hereby amended as follows:

a. The Petitions are hereby accepted and approved, the Lots set forth in the Petitions are
hereby added to the Basic Decorative Street Lighting District, and such Lots shall receive

1



as of the Commencement Date Basic Decorative Street Lighting pursuant to the terms,
conditions and requirements (including without limitation the levy and collection of a
special assessment which is a lien against each Lot) of the Street Lighting Ordinance.

b. To reflect such addition of the Lots set forth in the Petitions to the Basic Decorative Street
Lighting District, the page “Exhibit B - Basic Decorative — North West Lowndes County
2 —Revised 11/2024” of the Street Lighting Ordinance is hereby deleted in its entirety and
replaced with the page “Exhibit B - Basic Decorative — North West Lowndes County 2 —
Revised 12/2025” attached as Attachment IV to this Sixteenth Amendment.

Capitalized terms not otherwise defined in this Sixteenth Amendment shall have the same
meaning as ascribed to them in the Street Lighting Ordinance, unless the context herein clearly
requires otherwise.

The singular and plural in this Sixteenth Amendment each includes the other unless the other
is expressly excluded.

. Each separate provision of this Sixteenth Amendment is deemed independent of all other
provisions herein so that if any portion or provision of this Sixteenth Amendment is declared
invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, all other provisions therein
shall remain valid and enforceable without regard to the section, subsection, paragraph, or part
invalidated or held unconstitutional.

. All terms, conditions, and provisions of the Street Lighting Ordinance as amended in and by
this Sixteenth Amendment are hereby ratified and confirmed and shall remain in full force and
effect.

. All ordinances and resolutions of the Board of Commissioners, or parts of ordinances and
resolutions of the Board of Commissioners, in conflict herewith are hereby repealed.

. This Ordinance shall be effective as of the date it is approved by the Board of Commissioners.

IT IS SO ORDAINED, this ___ day of , 2025.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF LOWNDES COUNTY

BY:
Bill Slaughter, Chairman

ATTEST:
Belinda Lovern, County Clerk

2




PETITION FOR ADDITION TO STREET LIGHTING DISTRICT

Basic Decorative Street Lighting District
This Petition is submitted pursuant to Section 6 of the Ordinance Creating Special Districts for Providing
Street Lighting adopted by the Board of Commissioners March 17, 2018. Capitalized terms in this Petition
have the meaning ascribed to them in the Ordinance.

This Petition is submitted for a proposed Addition to the Basic Decorative Street Lighting District.

Attachment 1 is a plat or map depicting the Lots in the proposed Addition, adjoining Streets, and locations
of existing and/or proposed Street Lights in the proposed Addition.

Attachment 2 are Signatories to this Petition. A Petition for an Addition must be signed within 120 days
preceding submission by the owners of record of at least 67% of the Lots in the proposed Addition.

Petitioner is authorized to represent each Signatory with regard to the Petition. The County Manager may
communicate with each Signatory by communicating with Petitioner who shall be responsible for relaying

all communications of the County Manger to each Signatory.

The annual assessment levied by the Ordinance against each Lot in the Basic Decorative Street Lighting
District is $61.50.

Concurrent with submitting a Petition, Petitioner shall pay the County a processing fee of $200.
The County is not responsible to install or to pay the cost to install Street Lights in the Addition.
_ X Street Lights are installed in the proposed Addition.
Street Lights are not installed in the proposed Addition.

will install the Street Lights.

will pay the cost to install the Street Lights.

Petitioner: d—(ﬂzj&//’ Brandon Wells (Grove Pointe HoA, President) ~ October 31, 2025
Signature Printed Name Date
4493 Dasher Grove Rd. Hahira, GA 31632 229-415-3445 grovepointehoa@gmail.com
Mailing Address Telephone Email

Attachment |


molste0612
Typewriter
Attachment I


12/1/25, 10:53 AM PDF.js viewer

eFiled & eRecorded _ thm‘m,z ﬁkh PHASE it hxﬂ

1257 thru _Nwmu i _ | SIMPSON

| GERTIFY THAT ALL MEASUREMENTS ARE CORRECT AMD oW oK L ey (13 : i { S
N WERE PREPARED FROM AN ACTUAL SLRVEY OF THE oY RS i </ | | : i | PHASE VS
PLAT BOOK: 000PCC PROPERTY MADE UNDER MY SUPERVISION; Dona | Assocana me now ar | SECTION 3
PAGE: 01518 “THE FIELD DATA UFON WHICH THIS PLAT IS BASED HAS BLTATY PROPERYY. (i bt
RECORDING FEES: $10.00 A CLOSURE PRECISION OF 1' IN 67,082' WITH AN ANGLE SROPERTY | Past ey CARGLYH 5 PLANTERS CROSSING d
PARTICIPANT ID: 3174712172 ﬂo»wos REVISED 30 JUKE 1999 ERROR OF 1 SECOND FER ANGLE POINT AND WAS g aL CPEN SPACE §4 A PLAR * { i s (s) ANTEF S o
CLERK: Beth Greene ADJUSTED BY COMPASS RULE. PLAT CobhET & pRoPERTY | PGS _ N2 i =
Lowndes County, GA THIS FLAT H&S BEEN CALCULATED FOR CLOSURE AND IS " R 8021 PAGE | i '
‘ ACCORDING TO THE FLOOD INSURANCE RATE MAP FOR nd:zu [0 DE ACCURATE WITHIN 1 " & i p i i . & —
LOWNDES COUNTY, GA & INCORPORATED AREAS k,m:.uﬁﬂz & PIN LOCATIONS ARE AS IDEH ™ o = N 694658 £ 559.47 (T0TAL)
b “EQUIPUEN 3 ) 2 a DASHER GROVE ROAD
s " AN AR STATON, oS HEALTME. HETWORK 4 100" TAE :
mzm»ﬂ%m.w:uw _u:“ms_mro_c% wo.wm »né,hz B STHE FIELD SURVEY THAT THIS PLAT IS BASED UPON WAS LAND LOT #9 B

SURVEY DATA NOTE:
THE SCURCE OF THE " -
TITLE DESCRIFTION FOR LOCATION MAP
THE SUBJECT PROPERTY - el
HEREON 1S DEED BOOK <

3385 PAGE 135 NOT to SCALE
GRANIEE  THLI
GHOVE PO e e

CHANCE FLOGDPLAIN PERFORMED

e

CURB & GUTTER and DRAINAGE
STRUCTURES INSTALLED 8Y LAND
LOWNDES COUNTY.

e PLAT 800n 27 PAGE 227 By ayoner € ez~

ANE — 40' R.O.W. « il 5 WA L
SMPSON,JANE -, 40, > . P -
/ s 85. ov z| s : CRETE REINFORCING BAR @ = 5/8%18 RO REBAR PLACED W/C 2284
ol _.h w B ) % PLASTIC CAP @ = 5/8" RUN TLLAR (OUND %/C §2284
4 3153 o 3 L= RGHT OF WAY @-
48 2 2 o 5 ee0Fsa € 176 LiNE
g k.m ﬁs,T o g o . ARE FEET =
o8& 457 so g3 & 1 o e NES = HON~ENCROACHABLE STRIP — A = WETAKO BOGHOARY FONNT - HOI MONUWERTLD
/ 4w seezaz 2 % iy x 4508 " NO_BRIVEWAYS ALLOWED B TR
/ g SEIan
20 Do o] - ISt
oW o FORUERLY d o DELINEATED WETLAND 3 mu.* SEHCHUATK - wm, SR ST
3 )
_n @E N 892332° E £ ; E. ) &®
- & k. x
% & :)._ﬂ_m_b CIRCLE - 50" R.O.W. v s 2
8 8 O e € otz " — = gy ﬂuaé surEED
) ; ‘ ¢ -
T Loy e 1] /\l — 100.00% | R
{ o 120.02' u { ;
_ 197 qéta 5.35@ n ’
W OR FORMERLY o g “
CALED i ¢ g < N o
o 3
chEs B = " 3
+ackes P F 310,19 |5 GEORGIA, LOWNDES COUNTY
N 88" dum. 3 H S 892532 W 50020 (T0TAL) d UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE
5 — T S 8¢ 2 ¥ i :
#Jﬁ 2003 S 892332" W m E ul = This 5th day of May. 2023, 3:22 pm
(TOTAL LENGT) @W L s LR - R F$D-2023.04
o T_ [ = view Commiltee
0.234 ACRES 8 8 Lo T ) ¢
) A X m . i
| 120, cc L 20874 o
T | bt ‘
+ o
w i m o AND OTHER 2«0.3
g o0 >, Sk o
3 LA ez - . BENCHMARK_LIST _ %DB /
FaGE 261 ol £ Fd & 12 € zokn " v C
e P™ i1 =] S B92332" W me 28" (TOTAL) SUEUE a1 2 OWNERS' AGEMT — S1all FOLSOM GA IPLS §2254
gl® 03 50 i @)\ ! P - - = rrr— rig  dow ok oy e T LM GOUTIENT 0
DL N 892333 E H 2 1 205,00 —_— COUPIY PROPERTY i " S L AT e LA (G S CALEL
e, B P o 2008 - = ¥ 3 37) 25 2 o] oD soon T ke 4 st o6 6 oK. Rem LA RETECIVE SUNAURES FELOW WIH.. e
S B RN @ P s o : s zis . g . s 106 OF e FERSR [
U PRERD E 00 g 2 15 o Q . = i S APPRGVED Y BOARD OF_1EALTH, LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGI.
Ehpen | <8 - 4l HE oot ckes gy aces 8 L 3 977
3] 3 FT = * " = i DATE,
M (7] W 5 120.00" 3 m S B0'2332° W_555.83" (TOTAL) : e LINE TABLE
2 i ST A @ ” 3, o e R
o @ m =4 a2 | el 20T E 179 30 TIRE DISTANCE |
S = Saeayiz Wl = DELINEATED WETLAND X]
Y " L
& e m m m L
2N 1
u_l_ﬂr: @ vt 2 £D BT THE DIRECTOR OF E3G
W (TOTAL), 3, DES COUNTY, nmoxor
Dy 120.00° i By T
wQs 1 £l } ~ gy 34436 ¢ = W
62 CERE s %.E;Na v & o o
; g ) " L g
4 A 1 1l o 9 LOWNDELS
§ W g 0z Anes g 8 B CURVE AFPROVAL,
sh 2 20075 T e & DATA
: N B 120.00" 120.00" 120.00 L — - n._w. X
o oy 55 4= TR W S Bo2337 W aw “nuwm.m%
parmEw oRow - © i " 101 QRN o N 70709407 W APPROYAL CERTIFICATE
LD 00K €912 >, o & Lol B8 STATEWENTE, HEREOR, SUcH AP
s rm = , o 0234 ACRES @ Lo=48. AFERMATIONS SUHOYLD BL COMIIE
o | A S i sorr P cz APPRGPEIATE COVERKMENTAL BOD
Ac=59.94' P R USER OF THIS FLAT AS 10 INTENGED
7 36 g “i ol THE UNULRSIGHLD
120,60 2075k 2 Re=70.0( LAT COMPLIES
— =Y W 250817 W i
Le=58.12'
PAGE 630 "
y
L B,
THE WETLANDS SHOWN HEREON WERE S DG
JELINEATED BY ALAN RIGDON IN MAY of 1998. 1 i o,
HERSNRE "R ok AL s pemirTED Lano Loy \ua
WITHIN JURISDICTIONAL WETLANDS - EQRALL LOJS, HOUS!
WITHOUT A PRIOR PERMIT FROM THE A4 ECEVATION THAT £5T 5 MAY 2028
ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS. § RC5 224 CATE
15 Ygemag angus Ko FEIN TE :
A EL e v R S
WTH THE LOWNDES COUNTY ULDC SECTION S EC T/ ON 3 qmn_nmy xi #2284
10.0202(A),2. THE UNDERSIGNED SURVEYOR -
B Al O A o LOGATED i LAND LTS #6 & #38 of the
B DIRECTED 10 THE LS. ARMY CORPS OF 12th LAND DISTRICT of LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA <>_.ocﬂ> GA. 31601
s FIELD SURVEY COMPLETED: 21 APRIL 2023 229 ~ 244 — 2920
SRIOR TO DEVELOPMENT, OWNER SHOULD VARIFY PLAT DATE: 5 MAY 2023

THE LOCATION OF THE JURISDICTIONAL WETLANDS

folsomz2@bellsouth.net
WTH THE ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS.

SHEET §1 of

T GESCALD Y A FUOTESSANAL ONG! SAT2P-GROE

IIEPS-GROVE

<<

Attachment 1
https://bluesky.lowndescounty.com/index.php/apps/files/files/22409227dir=/TRC/Plats - Surveys/Final Subdivisions %28FSD%29/2023/District 2 and 5 FSD-2023-04 Grove Pointe Ph V%2C Sec 3&open...  1/1



molste0612_1
Typewriter
Attachment 1


¢ INHINHOV.LLV

47+ é&@@?\i%\gﬂzﬁu 0% - mmwmuéﬁ TR GA0C
Q\NT \ cmrﬁn_. IVVE] ) Lo - m\.wuglt T 1,98 .;Iﬁw %\
TN\ ] Sﬂ.:ﬁtw\@sgg@mﬁ,&s“ the¢-00¢ il ,‘M.\BBS jv&.ﬁi 2%pR ™YY 1
\3\3\3 wWos Esﬂm\mfﬁ g 25U~ O - eze %\\Qd I Mk \.\L\\&\N\ r§
s2-b2-01 VO opepensd  O]-198 122 .»Nu_a ) PP 3: §$ — Z 2L 27PN v{pmcﬁ
i N7 Qo__ﬁ

Se-0| W@ T G TOTTTP PR LLA=000 - AT
LD AT D He eI =X mﬂ:wﬂaa\vw@ 9\\, X imwzsr wG \ﬂcavctaz TP - §2-b1-0!

/\;Ww‘ti\cw@m%w% D 2L G oP) 0R PN R RN 1%
5 ¥¥/o¢ J.Wuv.d\.,wu\u \ 7

!Id $2-p2-0f

TPV @D KT (20) S T PR Yk A A P RS

"\

JL-8Z-0r T RYRA ra#. _52,» LILS- £95:29S V) Smtdlog wwtr\baz ﬁ\ ~ay| YeRSe(T
52 <620l we?’ \..wﬂio: @a%ﬁvml hoto -212Qe2r) J) I +vH bS0S \.NE o W/ SuC
(el WaQd \d»:uQHMCJ JOTeN P T 2 U0 ) :7

sege0l T G A ST :&N, 7 g
B C .ruE D@ UIMWAIR\WPWO - EbY -G\ -\ - 1) / gﬁ/@&ii U TR \\...Nm\m \ — VRO éxnéu
z_a_u.,/:.vz«m NN X NS RLSRIEGT .O YO R LS AT A A YR l U ﬁ

PAuSIS e SS3IPPV [TBJA-A # ouoyddpd J, dwnAB(q # 3522@@4\ FEENITY o.:cwnu_m dure Z ﬁﬁntm

‘o181 Sunydi reradg ayp 1oy poddns Junesrpur

1o1nsip pasodoid ayy unpim soumo Auadoid oy Jo (94,9 10) ¢/ 1se9] 1 Jo samnjeudis oy saxmbar uonnod siy [ “tuswale;s xe) Aradord
[enuue oy} Jo Aem Aq 1omsI(] oy3 ul Apedord yoes uo parad] oq [[1M (G [9 § JO JUNOWR Y} UT JUSTUSSISSE [eNUUe Uy "S1yI[1asms Jo
asodand ayy x0§ 1o1sI SUNYSI] [eroadg e jo poddns unesrpur sxoumo A11edoid woly samieudis Joyjes o3 st uonnad SIy) JO UL Y,



/} bl S
\ ¢ INHWNHDV.LLV >
| ng o TS
| M o e
| | - N |
L |
o] i ~
: e _
,, gbE  _ ——~ |
| e |
, z¢ ,_
\ __,, | le
,...w. ,/ T\N\ _
/ T
| 5
M , nE
| = \
Tz ]
Iz
ol
\ bl
. ohl
NGO =TT AP O R OB 5 [P 1T
POUSISOEQd  SSIPPVIN-A ~ FOUOUMIPLIWDAGq  FI0/559IDPPY 19908

STMOUITS

JweN pojulig

"1omsiq Suny3r reroadg oy 107 poddns Surjesipur

11sIp pasodoid oy uryim s1sumo Auadoid ay Jo (9,29 I0) €/ 1se9] 1e Jo sarmjeudis o) saxmbar uoned sy 1, -juowoje)s xey Ayzadoxd
[enuue 3Y) Jo Aem £q 191K oY) ul Aedoid yoes uo parAs] 2q [[iM ()G 19 § JO JUNOWE Sy} UI JUSWISSISSE [enuue uy sjy3Iposns Jo
osodnd ay) 105 10wsi(q Sunysry [ewadg e yo poddns Sunesipur sroumo Aadord woiy sarjeudis 1oyied 0 st uonriad SIY) JO JUNUI Y,

Pyl



D tom

The intent of this petition is to gather signatures from property owners indicating support of a Special Lighting District for the purpose
of streetlights. An annual assessment in the amount of $ 61.50 will be levied on each property in the District by way of the annual
property tax statement. This petition requires the signatures of at least 2/3 (or 67%) of the property owners within the proposed district
indicating support for the Special Lighting District.

Printed Name Signature Street Address/Lot # Daytime Telephone # E-Mail Address Date Signed
INCNY /)fl\\,gtvk . 108
ITaNAR 0 /109 AN Yo I8 10-30-3S
DAY T |
: N / = 12! A ‘s MO 3((1\\1 0y YT & a L Lo
% } -~
L izs

NS

ATTACHMENT 2



PETITION FOR ADDITION TO STREET LIGHTING DISTRICT

Basic Decorative Street Lighting District
This Petition is submitted pursuant to Section 6 of the Ordinance Creating Special Districts for Providing
Street Lighting adopted by the Board of Commissioners March 17, 2018. Capitalized terms in this Petition
have the meaning ascribed to them in the Ordinance.

This Petition is submitted for a proposed Addition to the Basic Decorative Street Lighting District.

Attachment 1 is a plat or map depicting the Lots in the proposed Addition, adjoining Streets, and locations
of existing and/or proposed Street Lights in the proposed Addition.

Attachment 2 are Signatories to this Petition. A Petition for an Addition must be signed within 120 days
preceding submission by the owners of record of at least 67% of the Lots in the proposed Addition.

Petitioner is authorized to represent each Signatory with regard to the Petition. The County Manager may
communicate with each Signatory by communicating with Petitioner who shall be responsible for relaying

all communications of the County Manger to each Signatory.

The annual assessment levied by the Ordinance against each Lot in the Basic Decorative Street Lighting
District is $61.50.

Concurrent with submitting a Petition, Petitioner shall pay the County a processing fee of $200.
The County is not responsible to install or to pay the cost to install Street Lights in the Addition.
_\/; Street Lights are installed in the proposed Addition.
Street Lights are not installed in the proposed Addition.

will install the Street Lights.

will pay the cost to install the Street Lights.

Petitioner: /\’/( \%ﬂa \U L anns 10 -2-2025

zgn tu e Printed Name Date

3351 Kindedoy Torest- 234 - Se| <1503 _He; %m‘\&;gms
Mailing Address Telephone Emetal ‘f&}\oO.CD‘ﬂL

Attachment Il

2@


molste0612_2
Typewriter
Attachment II


12/1/25, 10:55 AM

PDF.js viewer

(e ms) | \ \ |

Fited By: X 13
wades County Clerks Office " - A ;. ¥ ks e e _ a7 179 LoT 82 a
erk of Courts Beth C Greene = 5 wor 123 107 174 LOT 175 LoT 176 w
1/16/2025 09:53 AM CH 0 A1 m— “m g i AN \ (I DU &
3t Book: UOPCD B iz 2 £) N owerrzz
ge:f1t2 1 Eg— - £ \
0.00 Plat Fiing Fee J—— - 2
T T S orss _ ——
23 . & 0 SCALE m
i S ~
| p—— £ e o | =
L Lor 17 P v m,\
s 2
. DRINLEE WAY (50" R/W) 3
N 5 072" E g .,IN,.
GEORGIA, LOWNDES COUNTY R [
UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE Lo 169 . w
APPROVED - (o7 8
This 16¢h day of October, 2025, 8:35am ~ 9 aQ
File Number: FE0-2025:20 - 2 / =
Chainnan Technical Review Committas N &) PN
"N * 7
) N , 5
| \ N [ s e 3 2
! | | | | | ' h ! \ =N
Lor 1 “
‘ _ g | | | | i | A\ wor 167 N b m
= Lor 161 r | | Ko OF FORMERLY \ = /
_ | tor 162 o7 163 wres | wories 1 orme A or 17 DAV & TonTe Goow s -~
f f i | wr 137 b ST ranr 5.5
| . Rori ity 55
. sonvrs | | 14 Vo
‘ ~ o2 8242 25 BaT CXd o 22
— - 53 BAEE
= o s . wh ok o o = o7 110 ElE e m b A r R ok Sne U GRS GapeAwEios e mels.
= e e e e W fow e . sers L
ors  @F &= 8" gE 9AC gif azode Rig owac 8 ST ol GSG A IRMSLE £5 ROBONC TordL, STAPON M & TRMBLE 1SLY DATA COUECTGR
. [k x P = o ol (SURVETPRO} AXO A CARLSON BRX7+ BASE AD ROVER SYSTEM Wi A CARLSON RT4
= * §i5 DAT COLLECIOR (SunCE). THS FLAT HAT 4N ERROR GF CLOSURE OF 1 £0OT 14
w — 80,62 2.2 2047 5042 8237 assy 2.2 o ¥
i Worie E 2% 23 IHE BASIS OF BEARIGS 1S GA WEST NAGHS.
| , T 3)_ THE PROPERTY 15 ZONED "P-0" PER KEZ~2021-13 ACCORDIVG T0 LOWNOES COUNTY
] | BRINLEE WAY (50" R/W) T
(&) i 5 611018 W 4} ACCORDHG 10 A REVIEW GF TE FEMA FLOGD WSURANCE RATE MAP FOR LOWNDES
o X X ¥ Yy o COUNTY, MAP WUMBER \H1BSCOISE, DATED 9-26-2006, TME SUBKCT PROFERTY (5 i
m Au\ S BR58 ZONE “X* WHICH IS AN AREA DETERMNED TO BE QUTSIDE THE 0.2K ANNUAL CHANCE
u . = M m fLovoruan
Wl b 1 N *
| @ Us corns Wasorms Men Yo M Besl il SIS S L e M AT T 0
&) 8 oz0aC Fig 02040 R0z ar B o au M, Lor 122 ..uﬁ ENCUMBRANCES MAY EXST BUT ARE HOT SHOWN.
Z H 2" 3" §F 00 AC it 37 88 oA B8 2 ) TOTAL LOTS FOR ENASE @ 81 LOTS
‘ m “ o - o 4R m g n <5 TOTAL AREA WOLIAG LOIS, RIOHT OF NAYS. A0 OPEN SPACES: 189 4ORES
P pe £\ i
Z a2z sz a0z s s ] . OPEN SPACE e Yok AR I R TSR
v L 1297 ars7 o5 372 AC M
3 ' 7) UMUTS ARE PROVORD Y LGHWIES COUNTY WATER ANG LORMGES COUNTY SEVER.
“ 10T 104 B) NERE IS A 10" URLITY EASEMENT RESERVED FOR THE FRONT OF EACH (0T
A D20 AC Lor 133
” tar 125 ) .20 AT 9) THE SUBAECT PROFERTY 15 A FORTION OF TAX MAP 7 PARCEL 95.
\ “ mw 0.30 4C. M.,wm :dnn*m 5 q.m.u%; PERIMETER SETBACK UNE ARCUND THE EXTERIOR PROPERTY UNES
{ NOW OR FORMERLY 11) T2 THE BEST OF WY ANOWLEDGE, OTHER THAN WHAT IS SHOWN, TWERE ARE O
FRANK L BETHERINGTON LIVING TRUST DWELLNGS, ACCESSORY BULDINGS, EPTIC SYSTLMS, WELLS, SKNS, DR SWMMING POOLS
| TAX MAP 71 PARCEL 554 . LGCATED WINA 30 FEET OR THE APPUCABLE ZOWNIG SETGACK LINE, #MICHEVER IS
D 6381 PG 292 107 105 GREATER, FROW ANY PROPERTY LINE G THE SITE 10.02.01AN)).
‘ N FPLAT CAGINET ‘A" PG 781 020 AC
—
4T "
J— - T P
e e
~. - —
20" RORESS/EGRESS EASCHENT —
m‘m.nimn‘! seue T " T
- 30 ot
BhCE T
@ SR 7] e
« Wxﬁnhﬂ:\ = & WS -
Pt g e
. e
E, THE UNDERSIGNE ONNER(S) OF THE LANDINGS SUBDIWSION PHASE 3 a8 o
DEFMCTED HEREOR WERESY GFFER T0 DEDICATE ANO/OR RESERVE FOR PUBLIC i o
USE THE RIGHTS OF WAYS, LASEMENTS, AND OTHER GROUNDS AS SHOWN ON TS RS
Ersd o
e
Hagf - —
T TS T o
45 REGURED BY SUBSECTION (D) OF QLC.GA. SECTGN 15-6=87. THIS PLAT HAS -
GEEN PREPARED BY A LAND SURVEYOR AND ARFROVED BY ALL APPLICABLE LOCAL —
KRIDICTIONS £OR FECTROWG AS EVIDENCED 2¥ APPROVAL CERTFICATES. o
SCNATURES, STAMPS, OR STATEMENTS HEREON. SUCH APPROVALS OR AFPRMATIGNS @Fv
wor iz
o
" ML I DING. SETBACKS
R AL (O
FRONT « 20 FKET
SIGES w 10 FEET
RER - 25 FET
oo 43 reer
- SOE - 19 FEET o7 13t
- HEAR = 28 FXET
- SIOL STREEY = 18 FEET
& = 5/8" KON PN SET W/CAP §2959
t
[ J08_#0,
SURVEY DATE ] .
ROBERTS o SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR: 1
SCALE
SURVEYING, INC. || e s e o
3 " 3 : oF
1725 € PARK AVE SUTE A VALDOSTA G 31602 ETT T T N mm_ NLN:/NENZQO m@ mbN@NmMQZ wum\@mm_ 4
PH{220) B71-9988 FAX {229) §71-3973 d
) TS W
G A Nt
X CERTFIGATE 6F AUTHORIZATION No. 1275 I LAND LOTS 8 & 9 OF THE I12TH LAND DISTRICT, LOWNDES COUNTY GEORGIA

hitps://bluesky.lowndescounty.com/index.php/apps/files/files/34513657dir=/TRC/Plats - Surveys/Final Subdivisions %28F8D%29/2025/District 2 and 5 FSD-2025-20 The Landings%2C Ph IV&cpenfile=tr...

Attachment 1

il


molste0612_3
Typewriter
Attachment 1


¢ INHIWHOV.LLV

&
R
NIRRT TSR OTWe R
€IG) -1AS -bEY uﬂd‘;%uwm .x\z\\ﬁ,\ M\ﬁ/ RS
7/ U\

pausiS e SSAIPPV [MeJA-A # duoydapd I, dwnAe(q # 107]/SSAIPPYVY )33.13S ouaﬂaw._m QUIBN] pajuLIf

0181 Sunysdi] reoeds a3 107 poddns Suresrpur

1o1nsip pasodoid oy urgyim sisumo Apedoxd oy Jo (94,9 10) £/ 1Se9] 8 Jo seanjeudis o) sonmbar uonnoed siy ], ‘Juswdte)s xey Ayradoxd
fenuue oy} jo Aem £q 10msiq oy ut Ayxadoid yoes uo porAsf oq [[Im (S 9 § JO JUNOWe JY) UT JUSWISSISSE [enuue Uy "SIYJI[10a1s JO
asodmnd oy 10§ 101s1(T Sunysr] feroadg e jo poddns Suneoipur soumo Aedord woly somnjeudis oyjesd 03 st uonnad SIY) JO JUdUI SY [,



EXHIBIT “A”
52 Phase 4 lots owned by TLDPW LLC (Fleming Williams, Manager)

Lot 91

Lot 92

Lot 93

Lot 94

Lot 95

Lot 96

Lot 97

Lot 98

Lot 99

Lot 100
Lot 101
Lot 102
Lot 103
Lot 104
Lot 105
Lot 106
Lot 107
Lot 108
Lot 109
Lot 110
Lot111
Lot 112
Lot 113
Lot 114
Lot 115
Lot116
Lot 117
Lot118
Lot119
Lot 120
Lot 121
Lot 122
Lot 123
Lot 124
Lot 125
Lot 126
Lot 127
Lot 128
Lot 129
Lot 130
Lot 131
Lot 132



Lot 133
Lot 134
Lot 135
Lot 136
Lot 137
Lot 138
Lot 139
Lot 140
Lot 142
Lot 143



PETITION FOR ADDITION TO STREET LIGHTING DISTRICT
Basic Decorative Street Lighting District

This Petition is submitted pursuant to Section 6 of the Ordinance Creating Special Districts for Providing
Street Lighting adopted by the Board of Commissioners March 17, 2018. Capitalized terms in this Petition
have the meaning ascribed to them in the Ordinance.

This Petition is submitted for a proposed Addition to the Basic Decorative Street Lighting District.

Attachment 1 is a plat or map depicting the Lots in the proposed Addition, adjoining Streets, and locations
of existing and/or proposed Street Lights in the proposed Addition.

Attachment 2 are Signatories to this Petition. A Petition for an Addition must be signed within 120 days
preceding submission by the owners of record of at least 67% of the Lots in the proposed Addition.

Petitioner is authorized to represent each Signatory with regard to the Petition. The County Manager may
communicate with each Signatory by communicating with Petitioner who shall be responsible for relaying
all communications of the County Manger to each Signatory.

The annual assessment levied by the Ordinance against each Lot in the Basic Decorative Street Lighting
District is $61.50.

Concurrent with submitting a Petition, Petitioner shall pay the County a processing fee of $200.
The County is not responsible to install or to pay the cost to install Street Lights in the Addition.
P
/ Street Lights are installed in the proposed Addition.
Street Lights are not installed in the proposed Addition.

will install the Street Lights.

will pay the cost to install the Street Lights.

i

Petitioner: ,t?i\/txu) \% {2408 8 L SO N B VANS -~ 200>

Si onatur e * Printed Name Date

3600 Wi LongHanive, GA 2912913648 _sovahe mh (1S

Mailing Address ~ !\L‘ 3 ) Telephone Email 5‘\\
-2 I b

Attachment Il

/\

HCt

vl


molste0612_4
Typewriter
Attachment III


23 1037 A

eFiled & eRecorded

DATE: 12/27/2023

TIME: 11:15 AM

PLAT BOOK: 000PCC

PAGE: 01673

RECORDING FEES: $10.00
PARTICIPANT ID: 3174712172
CLERK: Beth Greene

Lowndes County, GA

ROX FOR THE CLERE OF THE SUFERIDR GOURT,

BENCHIMAK:

BuEE ELEVATION 14276

BME2 HEvaon 13400

LEGEMD

o 5/87 FEBAR WITH CaP #3276 PACED ON A ¥ OFFSET

- 3/8° REBAR PLALED WAN CAP #3278

@ /8" REBAR FOUND YBTH CaP J29e0 ‘

® BEHCHUARK 5/8" REBAR PLACID WM OF §3276

e 5/8° RERBAR FOUND n»axﬁmv..-.onwm.zm
© 5/87 REQAR FOUND WK CAP §2785

NOW OF ORMLRLY
HATCO LLC

08 6550 PO 382

PARCELS 0072 051

GEORGIA, LOWNDES COUNTY
UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE
APPROVED

WL, THE

) AND/OR

(S} OF THE VAL DEL
ESTATES MUSE 4 SUBDMSION HERTDY OFFER TO DEDICATE AND/OR RESIRVE
FOR PUBLC USE THE KICHT OF WAYS, EASEVENTS, AMD OTHER GROUND SO
SHOWN ON THIS PLAT.

nare12/27/2023

APPRIVED BY Aj uwiee

e e ouE_YEYEOZ
y CHARMAN, TRC, JOHN DILLARD

= NG TD FLOCD INSURANCE RATE MAP FOR LOANDES COUNTY. GA MAP

F13185C0115E EFFECTIVE OATE SEPTEMBER 26, 2008, THIS PROPERTY 1S i
" X ", AN AREA DETERMINED TO BE QUTSIDE THE 0.2 ANNUAL
FLOODPLAN.
THE SUBJECT PROPERTY DEEC IS FOUND 1 DEED BOOK FACE
*  THE UMDERSICHED SURYETOR MAS NOT BEEN FURNISHED WITH A CURRENT

A5 REQUIRED BY BUBRECTION (o OF 0.C.G.A, SECTION 15-6-67, THIZ PLAT HAS
BEER BY A LAKD AND HY ALL AFPLICABLE LOCAL
FOR AS HY APPROVAL
SIGNATURES, STAMPS, OR STATEMENTS HEREOR. SUCH APPROVALS OR
AFFIRMATIONS SHOULD RE CORFIRMED WITH THE AFPROPRIATE GOVERNMENTAL
BODIES BY ANY PURCHASER OR USER OF THIS PLAT AS TO INTERDED USE OF ARY
PARCKL. FURTHERMURE, THE UNDERSKINED LARD SURVEYOR CERTIRIKS THATY
THIS PLAT COMPLIES WITH THE MINIMUM TECHNICAL STANDARDS FOR PROPERTY
SURVEYS IN GHORQIA AS SET FORTH IN THE RULES AND SEGULATIONS OF THE
GEORGIA BOARD OF REGISTRATION FOR PROFESZIORAL EXGINEERS AND LAND
SURVEYORS ARD ASRET FORTH IN O.C (A SECTION 15-4-67,

12/27/2023
DATE

This 27th day of December, 2023, 11:05 am
File Number: FSD-2023-13
Chal T ical Review C
WETLANDS DELINEATED
N Y RED CaK CHVIRORMLNIAL
IO .o Y. - W, SR ¥ N S Nl ¥ L SAGED UN FIELD BVIDLHCE 390
(U )< o W 4. N W F F B SN (VAR FEMA FIFMS THE MIGH WATER 15
v 213406
\ v LA s N NS A RN, )
\ N owrm N e X0 NG N e MY R ) e NN e
'\ . \ A\
i e%m%ww& Ve ANTE D N W XN N T N e N e e e
e ¥ <D ) - S C O S S - >3 0 WY I S G WA
y ﬁvw.o ez rﬁuu/

PARCELE 0072 052

.......

HON DR FORMEXLY
JAS DEVELOPERS GG
D BAA2 PG I
PLRCELE 0072 082

e g prENIED © UNLESS OTHERWISE DEPICTED THE ALLOWABLE LAND USES SWNRAR 7O THOSE LAND USES

o 87 D DK DRCIWINAL
C S GH WEITR CLEVAICR: 2.0

1O §97 /
o
LoT 13 Q%..V&

<
mv:u»nmwc.r‘

= AL REMIDENTIAL LOTS ARE SIZED APPROPRWFELY FOR A HOUSE 7O FIT AND SHOULD HOT
RECHARE ADWINISTRATIVE WANVERS.

»  THE HOME OWHERS ASSOCATION (HOA) SHALL BE RESPONSIILE FOR THE MANTENANCE AND
gmvgaﬁ%gwunmgamagxsgggﬁ

THE FOLLOWNG WRL BE PROVIDED:

A A HENCH WMARK WWL BE ESTABUSHED AT THE FROMNT PROPERTY CORRER FOR EVERY LO7,

B A HIGH WATER MARK, BASE FLOOO ELEVATION R HYDRAULC ANALYSIS PERFORMED SWALL
ESTABUSH THE 100 YEAR PLOOD ELEVATION,

C: A MEGSUM FINISHED FLOOR ELEVARON SHALL BE ESTABLISHED FOR THE LOT I QUESTION A

ENGEMEER WHO WAS RESPONSIDLE FOR DEVELOPHENT OF THE SUBDIMSION CONSTRUCTION PLANS
SHALL BE RESTALLED.

F: BEFORE ANY INSPECTIONS ARE PERFORMED ANO SICHED OFF OM, A REGISTERID LANG
SURVEYOR MUST CERTISY THAY IHE PROPUOSED FINMSKED FLOOR IS AT OR ABOVE THE FRISHMED FLOOR
ESTABUSHED ON THIS PLAL.

 \PROJECTS \AAAA JOBS\ 2022 (53481 7I\4A 675 VAL DEL ESTRTESUNNOVATE\PHASE £\AAA 873 PHASE 4DWG 12

INNOVATE «

Engineering & Surveying

FHONE: 229-249-9113 www.innovatess.com
2214 N. Pattersan Steeet, Valdosta, GA 31602

LOCATED IN

LAND LOT 9

12TH LAND DISTRICT

LOWNDES COUNTY, GA

PLAT DATE: 12/22/2023

FIELD SURVEY DATE:
6/20/2022

FIELD CLOSURE: 1 IN 37,881
ANGLE ERROR: 2° PER ANGLE
PLAT CLOSURE: 1" IN  XXXX'
METHOD OF ADJUSTMENT: NONE
EQUIPMENT USED:

CARLSON ROBOTIC CR2+

CARLSON BRx6+ GHSS ROVER

CARLSON RT3 TABLET DC

SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR:

VAL DEL ESTATES T —
PHASE 4

Attachment 1



molste0612_5
Typewriter
Attachment 1


12/1/25, 10:58 AM PDF. js viewer

GEORGIA, LOWNDES COUNTY / 2
E-Filed By: UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE ‘
Lowndes County Clerks Office APPROVED
lerk Beth C Greene This 215t day of January, 2025, 11:30am
Clerk of Courts Beth C Gree Fila Number: FSD-2024:08 : —_— T

01/21/2025 11:35 AM
Plat Book. 00PCC
Page: 1935

$10.00 Recording fee

Chairman. Techaical Review Commitiee

ICINITY MAF

A \\&m:\::r,o.‘\llw_. SRR
)

VAL GEL CSTATES SUBDWVSION FIAST & (PLAT CABINET L™ FAGC

N YOO £ 651.00°
8000 2000 20,00

3
8
8
g

. 16848 ;o

|
|
| ewwe | ,
T
|
|

2 = .
= "TNE SUBJECT PROPERTY DEED 1S FOUNG IN DEED BODK 6842 PAGE 313 g — b=l — Sl — = 3 Lot 25 i i
THE UNGERSGNED SURVEYOR MAS NOT BEEN FURNSED WITH A CURRENT TME = = i L P i 2le, .31 ¢ 5
TS IR e T L S 4 4 o o i L 8 :
is AT T 2 sl3 3 5(3: z 5 I - - A
B R i g s B ww B ww B enw B owm d Nl % i ;
SURVEY 15 FOR 4AG DIVELOPER: e O M s gl gle i 2 5
+ CURRENT ZOWINS 5 P-D 3 1= N 1= i b G R = !
TOTAL LOTS = 27 (PHASE %) < = Pm | < o i = .
TOTAL ACREAGE FOR FHASE 5 1558 ACKES -l |-~ — 5 .

SaNLl 3 15609 S

L0002 K 15.6092 N
8
2

LT3 B
028 AC

FOLLOWNG WLL BE PROVIDED
£ % SOICH i L BE ESTABUISHED AT THE FRONT PAOPERIY CORNER FOR DYERY LOT

OPEN SPACE
857 AC N
N ATPRONMATE LECATON CF 10 TEAR

FLO0:

W

unm"  CEKIY AT THE PROPOSED FINSHED FLOOR 15 AT OR ABOVE THE INISHED FLOOR ESTABLISHED
LA
< HSH WAIER AND MININUM FINISH FLOOR ELEVATIONS WERE TANING FROM THE APPROVED PRELMINARY

T
2
.
,
N\
'
B

=
ey
,
)
N
\
™~

FLAT OF VAL CEL ESTATES 6 LEA DATED B/6/21

"

o6 3
|
.

T APROTMATE L

- -'\&m

G.ASECTIO!

| \PROJECTS\AAAA JOBS\2022 (524=817)\64 675 VL DEL ESTATES\WINOVATE\PHASE §\V675 PHASE 5.0WC 1/18/5025 §:5¢ AW

LOCATED N FIELD CLOSURE: 1IN 41,015
LAND LOT 9 ANGLE ERRO!
PLAT CLOSURE: I' IN 999,999'

METHOD OF ADJUSTMENT: NONE

HZZO<>‘HW ‘ SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR: J

VAL DEL ESTATES
PHASE 5 /

° /87 RESAR PUKCED WITH CAP 3276 \ o 60 120 180

O 5 sk FOUND Wi CAP 2040 z LOWNDES COUNTY, GA
® BENCHUARK S/8" REBAR PLACED WIH CAP §3276 ™ ™ s ™ gy 5
. 3 S RemR FoUND Wi CRP §37T PHASE 4 . PLAT DATE: 12/20/202+4

FIELD SURVEY DATE:
12/17/2024

Attachment 1

https://bluesky.lowndescounty.com/index.php/apps/files/files/2906554 7dir=/TRC/Plats - Surveys/Final Subdivisions %28FSD%29/2024/District 2 and 5 FSD-2024-08 Val Del Estates%2C Ph 5&openfile=t...  1/1


molste0612_6
Typewriter
Attachment 1


¢ LINFNHOV.LLY

\w\mxt.‘: x‘sdn%m_,@lﬁ k.wa;ww:., WL ‘WWL\O OHM NMNN ;%J . . \I/J\JQMJ\.\)\\JU DJUWﬁO \VMTHDHU
%l? | €2 (9, IETHSE g AR TIOD  GETL 70 MEE T T Q75 R
seorfozfg WGy )T AWOT7TNi2 AN Ce %2 -Q0¢ -1PT g WO AC o VLT Y YWY

/

_sepoeis T [ i B 7 s g e W FTTETE
3/ azfg =y 35T~ SR-10L Gl 197 168 W ), A
52028 T SAQE IOTANNY  Faps-HLSI8 v,y VTV ILZbE AR T ki

T R oL IR P U AL = VAN

Y2 vm; — <_ ‘.5%93.9@ EEﬁé
Nk -Feh TR0 7 TIT 000LT ~ WA BaDiy uuihy A
LEVRLELT VT 7 $A7% <TG
. — VSTt N S

¢ 1T % Y | 4 y ‘ ] 4 . {1 &
A N z 2 e o o /
- h &770/ VL WSRO0 W\ ey 77 70 S — 7, Siyon ey
> o B e, Gy 4 f. , MMWTJ . -N rm. aﬂxu ﬂf@ /ﬁ«ab\/. <\~\ SIN \.NM .(\n w\x\m “ /2 f).,:”p_...:myﬁ% /Jif.“/\m\q,..{

a3 M,D ]
v

m e YL _ o \5 > - = = Ak ¥ T
e (3 PO B T e ST TG,

pausig sreq SSOIPPV NeIA-0 # sucydaja J, swinAe(] F 107 1/551piy Eotw( ' ENTR T EATN QUWIUN PIJULEg]

il

RIS Funy3r [eroedg ayy 167 1roddns Supeorpur

msip pasodard oy urgim sioumo Ladoxd oy Jo (04,9 10) €/z 1S€5] 18 JO $aIMmeUS]s a1y sennbar uoniad sity] qudwree)s xey Arodoid
[enuue o) Jo Aem Aq 10T 2 w Apredoid yaes uo PatAs] aq s 0S°19 § JO 1UmQuIg 3t U JUSWISSISSE [enuue oy ‘spySijesns Jo
asodind atp 103 u&\ﬁﬂm\_.l SunYB1T [eroads e Jo woddng Suneoipui sroumo Aredord oy semjeudrs yies 03 st uonnad sy JO yu=y oy,



¢ INHINHOV.LLV

2 [CHRR AV TR ETS) A—

DEw 72 0 19100 &

TR oo Z;w\\n!\\w\\&\ﬁ /]

Jﬂ‘m:,cyi_.q JO% \Q;&\ ﬂ
-

T A R —
(Ca 2Vo)m oDk . ﬁ //
\

=

/"‘—‘\‘\

\ A
I //\

(
Sz-lg-af N

8 U0 " LI

2
bha JYVIT :,ZT\\\§ \
NI AN RS \\\§ \

‘\v/\b‘%
—

_s2-ls0] . v / LALo 09522 19 PRCA A MR T 1 (\J\i i
SRR, ar ARy T TN TVIISE —— gy oY) ==y
PIUSIS3EQ  SPIPPVICAE  #3U0YdpPL dumieq #)07]/SS3IPPY 193§ JInjeusiy SN pajulig

"SI Suny3ry reroadg g3 1oy woddns Sunesipul

191s1p pasodoid ay) urgm sxsumo Auadord o) Jo (94,9 10) €/ 15e9] 18 Jo samjeudis oy) sannbar uonnad sny |, “juswse)s xey Ayradoxd
[enuue oY} Jo Aem Aq 1owsi(g 9y ul Axodoxd yoes wo patad] oq [[IM (S [9 § JO JUNOWE Sy} UT JUSWISSISSE [enuue Uy "siyS11eons jo
asodmd oy 10§ 19108K( Sunysr] [eroadg & Jo poddns Sunesipur sioumo fredoid woxy sarmyeuSis 1oyjes o3 st uonnad STy} Jo Jusiur oY I

=) 5492 170 T



¢ INHINHOVLLV

/ Chqn 32O 950¢
M / AR S ,
\ w TG AN /
/ g YV1TTT )¢ , /
# / WIhqp 2U0Y Y DU / /
/ Qi UV VINM UK , /
/ NCq 12207 HCQr ,
‘ , CEnl1oUon CGOC ,
“ , Lo w 1701 03¢ ,
M M _ Ohw 12200 hooT _ \
“<) _,uﬂ al woJ ,,,_HVEJ_@__:ﬁ,.;.,y.ﬁ:.ﬁzpdﬁg THUH-HRTC-HCG Th% T22Z0W ONOT \\? JRYO RN m UK 5,
PIUSISNE(  SSAIPPV MEIN-Ad = #oUOYOP L dWNAER([§  #0'I/SS9Ippy 1990§ IMJeUSIS SWieN pajulig

10181 Sunysry reroadg a3 10 poddns uneorpur

1o11s1p pasodoid ay; uryiim soumo Auadord oy Jo (94,9 10) €/Z 15e9] 1B JO samjeusdis oy} saxmbar uonnad sny, Juowale)s xe) Arodoxd
Jenuue oy} Jo Aem Aq 10wsi(q Y} ul A10doid yoes uo parAd] aq [[IM (S 19 § JO JUNOWE 9y} UT JUSWUSSISSE [enUue Uy "SIYSI[1oons Jo
ssodand ayy 107 3o1ns1q Suny3r eroadg e Jo woddns Suneorpur soumo Aodoid woly saxmeuSts sogies 03 st uonnad SIY) JO JUSJUT Oy I



Attachment |V


molste0612_7
Typewriter
Attachment IV


LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: REZ-2025-16 Copeland Road Subdivision, 2480 Copeland
Rd, ~18ac, County Utilities, R-10/c to R-10
Work
DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular

Session
BUDGET IMPACT: N/A

FUNDING SOURCE:
() Annual

() Capital

(X) N/A

() SPLOST

() TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: REZ-2025-16 Copeland Road Subdivision, 2480
Copeland Rd, ~18ac, County Utilities, R-10/c to R-10

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: This request seeks to remove several of the conditions that were placed on the
property as a result of REZ-2018-07[1], which was ultimately approved for R-10 by a vote of (3-2-1) with the
following Conditions:

1. All lots, including the existing residence, shall front interior roads.

2. If there are any proposed entrances off of Lester Road, then the developer will be required to pave
Lester Road from the entrance to Copeland Road. The Developer will also be responsible for the
design, any acquisition of necessary right-of-way, relocation of utilities, and construction costs for the
paving of Lester Road from the development's southernmost entrance to Copeland Road.

3. The developer will be required to construct a pedestrian crossing and sidewalk from the subdivision to
Lowndes Middle School. The developer will be responsible for the design, relocation of utilities, and
construction costs for those improvements.

4. All lots adjacent to the western border and the southern border of the subject property shall meet or
exceed a minimum lot width of 100'.

5. No manufactured homes or mobile homes.

No two-family or duplex residences.

7. Minimum lot size of 1/3 acre lots (14,520 sq. ft.) instead of % acre lots.

o

The subject property is within the Urban Service Area, Valdosta Airport (VLD) Overlay, a drastic groundwater
recharge area, and Suburban Character Area, which recommend R-10 zoning. The subject property possesses
road frontage on Copeland Rd and Lester Rd, a county-maintained major collector and local road respectively,
with proposed access from Copeland Rd only.

The TRC analyzed the request, the standards governing the exercise of zoning power set forth in 10.01.05 of
the ULDC, and factors most relevant to this application, including the neighboring land uses and lot sizes, the
availability of County Utilities, the nearby existing school campus (Lowndes Middle), the adjacent

undeveloped Board of Education owned property, and some of the previously imposed conditions that have



already been resolved or are under GDOT guidelines, and therefore recommends approval of the request for
R-10 zoning with the following conditions:

1. All new lots shall front interior roads.

2. All lots adjacent to the western border and the southern border of the subject property shall meet or
exceed a minimum lot width of 100’.

3. No manufactured homes or mobile homes.

No two-family or duplex residences.

5. Minimum lot size of 1/3 acre lots (14,520 sq. ft.) along the southern border instead of % acre lots.

P

At the Planning Commission, the applicant's engineer spoke in favor of the request, with brief discussion
about the existing versus proposed conditions and the rising costs of development. No one spoke in
opposition, and the GLPC voted unanimously (9-0) to recommend approval with the five (5) new TRC
Conditions.

[1] REZ-2015-17 and REZ-2016-23 were both previously denied by the LCBOC (October 13t 2015; 3-0-1 vote

and January 10th 2016; 4-0-1 vote (Both Abstentions Commissioner Marshall)). Within both of those cases,
the TRC recommended for approval with conditions (Frontage and Paving). The GLPC recommended for
denial in the 2015 case by a 5-1 vote (Hall) and voted for approval in the 2016 case by a 6-2 vote (Raker and
Willis). Previous public hearings included both those speaking for and against the case. Those speaking
against the case have provided petitions with multiple signatures. Between both public hearings opposition to
the case seemed to focus on the proposed increase in density, adding to the traffic congestion in the area
associated with Lowndes Middle School, and other effects of additional population in the area e.g., noise,
decreased privacy, etc.

OPTIONS: 1) Approve
2) Approve with Conditions
3) Table
4) Deny

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Option 2

DEPARTMENT: Planning/Zoning DEPARTMENT HEAD: JD Dillard

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



John Owens
14 Murray Blvd.
Lakeland, GA 31635

October 1, 2025

Lowndes County Board of Commissioners
327 N. Ashley St., 2" Floor
Valdosta, GA 31601

To whom it may concern:

The purpose of this rezoning request is to rezone the subject property from R-10 with conditions to
R-10 without conditions in order to allow for development use of the property as a single-family
residential subdivision consistent with surrounding land uses and the adopted future land use map.

This rezoning will enable the property owner to develop and build a 41-lot single-family residential
subdivision consistent with the by-right uses permitted under the R-10 zoning classification.

The proposed rezoning alighs with the adopted land use plan, which designates the area for
Suburban Density Residential. The surrounding area is predominantly zoned R-A, R-10, or other
single-family residential classifications. Rezoning to R-10 without conditions will maintain the
existing residential pattern and character of the neighborhood.

The subject property will be served by existing public infrastructure, including water, sewer, and
road access and no additional public facility improvements are required to support the proposed
use.

We respectfully request approval of this rezoning application to R-10 without conditions, as itis
consistent with the comprehensive plan, compatible with adjacent land uses, and appropriate for

the character of the surrounding neighborhood.

Thank you for your consideration in this matter.

Sincerely,

i

John Owens



8" GRAVITY SEWER -\
; ss ss 55

t s <5 8 54
_+1128 LF. OF CONCRETE SIDEWALK
TO LOWNDES MIDDLE SCHOOL
0.33AC i
14548 S F ~DETENTION~
CURVE TABLE
CURVE | ARCLENGTH | RADIUS | TANGENT | CHORD BEARING | CHORD LENGTR o DRAINAGE
g L 20 DRAINAGE EASEMENT *
< 6890 2031007 | 3e4y en9z & [ i l EASEMENT ~i\
cz 25,30 095 f s o 7/ N
c3 o2z 28 24 by —— x
ca 933 | sS4 wW 56,80 é l
) 187 | S2TETEYW 2759 z
=3 2834 5000 EEE | SErUETEF 954" l
o7 17.45 20000 833 {Net02ITE 6 o @
= 2451 2007 WToF | 56T T %1 { R S‘;%’;Cr i )
14525 8 F
=) 2437 20.00° 2348 1SN W 076 ‘ |
c1o 2894 20.00" 231 INBTSY W 2618 L |
crt 17.45 20.00° 933 | NCFTATE 16.90° \ - !
|
1z 2653 56.00° 2518 w7 B B CEEES l
13 1564 50.00° 4718 68.64 5« GRAVITY SEWER i 10 UTILITIES
[ o 50007 47 HE ]S4 W 64 8% | ‘ \ EASEMEN‘L—J
X8 5166 50.00° 2840 | S o8 asE 9,39
ci6 17.45 20,001 947" 16,86 '
crr 3428 20,00 23000 £ ®
0.33AC
cre 3183 20.00" M7 | NIGTIEUT W 25 44 14525 8.F
S Az 20.00° I | NaIVEE E 213
L
| 0.33 AC
T T 14525 5.F {
Tie Lowendes County Board of O heand REZ-201R-07 on March 13, J01% and 10° UTILITIES !
APPROVED the apphant’s sequest W sezone 18409 acres from s coman R-1 1o Dinsity EASEMENT |
Rexidentiuly soming chostication 0 R-10 (Suburbay Deasite Residenvals The Motion was
approved vin a 3-2-1 (Three-Tae-One’ vote with the Tollowing gonditions: I |
L Al lots. inchuding the exishng ressdence. shall fron interior foads ) @ ‘ 1§
20U there are any proposed entrances off of Lester Road. then the &) 623 AC v
developers will be requited fo pave Lester Rowd from the entrance to i 14525°S.F 4
Copeland Road Thc Developer will alsa be unmmhlL for the L
desigr. any af necessary i ol T
utilies, and construction costs tor the paving of Lester Road from the

w

+

m

-

developments southermost entrance 1o Copelind Road
The deseloper will be required to construct o pedesirian rossmg and

sidewalk from the
Develaper will be

costs for those

subdivision 0

Lowndes Middle School  The

sponsitie for the design. refocution of wilities. amd

Al bts adiaeent io the westem border mn) the southern hotder of the
subject property shatt meet or esceed o mininnan Jo widdh of 107

No mzpulactarsd homes of mabile homes.

No tavefamile or duples residences

immum fof size of 1/3 acre fots (14

lats

NOTES

SYMBOL LEGEND *

BENCHMARR .
5/ REBAR FOUND
S8 RERAR FOUND WITH CAP r2940] @
S8 REBAR WITH GAP #3015
15 OFEN TOF PIPE FOUND

noeeo o

2z g
3

1 { i I { | ’AB BUBR[EHORRO X000 . aRRoO IR lexd?

58 RFBAR

CONCRETE MARKER FOUND
DFED HOOK

PAGE NUMBER

FIRE HVDRANT

WATER VALVE

WATFR METER

BACK FLOW PREVENTER
BACK FLOW PREVENTER

POST INDICATOR VALVE
RRIGATION CONTROL VALVE

WELL

ELECTRIC METER

ELECTRIC TRANSFORMER
FIGHT POLI
UTILITY POLE

GUY WIRE
SANITARY
SANITARY

oF

SET W/ CAP #3276

F

CLEAN OUT
SEWER MANHOLE

THERE ARE NO EXISTING TREES ON
COVENANTS AND DEED RESTRICTIONS WILL BE DETERMINED PRIOR TO SUBMITTAL

320 5. 1) instead of Vi aere

THE SUBJECT PROPERTY

FINAL PLAT AND SHOWN THEREON.

THIS SUBDIVISION WiLL BE SERVED BY LOWNDES COUNTY WATER AND SANITARY
SEWER SYSTEMS

WATER AND SEWER SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED/INSTALLED BY THE DEVELOPER
NO PRIVATE FENCES ARE TO BE CONSTRUCTED ON OR ACROSS ANY EASEMENTS.
*  ALL MINIMUM FINISH FLOOR ELEVATIONS MUST BE 1 ABOVE THE TOP OF THE
ROADWAY CURBING ADJACENT TO THE RESPECTIVE LOT THE MINIMUM FFE Witl BE
DETERMINED PRIOR TO BUBMITTAL OF FINAL PLAT AND SHOWN THEREON
PROPOSED PAVEMENT WIDTH: 22°.

PROPQOSED CURB: 24" MIAMI CURB

ALL LOTS TO HAVE 10 UTILITIES EASEMENT ALONG RW

DEVELOPER MUST SUBMIT NOI THROUGH GAEPD PRIOR TG CONSTRUCTION,

PROPERTY INFO:

ALL OF PARCEL 0185 119

TOTAL AREA: 17.83 ACRES

TOTAL # OF LOTS: 35 (34 RESIDENTIAL & 1 HOA}

ZONED R-10

LOT 47 - RESERVED FOR DETENTION AREA

LOT #34 - EXISTING HOMESTEAD & RESERVED DETENTION AREA
MIN. LOT SIZE: 14,520 SQFT/ 5 ACRES

BUILDING SETBACKS

FRONT (INTERIOR] - 80 FEET (MEASURED FROM STREET CENTERLINE)
FRONY (COPELAND RD) - 70 F
REAR - 30" (MEASURED FROM PROPERTY LINE)
SIDE - 10" IMEASURED FROM PROPERTY LINE}

ET (MEASURED FROM ROAD CENTERLINE}

GASVALVE SIDE (CORNER LOT) - 80% OF FRONT SETBACK
GAS METER

MONITORING WFLL. PROPOSED STREETS

AR CONDITIONER UNTT RW WIDTH - 50 FEET

DRAINAGE MANHOLE.
DROP INLE]
FLARED END SECTION

MALL BOX

FIBER OPTIC PEDESTAL

CABLE TFL

TELEPHONE PEDFSTAL
TRAFFIC SIGN
LINE

FENC]
GAS LINE

UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE
UNDFRGROUND ELECTRIC
OVERHEAD UTILITIES
SANITARY SEWER LINE
WATER LINE

T

EVISION PEDESTA}

MIN PAVEMENT WIDTH

- 22 FEET

TOTAL PROPOSED IMPERVIOUS SITE COVERAGE: #2(1%
PROPOSED LOT IMPERVIOUS AREA. 13500 S.F (AVERAGE}
AD VALOREM TAXES HAVE BEEN PAID

OWNER / APPLICANT

NAME: BILL BRANHAM
ADDRESS: 2480 COPELAND ROAD
EMAIL: CEOBILL2000@GMAIL.COM
PHONE: 229-460-4455

PLAT PREPARER

NAME: CODY CALIFF

ADDRESS: 2214 N. PATTERSON STREET VALDOSTA, GA 31602
EMAIL: CALIFFSURVEYING@GMAIL COM

PHONE 228-560-7470

1!

NG 2027 W 65584

/
NIWISID
ganun o

=

|
i
|
|

_ MINIMUM BUILDING _
/ SETBACK LINES

50
2
0.60 AC

@
0.6C AC
26323SF

033 AC

\ @ 14551 S.F
043 AC

\ 18710 §.F

\

10 UTILITIES \
EASEMENT

10 UTILITIES &
EASEMENT 0.33 AC
14527 S.F
|\ @
€33 AC

0.33AC
\ 14535 S.F.

037 AC \

\ 14615 87
A

EENEd

586 T221 W 8L

.
l
|
W

R
STORM PIPING -

8.33AC
\ 14524 SF

=y
l &
Q. 33 AC $.43AC
14520 S F

18915 SF

INNOVATE ENGINEERING & SURVEYING DOES NOT
GUARANTEE NOR WARRANT THAT THE
UNDERGROUND CONDITIONS SHOWN ARE
ACCURATE OR COMPLETE. THE CONTRACTOR
SHALL MAKE THEMSELVES FAMILIAR WITH THE
SITE AND NOTIFY THE ENGINEER IMMEDIATELY {F
ACTUAL CONDITIONS DIFFER THAT MAY AFFECT
SUCCESSFUL CONSTRUCTION OF IMPROVEMENTS

— T X
. — % l E Rl
~DETENTION~ ‘ g ® \ : T ¥ \ & - ‘ &) - \ @ R
. ©AC & 033AC & 0.33AC = 233AC aasac | |- 333 AC 3 Sdane
f 0.71 AC 135:;33 SF 1 11:{3‘?-"8F ] 14520 S F l 34520 S.F \ 14520 8.F l 14520 S.F. ‘:‘ . 3 \
. T 30787 8. F 23 th \ . ] B
‘\I} 103,07 120,92 100,93 100.0. 105007 10,6 X .
‘ Seg0RETW 3584 0.25' WEST OF THE
CORNER

DATE OF SURVEY: 8/02/2022
FIELD CLOSURE: 1'IN 52,124
ANGLE ERROR: 2" PER ANGLE
PLAT CLOSURE: 1' IN 458,088"
METHOD OF ADJUSTMENT: NONE

EQUIPMENT USED:

CARLSON ROBOTIC CR2+

Uﬁlmes Protection Center Inc.

CARLSON BRx7 GNSS ROVER
CARLSON RT4 TABLET DC

Know what's below. Call before you dig.

PRELIMINARY PLAT - REVISED 09/29/2022

LESTER RD

NTS

APPROVED

This 10th day of Qctober, 2022, 9:40 am
Number: PSD-2022-07

@
]
E=]
E
£
G
[&]
:
5
]
o
K]
L
€
£
4]
o
=
§
-
©
£
[S]

GEQRGIA, LOWNDES COUNTY
UNIFIED LAND DEVELOPMENT CODE

SCALE 1"=50
HALF SCALE 1"=100'
VERTICAL SCALE 1'=5

=

PRETIMVENAKRY PLAT

REVISIONS

DESCRIPTION:

LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA
LAND LOT 111 LAND DISTRICT 11TH

BRANHAM SUBDIVISION

i

PHONE:229-249-9113 - www.innovatees.com

P

Engineering & Survey
2214 N. Patterson Street, Valdosta, GA 31602

INNOVATE

DATE:

08/11, 2022

M WILSON
C

B KENT

SHEET

lorl

PROJECT NUMBER

1744




143 Acres  10,0005.F

56 S FT

N SITE DATA TABLE
PROJECT ADDRESS TBD COPELAND ROAD, VALDOSTA, GEORGIA 31601
PARCEL NUMBER 0165119 (17.83 ACRES)
W = E-_EXAIISNHNG 2 waer =, [ - Z0NING SUBURBAN DENSITY RESIDENTIAL (R-10)
L PROJECT AREA 17.83 ACRES
— M FM M — M r —
EE'NG 8" FORCE BUILDING SETBACK LANDSCAPE SETBACK
B AN 70' (COLLECTOR), 60"
FRONT (RESIDENTIAL) FROM FRONT N/A
2 SEERE) ROAD CENTERLINE
\ V193,860 10 o cainy. 1939 ] ] N/A i
ou oug———— OU ——N 89°02°20" E. 79334 b ———a——— SIDE 10 SIDE /
o s =7 REAR 30' REAR N/A
- T | 1 - =
70' FRONT BUILDING SETBACK
I — S ——— —_— — - SITE NOTES:
] (o S
oy ‘ 1. THE HORIZONTAL DATA SHOWN IS BASED ON NAD83 GEORGIA WEST. THE VERTICAL DATA
an ,‘ SHOWN IS BASED ON NAVD 88(128).
0.23A.C |
) 2 ALL STRIPING AND SIGNS SHALL CONFORM TO THE LATEST VERSION OF THE MANUAL ON
b ‘ i UNIFORM TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES (MUTCD), OR THE DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
3 \ STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS
~ 9 |
=t ' 3 ALL DIMENSIONS SHOWN ARE MEASURED FROM THE FACE OF CURS, EDGE OF ASPHALT, OR EDGE
N — = . ‘ o ) OF BUILDING (WHERE APPLICABLE)
JOHN ROBERT & N 35 10,000 S.F. ECIRNE 2
MARY ANN REGISTER a 023AC £ 5 5 4. HANDICAPPED PARKING AND ACCESSIBLE ROUTES (AT MINIMUM) MEET THE LATEST VERSION OF
PARCEL 0165 118 o LoT2 l I ! THE AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT (ADA) STANDARDS FOR ACCESSIBLE DESIGN. NO
o 10,0005 F. (A | — ! ACCESSIBLE SIDEWALK SHALL EXCEED FIVE PERCENT (5%) LONGITUDINAL SLOPE OR TWO
z 023AC. I 12 PERCENT (2%) CROSS SLOPE. THE ACCESSIBLE PARKING AREAS SHALL NOT EXCEED TWO PERCENT
| ' /', \ = | (2%) SLOPE IN ANY DIRECTION. NO ACCESSIBLE RAMP SHALL NOT EXCEED 12H : 1V GRADE
gl A3 i |
I 5 7 N =N
] ACT 1 LOT 39 / "> N it HATCH LEGEND:

w
i | o23Aac | 2\ PROPOSED ASPHALT PROPOSED CONCRETE
35— | L_ x | PAVEMENT SIDEWALK
B | | | z
- LoT3 I - A Z i EXISTING ASPHALT EXISTING CONCRETE
' 10,000 S.F. < || PAVEMENT PAVEMENT
i
| 0.23AcC. ’ Al O
2

LoT 38
10,000 S.F. l
23AC

(M/¥ ,05) 3AI¥A NNV 30T |

P
L

BRICK HOUSE |
FFE: 198.40
I ! :

N 4
[t I . FH—
e Rt
| 2

]

B
]

LOT 37 -5
10,000 S.F. v ¢

HiF

A7 TN ¥ WEAARALLID

T
o
b
>
sl

{

]

|

I

|

|

|

\

\

\

LOT 36 ‘
10,000 S.F.
0.23AC

17 SOLAR PANEL
=

NOW OR FORMERLY

mil
H
N
|
|
|
L

MARY ANN REGISTER |
D3 4191 PG 29 |
PARCEL 0165 118A LoT 35
Sl i 10,000 S.F
0.23AC
ﬁ | PENCHMARK
Q LoT6 :/B" FlEE/\gRE|
10,000 5.F. [ 1 [ 4sB2329.07
= 023 A.C. FLElV: 194 82
~
~
2
o LOT 33 ) LOT 32 LOT 31
« 12,000 5.F. 12,000 8.F. 12,000 5.F
z 0.28A.C. 0.28A.C. 0.28A.C.

BENCHMARK

[
L

5/8" REBAR
N: 28777408 p
£.2582910.61
ELEV 19326
: l \ % S
DA e ENGINEERING CONSULTANTS
LEESBURG * VALDOSTA*WARNER ROBINS
REVISIONS |
No. DATE DESCRIPTION
1
| 2 %
3 =
| 4
LOTS LOT 10 | LoT11 5 N
16,994 S.F. 16,886 5.F 16,777 S.F. =
0.33AC 0.39AC 039A.C
AN 1 1 I I SN — SITE PLAN

S 89°02'21" W 935.84'

COPELAND ROAD SUBDIVISION

PROJECT NO 25-25129

VALDOSTA, LOWN DES DATE: 07/23/2025
COUNTY' GEORGIA DRAWN BY. BIW

CHECK BY. M

£ % o .o SHEETNO. |

E‘
GRAPHIC SCALE 1" = 50 C4 . O

0.28' WEST OF THE
CORNER

NOW OR FORMERLY
RICHARD & CCRY GUEST
DB 5108 PG 197
‘ PARCEL 0167 277

OWNES VINYL SIDING




REZ-2025-16

Copeland Road Subdivision

Rezoning Request PROPOSED ZO

CURRENT ZONING: R - 10/Conditions
ING:R-10

Zoning Location Map

COPELAND-RD

Legend

Roads
—+— Railroads
[ Parcels
= Urban Service Area
@D City Limits
[ Valdosta Airport
Zoning Districts

c-C
[ce
. cH
[ coN
I
. s
[
. -2
-
I vAz-1
[ wmaz-2
1 wazs
[ ol

P-D
[77] PDR
R
[ R0
I

<, W RA

(bjﬂ' B m GLPC Zoning

o+ @3 C-H Increase
| Wetlands

< \1i+.. =3 Wetlands 55' Buffer o

D \\




REZ-2025-16

Copeland Road Subdivision

Rezoning Request

COPEL'AND'RD

0 125 250 500
s ™ s— 1]

Roads

Functional Classification Character Areas

== 1, INTERSTATE [0 Agriculture / Forestry
Community Activity

@==3, OTHER PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL 50 conver

@==4, MINOR ARTERIAL Il Downtown

@5 MAJOR COLLECTOR Establls‘hed Rfaslldentlal
Industrial Activity

=6, MINOR COLLECTOR

Center
w7 LOCAL [ Industrial Area
—+— Railroads

Legend

Institutional Activity
L Center

I Linear Greenspace/Trails
B Mill Town
Moody Activity Zone

Neighborhood Activity
Center

Park/Recreation/
Conservation

Public / Institutional

AK/

Future Development Map

Il Regional Activity Center

Remerton Neighborhood
L Village

[ Rural Activity Center

7" Rural Residential
Suburban Area

B G Ghborhood
Transportation/
Communication/Utilities



REZ-2025-16 WRPDO Site Map

Legend
Roads |:| Open Water Parcels

—+— Railroads Valdosta Airport
[: Park Wetlands
City Limits 100 Yr Flood

Copeland Road Subdivision [~ JCrashzone  —— Hydrology

- Crashzone West Drastic
Rezon I ng Req ueSt D Urban Service Area Recharge Areas

COPEL-AND-RD

Y

qu-u3s

W@E 0 250 500

BN S cct




LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: REZ-2025-17 Shiloh Road, ~8.2 ac 6641 Shiloh Road, E-A to
R-A, Well & Septic
Work
DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular
Session
BUDGET IMPACT: N/A
FUNDING SOURCE:
() Annual
() Capital
(X) N/A
() SPLOST
() TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: REZ-2025-17 Shiloh Road, ~8.2 ac 6641 Shiloh Road, E-A
to R-A, Well & Septic

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: This request represents a change in zoning on the subject property from E-A
(Estate Agricultural) to R-A (Residential Agricultural) in order for the property to be subdivided into legally
conforming parcels.

The subject property is within the Rural Service Area and Agricultural Character Areas, which recommend R-A
zoning, while access to the property is from Shiloh Road, a County maintained Collector. There is a small
pond/wetland area in the southwest corner, and an existing residence and accessory structure in the
northeast corner.

The provided survey proposes to subdivide the existing residence and accessory structure onto a new 2.5-acre
parcel, which requires rezoning in order to legally conform to ULDC standards.

The TRC analyzed the request, the standards governing the exercise of zoning power set forth in 10.01.05 of
the ULDC, and factors most relevant to this application, including the neighboring land uses and lot sizes, the
viability of well and septic systems, the potential environmental impacts, and the ability to properly apply the
standards of the ULDC, and therefore recommends approval of the request for R-A zoning only on the 2.5-
acre portion (Tract 1) as depicted by the Carter Surveying plat dated 10-31-2025.

At the November Planning Commission meeting, the applicant's representative spoke in support, and no one
spoke in opposition. Therefore the GLPC recommended Approval of request for R-A zoning only on the 2.5-
acre portion (Tract 1) as depicted by the Carter Surveying plat dated 10-31-2025 unanimously (7-0).

OPTIONS: 1) Approve
2) Approve with Conditions
3) Table
4) Deny



RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve

DEPARTMENT: Planning/Zoning DEPARTMENT HEAD: JD Dillard

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



| am requesting to have the lot within the 2.5 Acres, that includes the existing house,
rezoned from EA to RA. [ am wanting to be able to build a new home on the 2™ lot shown of

5.691 Acres. The survey attached shows the property sectioned off in the 2 lots.



oY OF
COUNTY
STATE OF __

COMMUNITY PANEL KO,

THIS PROPERTY 18 LOCATED IN ZONE
ACCORDING. TO FLOOD INSURANCE RATE | [
NA

EFFECTIVE CATE:,

arry E‘ Wabb
Reu e Trust

:m.x-m? - mr 35205
SURVEY DATA

Error af closure {plofd 1" In 733,427"
Grror of gloyoretRaldiretative positinnst
precisidn 0.05°

8 003010
182,48

Fi woric sraried ol (003128
Figld work complaied 58 2O~3 35
Aoguar gerers 1Y par ongle polat
Adjuxtnd by! Compass Rile
Equp, stz Topeon Rayer Fumian (3
515 UG, Gesduia TREY. Hocdter

tyra Slsspets Comper

K Oi0aTieE

LEARE

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATION
Mmmm:r“"armm S TR R

v, 1o ma ot har bren ﬁm R
wmmv By am ,mé w wmzvnu WUNIPEL EBUTHY, G idpel'
‘piting SARIEAORY. 1T TumCGal o !}N WM@ mwmn or it SUER
“govkeamenial Dogios Kave SIRriNg I Wt Tpprévet b nel Meduired.

‘Phe tuhowlng Grermisiel beuits bave »mzu 1hig plst Tor-fing.

G

Tro Al veal o1 m suw,w Hartrar tasifios. thak:this piov. Sntpliues
Wik The’ mrlnioin Apecitietion of the iy Vi)
Reghiration f?r hnmm o Hywuor and Lo swv«m 3
Bperre Cout Cmawm e duihetiny. TRE: GBRIavE! sigbtiveey ctove
wgre porin pwu hert T SUE Wt 1sReESs e ofe 1B 5 MOBRTY
-ednaiaot }v‘ﬂ m

XL 133

Tham.as x{zc}zael & Rava Eraadwater
d 4GB~ 175 7 ey POA~

1 SUTRGICE BHGS

3764

5,681 deres

James ¥. & Jodi 0. Schwab

Dasd PRUI-ICE ~ Pl PCA=TS0

ol Fd
§ L
b = Tract 1
g & 2,500 Acres

ract 2

HEV200W toy o

o
R
i
¥
IR
/
[
100, 0 100 200 300
B 0 0 G U 0 D O i b 1
EWLAN N 2508 IR 0 1 9 I8 4 ;! )|

GRAPHIC SCALE - FEET

NJ49I31’ .‘J
£ 2539624.694

v GO AR
Gunchaing puwel

PO
COMENCE ' the camarhne interavction
M {'urkvl Road (paved hnne:t o5}

Rezoning Map for:

Seih Carde fnvesimernts

Land Lot # 133, 18th L.,
Lowndes €6

Scala: 1" = 100
20285

Novembar 3,

P S

LEGEND
@ LTS o B Tousd
@ PSren P St Lirgonnar)
0 O Harkow Foumt
B Ganer HET mmaseond
§ FO2 + Sumt of Dommnnceesont A&y
U+ i of Begarnoy bl

Grid Nontt; GA S1ate Plawe (West Zenel

£

wnly, Georgia.

&réer Surveyzng
alliied 8004
248 chllnwx Ra. Fillacoochee, GA 31850 |

s Rea-TiEs i R ST
Fax dap o o 001 0% (secmdad)
P 91534 5005 amast ymesurvepinggmadd con




Zoning Location Map

: CURRENT ZONING: E - A
Rezoning Request PROPOSED ZONING: R - A

E-A
Legend

Roads
—+—— Railroads
[ Parcels

Urban Service Area
(&= City Limits
[] Vvaldosta Airport
Zoning Districts

c-C
[ ce
. cH

CON
I =)
I s
] me
. v-2
. V-3
I vAz -1
[ maz-2
[ maz-s

O-l

P-D

PD-R

R-1
[ Ir10
[ Jr2t
R-A
GLPC Zoning

&= C-H Increase
Wetlands

N Feet

W <¢ E 0 300 600
P e —




REZ-2025-17 Future Development Map

6641 Shiloh
Rezoning Request

0 125250 500 Roads Legend
I Regional Activity Center

— e— 1 Functional Classification Character Areas I [rstitutional Activity
. Center [ Remerton Neighborhood
e=s 1, INTERSTATE [T Agriculture / Forestry I Linear Greenspace/Trails Village

@==3 OTHER PRINCIPAL ARTERIAL [ ] gg?tguniw Activity I Vil Town " Rural Activity Center
| Moody Activity Zone 7" Rural Residential
-— I Downt:
4, MINOR ARTERIAL ontown Neighborhood Activity Suburban Area

Established Residential
@==5 MAJOR COLLECTOR abished Fesidenta Center gy Tenstonal
— 6. MINOR COLLEGTOR [ é‘g‘::”al Activity Park/Recreation/ Neighborhood
, Conservation Transportation/

=7, LOCAL [ Industrial Area Public / Institutional Communication/Utilities

—— Railroads




REZ-2025-17

WRPDO Site Map

Legend
— Roads |:| Open Water Parcels
—+— Railroads Valdosta Airport
[: Park Wetlands
City Limits 100 Yr Flood
6641 Shiloh "] crashzone —— Hydrology
- | Crashzone West [-7] Drastic
Rezon I ng Req ueSt D Urban Service Area Recharge Areas
&
S
N
F
( /
\ 7
N
w E 0 250 500
I S cct




LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: FY2027 5311 Rural Transit Authorizing Resolution
Work
DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular
Session
BUDGET IMPACT: N/A
FUNDING SOURCE:
(X) Annual
() Capital
() N/A
() SPLOST
() TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: FY2027 5311 Rural Transit Authorizing Resolution

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: The Southern Georgia Regional Commission (SGRC) voted at their August 28th
meeting to apply for the FY2027 5311 Rural Transportation Program Grant Funding from the Georgia
Department of Transportation (GDOT) in order to continue operating the regional transit system on behalf of
the participating local municipalities.

Attached is a copy of the resolution authorizing the Chairman to sign all necessary forms for Lowndes County
to continue participating in the regional transit program, and for the SGRC to apply to GDOT for the 5311
Grant Funding.

OPTIONS: 1) Adopt the resolution and authorize the Chairman to sign the documents for the SGRC to operate
the 5311 Regional Rural Transportation Program.
2) Board's Pleasure

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt

DEPARTMENT: Planning/Zoning DEPARTMENT HEAD: JD Dillard

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



Part C: Authorizing Resolution

The following two pages include an authorizing resolution that must be enacted by the governing body of the
Applicant Organization and signed by the Chair of the County Commission, Mayor, or the head of the governing
body as appropriate. Please complete the fillable fields on the resolution, then print and sign the designated fields.
The authorizing resolution must be properly withessed and notarized, including the date the notary’s commission
expires. The resolution should also be stamped with the notary seal as well as the seal of the county commission,
city, or appropriate applicant jurisdiction. The certificate of the attesting officer must also be completed. A scanned
copy of the completed, signed, and notarized Authorizing Resolution should be submitted as an attachment with
the full application package.




RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE FILING OF AN APPLICATION WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION, UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, AND GEORGIA DEPARTMENT OF
TRANSPORTATION, FOR A GRANT UNDER TITLE 49 U.S.C., SECTION 5311.

WHEREAS, the Federal Transit Administration and the Georgia Department of Transportation are authorized to
make grants to non-urbanized (rural) areas for mass transportation projects; and

WHEREAS, the contract for financial assistance will impose certain obligations upon Applicant, including the
provision of the local share of project costs; and

WHEREAS, it is required by the United States Department of Transportation and the Georgia Department of
Transportation in accordance with the provisions of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, that in connection with
the filing of an application for assistance under the Federal Transit Act, the applicant gives an assurance that it
will comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and the United States Department of Transportation
requirements thereunder; and

WHEREAS, it is the goal of the Applicant that Minority Business Enterprise (Disadvantaged Business Enterprise
and Women's Business Enterprise) be utilized to the fullest extent possible in connection with this project, and
that definitive procedures shall be established and administered to ensure that minority business shall have the
maximum feasible opportunity to compete for contracts and purchase orders when procuring construction
contracts, supplies, equipment contracts, or consultant and other services.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY hereinafter
referred to as the “Applicant”,

1. That the Designated Official Southern Georgia Regional Comm'SS'on, hereinafter referred to as the “Official, is

authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of with the
Georgia Department of Transportation, to aid in the purchase of bus transit vehicles and/or the planning,
development, and construction of bus transit-related facilities pursuant to Section 5311 of the Federal Transit
Act.

2. That the Official is authorized to execute and file such application and assurances, or any other document
required by the U.S. Department of Transportation and the Georgia Department of Transportation effectuating
the purpose of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964.

3. That the Official is authorized to execute and file all other standard assurances, or any other document
required by the Georgia Department of Transportation or the U.S. Department of Transportation in connection
with the application for public transportation assistance.

4. That the Official is authorized to execute grant contract agreements on behalf of the Applicant with the
Georgia Department of Transportation.

5. That the Official is authorized to set forth and execute Minority Business Enterprise, DBE (Disadvantaged
Business Enterprise) and WBE (Women Business Enterprise) policies and procedures in connection with the
project's procurement needs as applicable.

6. That the applicant while making application to or receiving grants from the Federal Transit Administration will
comply with FTA Circular 9040.1G, FTA Certifications and Assurances for Federal Assistance 2024 as listed



in this grant application and General Operating Guidelines as illustrated in the Georgia State Management
Plan.

7. That the applicant has or will have available in the General Fund the required non-federal funds to meet local
share requirements for this grant application.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this day of , 2025.

Signature of Authorized Official

Name and Title of Authorized Official

Signed, sealed, and delivered this day of , 2025 in the presence of

Witness

Notary Public/Notary Seal

CERTIFICATE

The undersigned duly qualified and acting of

(Title of Certifying/Attesting Official) (Applicant’s Legal Name) certifies that the foregoing is
a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted at a legally convened meeting held on

, 2025.

Name of Certifying/Attesting Officer

Title of Certifying/Attesting Officer




LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Abandonment of Grice Road
Work
DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular

Session

BUDGET IMPACT: N/A
FUNDING SOURCE:

() Annual

() Capital

() N/A

() SPLOST
() TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Abandonment of Grice Road

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: The county has received a request to abandon Grice Road. Grice Road is
approximately 792' linear feet and begins at the intersection of Newsome Road, then south to the dead end.
Staff asked for any comments from stakeholder departments and Public Safety. The comments were all from
Public Safety relating to access to all of the parcels in case of an emergency. The owners will be required to
install a pre-planned access gate in the event they install a fence in the future and they must maintain the
driveway. The abandonment will also land lock a 3-acre parcel that is owned by Joy M. Bassford, the sister of
Dale Grice. Staff has spoken with the family about the 3-acre parcel and they understand if they ever want to
build on that parcel they will have to get a variance.

The request came from Floyd Dale Grice, who owns the property, 3532 Grice Road. All parcels are part of the
Grice family.

Georgia statute requires an initial determination either (a) “that the section of the county road system has for
any reason ceased to be used by the public to the extent that no substantial public purpose is served by it” or
(b) “that its removal from the county road system is otherwise in the best public interest,” or both. If the
Board makes either or both of these determinations, the statute provides for notice to adjoining property
owners, notice to the public by newspaper publication, and a public hearing.

OPTIONS: 1. That the section of the county road system has for any reason ceased to be used by the public to
the extent that no substantial public purpose is served by it” or (b) “that its removal from the
county road system is otherwise in the best public interest,” or both.

2. Redirect.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Option 1

DEPARTMENT: Engineering DEPARTMENT HEAD: Chad McLeod

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



Lowndes County Board of Commissioners

Att: Chad McLeod

My name is Floyd Dale Grice and would like to request the county to abandon Grice Rd.
Myself and Father Floyd R. Grice are the only residents that live on this road that dead ends
at my Father’s home and he is currently at hospice house and my sister and | have power of
Attorney for him.

Thanks for your consideration
Floyd Dale Grice
3532 Grice Rd

Valdosta Ga. 31606

Cell 229-563-3061
y / , .



T,

2
3
&
s
(0




LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: PI# 0016280 Twin Lakes Road Paving and Drainage
Improvements Georgia Power Relocation Agreement

Work
DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular
Session
BUDGET IMPACT: $721,989.00
FUNDING SOURCE:
() Annual
() Capital
() N/A
() SPLOST
(X) TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Twin Lakes Road GA Power Relocation

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: Twin Lakes Road Paving and Drainage Improvements is a TIA | project. Twin
Lakes Road Design & Documents are in the final stages of being 100% complete. As part of the project,
Georgia Power will have to relocate 17 poles and the lines for these poles. Georgia Power has proved prior
rights and provided Lowndes County a relocation agreement with a not to exceed amount of $721,989.00.
This is a planned cost and will be covered by TSPLOST.

OPTIONS: 1. Approve and authorize the Chairman to sign the Relocation Agreement.
2. Redirect.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Option 1

DEPARTMENT: Engineering DEPARTMENT HEAD: Chad McLeod

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



A Georgia Power

October 23, 2025

Mike Fletcher, Project Engineer
Lowndes County Engineering
327 North Ashley Street
Valdosta, Georgia 31601

RE: PI# 0016280
Twin Lakes Road Paving and Drainage Improvements

Mr. Fletcher,

Attached is a copy of the New Relocation Agreement between Georgia Power Company and Lowndes County for the above
referenced project.

Please sign and return to the email address below:

Georgia Power Company

Attn: Jalexis Susana

X2jsusan@southernco.com

After they have been executed by Georgia Power Company we will email you a copy.

Both the total estimated cost for relocation and the Payment Amount are valid only for a period of one (1) year following the
date set forth on the enclosed estimate. Further, Georgia Power will not commence any work unless, the County executes and
returns the enclosed Relocation Agreement and authorizes commencement of the work. Work must commence within 6 months
of the executed relocation agreement.

If you have any questions, please contact Kris Stephens at 706-357-6670.

Sincerely,
el Susn

Jalexis Susana
x2jsusan@southernco.com

Attachments


mailto:x2jsusan@southernco.com

Please sign the agreement and send the electronic copy to the email
address below:

Jalexis Susana (x2jsusan@southernco.com)

After the agreement has been executed by Georgia Power Company,
we will email a copy to you for your records.

Please remit any payments to the address below:
Georgia Power Company

96 Annex

Atlanta, GA 30396-0001

(Attn: Salanda Westry)

Please reference the invoice and or PI# number on the check.



UTILITY RELOCATION AGREEMENT

PROJECT NAME: _ Twin Lakes Road Paving and Drainage
Improvements

PROJECT NUMBER: 0016280

GDOT PROJECT NUMBER:

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as ofthe  day of ,20 . by
and between LOWNDES COUNTY, State of Georgia (hereinafter referred to as the “County™),
and GEORGIA POWER COMPANY (hereinafter referred to as the “Company”). This
Agreement may refer to either County or Company, or both, as a "Party" or "Parties.”

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the County proposes under the above written Project to construct Twin Lakes
Road Paving and Drainage Improvements (hereinafter referred to as the “Project”); and

WHEREAS, due to the construction of the Project, it will become necessary for the
Company to remove, relocate or make certain adjustments to the Company’s existing facilities
(such facilities, including but not limited to overhead and underground electric transmission,
distribution and communication lines, towers, frames, poles, facilities, wires, transformers, service
pedestals, apparatus, manholes, conduits, fixtures, appliances, cables, protective wires and devices
all being hereinafter referred to collectively as the “Facilities” or individually as the “Facility”);
and

WHEREAS, the Company, as hereinafter provided, may assert that it has certain property
interests and rights and utilized such property interests and rights for the placement of its Facilities
prior in time to County’s acquisition of the road right(s)-of-way, all as involved in said Project;
and

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the mutual covenants of the
Parties hereinafter set forth and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency
of which are hereby acknowledged by the Parties, the Parties agree as follows:

Section 1 THE WORK

1.1 Company Facilities

Company, with its regular construction or maintenance crews and personnel, at its standard
schedule of wages and working hours (as may be applicable from time to time during the term of
this Agreement), and working in accordance with the terms of its agreements with such employees,
will remove, relocate or make adjustments to its Facilities in accordance with the scope of work
and Estimate (defined below) attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference
(the “Work™). Company shall make all technical decisions concerning the Work and may elect to
contract any portion of the Work.

P10016280 1



1.2 Road Right-of-Way

Prior to Company commencing the Work, County will provide written assurances to
Company that it has acquired the necessary new road right-of-way (including information on the
property rights acquired).

1.3 Traffic Control

Company shall make a reasonable effort to provide signing and other traffic control
measures during the Work, in accordance with PART VI of the U. S. Department of Transportation
Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, current edition, all at the expense of the County.

Section 2 COSTS AND PAYMENT

2.1 Compensable Property Interests.

Company shall perform the Work in accordance with the estimate attached hereto as
Exhibit “A” and incorporated herein by reference (the “Total Estimate™). The total amount of the
Total Estimate is SEVEN HUNDRED TWNETY-ONE THOUSAND AND NINE HUNDRED
EIGHTY-NINE Dollars ($721,989.00). The amount of the Total Estimate that corresponds to
Company’s claim that it has compensable property interests with respect to the Project (the
“Reimbursement Claim”) is SEVEN HUNDRED TWNETY-ONE THOUSAND AND NINE
HUNDRED EIGHTY-NINE Dollars ($721,989.00), otherwise reflected as ONE HUNDRED
percent (100%) of the Total Estimate. The Reimbursement Claim is limited to: (a) the costs of
removing, relocating or adjusting those Facilities which are physically in place and in conflict with
the proposed construction and/or maintenance; (b) where replacement is necessary, the costs of
replacement in kind, and any improvements or betterments made necessary by the proposed
construction and/or maintenance; and (c) the costs incurred in acquiring additional easements or
private rights-of-way, including without limitation easements for lines, access, tree trimming, guy
wires, anchors and other devices, appliances and other equipment, and any and all other such
easements and property rights as may be reasonably necessary for the Company’s installation,
operation and maintenance of its Facilities (collectively, the “Relocation Costs™).

The cost of any improvements or betterments that are not made necessary by the proposed
construction or maintenance shall not be subject to the percentage split contemplated above. Such
costs shall be paid as follows: (a) the costs of any improvements or betterments of a Facility being
made solely at Company’s option (and not being made necessary by the proposed construction
and/or maintenance) shall be fully paid by Company; and (b) the costs of any improvements or
betterments of a Facility being made solely at County’s request (and not being made necessary by
the proposed construction and/or maintenance) shall be fully paid by County.

Upon completion by Company of the Work and subject to determination of Company’s
Prior Rights Claim in accordance with Sections 3 and 4 below, County will pay Company a sum
equal to the lesser of (a) SEVEN HUNDRED TWNETY-ONE THOUSAND AND NINE
HUNDRED EIGHTY-NINE Dollars ($721,989.00), otherwise reflected as ONE HUNDRED
percent (100%) of the Total Estimate and representing the aforementioned Reimbursement
Claim, or (b) the corresponding percentage of actual Relocation Costs representing Company’s
compensable property interests with respect to the Project. County will also pay Company for the

P10016280 2




costs of any improvements or betterments of a Facility being made solely at County’s request and
not being made necessary by the proposed construction and/or maintenance.

2.2 Progress Payments

If Company chooses to submit invoices for progress payments, County will pay same
within thirty (30) days from receipt of the invoice, subject to Verification (as defined below)
thereof by the County. Upon completion of the Work, Company shall submit a final bill to County
and County shall make a final payment within thirty (30) days from receipt of the final bill, subject
to Verification thereof by the County.

2.3 Change in Scope

In the event there is a change in the Project, including without limitation a change in scope,
design, plans, service, property interests to be acquired, engineering or costs, due to either (a)
events or circumstances beyond Company’s reasonable control, or (b) County’s request, the Parties
will negotiate in good faith a mutually acceptable agreement or amendment to this Agreement, in
writing, to address such change and any increase in costs above those set forth in the Estimate.

Section 3 DETERMINATION OF COMPENSABLE PROPERTY INTEREST

3.1 If Company determines it has compensable property interests with respect to the
Project, Company will submit a Reimbursement Claim. The Parties agree that they will in good
faith share non-privileged information with each other related to the issue of prior rights for the
Project. If County determines that Company’s evidence is insufficient to make a determination as
to Company’s compensable property interests and the percentage of the Relocation Costs to be
paid by Company based upon such compensable property interests, County will provide Company
with a written basis for such insufficiency and request that Company provide additional
information. County will make a determination as to any asserted Reimbursement Claim before
the earlier of: (a) the date that is thirty (30) days after receipt of the Reimbursement Claim; and (b)
the date on which Company needs to commence the Work in order to prevent a Project delay (the
“Commencement Date”).

3.2 In the event that a determination cannot reasonably be made prior to the
Commencement Date, provided that County certifies in writing to Company that the Project is
time-sensitive due to construction scheduling with the possibility of damages for delay, safety
concerns, or critical funding deadlines, Company will commence the Work without a written
determination having been made. In such case, the Party’s rights, claims and defenses with regard
to the issue of compensable property interests and prior rights will not be waived or affected in
any manner. If County does not thereafter make a determination regarding the Reimbursement
Claim within six (6) months from the date of County’s receipt of same, the Reimbursement Claim
will be deemed approved by County.

P10016280 3



Section 4 DISPUTE RESOLUTION

4.1 Disagreement

If Company disagrees with County’s determination with regard to the Reimbursement
Claim and the Parties are unable to settle the issue through informal negotiations, then, at the
request of either Party, the Parties agree to escalate the matter pursuant to Section 4.2 below.

4.2 Dispute Notice

Except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement, any controversy or claim arising out of or
relating to this Agreement, or the breach thereof, will be settled: (a) first, by good faith efforts to
reach mutual agreement of the Parties; and (b) second, if mutual agreement is not reached within
thirty (30) calendar days of a written request by a Party to resolve the controversy or claim (the
“Dispute Notice™), each of the Parties will appoint a designated representative who has authority
to settle the dispute (or who has authority to recommend to the governing body of such Party a
settlement of the dispute) and who is at a higher level of management than the persons with direct
responsibility for administration of this Agreement. The designated representatives will meet as
often as they reasonably deem necessary in order to discuss the dispute and negotiate in good faith
in an effort to resolve such dispute. The specific format for such discussions will be left to the
discretion of the designated representatives, provided, however, that all reasonable requests for
relevant information made by one Party to the other Party will be honored if such information is
reasonably available. If within sixty (60) days after issuance of a Dispute Notice (a) the Parties are
unable to resolve issues related to the dispute, or (b) County fails to approve any tentative
agreement reached, the Parties agree to participate in confidential, non-binding mediation pursuant
to Section 4.3 below, it being understood, however, that nothing herein will diminish or relieve
either Party of its rights or obligations under this Section 4.

4.3 Mediation

If the Parties are unable to resolve a dispute through informal negotiations or pursuant to
Section 4.2, the Parties agree to participate in confidential, non-binding mediation by an impartial,
third party mediator mutually agreed upon by the Parties, at a mutually convenient location. The
Parties agree that a potential mediator’s experience in prior rights and real estate law will be
relevant factors in selecting a mediator. In the event the Parties are unable to agree on a third party
mediator within ninety (90) days of issuance of the Dispute Notice, each Party shall designate a
mediation representative, and the two mediator representatives shall in good faith select a third
party mediator. Each Party shall be responsible for its own attorneys’ fees and expenses and for
providing its own information and documentation applicable to the dispute to the mediator. All
other agreed upon costs of the mediation will be apportioned equally to each Party. Any dispute
not resolved by negotiation, escalation or mediation may then be submitted to a court of competent
jurisdiction, and either Party may invoke any remedies at law or in equity. Nothing contained
herein, however, will preclude the Parties from first seeking temporary injunctive or other
equitable relief. The Parties agree that any statute of limitations, equity or other time-based periods
shall be tolled as of and from the date of the Dispute Notice until a complaint, if any, is filed.

Section 5 VERIFICATION

P10016280 4



5.1 Material Discrepancy

For purposes of this Section 5, “Verification” means that County has reasonably
determined that there is a material discrepancy between Company’s invoiced charges and County’s
calculation of charges owed, which invoiced charges are subject to a bona fide dispute; provided,
however, County agrees to provide the Company with written notice, including supporting
documentation, illustrating the basis for such bona fide dispute, within sixty (60) days of receipt
of the invoice in dispute. Should County fail to provide such documentation within the specified
time period, County must pay the disputed amount. County must pay any undisputed portion of
the invoice total within thirty (30) days after its receipt of the invoice. County must pay any
disputed portion of the invoice total within thirty (30) days of the date the dispute is resolved, to
the extent the dispute is resolved in favor of Company.

52  Audit

At any time within thirty-six (36) months after the date of final payment, County, at its sole
expense, may audit the non-privileged cost records, support documentation and accounts of
Company pertaining to this Project to solely assess the accuracy of the invoices submitted by
Company and notify Company of any amount of any unallowable expenditure made in the final
payment under this Agreement, or, if no unallowable expenditure is found, notify Company of that
fact in writing. Any such audit will be conducted by representatives of County or, if applicable,
the Georgia Department of Transportation or the Federal Highway Administration, after
reasonable advance written notice to Company and during regular business hours at the offices of
Company in a manner that does not unreasonably interfere with Company’s business activities and
subject to Company’s reasonable security requirements. As a prerequisite to conducting such audit,
County or, if applicable, the Georgia Department of Transportation or the Federal Highway
Administration, will sign Company’s Nondisclosure Agreement. Company may redact from its
records provided to County information that is confidential and irrelevant to the purposes of the
audit. Company will reasonably cooperate in any such audit, providing access to Company records
that are reasonably necessary to enable County to test the accuracy of the invoices to which the
audit pertains, provided that County or, if applicable, the Georgia Department of Transportation
or the Federal Highway Administration, may only review, but not copy, such records. If
Company agrees with the audit results and does not pay any such bill within ninety (90) days of
receipt of the bill from County (based on the mutually agreed upon audit results), County may set
off the amount of such bill against the amounts owed Company on any then-current contract
between Company and County. If, following the audit, the Parties are unable to resolve any
dispute concerning the results of the audit through informal negotiation, the provisions of Sections
4.2 and 4.3 will govern the resolution of the dispute. County may not perform an audit pursuant to
this Agreement more frequently than once per calendar year and may not conduct audits twice
within any six (6) months.

Section 6 COUNTY AS PARTY

County acknowledges that this Agreement is “proprietary” in nature under applicable
Georgia law, as permitted by O.C.G.A. § 36-60-13(j), and not “governmental” or “legislative,” as
prohibited by O.C.G.A. § 36-30-3(a). County further represents and warrants that this Agreement
will comply with all applicable laws concerning County actions and approvals and execution of
binding agreements. County covenants to undertake all actions necessary to bind County.

P10016280 5



Section 7 COMMENCEMENT AND TERMINATION CONDITIONS

Company is not obligated to commence the Work until Parties agree on the removal, relocation
and/or adjustment to Company’s facilities required by the Project. If County fails to authorize
commencement of the Work by October 23, 2026, Company will have no obligation to begin the
Work and may terminate this Agreement without penalty by providing County with notice in
writing. If County fails to sign and return this Agreement to Company October 23, 2026, any offer
made by Company pursuant to the Agreement is automatically revoked and the agreement is void
and of no effect.

Section 8 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Duplicate originals of this Agreement will be executed, each of which will be deemed an
original but both of which together will constitute one and the same instrument. This Agreement
may be modified only by an amendment executed in writing by a duly authorized representative
for each Party. This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the Parties, and all prior oral
agreements are superseded and integrated into this Agreement. This Agreement will be governed
by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia. This Agreement shall
accrue to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors and assigns of the Parties. The Parties
agree that this Agreement shall be deemed to have been executed in Georgia.

[SIGNATURES ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]

P10016280 6



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Contract in four (4)
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original in the year and day first above mentioned.

ATTEST: LOWNDES County, GEORGIA
By:
By:
Title: Chairman, Board of Commissioners
Witness: (SEAL)
Notary:
(SEAL)
Approved as to Form by:
Lowndes County Department of
Transportation
Recorded on the Minutes of the County Commission at Minute Book , Page
ATTEST: GEORGIA POWER COMPANY
By:
By:
Title:
Witness: Date:
Notary:
(SEAL)

[Give proper title of each person executing Agreement. Attach seal as required.]

P10016280 7



A Georgia Power

DOT Prior Rights Research PI# 0016280 Prepared By: Ellie W Jones
Twin Lakes Rd, Paving and Drainage Date: October 10. 2025
Improvements — Lowndes County

Prior rights research for the above DOT project in Lowndes County is complete. A thorough search
has been performed in the Georgia Power Company LIMS database by Land District, Land Lot,
property owners and address. The project is in the 16" Land District and Land Lots 62, 63, 78 and
77 of Lowndes County. The conflict locations are along Twin Lakes Rd CR 390 from Loch Laurel
Rd to GA Southern RR.

Distribution:
Distribution Base Map Number: 0735-0162, 0738-0162, 0741-0162 and 0744-0162.

Georgia Power Company placed distribution facilities on private property along the project area
of Twin Lakes Road in or prior to1977, easement are shown beginning along the western end of
project as follows:

- Dr J.B. Carroll, Jr & Hilda C. Griffin, (PSN 184357,1977); Mrs. Howard Griffin, (PSN
184670, 1983); Nancy G, Hobby, Virginia G. Tyson & Charles Hobby, (PSN 632208,
2018)

- Bobby Lambert (PSN 630839,2018), Scott Aldridge (PSN 630840, 2018. Serviced off of
T#1007112, 1% connected in 2010), Turner Family Investment/Warren Turner (PSN
630841, 2018), Eugene Ritter (west side of prop., power 1% connected in 2000), all acquired
from Carter & McCracken in 2004, purchased subject to prior easements (Twin Lakes Rd
shown as 30’ r/w on Plat attached)

- Historically Bridges and Cowart Property. John O Bridges (PSN 630838, 2018), Eugene
Ritter (east side of prop., house built 1984, presumably with power), Daniel Bacon
(serviced off T#7688, #32- 1* connected in 1985; #34- 1% connected in 1986), Tony Carter
(serviced off T#8889, 1% connect and built 4/1988), Michael Hurst (PSN 435143 1999)
Tree Trim Permit, Michael Chauncey (PSN 435143, 1999, serviced off T#825982, built
1999, 1% connect 3/2000), Ronald Phelps (PSN435144, 1999, Phelps Subdivision plat
record 1986).

- GPC easement, Valdosta — White Springs TL (MF — H263, Sht 10 & 11 —1927).

- J.C. Cowart (PSN 393857, 1999, E — RR & W — by Phelps), Greg Green (serviced off
T#8539, built and 1% connect 1987), Brenda Johnson (built and 1% connect 1992), Katrina
Moore (built 1993).

Conclusion:

Georgia Power Company placed distribution facilities within private easements beginning in or
around 1977. Lowndes County would have to provide evidence of earlier right-of-way acquisition
if claiming prior rights.



LOWNDES COUNTY
Twin Lakes Rd, Paving and Drainage Improvements
PI# 0016280
Sept. 25, 2025

9 <
Work § § Comments: Distribution Line along Twin Lakes Road was established on private
Loc. # s é s property prior to acquisition of County right-of-way.
Sht. No. C5.0 thru Sht. No. C6.5 NO CONFLICTS
Sht. No. C6.6
J.B. Carroll & Hilda Griffin (184357,1977); Howard Griffin (184670, 1983); Tyson & Hobby
13 X (632208, 2018)
14 X Bobby Lambert (630839, 2018)
15 X Bobby Lambert (630839, 2018)
16 X Scott Aldridge (630840, 2018)
Sht. No. 6.7
17 X Scott Aldridge (630840, 2018) 1st Connect 2010 off T#1007112)
18 X See Loc. 16 & 17
20 X Euggne R!tter/Lake Bowden LLC. - D.L. was established on private property prior to County
acquired right-of-way.
Sht. No. C6.8
22 X See Loc. 20
23 X See Loc. 20
Sht.No.C6.9  NO CONFLICTS
Sht. No. C6.10
27 X See Loc. 20
28 X See Loc. 20
29 X See Loc. 20
Sht. No. C6.1
30 X See Loc. 20
31 X See Loc. 20
32 X Eugene Ritlter, formerly Mullis_. Ho1_1se built in 1984. D.L. was established on private
property prior to County acquired right-of-way.
32 X Bacon/Wassmuth, Loc. 32 — 1st connect 1985; Loc. 34, 1st Connect 1986 off T#7688
33 X Topy Carter (15t connect & built 1988, off T#8889), Michael Chauncey (PSN 435143, 1999,
built 1999, 1st connect 3/200, serviced off T# 825982.
34 X Bacon/Wassmuth, Loc. 32 — 1st connect 1985; Loc. 34, 1st Connect 1986 off T#7688




= =
[ ©
(2] (2]
Work g . S | Comments: Distribution Line along Twin Lakes Road was established on private
Loc. # 5§ |58 property prior to acquisition of County right-of-way.
35 X Michael Hurst (PSN 435143 1999) Tree Trim Permit, Michael Chauncey (built 1999, 1st
connect 3/200, serviced off T# 825982.)
Sht. No. C6.12
36 X Ronald Phelps (PSN 435144, 1999) Tree Trim Permit.
J.C. Cowart (PSN 393857 1990), Greg Green, (built & 1st connect 1987, serviced off
3 T#8539)

Sht. No. C6.12 con’t

38 G.P.C. — Valdosta — White Springs TL (MF — H263, Sht 10 & 11)
39 See Loc. 38

Sht. No. C6.13
41 See Loc. 38
42 X J.C. Cowart (PSN 393857 1990), Brenda Johnson, (built & 15t connect 1992)
44 J.C. Cowart (PSN 393857 1990), Katrina Moore, (built 1993)




PSN 630841

WNDLS COUNTY, GA
FILED IN OFFICE

B6LL2PGI 1B 18 JUN-5 PM 3:29
"f}zx.k: ‘jJMm

CLERK OF SUPERIOR COURT

PROJECT 2017088842 LETTER FILE 9-15886 DEED FILE 25193 MAP FILE N/A
ACCOUNT NUMBER 69596-VBS-0-501117-0-GP700-30000000-0

NAME OF LINE/PROJECT: SUWANNEE-TWIN LAKES SOUTH FEEDER (LOWNDES COUNTY)
DISTRIBUTION LINE

~ PARCEL NUMBER 007

STATE OF GEORGIA
LOWNDES COUNTY

EASEMENT

For and in consideration of the sum of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00) and
other good and valuable consideration, in hand paid by GEORGIA POWER COMPANY, a
Georgia corporation (the “Company”), the receipt and sufficiency of which are
hereby acknowledged, TURNER FAMILY INVESTMENTS, LP (the “Undersigned”, which
term shall include heirs, successors and/or assigns), whose mailing Address is
P.O. Box 157, Valdosta, GA 31603, does hereby grant and convey to the Company,
its successors and assigns, the right, privilege and easement to go in, upon,
along, across, under and through the Property (as defined below) for the
purposes described herein.

The “Property” is defined as that certain tract of land owned by the
Undersigned at Corinth Church Rd, Lake Park, GA 31636 (Tax Parcel ID No. 0195
032C) in Land Lot 63 of the 16 District of Lowndes County, Georgia.

The “Easement Area” is defined as any portion of the Property located within
ten (10) feet of the centerline of the overhead distribution line(s) as installed
in the approximate location shown on “Exhibit A” attached hereto and made a
part hereof.

The rights granted herein include and embrace the right of the Company to
construct, operate, maintain, repair, renew and rebuild continuously upon and
under the Easement Area its lines for transmitting electric current with poles,
wires, transformers, service pedestals, anchors, guy wires and other necessary
apparatus, fixtures, and appliances; the right to attach communication

Distribution (LIMS 2) 2017.08.17 Page 1 of 3


PSN 630841



PARCEL 007 NAME OF SUWANNEE-TWIN LAKES SOUTH FEEDER (LOWNDES COUNTY)
LINE/PROJECT: DISTRIBUTION LINE

________________ MeLL2P61 1T

facilities and related apparatus, fixtures, and appliances to said poles; the
right to stretch communication or other lines within the Easement Area; the
right to permit the attachment of the cables, lines, wires, apparatus, fixtures,
and appliances of any other company or person to said poles for electrical,
communication or other purposes; the right to assign this Easement in whole or
in part; the right at all times to enter upon the Easement Area for the purpose
of inspecting said lines and/or making repairs, renewals, alterations and
extensions thereon, thereunder, thereto or therefrom; the right to cut, trim,
remove, clear and keep clear of said overhead or underground lines, transformers,
fixtures, and appliances all trees and other obstructions that may in the opinion
of the Company now or hereafter in any way interfere or be likely to interfere
with the proper maintenance and operation of said overhead or underground lines,
transformers, fixtures, and appliances; the right of ingress and egress over
the Property to and from the Easement Area; and the right to install and maintain
electrical and communication lines and facilities to existing and future
structure(s) within the Easement Area under the easement terms provided herein.
Any timber cut on the Easement Area by or for the Company shall remain the
property of the owner of said timber.

The Undersigned does not convey any land, but merely grants the rights,
privileges and easements hereinbefore set out.

The Company shall not be liable for or bound by any statement,
agreement or understanding not hereinexpressed.

[Signature(s) on Following Page(s)]

Distribution (LIMS 2) 2017.08.17 Page 2 of 3



SUWANNEE-TWIN LAKES SOUTH FEEDER (LOWNDES COUNTY)
DISTRIBUTION LINE:

PARCEL 007 NAME OF

LINE/PROJECT:

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Undersigned has/have thLéc!‘;mlsl/}gr/‘;heir

hand (s) and seal (s), this

Signed, sealed and delivered in the

presence of:

Al A

Witness

Natary Public

Distribution (LIMS 2) 2017.08.17

Page 3

day of April, 2018.

TURNER FAMILY INVEZTMENTS,

By: (SEAL)
Name: L. Warren Turﬁér, Jr.
Title: General Partner
By: (SEAL)
Name:
Title:
of



V/N :(s)uonesor yiop
Zv8880.L1L0Z # SWIT

3NIT NolLNgIylsia (ALNNOD SIANMOT)
d3a334d HLNOS SaMVY1 NIML-33aNNVYMNS

id

YLILE

W.w.%@m 01 9|ge 2q 0] =242y umoys

1nq peoJ 3uoje s1aun
punoJdiapun 3uilsix3

Py saxe7 uImL

37vIS O1 10N BNIMmvHd

£00 [9348d

060 £LL0 #1221ed Xe]
(py saxye7 umL )

a4im An3/ioyoue

pasodoid =

Py

S921N0S3aY |BIN]EN g |BlUWIUOIIAUT

19MOd e13109r) >

aul| 1SIp HO pasodoud

a|od pasodo.d

9jod 3s1x3

-

id

\

(aur uonnquasia
40 3pIS Yoe3 apim 1224 0T)
JUaW3se] Jdo

22£0 §640# @I XL
PY 4240y Ypupio)

OIIIIIIIIIIII.

(@)

£21 9610 #9948 X
(py saye7 umL L09¥)

abpupjy

/ aur

peay4anp 3unsix3

jusuysaAu) Ajiwe sauiny

pZL 9610 # 122484 Xe]
(py saye7 umy G/6p)

Iid

Tid

S—

pY faineT
42070y

V7 HAQIYX



241 Ralph McGill Boulevard A
Bin 10151
Atlanta, GA 30308-3374 BK 5 Ly ;2 F;G % 2 U M
Georgia
Power

March 23rd, 2018

VIA E-MAIL

Turner Family Investments, L.P.
c/o Mr. L. Warren Turner, Jr.
P.O. Box 157

Valdosta, GA 31603

RE: Georgia Power Company (“Georgia Power") Easements for its Suwanee — Twin Lakes
Transmission Line (collectively, the ‘Easements”), Crossing Property Owned by Turner Family
Investments, L.P. (“Turner”) located in Land Lot 63, Lowndes County, Georgia, as Depicted on the
Enclosed Survey dated June 18, 2001

Mr. Turner:

Thank you for discussing with me your desire to plant Satsuma Orange Trees within Georgia
Power's existing electrical transmission line right of way established by the Easements (the “Right of Way").

In order to accommodate the request to plant such trees within the Right of Way, Georgia Power
and Turner hereby agree to the following terms:

(1) Planting and Maintenance of Trees. Turner will be permitted to plant and maintain Satsuma
Orange Trees (collectively, the “Trees”) within the Right of Way described in the Easements,
provided that:

(@)  Such Trees belong to species or varieties that, to the best of Turner's knowledge and belief,
are intended to grow to a height at maturity of fifteen (15) feet or less;

(b)  Such Trees are properly maintained by Turner, at its sole cost and expense, and are not
allowed to exceed fifteen (15) feet in height;

() Such Trees are planted at a distance greater than twenty-five (25) feet from any
transmission line structure or attachment thereto, including down guys and anchors;

(d) Such Trees shall be planted in a manner and in locations to create a continuous,
unimpeded vehicular accessway between each of the transmission structures located
within the Right of Way, and to allow for ingress and egress to and from such transmission
structures and Corinth Church Rd, it being acknowledged that such accessway shall be
wide enough to permit Georgia Power's vehicles and equipment to reach the transmission
structures and facilities located within the Right of Way; and

() Such Trees, in Georgia Power's judgment, do not interfere with or endanger the
construction, operation, or maintenance of the transmission line and related facilities.

(2) Recognition of Particular Easement Rights. As you have been made aware and as stated in the
Easements, you acknowledge and agree that Georgia Power shall continue to have the rights to
clear, keep clear, remove, and dispose of all undergrowth, trees, obstructions, objects, structures,
and improvements on the Right of Way, which are inconsistent with the rights granted to Georgia
Power and which may, in Georgia Power's judgment, interfere with or endanger the construction,

29513586



BROLL2PG 12

operation, or maintenance of the transmission structures and facilities located within the Right of
Way. Such rights shall include, without limitation, the right to permanently remove any
Trees which Georgia Power discovers at any time have grown taller than fifteen (15) feet in
height, and the right to remove, trim and/or damage any Trees that need to be removed,
trimmed or damaged, in Georgia Power's judgment, during emergency situations affecting
the transmission structures and facilities within the Right of Way.

Release and Related Matters. By your execution of this letter, you acknowledge and agree on
behalf of Turner, yourself, your heirs, executors, and administrators, you release and forever
discharge Georgia Power and its officers, directors, representatives, employees, agents,
successors and assigns from all manner of claims, actions and demands of any kind and nature,
whether known or unknown, in law or in equity, whether accrued or hereinafter maturing, which you
then may have, or have ever had, arising out of or related in any way whatsoever to any existing
vegetation within the Right of Way and to the damage or removal by Georgia Power of any of the
Trees contemplated herein.

If the terms above are agreeable, please countersign on the line provided below and return an

executed copy of this letter to Scott Dawson. This letter agreement and the Easements constitute the entire
understanding between Georgia Power and you on this matter and supersede all prior oral or written
understandings concerning any issue in this matter.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Scott Dawson at (229)392-5597 or

stdawson @ southernco.com.

Thank you again for your time and consideration.

Yours truly,

By: WM

Name: Seodt Pa L SoL,

Title: gf;m! Arbi 2zt 54, Georgia Power Company

Read, Acknowledged and Agreed:

TURNER FAMILY INVESTMENTS, L.P.

cc:

29513586

David Vincent (via e-mail)
Zach Luckie (via e-mail)
Scott Dawson (via e-mail)



18 JUN -5 PH 3: 29

MELL2PG 105 oo
CLERX OF SUPERIOR COURT

PROJECT 2017088842 LETTER FILE 9-15886 DEED FILE 251893 MAP FILE N/A

ACCOUNT NUMBER 69596-VB5-0-501117-0-GP700-30000000-0
NAME OF LINE/PROJECT: SUWANNEE-TWIN LAKES SOUTH FEEDER (LOWNDES COUNTY)
DISTRIBUTION LINE

PARCEL NUMBER 004

STATE OF GEORGIA
LOWNDES COUNTY

EASEMENT

For and in consideration of the sum of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00) and
other good and valuable consideration, in hand paid by GEORGIA POWER COMPANY, a
Georgia corporation (the “Company”), the receipt and sufficiency of which are
hereby acknowledged, JOHN O BRIDGES, JR. AND KATHERINE POTTS BRIDGES (the
“Undersigned”, which term shall include heirs, successors and/or assigns), whose
mailing Address is 11099 Big Canoe, Big Canoe, GA 30143-5143, does hereby grant
and convey to the Company, its successors and assigns, the right, privilege and
easement to go in, wupon, along, across, under and through the Property (as
defined below) for the purposes described herein.

The “Property” is defined as that certain tract of land owned by the
Undersigned at 4749 Peat Moss Rd, Lake Park, GA 31636 (Tax Parcel ID No. 0195
041) in Land Lot 62, 63 of the 16 District of Lowndes County, Georgia.

The “Easement Area” is defined as any portion of the Property located within
ten (10) feet of the centerline of the overhead distribution line(s) as installed
in the approximate location shown on “Exhibit A" attached hereto and made a
part hereof.

The rights granted herein include and embrace the right of the Company to
construct, operate, maintain, repair, renew and rebuild continuously upon and
under the Easement Area its lines for transmitting electric current with poles,
wires, transformers, service pedestals, anchors, guy wires and other necessary
apparatus, fixtures, and appliances; the right to attach communication

Distribution (LIMS 2) 2017.08.17 Page 1 of 3



PARCEL 004 NAME OF SUWANNEE-TWIN LAKES SOUTH FEEDER (LOWNDES COUNTY)
LINE/PROJECT: DISTRIBUTION LINE

facilities and related apparatus, fixtures, and appliances to said poles; the
right to stretch communication or other lines within the Easement Area; the
right to permit the attachment of the cables, lines, wires, apparatus, fixtures,
and appliances of any other company or person to said poles for electrical,
communication or other purposes; the right to assign this Easement in whole or
in part; the right at all times to enter upcon the Easement Area for the purpose
of inspecting said 1lines and/or making repairs, renewals, alterations and
extensions thereon, thereunder, thereto or therefrom; the right to cut, trim,
remove, clear and keep clear of said overhead or underground lines, transformers,
fixtures, and appliances all trees and other obstructions that may in the opinion
of the Company now or hereafter in any way interfere or be likely to interfere
with the proper maintenance and operation of said overhead or underground lines,
transformers, fixtures, and appliances; the right of ingress and egress over
the Property to and from the Easement Area; and the right to install and maintain
electrical and communication lines and facilities to existing and future
structure(s) within the Easement Area under the easement terms provided herein.
Any timber cut on the Easement Area by or for the Company shall remain the
property of the owner of said timber.

The Undersigned does not convey any land, but merely grants the rights,
privileges and easements hereinbefore set out.

The Company shall not be liable for or bound by any statement,
agreement or understanding not herein expressed.

[Signature(s) on Following Page(s)]

Distribution (LIMS 2) 2017.08.17 Page 2 of 3



SUWANNEE-TWIN LAKES SOUTH FEEDER (LOWNDES COUNTY)

PARCEL 004 NAME OF
LINE/PROJECT: DISTRIBUTION LINE
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Undersigned has/have hereunto set his/her/their
hand(s) and seal(s), this A day of YMA, i
Signed, sealed and delivered in the 0

presence of:

Witneiy//f? S ¢%
\)(bhb \hf\ S i0 e~ iXZ
: = ot O «: 0=
Notary\Public \j ?,G}Z.'-:i PUB\’\ g‘. LLI_::'
- e, Q" CD‘:.

2 Uy eGusT Teet A &

R

4, TT GOSN

Signed, sealed and delivered in the 'I”"”“\\\

presence of:
EAL)

\"

Witness” €\

Lhurghl Jon

NotaryOPublic

Page 3 of 3

Distribution (LIMS 2) 2017.08.17



V/N :(s)uonesoT MJoM
Zvr8880L1L0Z # SWIN

3NIT NOLLNAI¥1SIa (ALNNOD SIANMOT)
d30334 HLNOS SaIMVT NIML1-IaNNYMNS

peayJanQ 8unsixy

—
o

9610 # [991ed Xe]
Y seyeq umy)

BROLLZS

kil Ud

o

37vIS O1 10N DSNIMVYa

00 |234ed

060 1210 # [891ed X
(py sayequimi )

S924N0S3Y [B4NIEN 79 [BIUSWUOIIAUT

19MO( e1310905) >

aul| IsIp HO pasodoud

py sayeq uimp

\ 9Jod pasodoud

\

\

Esssnsssnunnn pyauwT¥TFEanns

9jod ﬁ_xu\(. \

d

(sun uonnguisia
40 3pIS yoe3 apim 1934 01)
juswasey Jdo

Iv0 S6L0# QI XeL \
PY ssop 1ead 6F.Lp
sabplg

[1/d

aun %

punoJidiapun 3unsix3

2260 S6104 Ol XeL
PH Y2ny2 YjuLio)

v, 1Q14X4

T nu.|.|.......|.|.|.|.|.|.|.nnuun.n.:.n.n.u.u.u.n.n.u.&.n...u.nﬁ.mnuH:x.

PY |eineq
yao7 of

d

O resvsessssnssasssnes



18 JUN-5 PM 3:29
EH*ESE+!4 21?3 I l 2! ?f&iﬂLkJ {?1 <£79uuuma,

CLERK OF SUPERIOR COURT

PROJECT 2017088842 LETTER FILE 9-15886 DEED FILE 25193 MAP FILE N/A

ACCOUNT NUMBER 69596-VBS-0-501117-0-GP700-30000000-0
NAME OF LINE/PROJECT: SUWANNEE-TWIN LAKES SOUTH FEEDER (LOWNDES COUNTY)
DISTRIBUTION LINE

PARCEL NUMBER 006

STATE OF GECRGIA
LOWNDES COUNTY

EASEMENT

For and in consideration of the sum of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00) and
other good and valuable consideration, in hand paid by GEORGIA POWER COMPANY, a
Georgia corporation (the “Company”), the receipt and sufficiency of which are
hereby acknowledged, SCOTT F ALDRIDGE (the "“Undersigned”, which term shall
include heirs, successors and/or assigns), whose mailing Address is 4601 Twin
Lakes Rd, Lake Park, GA 31636-3188, does hereby grant and convey to the Company,
its successors and assigns, the right, privilege and easement to go in, upon,
along, across, under and through the Property (as defined below) for the purposes
described herein.

The “Property” is defined as that certain tract of land owned by the
Undersigned at 4601 Twin Lakes Rd, Lake Park, GA 31636 (Tax Parcel ID No. 0196
123) in Land Lot 63 of the 16 District of Lowndes County, Georgia.

The “Easement Area” is defined as any porticn of the Property located within
ten (10) feet of the centerline of the overhead distribution line(s) as installed
in the approximate location shown on “Exhibit A” attached hereto and made a
part hereof.

The rights granted herein include and embrace the right of the Company to
construct, operate, maintain, repair, renew and rebuild continuously upon and
under the Easement Area its lines for transmitting electric current with poles,
wires, transformers, service pedestals, anchors, guy wires and other necessary
apparatus, fixtures, and appliances; the right toc attach communication

Distribution (LIMS 2) 2017.08.17 Page 1 of 3



PARCEL 006 NAME OF SUWANNEE-TWIN LAKES SOUTH FEEDER (LOWNDES COUNTY)
LINE/PROJECT: DISTRIBUTION LINE

BOLL2PGIIT

facilities and related apparatus, fixtures, and appliances to said poles; the
right to stretch communication or other lines within the Easement Area; the
right to permit the attachment of the cables, lines, wires, apparatus, fixtures,
and appliances of any other company or person to said poles for electrical,
communication or other purposes; the right to assign this Easement in whole or
in part; the right at all times to enter upon the Easement Area for the purpose
of inspecting said lines and/or making repairs, renewals, alterations and
extensions therecn, thereunder, thereto or therefrom; the right to cut, trim,
remove, clear and keep clear of said overhead or underground lines, transformers,
fixtures, and appliances all trees and other obstructions that may in the opinion
of the Company now or hereafter in any way interfere or be likely to interfere
with the proper maintenance and operation of said overhead or underground lines,
transformers, fixtures, and appliances; the right of ingress and egress over
the Property to and from the Easement Area; and the right to install and maintain
electrical and communication lines and facilities to existing and future
structure(s) within the Easement Area under the easement terms provided herein.
Any timber cut on the Easement Area by or for the Company shall remain the
property of the owner of said timber.

The Undersigned does not convey any land, but merely grants the rights,
privileges and easements hereinbefore set out.

The Company shall not be liable for or bound by any statement,
agreement or understanding not herein expressed.

[Signature(s) on Following Page (s)]

Distribution (LIMS 2) 2017.08.17 Page 2 of 3



PARCEL 006 NAME OF SUWANNEE-TWIN LAKES SOUTH FEEDER (LOWNDES COUNTY)
LINE/PROJECT: DISTRIBUTION LINE

““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““““ oG 2Pe 11t

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the HfgeISLgned has/have hereunto set his/her/their

hand(s) and seal(s), this day of Rﬁmfm/u\, 2018 -

SCOTT F ALDRID

Signed, sealed and delivered in the
presence of:

Distribution (LIMS 2) 2017.08.17 Page 3 of 3



V/N :(s)uonesor xiom
Zv8880.1L0Z # SWIN

37v2S O1 1ON ONIMVYEd

$924N0S3Y |BINIEN 7§ [BIUDWUOIIAUT

3INIT NOILNAI¥LSIA (ALNNOD S3IANMOT) 900 |=234ed
¥3a33d HLNOS SINVT NIML-IINNVMNS 1Mo eI1s 1030) 7
Lo
o
&4
o
=L 3 060 LZLO # |[991ed XE]
- (py saxe7 umL )
% aul| 3slp HO pasodoud
a4im An3/ioyoue 9|od pasodoud
» pasodosg
PY soye7 um| HMiu.ilun.inull i
T d Td
alam ll...lmm_.l_l-llllno PY [aineq
. = (sur uonnquasig 2070
4| PUnOIBIBPUN BUNSIXT  |m | 16 500 yoeg apym 1904 0T) werel
9jod 31s1x3 . JuawWase3 Jdo

| |

| |

= €2 9610 # |1924ed Xe| P

= (py saxe7 umi L09%) ﬂMh NM“ M% h__g ” Mmm mw 6zl 9601# al Xel

- abpuiply o . pY SayeT UM 6¢5h

O/ aur

peayJanp 3unsixy d

¥, H4I4Xg



LOWNDES COUNTY, G/
FILED IN OFFiCE

18 UK -5 PH 3:29
BG4 L 2P6 108 Btk C. S

CLERK OF SUPERIGR COURT

PROJECT 2017088842 LETTER FILE 9-15886 DEED FILE 25193 MAP FILE N/A

ACCOUNT NUMBER 69596-VBS-0-501117-0-GP700-30000000-0
NAME OF LINE/PROJECT: SUWANNEE-TWIN LAKES SOUTH FEEDER (LOWNDES COUNTY)
DISTRIBUTION LINE

PARCEL NUMBER 005

STATE OF GEORGIA
LOWNDES COUNTY

EASEMENT

For and in consideration of the sum of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00) and
other good and valuable consideration, in hand paid by GEORGIA POWER COMPANY, a
Georgia corporation (the “Company”), the receipt and sufficiency of which are
hereby acknowledged, BOBBY LAMBERT (the “Undersigned”, which term shall include
heirs, successors and/or assigns), whose mailing Address is 271 Permenter Rd,
Lake Park, GA 31636-6415, does hereby grant and convey to the Company, its
successors and assigns, the right, privilege and easement to go in, upon, along,
across, under and through the Property (as defined below) for the purposes
described herein.

The “Property” 1is defined as that certain tract of land owned by the
Undersigned at 4575 Twin Lakes Rd, Lake Park, GA 31636 (Tax Parcel ID No. 0196
124) in Land Lot 63 of the 16 District of Lowndes County, Georgia.

The “Easement Area” is defined as any portion of the Property located within
ten (10) feet of the centerline of the overhead distribution line(s) as installed
in the approximate location shown on “Exhibit A” attached hereto and made a
part hereof.

The rights granted herein include and embrace the right of the Company to
construct, operate, maintain, repair, renew and rebuild continuously upon and
under the Easement Area its lines for transmitting electric current with poles,
wires, transformers, service pedestals, anchors, guy wires and other necessary
apparatus, fixtures, and appliances; the right to attach communication

Distribution (LIMS 2) 2017.08.17 Page 1 of 3



PARCEL 005 NAME OF SUWANNEE-TWIN LAKES SOUTH FEEDER (LOWNDES COUNTY)
LINE/PROJECT: DISTRIBUTION LINE

B6LL2PG10S

facilities and related apparatus, fixtures, and appliances to said poles; the
right to stretch communication or other lines within the Easement Area; the
right to permit the attachment of the cables, lines, wires, apparatus, fixtures,
and appliances of any other company or person to said poles for electrical,
communication or other purposes; the right to assign this Easement in whole or
in part; the right at all times to enter upon the Easement Area for the purpose
of inspecting said lines and/or making repairs, renewals, alterations and
extensions thereon, thereunder, thereto or therefrom; the right to cut, trim,
remove, clear and keep clear of said overhead or underground lines, transformers,
fixtures, and appliances all trees and other obstructions that may in the opinion
of the Company now or hereafter in any way interfere or be likely to interfere
with the proper maintenance and operation of said overhead or underground lines,
transformers, fixtures, and appliances; the right of ingress and egress over
the Property to and from the Easement Area; and the right to install and maintain
electrical and communication lines and facilities to existing and future
structure(s) within the Easement Area under the easement terms provided herein.
Any timber cut on the Easement Area by or for the Company shall remain the
property of the owner of said timber.

The Undersigned does not convey any land, but merely grants the rights,
privileges and easements hereinbefore set out.

The Company shall not be liable for or bound by any statement,
agreement or understanding not herein expressed.

[Signature(s) on Following Page(s)]

Distributien (LIMS 2) 2017.08.17 Page 2 of 3



PARCEL 005 NAME OF SUWANNEE-TWIN LAKES SOUTH FEEDER (LOWNDES COUNTY)
LINE/PROJECT: DISTRIBUTION LINE

BKoLL2PG1 10

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, thergfdersigned has/have hereunto set his/her/their
hand(s) and seal(s), this { day of jx%jﬁj

r

Signed, sealed and delivered in the
prese of:

IV/4 N

HBefBY Ll)wéERT

Distribution (LIMS 2) 2017.08.17 Page 3 of 3



V/N i(s)uonyesoq suopm
Zvr8880LL0Z # SWIT

INIT NOLLNEI¥L1SIA (ALNNOD SIANMO)
d3a334d HLNOS SaMVY1 NIML-3aANNYMNS

31vIS Ol 1ON SNIMmvia

$924N0S3Y |BINIEN 1§ |EIUSWUOIIAUT
SO0 |=224ed

{

19M0( e131090) 7

e 060 LZ10 # [9218d XB)

- (py sayeq uimy )

o aul| 1sIp HO pasodoud

- 2
.rm,nw aJim An3/ioyoue 9|od pasodoud
T4 pasodoid
- - —————— \‘ | A
EEEEEEN Iid . f /d
= —_
EEENEEEEEES [ W | [ ]
4 m_u_,l_ ke W (aun uonnquasig Pd [a1neq
punoJdiapun 3uisixy |m 4O 9pIS Y2e3 3PIM 1924 OT) 430701

Td - 9jod 3s1X3 eclatiupinl
| |
n
= £CL 9610 # [991ed Xe|
= (py saye7 um] Lo9p) Pcl 9610 # [994ed Xe]
. (pY saxe7 umL G/5p) SZ1 9601# aI Xel
. Haquie] PY seyeT uiml 65p
u

/ aun

peayang Sunsixg

1/d

«V, #4lYxg



i Naume of Line., Tl hAKE Newrts

50778 180 (\ Account No.

EASEMENT

STATE OF GEORGIA, /b\\D

Received of GEORGIA POWER COMPANY, hereinafter called the Company, the sum of.

Ome. Auy N9, Dollars (§..4:9......), in consideration of which

the undersigned, T, Guart rvoerne g Whose Post Office Address is
(Name)

. do

... hereby grant and convey to said Compuny, its successors

and assigns, the right, privilege and casement to go in, upon, along and ncross that tract of land owned by the
undersigned in Land Lot ........... Number. 33 of the ... It District, ... Section

L.

on the North by lands of. ..........

of .. ....County, State of Georgin, said lands being bounded as follows:

3¢ gk Divttermed | Peaneeia. Ao, "

on the South by lands of.

E Sraron Rawian

on the East by lands of ...

and on the West by lands of . ... PHESE2 ..

together with the right to construct, operate and maintain continuously upon and under said land, its lines for
transmitting eclectric current, with poles, wires, transformers, service pedestals, and other necessary apparatus,
fixtures und appliances, including the right to stretch communication wires on said poles, or under said lands with
necessary appliances; with the right to permit the attachment of the wires and appliances of any other company,
or person, to said poles; together with the right at all times to enter upon said premises for the purpose of inspecting
said lines, making repairs, renewals, ions and ions thereon, ler, thereto or th ; together
with the right to cut away and keep clear of said overhead or underground lines, transformers, fixtures and appli-
ances, all trees and other obstructions that may now or hereafter in any way interfere or be likely to interfere
with the proper operation of said overhead or underground lines, fixtures and appli also the right
of ingress and egress over said land to and from suid lines. Any timber cut on said land by or for said Company
shall remain the property of the owner of said timber,

The undersigned does not convey any land, but merely grants the rights, privileges and easements hereinbefore
set out,

Ceweear Tk Lt EAspedr  Atens fEowwd Dave o T kakis

Newouts  Suagornswd  56CHed L AW Aol [ASMENS  Avedi

ey Lwes As Meessiaey e Sgave ders 142,

Said Company shall not he linble for, or bound by any s or ding not herein
expressed.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the said.. ... S CRYN-A

hereunto set........ hia...... hand..... . and seal......., this......

(SEAL)

i,

(SEAL)

ignéd, seale :;_ryin&gllvemd in the presence of:

Ui HiFon Fen

Commisgion Expleé Mar, 6, 1992
“{This canéient to be signed in the presence of two (2) witnesses, one of whom should be a Notary Public.)

a




STATE OF GEORGIA,

.COUNTY.

Personally before the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Georgia at Large, came

who, on oath, says that he saw

sign, seal and deliver the within Ensement for the purpose therein
mentioned; that deponent subscribed the same as & witness in the presence of
and he saw said............

do so likewise.

Sworn to and subseribed before me,
this.....

ey 19

Notary Public.

o
ns s34
‘g)addo 31V1S

0
(&

19
00 8
o

s



\ W 305 soor -

@

IN do'-d 1408 3Dy . 3TW2pvA
o ARR. 2.0 Mguvs _W/aGuAidS
Ty 939Z -

Lrux iRz

Q/

@ W Hont PR STy

fu\t
A

E“N?’

—
b
i

show_dot for Job 1oc

Georgia Power

GEORGIA POWER COMPANY

DIVISION OPERATIONS

scale

customer Teedwves ey TE Jsheat . L _of .\

- completed_ 0 =0 100 200 ti Fepuwon D map reference
drawn by. A S{Jf'u— aute 2 \zzled_ |by Trawwe Cepd iy, Varpoua wi- 798 - 075!
angineared by . A A Suwive date _5 122 155 ldate sl it YALooota description . Extten  Pemast _ [tracing file no.
L PERMIT(S) No: posted county _busors Je Seoye A2 tors ,
DOT local other date tax area _\LowwNstg {WE No: I_]_LQ__QQ,\_L_U' [T B ERINe)




- 5 & LOWKNDES COQUNTY, GA
165<38 FILED IN OFFIC

Gy (el
Q9FFR 19 AHM 9: 13

] ’
o,

oy

CLERK OF SUPERIOR COURT

Anne Oeberst - Bin 10151
Georgia Power Company

241 Ralph McGilt
‘ Atlanta, GA 30308-3374

________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Parcel Number Q02  Nape of Line MICHAEL HURST DISTRIBUTION LINE (LAKE PARK)
Account No. 9596-001219-0-70011-300-00000
R C Number Letter File 9-2126 D/R
Map File Deed File 9361
State of GEORGIA .. PERMIT to CUT or TRIM TREES
LOWNDES County

For and in consideration of the sum of

**0ONE Dollars *%* AND 00/100%%*

Dollars ($ 1.00) and other good and valuable considerations, in hand paid by Georgia Power Company,
a Corporation, hereinafter called the Company, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the undersigned,

Ronald P. Phelps

whose Post Office Address is P. Q. Box 342 Lake Park GA 31636-0342

does hereby grant to said Compasy, its successors and assigns, the right to cut and/or trim and/or remove any trees which
now or may hereafter endanger the electric transmission lines and telephome lines of said Company, its successors
~and assigns, now constructed or which may hereafter be constructed, om or adjacent to lands owned by, or in which the
undersigned may have an interest, adjacent to Twin Lakes Road

in Land Lot No. 62 of the 16TH  District of LOWNDES County, Georgia.

Continued on page 2,



K1676P032

................................................................................................................................

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

The rights herein granted include the right to cut and/or trim
all trees and other obstructions located within fifteen (15') feet of
the distribution pole line. :

IN WITQ§S% %5?REOF the Under31gned haf; hereunt%?%gt /%[ (' hand____ and seal,

this day of (—,)-@L’-LQ&AA’L 7

Signed, sealed and delivered

in the pr sen e of :
t pﬁ / Nl R{na{mﬁ hZf S/%w (SEAL)

Notary Publlc




CONTACT DATA REPORT Page : 1
Land Department Date : 01/19/99
Project : MICHAEL HURST DISTRIBUTION LINE (LAKE PARK)

Account No. : 9596-001219~-0-70011-300-00000 Letter File : 9-2126
Agent/Phone : Beard Deed File : 9361
Supervisor : MIKE DIXON Map File :

Engineer : JERRY DICKEY Date Complt :

Parcel/Owner Name/Address/Phone

002 Ronald P. Phelps Document: TT
P. 0. Box 342 County : LOWNDES
Lake Park, GA 31636-0342 District: 16TH
R 912-245-7079 Land Lot: 62
912-559-6803 Section :
Deed Bk : 651
Deed Pg : 217
Plat Bk :
Plat Pg :
Survey : N
R/W Feet: 0.00
Acreage : 0.00
Station : ;
Tax Map : 196-13

Date Acquired : 01/18/99

CONTACTS Date Time Location

Ronald P. Phelps 01/14/99 21:20 Telephone

Called Ronald P. Phelps and explained Georgia Power Company project. He
stated that he thought he could permit his trees to be trimmed. To meet
with him Monday, January 19,1999. He may give verbal permission only.

Ronald P. Phelps 01/18/99 10:15 Right of Way

Met Ronald P. Phelps and received signed tree trim permit. This project
had previously been explained over the telephone. The oak tree that is to
be cut, is to be cut in firewood lengths. Jerry Dickey was present and
agreed to this. ?

Permit to cut and/or trim and/or remove all trees and other obstructions
located within fifteen (15') feet of the distribution pole line.

ONE OAK TREE IS TO BE CUT AND THE WOOD CUT INTO 18" LENGTHS. ONE OTHER
OAK IS TO BE TRIMMED AS AGREED TO BY JERRY DICKEY AND RONALD P. PHELPS.

*% End of Report *%




ééf//?ﬁ

Real Estate Transfer Tax
Paid § 0 2

CORPORATION DEED Date

-

— 5 'lerk Suverior Court il
STATE OF GEORGIA LOWNDES County. /953:5 =
* THIS INDENTURE, made this 16thlsy of November . sin the year of ovur Lord One Thousand g—)‘
Nine Hundred and  ©ighty eight . berween DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS » INC. t}'.
3
a corporation, of the County of Lownd/ of the State of Georgia of the first part and ;.'}\.'
RONALD P. PHELPS - Lo
I of the County of Lowndes of lhe State of t:;
Georgia

of the second part, WITNESSETH. That the «aid pare ¥ af the tirst part for and in con-

sideration of the sum of ten dollars and other valuable consideration «=DOLLARS
in hand paid at and belare the sealing and delivery of these presenty, the vaceipt whereol 1 hereby acknowledyed, ba
granted, batgained, sold and conveyed, and by these precents by
es
of the second part, his heirs and assigns, a'l that tract wr parcel of Jand svated, lying and being in '
All that tract or parcel of land situate, lying and being in Land Lot 62
of the 16th Land District of Lowndes County, Georgia, and being further
described as follows: BAs a point of reference only begin at the
centerline intersection of Bridges Drive (40' R/W) and Twin Lakes Road
(40' R/W); thence proceed along the centerline of Twin Lakes Road south
. 86 .degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds east a distance of 65.60 feet to a
point; thence proceed north 04 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds =ast a
distance of 20.00 feet to a point on the right of way margin of Twin
Lakes Road; thence proceed south 86 degrees 00 minutes 00 seconds east.a
distance of 375.00 feet to a point; thence proceed south 85 degrees 33
minutes 24 seconds esast a distance of 78.13 feet to a point and the
point of beginning; from said POINT OF BEGINNING proceed along a curve a
chord bearing of north 44 degrees 06 minutes 24 seconds west a chord
distance of 26.48 feet to a point; thence proceed north 02 degrees 39
minutes 25 seconds west a distance of 342.20 feet to a point; thence
proceed along a curve a chord bearing of north 29 degrees 13 minutes 19
seconds west a chord digtance of 134.16 feat to a point; thence nroceed
north 02 degrees 39 minutes 25 seconds west a distance of 10.00 feet to
. a point; thence proceed north 77 degrees 34 minutes 33 seconds east a
- distance of 292.58 feet to a point; thence proceed south 22 degrees 06
. minutes 44 seconds east a distance of 630.06 feet to a point; thence
, proceed north 85 degrees 33 minutes 24 seconds west a distance of 423.92

. feet to a point and the point of beginning. Said tract contains 4.2369
acres. .

prant. hargain, xell and wnvey wnto the card part

Y

This conveyance is made subject to, and there is excluded from the
warranties hereinafter contained, the following:

l. Ad valorem taxes for 1988 and subsequent years;
2. Applicable restrictive covenants of record;

3. Utility easements of record or in place;

4. Applicable zoning ordinances.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the said bargained ] s, together with 3l and wmnpular the rights, b

and appur

thereof to the aame being, belonging, or in anywise appesaining. 1o the only proper ure, benefit, and behoof of

grantee « the nid par Y of the second pat, his heirs exccutors, administrators,

and asiga, in fee smple; and the sid party of the firs part, s successors and assigns, the sid bargained’ premises wnto

the said part Y of the second pant hs

hirs, exceutors, adminmtrators, and armgns, against the said party of the ficee
PAIL, its successors and assgns and all perons whatsoever,

shall and will warrant sad {orever delend by virtne of thuse putcnu
In witness whereof the rad past of the firq part has caused these presents o be exccuted for it and on ws behalf by its

-

secretary and its corporate sedl to b hercunta afixed, on the

LOPMENT PEOJECTS, INC. roe

I e T e

) Y- {Seal.
i | / \7 Brandent, )
% Nota e y Asten: Z. a“""/ s
'y FIREINIR 5. McQUAS
‘ v, -'x s Wty Public, Low n(" 5 ler\W-
Mg Ceprse v T

R —
County, Georgls

7 s b vy




. 5(1675?@08 qcoum Y,GA
3 LOWHDES COUNT)

16829}? £E00 B _\LQ:&L?“GM
9gFEB 19 AM 913

CLERK OF & UPiRlOR COURT

Anne Oeberst - Bin 10151
Georgia Power Company

241 Ralph McGill —
Atlanta GA 30308-3374

Parcel Number 001 Name of Line MICHAEL HURST DISTRIBUTION LINE (LAKE PARK)
Account No. 9596-001219-0-70011-300-00000
R C Number Letter File 9-2126 D/R
Map File Deed File 9361
State of GEORGIA EASEMENT
LOWNDES County

Received of GEORGIA POWER COMPANY, hereinafter called the Company, the sum of

**%*0ONE Dollars *** AND 00/100%%
Dollars (8 1.00)  and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency whereof
is hereby acknowledged, in exchange for which the undersigned
Michael Hurst and Shannon Hurst
s-£
whose Post Office Address is Route # 1 Box ¥F  Naylor GA 31641

does hereby qrant and conmvey to said Company, ifs successors and assigns, the right, privilege and easement to go im, upon
along and across that tract of land owned by the undersigned in Land Lot 62 of the 1L6TH  District of
LOWNDES County, State of Georgia, said lands being bounded as follows :

on the North by lands of Tax Map Nos. 195-33,34,35

on the South by lands of Twin Lakes Road

on the East by lands of Ronald P. Phelps

on the West by lands of Russell C. and Marie P. Carter

together with the right to construct, operate and maintain continuously upon and under said land, its lines for tramsmitting
electric current with poles, wires, transformer, service pedestals, and other necessary apparatus, fixtures and appliances,
including the right to stretch communication wires on said poles, or under said lands with necessary appliances; with the
right to permit the attachment of the wires and appliances of any other company, or person, to said poles: together with
the right at all times to enter upon said premises for the purpose of inspecting said lines, making repairs, renewals,
alterations and extensions thereon, thereunder, thereto or therefrom: together with the right to cut away and keep clear of
said overhead or underground lines, tramsformers, fixtures and appliances, all trees and other obstructions that may now or
hereafter in any way interfere or be likely to interfere with the proper operation of said overhead or underqround lines,
transformers, fixtures and appliances: also the right of ingress and egress over said land to and from said lines. Any
timber cut on said land by or for said Company shall remain the property of the owner of said timber.

Continued on page 2




BK1676p080

The undersigned does not comvey any land, but merely grants the rights, privileges and easements hereinbefore set out.

The rights herein granted include and embrace the right to clear and keep
clear all trees and other obstructions located within fifteen (15') feet
of the distribution pole line, plus the right to install and maintain

anchors and guy wires as needed in the construction and maintenance of
the above mentioned distribution line.

Tax Map No. 195-33A.

Said Company shall not be liable for or bound by any statement or understanding not herein expressed.
ﬁ‘ﬁﬁafr‘:%‘l_v{b’ j

IN WIT ssj;g’--~- ‘si:gnggrsigned hat?_ hereunt%%§%59é15g Y handS  and seal,
this [H~"ZZ" o\B:E. ol g 19 . ’

4
!

e, : ' XW%EAL)
N LET 4«7. . L2 Michael Hurst
f G % %

/ / Jnn ;
‘Notary Public -~

i {SEAL)
Shannon Hurst

l4;, C‘ " '
%, ()
“"""l“l“k

\)




CONTACT
Land Department

DATA

REPORT

Page .: 1
Date : 01/15/99

Project : MICHAEL HURST DISTRIBUTION LINE (LAKE PARK)

Account No. : 9596~001219-0-70011-300-00000 Letter File 9-2126
Agent/Phone Beard Deed File 9361
Supervisor : MIKE DIXON Map File
Engineer : JERRY DICKEY Date Complt :
Parcel/Owner Name/Address/Phone
001 Michael Hurst Document: EA

Route # 1 Box 54E County LOWNDES

Naylor, GA 31641
B 912-241-8929
C 912~-251-7067

Shannon Hurst

District: 16TH
Land Lot 62
Section

Deed Bk : 1645
Deed Pg : 173
Plat Bk :

Plat Pg :
Survey : N
R/W Feet:
Acreage
Station

Tax Map 195-33A
Date Acquired :

0.00
0.00

01/14/99

CONTACTS

Date

Time

Location

Shannon Hurst

01/14/99

15:00

Business

Met Shannon Hurst and explained Georgia Power Company project and received

signed easement.

Michael Hurst and received signed easement.

Husband, Michael was at another location worklng Met

Standard pole line easement to construct and maintain line and clear and
keep clear all trees and other obstructions located within fifteen (15')
feet of the distribution pole line, plus the right to install and maintain
anchors and guy wires as necessary.

*% End of Report




N/ 324

3

3 T D e S

iR N

S N A =2

~ WARRANTY DEED 16457173

+
4 GIA
ATE OF GEOR )
’ {; NDES COUNTY A
' £, made this 1ith day ot Decembglom . guity, v¥3y 38 ‘
: THIS INDENTUR mado _ s Jraig i E
N Secween 85, D b
4 J.C. COWART AND CATHERINE H, COWART Mgt A - <
. q(? i
! party or pasties of the first part, heteinafter called Grantar, and :"“‘k Il,—lJ" - 8 I
+ B MICHAEL HURST AND SHANNON HURST QO p
o Coored & tpeter fort ‘
4 of Lowndes ’ , State of Georgia I
of the co;ngnies of the second part, hereinafter called Grantee ;
4 - pan(at/“ words Grantor and Grantee as used herein shall include the plural as well as the singular, and shall 1)
. also include their respsclive heirs, personal representatives, successors and assigns where the context ,
) requiras or permits). : Ty
f‘ WITNESSETH that Grantor for and in consideration of the sum of Ten Dollar ($10.00) and other valuable A
A sideration, in hand paid at and before the sealing and delivery of these presents, the receipt of which is hereby I
.‘., ::mwtedged. has granted, bargaineg. sold, and conveyed, and by these presunts does grant, bargain, seil and !;
¥ convey unto said Grantee, the following property:
“ B
.4 All that tract or parcel of land situate, lying and beir located in Land Lot 62 l>
N of the 16th Land District of Lowndes County, Georgia, an being further described ﬂ
& as follows: As a point of reference only begin at th. northwest right of way >
) sargin intersection of Twin Lakes Road (40' R/W) and Georgia Southern and Florida ;r
K Raflroad (100' R/W);thence proceed along the northern R/W margin of Twin Lakes Road [’-;
) X 86° 11' 37" W a distance of 1237.96' to a point &nd the POINT OF BEGINNING, From i)
By Vuld POINT OF BEGINNING and leaving said R/W margin proceed along a curve having );
/ s radius of 20.00', an arc of 28.94', a chord bearing N 44° 06' 23" W and a chord v
£ distance of 26.48' to a point; thence proceed R 02° 39' 25" W a distance of 342.20° >
‘} g0 -8-point; _thence proceed  along. a curve having a radius of 150,00', an arc of _ W
\' 139.09', a chord bearing of N 29°* 13% 19" W and a chord distincde of 134.16"' to a '
Y oint; thence proceed N 02° 39' 13" W a distance of 10.00' to a point; thence ’j
J P ?
f‘ - - procead N 77° 34' 33" E.s distance of 292.58' to a point; thence proceed N 16° 39'  [b
y $1" W a distance of 445.40' to a point; thence priceed N 88° 24' 32" W a distance l
) 4
( of 450.00' to a point; thence proceed 8 07° 10' 22" W distance of 610.61' to a o
) point; thence proceed S 86° 00' 00" E a distan:a of 375.00' to point; thence
l(= proceed S 02° 39' 25" E & distance of 352.39' to a point; thence proceed S 85° 33'
1 23" E a distance of 78.13' to a point and the FOINT OF BEGINNING. Said tract
by contains 7.6746 acres. . :‘}
:(" This conveyance is made subject to ad valorem taxes for 1998 and subsequent years. IL,’
¢ ' 5
} i
§ i
’ Iy
! 4
’ - b
!

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD tha said tract or parcel of land, with ali and singular the rights, improvements
and appurtenances thereof, to the same being, belonging, or in anywise appertaining, to the oniy proper use,
benefit and behoot of the said Grantee foraver in FEE SIMPLE.

A

3

x

e

AND THE $A|D GRANTOR wilt warrant and forever defend the right and title to the above described pro-
perty unto the said Grantee against the claims of all persons whomsoever. i

it

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has signed and sealed this deed on the day and year' above written.

slcn? sealewﬂ Q

Unofficial Wisness

TR AT I N A St LA

L,

) TN,




Georgia Power New Service Worksheet GECRGIA &
; ; . POWER
Customer Service/Site information _ ASOUYHERN COMPANY

Customer Name /i//x//za(/,/ 7. //M/’(/’

Home Phone #_2/ L= P21 —2o 24  ses 284 —7 3~ 2/ 2onop. 4//&//4 <
Employer _.S-&/ /= Phone #_SZ /% ColBPR #2452 ~ 3907
Spouse Name S b /14204 /744/‘ <A sse 15?0 3o 743 hos é/¢f//7z ,
Employer Wﬂ AL L fz//J/Phone# 22 - 27/’f70e?l/_BPR# Z)’Z/ Do ¥

Relative/Friend _/ Toby toptoew Phone #__ 2 3%7 — 53¢
New Service Address ¥ 29 « Twn'p Z«_}{éj S 4 7
Subdivision Name Lot . Block

Current Address (74/ /?0/( {ﬂy//: ﬁé//./a'/' &4 3/5?7
Billing Address (if different)

Drixing Dire sToNewSVCAddressW s /L@- 7 nile, A4%J§/x7¢/
@/ }n 2 7 J/pz 2 éLZ7/'

General Contractor Phone # Cell/BPR #
Electrical Contractor Phone # Cell/BPR #
Property Owner Phone # Cell/BPR #
Eng./Architect Phone # Cell/BPR #

MARKETING INFORMATION

Residential Commercial Industriat

(dMfg.Size__x.__.  _]GasTank [ GasMeter (] Control Unit Brand o Module l\io

[ Being Bt.  Total Sq. Ft._____ Hid Sq. Ft &0%¥D  ElecHT™D Sq Pt S{An Elec. L1 Cust. Choice
ﬁi Interested in GoodCents 1 Heat Pump (] Referral to Lighting Dept. {1 Deposit Mentioned

Additional ]nformaﬁon:

ENGINEERING/CONSTRUCTION/SERVICE INFORMATION

Temporary Service Date / ! - Requested Service Date / -/
Single PH: ] 3 Phase 1 ub 4 oH 1 UD Fee Required O Easement
O Hwy. Permit 1 UD Locate (0] Grade Agreement

[ CTSReqd. [ Inspection Reqd. [ Line Work Reqd. [ Trencf;ing ] Cust. Contrbt.  Job #

Voltage __ Wire Size Panel Size T# Size
Customer Septic / Water Lines Located: Yes [dNo . Meter Location: ] Ped. (] Bldg.
(] Other Service Entrance: Volits _ Phase Wire Amps _

Additional Information:

] UD Fee has been paid by developer

| Copy of checklist given to Customer / Develop;r ' Date i / _Initials:

(The Georgia Power Customer/Developer Checklist can be found on the Southern Company Intranet at hitp:/cor .southerncoicom/gpc/cstchk/. )

707448 MAGC WHITE — Customer Service CANARY — Power Delivery PINK —Sales




¥i

5 COUNTY, GA
8K 1 6 t* 5 PG l 7 2 LOVIF,“YPEED (Y] QOFFICE

Y -
ogDEC 1! P¥ 2629

¢LERK OF SUPERIOR COURT

164747

REAL ESTATE INSTRUMENT CO\;E.R SHEET

TYPE OF INSTRUMENT: WARRANTY DEED
" GRANTOR: J.C. COWART AND CATHERINE H. COWART
GRANTEE: ‘ " MICHAEL HURST AND SHANNON HURST
RETURN TO: WALTER F. NEWSOM, P.C.
POST OFFICE BOX 872

VALDOSTA, GA 31603-0872




vy L e 18 A poaiire N N T R
20K DLV Plok UL Account No. ¢ & 74~ 7 B

EASEMENT

STATE OF GEORGIA, q 3 - ;‘;[
Koewsoes  counry.

Received of GEORGLA POWER COMPAXNY, hereinafter called the Company, the sum of

S e, o AT ‘ / ; sdeis ;
o Y T e s e Dollars (§ 2%, ), in consideration of which
e . i A ¢ Aow A S ) o .
the undersigned, téf S, ..Ms.L‘.iﬂ, Sl legb e = L0 S0 G ««(/ 7, whose Post Office Address is
{Name)
CREAR R - T G R ., do hereby grant and convey to said Compdny, is successors

and assighs, the right, privilege and easement to go in, upon, along and across that fract of land owned by the

undersigned in Land Lot ¢ &° . Number ... of the fe District, = . .. Section
i ‘ ‘ .
of F N NS WS .. . ... County, State ¢f Georgia, said lands being bounded as follows:
o — r;/ [ '
. . s T g f et ;o he 72 oA 7
on the North by lands of . -S2x .. AWind Lwmis 0k AR AU
. o - ’“4 ~} i fy / '; B \
on the Seuth by landsof ... .. fi0¥M. 4 L0405 . 0 . L N
'l
. / i 7 g? s P o e
on the East by lands of L2200 L O R R

and on the West by lands of ;75, e , e

together with the right fo consiruei. operate and maintain continuously upon and urder said land, its lines for
transmitiing electric curreni, with poles, wires, transformers, service pedestals, and other necessary apparatus,
ixtures and zppliances, including the right to siretch communication wires on said poles, or under said lands with

recessary appliances; with the right 1o permit the attachment of the wires and appliances ¢f any other company,

e

¥

said lines, making repairs, renewals, alterations and extensions thereon, thereunder, thereto or therefrom; together

ich the nght to eut away and keep clear of said overhead or underground lines, transformers, fixtures and appli-
ances, all trees and other obstructions that may now or hereafter in any way interfere or be likely fo interfere
with the proper operation of said overhead or underground lines, transformers, fixtures and appliances; aiso the right
of ingress and egress over said land to and from said lipes. Anyv timber cut or said land by or for said Company

v

shall remain the property of the owner of said timber.

The undersigned does not convey any land, but merely grants the rights, privileges and easements hereinbefore
L= S D e

S - " £ S iPrs g, =
set out. s o SE oA SS e A ARt A Vi O SWK -sne

vy . [ S——,
— Y e i g P T
. - " T S D pYA e A LD Ll L ’
o =~ /'-"&. o - “
- Y 4
- i pee wrmeps E O vy PP R e v g
y P TR

Ly
\

id Company shall not be liable for, or bound by any staiement, agreement or undersianding not herein

¥
TR bk

... éayv of ,/f//‘a‘,/ ey 197 7

-
I LT O S

[ T

d mtl" presence of: f{_/‘f-&u—,-.../i}a'fy‘}‘@a. C_.th/;é/z...‘ . (SEAL)

g .
L ey e (SEAL)

; Fa PR P s SR
4 . j , SR R v ary
RoSE S0 3 AL

% . . {SEAL)

N e B N e ;
T Y ; g e —
Netary Public w& o ignmncs o S e A AR LT I9] Fpe—
: v B aires

oy PRIy
¥ L

Teaans”

fhom.shonld he a Netary Public.) Hp I

(This easemeny to, he sigped in the presenceefEwo (2)




Cross -
T : N.une of Line . o - .

Account No

PSN 184670:,

S L EASEMENT
‘oTATEOF‘GEORGIA T

LOwkﬂf ....... COUNTY.. L _’
- Received of GEORGIA POWER LOMPAI\Y hereinzafter called the Lomp:m), the sum of C‘NE
S el e i - o Do.lnrs ($ - 00 L) in consxderamon of which_
‘ fhecndersiéned M(Q HOWAR 0o (}P ‘ f-F:lN ‘.:..,,whose Post Ofﬁce Address is

(Nnne)

and assigns, the nght pr'ulege and ecasement to go m, upon, along and across that trzwt of land owned by ther :
~unders.gned m Land Lot 7‘ Number ._‘ _ of the. ( [ C ”g - sttnct, P ' Sechon

of_ L Ow ~ "‘) §$ - . County, Stace gi‘feolgggksmd }ands being bounded as fellows: - .
‘ wiLtle  PemRY T

on the North by lands of MR KILLY £ MECIAKEN, 4mL. WALBDRAS.. mm’ck LOVE W STURM R,

on the South by lands of ITERSTA TS HWT . I '
T OMAS WAYNE smMyTi4 r’wz.v CAYNE smiTi.

on the East by lands of TOHINY. .S RELISTER (AONTRY TOHNS TIN, HANMALL LACS. . mc,.‘.....
and on the West by lands of. L C\C’ { L.AU RAN BB, .,

together with the right te construct, operal:e and mamtam continunusly upon and under said Ia.nd its lines for
transmitting electric current, with poles, wires, transformers, service pedestals, and other necessary apparatus,
fixtures and appliances, including the right to streich communication wires on said poles, or under sazid lands with
necessary apptiances; with the right to permit the attachment c¢f the wires -and appliances of any othor company,
or person. t¢ said peles; together with the right at all times to enter upon said premises for the purpose of inspectirg
said lines, making repairs, renewals, alterations and extensions thereon, thereunder, thereto or therefrom; together
with the right to cut away and keep clear sof said overhead or underground lines, transformers, fixtures and appli-
ances, all trees and other obstructions that may now or hereafter in any way interfere or be likely to interfere
with the proper operation of said overhead or underground iines, transformers, fixtures and appliances; also the right

" of ingress and egress over said land to and from said lipes. Any timber cut en said land by or for seaid Company
shall remain the property of the owner of said timuer.

Tre unders.gned does not convey any land, but merely grants the rights, privileges and easements herembefore Jra
toit - SET Z POLES , 3 ANcCHOR GLYS  AND oueau-sc:?w
LINE 5

Said Company shall not be liable for, or bound by any statement, agreement or undeﬂbmdmg not herem
expressed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the saidﬂk‘. HOWARY _ “CGRIEEIN .. 1>
hereunto set ML hand . andseal . this. NINTH  dayot AVGUST ., 1983
.77 i.r,l f?’du.% Y f e\ . ASEAL)
Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence (‘)_t;' S >A‘ R ieeid . (SEAL) -

--(SEAL)

%ry Pub.nr s e ,
: ld?.fy Pubtis. Gecrma Stata "’l - :
¥y %%Wt..- o8 ed in the presenee of two (2) w;tmesses, ‘one of whom should be a Notary Puhlk:.)


PSN 184670


el

s S——— S ——_ " o

Dute

Work Me [Field Notes | WE Number / ' : i
ELECTR:C S 700014 f - ooctoz 3 83 [No. P
Customer . B : .
TR’ - S TE SDGNS g,.. o o ;
B | Wiing Approval No.
o " N.VALDOST A Kd. (u <. nwv g N.)  NEAR &Ls STiAkNouzl ~
) [Enginesr ] Work 20ne Rivatwe Essament Ret. Ko.
i JEB - v2 wr 762 -0326 ‘ ; :
County . Tax Area E No. U.D. Mm Twmwn
LOWRMNDES - LOWNDES
Posa Line Foet OH SN Feut OH Curcuit Foat 1 Cona. Cabie Ft. zmc-uan amc-n-n Trench Feet Cust. Conn.
425 - 250 /28 1. , A
Contract/Propossl ] F«lfq . ) Amount et Lie Cone. . | Typo Lights
e -3 toc - FERC Sub oowo | PE e rEnc | S dowwo | Comoe®y Oure _
R ~ . R ) Z\I!J/}:’ /Q- /-3 P2
Hora 3 O 1300} O 170 1 ) L1 7
- L]
- '
1 - INSTALL . te
/I o7 v 1
- 15 kVvA . =
s . | Mep Indicator
Arr.¢co | | ]
IR U ‘ EQ fZTﬁ sve. . .
- ‘ ! AN SHORTY.S:
- ) oA . \I"YEAK'&
. s BEEE W TS1509 | i
: : X InsTALE
C A - 3o’ -6 -
- 7 1T e S0 N
eiloh - l:"’", \ - ¢ M GuY
I T .
- o 38y0 N i
QQSYA RO. (N. Awy Hy)
.
] 3 3 L ] N 0 p
[Shetch Location (eumben 1 ] 2
Yo Locatior: (Number) 2 2 :
From — To ndicator — X 3 .
Deaign Voltage 4, t_ma =, @ . 25 25 H
ng vohags 4. & - [ ] 2
Work Function: instatl — | Remove — &Tm—‘t [ { p
[ ole Fixtures: Must Be Zaro O or | 7
Fvimary Condition. Desnergized — D-, Energued — E. Stick — 3 N E
e Condition Acceaibie — A-, Inacceesible — | r A .
o Congition, 160al — 1°, Rock — W_Ewamp — 8 0 ] i :
‘vmcmmuw-u.m-n 1 H &L i
boca Cosr — 1 Yome Conei — 7 Locel 8 Torp_ — 8 2 H
ommctu-u—c 13
— C, Dowte — D, Add® — Assumed L)
) timati nits Juan
A N [ ) E ¥ (6n 1 J 3 L ™ N
TA M /
£ TPX /19
] L 1 . 1
y. 3 L
Q i M ]
Ko . F <
]
mote Use Aggitionsl OIS Form No m;nmwmw K _SpecCodss —ABMT.Fard

MJQl

o

U ey s ot e 3 7



PSN 632208

A I st
' } ll_i_ﬂc CijL?‘TY, G,.{'.\
' f-‘]'l‘\!'-}r"”‘"

Ly

re

BKES09PGO05 18SEP 10 PH J: g

2 i &3 f

Retis O S
WL e

CLERK OF SUPERIOR COURT

Upon Recording Return To:

Georgia Power Company

Attn: Natural Resources Department
BIN 10151

241 Ralph McGill Boulevard
Atlanta, Georgia 30308-3374

STATE OF GEORGIA

LOWNDES COUNTY
EASEMENT AGREEMENT

For and in consideration of the sum of Ten and No/100 Dollars ($10.00) and other good and valuable
consideration, in hand paid by Georgia Power Company, a Georgia corporation (the “Company”), the receipt and
sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, Virginia G. Tyson, Nancy G. Hobby, and Charles F. Hobby
(collectively referred to herein as the “Owners”), which term shall include their heirs, executors, administrators,
successors and/or assigns, whose mailing address is 707 Smithbriar Drive, Valdosta, Georgia 31602 (Hobby and
Hobby) and 76 E. Broad Street, P.O. Box 107, Camilla, Georgia 31730 (Tyson), do hereby grant and convey to the
Company, its successors and assigns (as permitted by this Easement Agreement), the right, privilege, and easement
to go in, upon, along, under and through the Property (as defined below) for the purposes described herein (and only
for the purposes described herein). The Company and the Owners may be referred to herein individually as a
“Party” or collectively as the “Parties”.

L DEFINITIONS

The “Property” is defined as that certain tract of land owned by the Owners at Tree Farm Road, Lake Park,
GA 31636 (Tax Parcel 1D No. 0171 090) located in Land Lots 76 and 109 of the 16™ Land District of Lowndes
County, Georgia. A legal description of the Property is attached hereto and made a part hereof by reference as
Exhibit “B”.

The “Easement Area” is defined as any portion of the Property located within ten (10) feet of the centerline
of the overhead distribution line(s) as installed in the approximate location shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto
and made a part hereof.

1L SPECIFIC RIGHTS OF THE COMPANY

The rights granted herein include and embrace the right of the Company to construct, operate, maintain,
repair, renew and rebuild continuously upon and under the Easement Area its lines for transmitting electric current
with poles, wires, transformers, service pedestals, anchors, guy wires and other reasonably necessary apparatus,
fixtures, and appliances (the “Electrical Facilities™); the right of the Company, within the Easement Area, to attach
communication lines and related reasonably necessary apparatus, fixtures, and appliances to the Electrical Facilities
(not to include cell phone towers); the right to stretch communication lines between the Electrical Facilities; the
right to permit, within the Easement Area, the attachment of the cables, lines, wires, apparatus, fixtures, and

35201706v5


PSN 632208


BX6505PG006

appliances of any other company or person to the Electrical Facilities for electrical or communication purposes (not
to include cell phone towers); the right to assign this Easement Agreement (this “Agreement”) in whole or in part in
accordance with the further terms and conditions of this Agreement; the right at all times to enter upon the Easement
Area for the purpose of inspecting the Electrical Facilities and/or making repairs, renewals, alterations and
extensions thereon, thereunder, thereto, or therefrom; the right to cut, trim, remove, clear and keep clear of said
overhead or underground Electrical Facilities, all trees and other obstructions that may, in the reasonable good faith
judgment of the Company and consistent with good utility practices, now or hereafter in any way interfere or be
likely to interfere with the proper maintenance and operation of said overhead or underground Electrical Facilities,
provided, however, that prior to the initial installation of the Electrical Facilities, the Owners shall have the right and
option (i) to remove and sell all such trees and to retain the proceeds of such sale(s), or (ii) to permit the Company to
remove and sell all such trees and to retain the proceeds of such sale(s), and clean up the residue left after such tree
cutting and removal operations have been completed by removing same from the Property in a timely and good and
workmanlike manner; the right of ingress and egress over the Property to and from the Easement Area in temporary
emergency conditions only, with normal access to be along the access route (“Access Route™) shown on Exhibit “A”
attached hereto; and the right to install and maintain, within the Easement Area, electrical and communication lines
and facilities to existing and future structure(s) under the terms and conditions provided for herein.

The Owners do not convey any land, but merely grant the rights, privileges, and easements hereinbefore set
out. Owners hereby specifically reserve to Owners and their successors and assigns, the full, free and perpetual right
and privilege, in common with the Company, to use the Easement Area for pedestrian, vehicular and animal traffic,
and for any and all other purposes desired by Owner, but only to the extent not inconsistent with the rights,
privileges and easements hereby granted, provided such use shall not injure, or interfere with the proper operation,
maintenance, repair, or extensions or additions to, the Electrical Facilities.

I11. RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE COMPANY AND THE OWNERS
1. Repairs, ete.

(a) All repairs to and/or replacements of the Electrical Facilities which are necessary or required in
the Company’s sole discretion and consistent with good utility practices during the term of this Agreement shall be
made by the Company in a timely and good and workmanlike manner and at the Company’s sole cost and expense,
including labor and material; provided, however, that if any such repairs to and/or replacements of the Electrical
Facilities shall be necessitated or required by or attributable to the sole negligence or intentional misconduct or other
legal fault of Owners or Owners’ duly authorized agents, servants, employees, and/or representatives (including
contractors), then said repairs to and/or replacements of the Electrical Facilities shall be made by the Company in a
timely and good and workmanlike manner and at the sole cost and expense of the Owners, including labor and
materials, but only to the extent that such repairs and/or replacements are necessitated or required by or attributable
to the sole negligence or willful misconduct or other legal fault of the Owners or the Owners’ duly authorized
agents, servants, employees, and/or representatives (including contractors).

(b) All repairs to and/or replacements of the Electrical Facilities shall inure to the benefit of the
Company only and shall be and become the sole property of the Company without further or other cost to the
Company except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement.

2, Minimal Impacts. The Company agrees to not unreasonably interfere with the use of Property by
the Owners or any of the Owners’ tenants, invitees or guests, subject to the interference inherent in connection with
the construction, operation and maintenance of the Electrical Facilities. The Company will use commercially
reasonable efforts consistent with good utility practices during the construction or maintenance of the Electrical
Facilities to (i) minimize any interruption of the business operation on the Property and (ii) keep the driveways on
the Property open to vehicles and pedestrian access. If the Property is fenced, all access roads to the Easement Area
shall be gated by Owners at Owners’ sole cost and expense, including labor and material, and at all times the
Company shall be furnished with keys or other ability to open and close such gates.

3. Requirements of Governmental Agencies. The Company, at its sole cost and expense, shall
comply in all material respects with valid laws, ordinances, statutes, orders, and regulations of any governmental
agency or entity to the extent the same are applicable to the Company, Property, the Easement Area, the Electrical
Facilities, all of the easements granted by Owners to the Company described herein, and the Company’s possession,

Sy
35201706v5



OnNODJU I

use, enjoyment, and operation thereof. The Company shall have the right, in its sole discretion and at its sole cost
and expense, to contest by appropriate legal proceedings, the validity or applicability to the Property, the Easement
Area, the Electrical Facilities, and all of the easements granted by Owners to the Company described herein, of any
law, ordinance, statute, order, regulation, property assessment, or the like now or hereafter made or issued by any
federal, state, county, local or other governmental agency or entity. Any such contest or proceeding shall be
controlled and directed by the Company at the Company’s sole cost and expense.

4, Construction Liens. The Company shall keep the Property, the Easement Area, the Electrical
Facilities, and all of the easements granted by the Owners to the Company described herein free and clear of all liens
and claims of liens for labor and services performed on, and materials, supplies, or equipment furnished to, the
Property and/or the Easement Area and/or all of the easements granted by Owners to the Company described herein,
in connection with the Company’s use of the Property, the Easement Area, the Electrical Facilities, and all of the
easements described herein; provided, however, that if the Company wishes to contest any such lien, the Company
shall, within sixty (60) days after it receives notice of the filing of such lien, elect to either remove or bond over such
lien from the Property, and/or the Easement Area, and/or the Electrical Facilities, and/or all of the easements
described herein in accordance with applicable law or provide Owners with title insurance insuring Owners’ interest
in the Property and the Easement Area, and all of the easements granted by Owners to the Company described
herein against such lien claim, all at the Company’s sole cost and expense.

5. Liens and Tenants. Except as may be disclosed in the real property records of Lowndes County
or in Exhibit “A-1", or as otherwise disclosed by Owners in writing to the Company on or prior to the date hereof,
Owners represent that there are no encumbrances, mortgages, deeds of trust, deeds to secure debt, or similar liens or
security interests encumbering all or any portion of the Property that could interfere with the Company’s operations
on the Property or the Easement Area, including mechanic’s liens. If any of the foregoing arise that are not caused
by the Company, including mechanic’s liens that may, in the Company’s reasonable determination, interfere with
the Company’s rights under this Agreement, then Owners shall fully cooperate and assist the Company in removing
or limiting such interference, including obtaining a subordination and non-disturbance agreement where the
Company deems it necessary, with terms and conditions reasonably and in good faith requested by the Company, to
protect its rights hereunder from each party that holds such rights (recorded or unrecorded). In the case of monetary
liens such as mechanic’s liens, Owners agree to bond over any such liens in an amount that may be reasonably and
in good faith requested by the Company.

6. Assignment. The Company may assign this Agreement, in whole or in part, without Owners’
prior consent to others in the business of transmitting or distributing electricity including, without limitation, electric
membership cooperatives, affiliated entities or a successor provider of electrical service to the Property (a
“Permitted Assignee”). If Company assigns its entire interest in this Agreement to a Permitted Assignee that
expressly assumes in writing all obligations of the Company under this Agreement from and after the effective date
of such assignment, the Company will be released or discharged from all of its covenants and obligations under this
Agreement, except such obligations accruing prior to the effective date of such assignment. Except as otherwise
expressly provided in this Agreement, the Company shall not, without the prior written consent of Owners, assign
this Agreement, or any interest hereunder (whether outright or as collateral) to a third party, or lease the Easement
Area, or any part thereof, or permit the use of the Easement Area, or any part thereof, by a third party. Owners
covenant and agree that Owners will not unreasonably withhold or delay its consent to any such proposed
assignment or such proposed permitted use of the Easement Area. The Company shall have the right to permit the
attachment of the cables, lines, wires, apparatus, fixtures, and appliances of any other company, or person, to the
Electrical Facilities for electric, communications or other purposes, upon or under the Easement Area with the
express understanding that each such other company or person must obtain separate easement rights from the
Owners.

7. Acceptance of and Return of Property. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, the
Company accepts the Property and the Easement Area in accordance with its present condition and as suited for the
use intended by the Company. Except as such obligations shall be otherwise expressly limited or expanded by the
other provisions hereof, the Company shall, throughout the term of this Agreement, at the Company's sole cost and
expense, maintain and keep the Property (other than the Easement Area) which the Company has the right to use
under this Agreement, if any, and the Easement Area in good order, repair, and condition, normal wear and tear
excepted. Except as such obligations shall be otherwise expressly limited or expanded by the other provisions

3-
35201706v5



oo  ainl Y O)
;Vf_-\-:-:'ﬂff":r iqu

W i)

hereof, the Company further agrees to return the Property (other than the Easement Area) which the Company has
the right to use under this Agreement, if any, and the Easement Area to Owners at the expiration or sooner
termination and/or cancellation of this Agreement in as good order, repair, and condition as when first received,
normal wear and tear excepted and exclusive of any trees and/or other obstructions removed pursuant to the terms of
this Agreement. The Company further agrees to turn over the Property (other than the Easement Area) which the
Company has the right to use under this Agreement, if any, and the Easement Area at the expiration or sooner
termination and/or cancellation of this Agreement free of all liens and/or claims of lien of every kind and nature
whatsoever arising out of the Company’s activities on or possession or use or occupancy or operation on the
Property (other than the Easement Area) which the Company has the right to use under this Agreement, if any, and
the Easement Area.

8. Entering of Property. The Company shall permit Owners, Owners’ duly authorized agents,
servants, employees, and representatives (including contractors), to enter upon and into the Easement Area at all
reasonable times upon reasonable advance notice for the purpose of ascertaining whether or not the Company has
complied or is complying with the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and/or for the purpose of making repairs
to and/or replacements and/or maintenance of any portion or portions of the Property and/or the Easement Area
(exclusive of the Electrical Facilities) which Owners have agreed hereunder to make, and/or for any other purpose or
purposes for which this Agreement authorizes such entry by Owners.

9. Use of Property. The Property and the Easement Area shall be used solely for the purposes set
forth herein, and for no other purposes. The Property and/or the Easement Area shall not be used for any illegal
purposes, nor in violation of any applicable law or regulation of any governmental body or agency, nor in any
manner to create any nuisance (other than the interference inherent in connection with the construction, operation
and maintenance of the Electrical Facilities) or trespass, nor in any manner to vitiate the insurance or increase the
rate of insurance on the Property and/or the Easement Area established for the use herein specified.

10. Reservation of Rights. Owners reserve reasonable rights of ingress and egress over and across the
Easement Area in order to go to and from Owner's other land; provided, however, all such ingress and egress
activities shall be conducted at a distance greater than twenty-five feet (25") from any Electrical Facilities and any of
the Owners’ vehicles or equipment crossing the Easement Area shall be less than fifteen (15) feet in height, unless
otherwise approved in advance by the Company. Owners hereby agree and covenant not to use and will prohibit
agents, employees and contractors of Owners from using any tools, equipment or machinery within ten feet
(10") of Company's electrical conductors. Owners agree to warn all persons whom Owners know or should
reasonably anticipate may resort to the vicinity of such conductors of the fact that such conductors are (a) electrical
conductors, (b) energized, (c) uninsulated, and (d) dangerous. Owners agree to comply with Official Code of
Georgia § 46-3-30, et. seq. (High Voltage Safety Act), and any and all rules and regulations of the State of Georgia
promulgated in connection therewith, all as now enacted or hereinafter amended, and further agrees to require any
contractor(s) that may be employed by Owners to cross the Easement Area in compliance with such code sections
and regulations. Owners shall not place or store, nor permit to be placed or stored, any Hazardous Substances (as
defined in 42 US.C. Sections 9601, et seq.), petroleum products or other pollutants, toxic substances or
environmental hazards, on or under the Easement Area.

11. Binding Nature of Covenants. All covenants contained in this Agreement with respect to the
obligations of Owners shall be binding upon Owners, and Owners’ heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and
assigns, and all covenants contained in this Agreement with respect to the obligations of the Company shall be
binding upon the Company, and the Company's successors and permitted assigns.

12. Possession — Notice of Defects. Owners give to the Company exclusive control of the Easement
Area, except as otherwise expressly provided herein, and shall be under no obligation to inspect the Easement Area.
The Company shall promptly report in writing to Owners any defective condition of the Easement Area known to
the Company which Owners are obligated hereunder to repair and/or replace and failure to so report such defect to
Owners shall make the Company responsible to the Owners for any liability incurred by the Owners to the Company
or to any third party or parties arising out of or in any way resulting from such defect and shall result in Owners
being released and discharged from any liability to the Company arising out of or in any way resulting from such
defect.

4.
35201706v5



J

VL cnant
i:-f‘ \:}\.}ﬂ J 1

009

13. Alterations, etc. Except for the Electrical Facilities and as otherwise expressly provided in this
Agreement, the Company agrees that no alterations, additions, improvements, and/or other changes shall be made to
or with respect to the Easement Area, or any part thereof, without first having obtained the written consent of
Owners. The Company further agrees that Company, at Company’s sole expense, shall have the right to remove any
or all of its Electrical Facilities from the Easement Area for a period of twenty-four (24) months following the
expiration or sooner termination and/or cancellation of this Agreement, with any damages caused thereby to be paid
for by the Company. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of the expiration or sooner termination and/or
cancellation of this Agreement, upon written request from Owners, Company agrees, within twelve (12) months
from receipt of such written request and at Company’s sole expense, to remove all equipment and components of the
Electrical Facilities from the Easement Area. The Company further agrees that any or all of the Electrical Facilities
that remain within the Easement Area as of the date that is twenty-four (24) months following the expiration or
sooner termination and/or cancellation of this Agreement shall be deemed abandoned by Company and shall become
the sole property of Owners without any further action required by the Parties.

14. Construction. In construing the provisions of this Agreement, where any liability or obligation is
purported to be imputed to or imposed on Owners or the Company, respectively, by virtue of any act or failure to act
by any duly authorized agent, servant, employee, or representative (including contractors) of Owners or the
Company, respectively, then the liability or obligation shall not be imputed to or imposed on Owners or the
Company, respectively, unless, under legal principles regarding vicarious liability, the liability or obligation is
imputed to or imposed on Owners or the Company, respectively. In this connection, Owners and the Company
expressly agree that the Company’s invitees and Owners’ invitees, respectively, shall be considered and deemed to
be “representatives” of the Company and Owners, respectively, for all purposes of this Agreement and not a third-
party or parties.

15. Letter Agreement; Miscellaneous. Except for the terms and conditions contained in an
unrecorded letter agreement between the Parties dated on or about the date hereof, an original of which is on file
with each of the Parties, neither Party shall be liable for nor bound by any statement, agreement or understanding not
herein expressed. This Agreement constitutes the full and complete agreement between the Parties with respect to
all matters contained herein, and evidence of any prior or contemporaneous oral agreement or understanding shall be
inadmissible to alter the terms of this Agreement. If any term or provision of this Agreement, or the application
thereof to any person or circumstances, shall to any extent be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this
Agreement, or the application of such terms to persons or circumstances other than those as to which it is invalid or
unenforceable, shall not be affected thereby, and each term of this Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the
fullest extent permitted by law. No meodification, amendment or waiver of the terms and conditions of this
Agreement shall be binding upon either Party, unless approved in writing by an authorized representative of each
Party. This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but
all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument. This Agreement shall be governed by and
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Georgia.

[Signatures appear on following page.]

5=
35201706v5



5008P65010

[SIGNATURE PAGE TO EASEMENT AGREEMENT]

Signed, sealed and dellveretr in the
presence of:

/Zt,ubd’/‘if & ID“Q/V}UZJ/

ezoz ' Z1 AQV?N\*F
VIDY03n
S3¥ldxg

Y —=0

¢, Q ~

Signed, sealed and deli%m(? jl?lt%?\“‘
resewofz

Witness
fies (Fo s
y %0
4 l. Q + .t
£ 2iynangY
v —i H
(Y i/
Y 1Y waOS 2
’p* Seuanans® o'i .2
‘“44 va Ao

A iwwe s

35201706v5

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Owners have hereunto set their hand(s) and seal(s), this Z 2— day of
by 2018,

Auius—(f

Signed, sealed and delivered in the

-6-

AL)

L
Virgitha G. Tyson, a/k/a Vi
Griffin Tyson

MWAL)

Charles F. Hobby




N /F s /! /LD i-? / 2 LINE TABLE LINE TABLE LINE TABLE l
RUTH el 3 B / = > ;’: UNE f | DIRECTION | LENGTH | LINE § | DIRECTION | LENGTH | LNE # | DIRECTION | LENGTH | -
1%} =
PERRY At : / 5 e SBE'31'13'W | 66373 | L6 | NIS19'44E | 2074 | L1 | SBI40'14°E | 694.49' |
& ; T
: ' 87 | U y 87
UFE | ot e e s N/F
ESATE SBY'56'25"W 113(;59' L9 | SBY48'47E | 547 Isa' TURNER FAMILY
GPC R/W : ' INVESTMENTS, LP
MONUMENT saos649W | 40837 | L0 | soo1o3w | 27.90 ’ |
4"X4" CONC.
15' ABOVE N/F TURNER FAMILY INVESTMENTS, LP\'\
GROUND APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF LAND LOT LINE GATE
LAND -l:or-aro,i\.l[)NEE[)IgEPROPERW LINE 12" DIRT DRIVE _\
— __ ) / ) p, 4 HOGWRE FENCE p, -\
Fo F /] ’ F_OZL— FO —+ Fcn FO FO FO — FO FO Fo FO i Clro O
N - oy 10 T~ "~ " =~ —GPCREQUREDRMW | | | B -
X_x———_ T ST e S s M T SRR WY ST --—-T—u—,a,u—-:—-—vv———'—-—-—‘=-—*“- B R TR
- . ..-.__ﬁ:s.-_._,_a- X\ X =X X X —X- : A — S e BRI R " R
= . \ - L5 ="~ GPC REQUIRED R/W L4
~ _A o | ==
= WOOoDS BEGIN PROPOSED # Hoowre FEnce — TWIN LAKES ROAD = =
&/ 1 =  DISTRIBUTION LINE -
ng-/ ROAD X II N Lmss!‘g.E (D|RT ROAD) mssizle J
é.’ 3 PROPOSED DIST. C/L PROPOSED DIST. C/L |

CHARLES F. HOBBY (37.5%),
NANCY G. HOBBY A/K/A NANCY GRIFFIN HOBBY (31.25%)
AND VIRGINIA G. TYSON A/K/A VIRGINIA GRIFFIN TYSON (31.25%)

GPC REQUIRED R/W = 1.15 ACRES

i |.L_;u?:_uaj;:1_u-7

GEORGIA POWER COMPANY - LAND DEPARTMENT COORDINATE DATUM: NAD83(2011), GEORGIA STATE PLANE WEST ZONE

SYMBOL LEGEND

© IRON PIN SET

@ IRON PIN FOUND
[®] ROW MARKER

GPC R/W MONUMENT

QUITCLAMED R/W
PARCEL No. 003

SUWANNEE - TWIN LAKES DISTRIBUTION LINE - TWIN LAKES ROAD DATE:  5/8/2018 |
; E"O"SNT“NEFP;’EL;NNING - CROSSING THE PROPERTY OF SCALE: 1" = 100’
i BRI, COMIREEHT CHARLES F. HOBBY (37.5%), DRAWN BY: SNA/DAR
[ GPC REQURED R/W NANCY G. HOBBY A/K/A NANCY GRIFFIN HOBBY (31.25X) EXHIBIT A
@ oec exsme k% AND VIRGINIA G. TYSON A/K/A VIRGINIA GRIFFIN TYSON (31.25%)
LAND LOT 76, 16TH DISTRICT, LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA SHT 10F &




’ LINE TABLE LINE TABLE LINE TABLE
UNEf DIRECTION LENGTH IJNEf DIRECTION LENGTH UNE' DIRECTION | LENGTH
: L1 S88°31M13'W | 663.73 L6 N1S19'44°E | 20.74' L1 S89°40'14°E | 694.49'
12 S0010'13°W | 26.87 L7 NB9'56'49°E | 402.87'
L3 N8Y'48'47°W | 578,57 L8 N89'56'25°E | 1130.63
L4 $89°56'25°W | 1130.59' 19 S89'48'47°E | 547.58' N /F
of LD SNV | WRF | W0 | SOWLW) 790 TURNER FAMILY INVESTMENTS, LP

N/F TURNER FAMILY INVESTMENTS, LP

APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF LAND LOT LINE

PARCEL No. 003

LAND LQT 76, 16TH DISTRICT, LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA

12' DIRT DRIVE
FIBER OPTIC LAND LOT LINE IS PROPERTY LINE FBeR o [ OAD EDGE
[ UARRER - MARKER FIBER OPTIC
GATE P § HOGWIRE FENCE p, [~ CPC REQURED R/W MARKER_\ P/
o @ e e e — o —— o — e Sl e |y - yu—p——p—
ety i Al =
- i s ,-—1*43;_7.—.—3 i O e e e T i e e e —.:_*.*-f___*_.:‘—.““._"
PP L k OPC REQURED R7W ‘A 5 == B
N89"56'25"E TWIN LAKES ROAD S0 SBeMBUTET -
PROPOSED DIST. C/L (DIRT ROAD) PROPOSED DIST. C/L )
CHARLES F. HOBBY (37.5%), =
NANCY G. HOBBY A/K/A NANCY GRIFFIN HOBBY (31.25%)
AND VIRGINIA G. TYSON A/K/A VIRGINIA GRIFFIN TYSON (31.25%)
GPC REQUIRED R/W = 1.15 ACRES
GEORGIA POWER COMPANY - LAND DEPARTMENT COORDINATE DATUM: NADB3(2011), GEORGIA STATE PLANE WEST ZONE
SYMBOL LEGEND SUWANNEE - TWIN LAKES DISTRIBUTION LINE - TWIN LAKES ROAD DATE: _ 5/8/2018 |
8 ::8: :: E;'JND ;; 3:5£N§FP§;|~N|NG - CROSSING THE PROPERTY OF SCAE: 1" = 100’
i CHARLES F. HOBBY (37.5%), DRAWN BY:  SNA/DAR
B e o sopr E oo NANCY G. HOBBY A/K/A NANCY GRIFFIN HOBBY (31.25%) e
P77 icLAMeD R/W - [EETE] GPC EXISTING R/W AND VIRGINIA G. TYSON A/K/A VIRGINIA GRIFFIN TYSON (31.25%) ST H 8 1




BOBBY LAMBERT

4" HOGWIRE
FENCE

N89°56°25°E

PROPOSED DIST. C/L

(DIRT ROAD) _—
N3#29'42°E

S89°48'47"E
PROPOSED DIST. ¢/ CHARLES F. HOBBY (37.5%),
NANCY G. HOBBY A/K/A NANCY GRIFFIN HOBBY (31.25%)

AND VIRGINIA G. TYSON A/K/A VIRGINIA GRIFFIN TYSON (31.25%)
GPC REQUIRED R/W = 1.15 ACRES

= 4" HOGWIRE FENCE
"~ - GPC REQUIRED R/W

LINE TABLE LINE TABLE LINE TABLE
UNE # | DIRECTION | LENGTH | LINE # | DIRECTION | LENGTH | LNE # | DIRECTION | LENGTH
L SBE31'13'W | 663.73 L6 | NMI519'M4E | 2074 L11 | SBI40'14°E | 694.49° |
L2 S0010'13'W | 26.87 L7 NBY'56'49°E | 402.87' | I N / F
L3 | N8T48'47°W | 57857 LB | N8956'25°E | 1130.63'
L4 | SBO'56'25°W | 113059' | L9 SBI'48'47E | 547.58' N / F
L5 | SBU'56'49W | 408.37° | L10 | SO010'13°W | 27.90' BOBBY LAMBERT
N/F 33" CONC. MONUMENT |
TURNER FAMILY INVESTMENTS, LP | /02 ABOVE CROUND | NB8'31"13°E
FIBER OPTIC MARKER . RS T L
APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF LAND LOT LINE -
LAND LOT LINE IS PROPERTY LINE 12" DIRT
4 HOGWIRE. FENCE
- 4 HOGWRE FENCE }[ DRVE__ EXT. ROADRMW |
A /_ U P/ ‘ 1 i
Fo LBF_Q_)ZL@EQ__ ____ —Q—_é]__]_’ c. '—;————'—-v--‘-—'-—- ~ _
=t 0700 — : — = — K
e ~ e N = — =
U —"— \ TPC. REQURED /W
TWIN LAKES ROAD

| GPC REQUIRED R/W

VARIES ALONG P/L

PROPOSED DIST. C/L

GEORGIA POWER COMPANY - LAND DEPARTMENT

COORDINATE DATUM: NAD83(2011), GEORGIA STATE PLANE WEST ZONE

SYMBOL LEGEND
® IRON PIN SET

® IRON PIN FOUND
[®] ROW MARKER

PARCEL No. 003

® EXISTING POLE

@ POINT OF BEGINNING (POB)
POC= POINT OF COMMENCEMENT
GPC R/W MONUMENT GPC REQUIRED R/W
QUITCLAMED R/W GPC EXISTING R/W

SUWANNEE - TWIN LAKES DISTRIBUTION LINE — TWIN LAKES ROAD

CROSSING THE PROPERTY OF

CHARLES F. HOBBY (37.5%), NANCY G. HOBBY
A/K/A NANCY GRIFFIN HOBBY (31.25%) AND

VIRGINIA G. TYSON A/K/A VIRGINIA GRIFFIN TYSON (31.25%)
LAND LOT 76, 16TH DISTRICT, LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA

DATE: 5/8/2018

SCALE: 1" =

100’

DRAWN BY:  SNA/DAR

EXHIBIT A
SHT 3 OF 4




=
[
=
=
sk
S
o] -2
2F
gu..
v

LINE TABLE LINE TABLE LINE TABLE - |
UNE § | DIRECTION LENGTH | LINE § | DIRECTION LENGTH | LNE §# | DIRECTION | LENGTH %"%u‘i‘:
= 3
L1 S88'3113°W | 663.73 L6 NIS19'44°E | 2074 L11 | SBY40'14°E | 694.49 = § E El
12 | SOU10'13W | 2687 | L7 | Negrs6u9E | 40287 I N / F §§2§
< (a4
13 | Newag47w | 57857 | 1B | Negrs6'2SE | 113063 :1 TURNER FAMILY ?8 3 &
4 | s8ys625W | 113050 | L9 | SBouBTE | 547.58° | INVESTMENTS, LP =
15 |sswse4ew | 40837 | L0 | soorto3w | 2790 IFIT_FUS1H/ ﬁlfﬁE%AI\?%UND
DIST.
N/F | N/F poLE \ | 3"X3” CONC MONUMENT $
BOBBY ok SCOTT F. ALDRIDGE 0.8' ABOVE GROUND |
| APPROXIMATE LOCATION OF LAND LOT LINE & EXIST. ROAD R/W
IPFL?/B;!"BEEF;IR LAND LOT LINE IS PROPERTY LINE =| o s F{ A
, GPC REQURED R/ NB8®*31°13" 2|
0.1 ABOVE VARIES ALONG P/L M13E = N8706°03"E
GROUND — DRIVE PROPOSED DIST. C/L | PROPOSED DIST. C/L
S | EXIST. ROAD R/W_, 4 HOGWIRE FENCE i
e ,X_I.'u_l: o — —— :———-:_—_'-_'
.- 0 - ;"('JBN894014W 266.23 -
g e i st TIE LINE -
R | = 4 HOGWIRE FENCE | STATE PLANE COORDINATES
- 7’ |
EDGE | |pF 3/4” REBAR E 32333?3753 T
FLUSH WITH GROUND TWIN LAKES ROAD ' z
GPC REQUIRED R/W (ORT ROAD) N lg =
CHARLES F. HOBBY (37.5%), 2 ;g
NANCY G. HOBBY A/ K/A NANCY GRIFFIN HOBBY (31.25%) ! g%
= |
AND VIRGINIA G. TYSON A/K/A VIRGINIA GRIFFIN TYSON (31.25%) & ga
GPC REQUIRED R/W = 1.15 ACRES =

"N/
JOHN 0. BRIDGES, JR. AND
KATHERINE POTTS BRIDGES

3"X3" CONC MONUMENT
FLUSH WITH GROUND

IPF 3/4" REBAR
FLUSH WITH GROUND

END PROPOSED
DISTRIBUTION LINE
DIST. POLE — WOOD

DIST. POLE

EXIST,
ROAD R/W |

~Fo -—“—— Fo

D
o

FIBER OPTIC MARKER

—X—X%

EXIST. ROAD R/W
P.0.C.
IPF 1/4" REBAR
0.1" BELOW GROUND
STATE PLANE COORDINATES
N: 254869.33
E: 2592780.92 N/F
LUCY K. REGISTER A/K/A
LUCY HELEN KING REGISTER,
ERIC SAVANNAH REGISTER AND
RORY TIMOTHY REGISTER

GEORGIA POWER COMPANY - LAND DEPARTMENT

COORDINATE DATUM: NAD83(2011), GEORGIA STATE PLANE WEST ZONE

SYMBOL LEGEND SUWANNEE - TWIN LAKES DISTRIBUTION LINE — TWIN LAKES ROAD DATE:  5/8/2018 |
8 ::g: ;’: EELND ; S;ﬁ”g;;’;mm - CROSSING THE PROPERTY OF S e o
18] RON WARKER s BOBT G COREEE CHARLES F. HOBBY (37.5X), NANCY G. HOBBY DRAWN BY:  SNA/DAR
GPC R/W MONUMENT GPC REQUIRED R/W A/K/A NANCY GRIFF‘N HOBBY (31.25%) AND EXHIBIT A
B2 uicLamen RN [173]7] GPC EXISTING R/W VIRGINIA G. TYSON A/K/A VIRGINIA GRIFFIN TYSON (31.25%)

PARCEL No. 003 LAND LOT 76, I6TH DISTRICT, LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA SHT 4 OF 4




1 £y .8 N

0 16vY

L6

¢8

4 .06, l+.68 N

YO’ L6¥v

00°¢c¢C

3 .868188 S

425147

8v

68

INIYV3E

SNIAvyY

HLONTT

AAH4NO

318vV1L JAd4NO

kT 0o s T D I S EE L SRR A
Gt T e YL LT L R =7 .

HAONHHHATL

LL 1T

9z 171

(M/9 .0g)

Ly ¥vd 'S6L dVW XVl

S3901M9 "M ABY
10 AlH¥3d0dd

Ly ¥Vd 'G6L dVN XYL
S3001¥E "M ABYi

40 AL¥3d0oyd

I\\b

—

)

INIT ALY3HOYE SI INMT 3ONIA

NN 10T NV "XOMddVY

M 1¥.8C.10 S

$6'9/7
M .¥G.82.20 S

M .$OL+.10 S

AV 6691

M .¥G.82.20 S

.C9°9601

X
61 0L

¢9 "1

BL9G8

3 .6l

SHIIDYV 000°9

LJlO N

KD

£EE08 |2 .5p°008 | P.0

AVOY SHMVT NIML

T A S SR R AN O S R S g

aspbuliayq “__oElw._
L09L¢ VO 'DISOPIDA

¢ 9766—6GZ—6ZZ XD
‘py sunsnbny 15 N 109

y GGYB6—6GZ—627 :auoyda|aj
"OUT ‘SUTAAING
uIo)seainog

T KT, Uik KB S L T YLD S L) S|

B ek TR i D A i S el LN s ot 24 AT 0 e

mt@«%«.&ﬁ.ﬂ.s«..? G R0 TRV .20y W B e RS R T 4 Ty Rl f.}kﬂh&ﬂ#&@ﬂhﬁp@l&“ﬂfﬂiﬂ&”ﬂi
0Ol Q3ON3Y3I4TY aINYNL SITONY 41314
NOY4d d3LVINOIVI 3J43IM NMOHS SONI¥V3E

L6S LLL/ .1 13HNSOTD Lvd
3Ny ONITHY3H P INIWLSNrQY 40 JOHL3N
1d/ .2 80443 J19NV

+000°'G1 :34NSOTD Q1314
LNOILVLS TVIOL, VIT-dV NOOdOL :Q3Sn LN3INDIND3

i

58998

¢ LOVYUL
SHIIV 000°9

9 LOVYL

Vi CLS

SHIOV 000°9

0

62°£G8
L

& LOVYL

©
o
O
5

L
£

00°Z¥G

——

| M .£0,02.88 N

Y
SY'C0L ]

[Of QINIVINIVA ALNNOD)

avod SSOW. IVid

M/

N

9L 0vH

& LOVYL

8l 'G66

SHIIV ST1E€°0T

—h]

-— 3 ,61,91l.10 N

EE——————

M LY.S1.88

SHIdDV LL0¢cB

¥ LOVUL

R
O
=

|

oL

-
-

/4

¢

88 N

|
g )

¢lE 9d ‘v08L 84

dINYNL "M 30A07 40 ALY¥34ONd

LW

BLLLLT
3 .6L9..l10 N

W4
.

_ﬂ._ A

L4

L4
s

144

bW

\%’O

o
R
o~
N

LON A

4

e —

-— 3 ,6L.91.10 N
3 .6L.91

0120 J

Ov 6CY
BL.9L.L0 N

d/po

o~f 3
]

¢ LOVYL

8G'8L6

SHIDV

12986

* SHIDV 000°C

s

08801

S 667G
«£€,60.10° N

T

AV 6Ly

3JON3d — —X—X—

13S IN3INNNOW 313¥ONOD — "S'W°
AVM 40 1HOI1Y -
aNNO4 LIN3IWNNOW 31 3YONOD —
ANNOd 3d1d Q3ZINVATIVD —
ONAO4 Nid NOYI —
13S Nid NOYI —

FR TG A DY s i RS S T W Y S P, T Nl

dvaly .8/6 —

e P S N A NS WAL i |

ANAHOA]

%ﬁﬁg‘ﬂw}w‘ﬁi T (AR i R i Y N, A TR o I R N e L LA e L ST

£ LY.00
JG.L1.68
«¥G.L1.68
«L0,6V.68
« 16,2298
61.91.10
«1£.86.68
.56,9¢.68
£¥,62.88
«C¥.,8G..8
0¥,26.88
(16,2898

ONIYV3IH

CIN
L1
0L
61
8
L1
97
G
A
¢
Z]
7
NI

69°CCE
1S ¢0¢
¢¢ 09

1G061
LYl
0Z'cl

8l ¥/L1
¢e9ci
80°0¢ 1
¥6'691
0L ¥01
1$°9¢

H1ON3T
319v1 3NIT

w222z 2=
Z| z| zZ| Z| 2| Z| n| ]l nln]n

U4 008 =HONI L ATVOS DIHAVYD

==

009 00Y 0 00t

¢ UVd ‘G6L dVN XVl

¥002 ‘6 ANNC :dISIAHY LV1d
02 ‘T2 TIddV ALVAd LVId % AJAUNS

VIDI0dAD ‘ALNNOD
SAANMOT ‘LOIYLSIAd ANVT U391
JHL 40 €9 LOT dNVI NI ONIJH

ALY ISH

OTT ‘NIMOVEIIN-YALIYD

d0d AdAUNS 40 LVId

pnoY Jouadng ai0
MOID) ] BIES

- £ 3T abed Hvumed 1ed
fep™ s,
a30x0453y

A LRNOD SFANMGT VISHO0ID

OMM \N AHLOC

S0 > ¥0

3 . 1v.52.88 S

M/

e 71 ~
1+ 9d ‘0Z 9d ¥3d
HOD 107 dNV1 "X0YddY _

(M/9 .09)

N Q¥ HOYNHD HININOD

08'61¢=0dHO

3 .8G,91.88 N=HD
82'8v/.9=¥

L8 61e=1

e T R T b e, e S

R T rr e

= .':"""‘ -

R e s e e R S

et

TR e B

& on o R
A gl

Tl oW g i
B

e R

R '$' Tl

B o A ol

BB i e mi e
R R S A

R T L S 5
?.*=,.é-31 = :_.';ﬁ =

et S i

e

T
HAPHEC LN

e

et

e e T

Nt s Sk

e A



F: 2,58/,875.753801

EXHIBIT A

\ 10 UTILITY LINES

WARREN L. TURNER JR.
TAX PARCEL 0170 076
DEED BOOK 6867 PAGE 331

\(} PLAT BOOK 11 PAGE 273
5
ICURVE NAME: CUR-1
S
(@}
S lg 10
S D e e Y Y e Y e e M e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ——_— e e e e— e e — e — - N ©©
= S R\s% 7
_ 2 >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> — << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << é
RN R W i
\ 5 o) &
— T2
\, 102-900 ) 00 1 0_ ) VF - (55) 14+00 585710 WE fan s +00 16+ | ;
I T 10
TWIN LAKES RD sspl44'26"E  633.35 %
P\ | —W W— —W W —W k_——w — W W A — S— W — W — — —
: /e \\ B
\ ;A%% >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << 8
~ (@)
\ - T e — = D e e o a Y B Ly L L3 L= L —i — e Ly Ly —I7 — L, L LA LA S
//’\ —
/ \\\
/ P\\
-\
I
W)
4
{
~ \
\\ *\
N -
\\ \
\ )
\
| VIRGINIA G. TYSON AND NANCY G. HOBBY
TAX PARCEL 0171 090
\ DEED BOOK 5503 PAGE 75
\
\
\‘ CONCRETE HEADWALL
| FEACH END
\
ELECTRONIC CONSTRUCTION CNGINEERED BY: JAYDE ZIMMER DATE: SEPT 2025
FILE DATE REVISION DATE PROJECT TITLE: Twin Lakes Road Paving and Drainage Improvements
SCALE IN FEET PLANS DATE: 09/11/2025 REVISION DATE: PROJECT #:
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: WUORK ORDER #: PI: 0016280 ‘ G :
0 2 0] 80
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: REGION: VALDOSTA AREA HQ: VALDUOSTA M eorgla Power
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: COUNTY: LOWNDES
SLANS DATE. SEUTSION DATE. MAP REFERENCE: 0741-0162 DWG *: 0001



JZimmer
Text Box
EXHIBIT A


. EXHIBIT A

UNIMPROVED SOIL DRIVE
o-o
RP =
. o . -2 =
o CURVE NAME: C CURVE NAME: CUR-2| /‘ =
S NSA | | &
= ———— = = = T T - "-"=--"-"-—-—"-"-"-"-= = —_— _— - ] |
g - —_— Fo|T] FO_ - = ~ - > | _ 1=
$ é%— << << << << << << << << << -4 ) ;W‘a" FO— — Fo— e i e | ] o | |l _—/_EE
<< < D« - Z |l FO FO—— —_— - — ] — — o —— — — —_— . ___ — TFO
I R << << 3 D B | 2 — (0] FO— — po-sMal — — o FO—— —— Ao
= & \van o P — =< < W FO — FO— — FO— — FO— —— LS £ —— EO —— 0
: e A s Ry =n12
4" m
Z 1o
2 L | =
3 = <
O =
=
< 0
= S
(@)
= @)
3 w1 =
© W . 4 o'
(é I, u // o Q
m \
- .
’ _& 4 EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT
R/ AV AND VALVE 10 BEPPED
APSETNE % SEMOVED AND CA
< CONTROL POINT 120
S
. 4
x "/~ /
I . X

/
QO
/
QQ
/
- o
ELECTRONIC CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERED BY: JAYDE ZIMMER DATE: SEPT 2025
FILE DATE REVISION DATE PROJECT TITLE: Twin Lakes Road Paving and Drainage Improvements
SCALE IN FEET PLANS DATE: 09/11/2025 REVISION DATE: PROJECT +: ‘
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: WORK ORDER *: PI: 0016280 G M
¢ . v % ITPLaNS DATE: REVISION DATE: REGION: VALDOSTA AREA HQ: VALDOSTA -2 SEOrgIla Power
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: COUNTY: LOWNDES
SN DATE ~=VTSTON DATE: MAP REFERENCE: 0741-0162 DWG *#: 0002



JZimmer_1
Text Box
EXHIBIT A


EXHIBIT A

LILLIAN PERRY ET AL

TAX PARCEL 0171 091
DEED BOOK 2923 PAGE 220

N74° 41' 07.08"W
30.00'

(A
—

—|CURVE NAME: CUR-2| V;lﬁ)FERF%ER \6.ELTUOR1|\71%R OJ7R6.
NEED BOOK 6867 PAGE 351 S
SUAT BOOK 11 PAGE 279 =
@]
: (=) :
S 0 N
co% :_%(2_-—-; —rgo/ —T_FO/R;/ -F-o:/ — fo— = ro— T fo— — FO— — FO/_/_ FO— ~ Fo— — o —— FO— = Fo— — Fo— — FO/_/_ FO— ~ Tro— — fo— — Fo— — FO_L é
gl 027" — FO.T— = = — > o FO———FO = >> >> >> >> >>
2 0. — F0 =— FO° - F0 —== FO = FO—F0 ro- — FO>——FO FO >i‘cr/ﬁfb-—-rif-—-ro-—-m-—-ro-—-ro———ro-—-ro-—-ro =
gl — == = T _-:_-—'-—'_:-—'_-:_-—'-—;-—'_-:'_-—'-—';-—'_:_-—'-—_-_':'-—'_-:_-—'-—_-,'_—'-—':_-—'-—_-_r'-—':_-—'-:-_;—'-—':_ ————— 2
@ | A
= o
Z | 26+00  VF-(57) ,, ' S
2 F -t I EL_EE —:i;—i:;—i:;—i;;—i;——i;:—i:————————————— ,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, "“ e : <
% TWIN LAKES RD =
fmmeimeem :
___________________________________ o
- >> >> >>/>>/>>/>>/>>/>>/>>/>>/>>/>>/>> >/>>/>>/>> (5
e ———— e e AR Y T :
— # —H— i i ; j F = - — T T
A — = # it
=
o=
=)
VIRGINIA G. TYSON AND NANCY G. HOBBY /
PARCEL 0171 090
OEED BOOK 5503 PACE 79
ELECTRON /
SCALE IN FEET PLANS DFII—E DAT{ZC RCEO\I/\IISSTRUCTIDN E
ATE: 09 10 NGINEE .
0 /11/20 N RED BY:
2 0 20 PLANS DATE; 25 REVISION DATE: [)ACFE PROJECT TITLE;ﬁAYDE /IMMER D
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: PROJECT =#: win Lakes Road Pavin - DATE: SERT 2025
PLANS DA REVISION D WORK ORDER g and Drainage Improvements
TE: ATE: #
PLANS : REVISION DATE: REGION: VALDO .
DATE: AR M LS COUNTY: e s PI: 0016280 A G .
 REFERENCE 0741-0162 . |« Georgia Power
DWG #: 0005



JZimmer_2
Ellipse

JZimmer_3
Snapshot

JZimmer_4
Snapshot

JZimmer_5
Line

JZimmer_6
Line

JZimmer_7
Line

JZimmer_8
Line

JZimmer_9
Snapshot

JZimmer_10
Snapshot

JZimmer_11
Polygon

JZimmer_12
Text Box
2.01

JZimmer_13
Text Box
35'-5

JZimmer_14
Text Box
EXHIBIT A


DRWG 0003 MATCH LINE STA: 29+50.00

EXHIBIT A °’

o
WARREN L. TURNER JR.
TAX PARCEL 0170 076
DEED BOOK 6867 PAGE 351 o
PLAT BOOK 11 PAGE 273
S
(AL =
// ?
P4'LIVE DAK z
N Sn
£ £ i # # £ £ i # # £ £ " # # £ £ " # # £ £ i # # £ £ " # # — |
FO— -— FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— —— FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO—{fpgp=Fo— — Fo— — |
— << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << << — >> >> >> >> >> — Z
=
/- bq
EQ m——fg——f—to—— ) ==k —To A o0 ——7f— 0 —Lro / & 11— N ——  —— 1 — 1 —— ——  ——  ———— /1 gy Aol S o Ay Sem—
—fQ ——— 0 —— FQ EQ O =0 ——0 — 0 £O e FO), ES o n—-m__-ro_eru_ro_rﬁq ) 5 g
30+00 31+00 32+00 VF - (58) 33+00 389° 59' 35 00"E 2974.87' - o ._._._.--—-—---—-—-—-§'5;|_'O-O--'--—-—-—--'---------.-.-._._._._._._._._,_E),G_;

T
- O O B M NS R . | MmN

S\ M NN D W N | | W SN | WS NN | Em SN S O N N | | M N
o 0 G ) S ) M\ N | M | W ) M | M M RN MRS
-------
---------
|OEEEN ) NN D N M | M N B N |
. N S | ] NN W | N | S N N S .
|OEEEN ) N W NN | WEEN | BN M ) M | N B SN | NN | W .

- o B B . ) e

VOB N | WS | N N | M | S .

\ '
Iy VY 1 | O == W W W W Y Y Y Y W W Y W W A W A - W s — W = o
Ot — 72 pimina 7 QP Timing OHP—; inin #UHP UHP# OHP 4 O+ OP O 2 OHP %Zm‘ )
_——_——_——_——_——_——EW—— — — — — — — — — — — — — — — LD — — |/ — - — — — — — — — — — — — -
. = L = TIT=) =) m - = \Vinlag \wimiag \vin i # i Ve u w
T AT T T = T T T =y T I = i | PNTTESY At Ik —_— ﬁ}—“p \_A:LP# O #\‘Hp \“_WFF# LW b flf UL URATS UNE - fF A #J # # R\/\/

# o u#r o # A ming #H_H“ \)WT‘# \vimind FiSimins T Wt FU UAT= i

AA 3-795AAC+
795AACH

1/0ACSRN @ 45 4/0ACSRN

|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
L
:
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
|
i |
i
|
|
!
|
(|
{
|
1
1
|
|
|
|
|
1
il
|
|
!
N\
DRWG 0005

®

VIRGINIA G. TYSON AND NANCY G. HOBBY
TAX PARCEL 0171 090
DEED BOOK 5503 PAGE 75

ELECTRONIC CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERED BY: JAYDE ZIMMER DATE: SEPT 2025
FILE DATE REVISION DATE PROJECT TITLE: Twin Lakes Road Paving and Drainage Improvements
SCALE IN FEET PLANS DATE: 09/11/2025 REVISION DATE: PROJECT *: ‘
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: WORK ORDER *#: PI: 0016280 G -
¢ € ¢ % TBLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: REGION: VALDOSTA AREA HQ: VALDOSTA =2 OC0rgla Power
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: COUNTY: LOWNDES
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: MAP REFERENCE: 0/41-0162 DWG #: 0004



JZimmer_15
Text Box
EXHIBIT A


EXHIBIT A

©®

WARREN L. TURNER JR.
TAX PARCEL 0195 031
DEED BOOK 6867 PAGE 351

-]
-
Vi L A ) .
28" LIVE DAK A T 3 LIVE DAk :
of 36°LLIVE UAK 30" LIVE UOAK BRUKE UFF X 367 LIVE UAK ,:;
S # # # #* + # # * * + # # # #* + # #* # # " W d &
C_E ro— — ¥—/— — F0— — ¥O—/— — F0— — ¥'o—/— — F— — ¥FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— Wep— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— O— — FO— FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— Zj
o >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >>
G|l e e e o o T e e e e e R i —— 1 —| &
o e i —— — — = - = i - e ey ey ety ity ey ety ety (o
2 100 37+00 38400 FOSSQO _5';2 35?)_? 29_72:8.7' T ™ 5900 FO ——F0 —— F0 —— FO —— FO —— FO —rFQ,>— FO —— FO —— FO —— FO —— FO —— FO —— D0 3f— FO —— FO —— FO %
e e e e e T e — - .
=, TWIN LAKES RD
O B O
—~ -
<QZ@.z.w_t._.—_._.—_._—._._—._.:_._—._:_t._.—_ ........ e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s e e e e e e =
- A3 >> >> >> >> >> — >-> IIIIIII >-> IIIIIII >-> ------- >-> ------- >-> ....... >-> IIIIIII >-> IIIIIII >-> IIIIIII >-> IIIIIII >-> IIIIIII >-> IIIIIII >-> IIIIIII >-> IIIIIII >-> '''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''''' (é
<t \ BUAS rovam= WUHP = WuHP P \\ - HPW - UHPVV - UHVZ - Wm - WH ) WWF\ o w w w w w w w w W - - W>> - W - >V\? - w - >>W o=
§ @— —ng%g#_ e T —— T #_ — # — 4 §\/\/_# _#_\mf e T Ot 45' P OHP OHP #O‘mr um‘% OHP 2 OHE- RWU‘#P P # OHP ﬁ;@ HHP# —OHE, 0P — M—# Mt == @AP e _Ur% . _#M___ - #_UH:E #h _ -yHP—'Q
&
1\ s | 3-795AACH 45
= 4/0ACSRN
VIRGINIA G. TYSON AND NANCY G. HOBBY
TAX PARCEL 0171 090
DEED BOOK 5503 PAGE 75
cLECTRONIC CONS TRUCTION ENGINEERED BY: JAYDE ZIMMER DATE: SEPT 2025
FILE DATE REVISION DATE PROJECT TITLE: Twin Lakes Road Paving and Drainage Improvements
SCALE IN FEET PLANS DATE: 09/11/2025 REVISION DATE: PROJECT =*: ‘
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: WORK ORDER *: PI: 0016280 G 1
¢ . v % ITPLaNS DATE: REVISION DATE: REGION: VALDOSTA AREA HQ: VALDOSTA -2 SEOrgIla Power
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: COUNTY: LOWNDES
TR o MAP REFERENCE: 0741-0162 DWG_*: 0005



JZimmer_16
Text Box
EXHIBIT A


EXHIBIT A

(W58
BOBBY LAMBERT
WARREN L. TURNER JR. TAX PARCEL 01963 125
TAX_PARCEL 0195 051 DEED BOOK 2891 PAGE 077
DEED BOOK 6867 PAGE 351 PLAT CABINET A PAGE 2553
(W8
(W
= S
S o
: E:
< o
N <
% # # # # # # + + # # # + + # # # + + # # # # # # # # — 4 4 4 e
o— — FO0— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO 7 ro— —-FMmo——mfHo— —Mmf"o— —FMfHo———FMfMo———FFfHo——FFMfoo——FFo— —FO0——FO— —FO— —FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— —'Q »— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — Fd -
m > >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >>
Z =
E' —';— —'_— —i T —_'— —_—' - —_'— —_—'..— —_—' i '— —_—.'.—_— —' — — =l === == =y 7= g
O R\W O
e e ro e it —r et —ro o e o o o o VR0 W S s s seta s W __rn_ E
- TWIN LAKESRD T =
S S
o - - % - - — - - — - - - - Y Yttt/ /= =7 g
) e - wy [ ZW __________________________________________________________ e e e e e e e e o 12"W
§> W W W w w w w W W W W W . w W W — W — W= - E
- = B - — - (i ‘ |} s — e | — o —_ - — . - — m ‘ e ™ A
® OHFg——OHf=——ot ot IS s i i OrP—r——onP P L R A= =il —u&%f THP= 4 o e S al g S S i ortE OffF = —onF U—w 160'— e T T T e ——
O o
45'
VIRGINIA G. TYSON AND NANCY G. HOBBY
TAX PARCEL 0171 090
DEED BOOK 5503 PAGE 75
ELECTRONIC CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERED BY: JAYDE ZIMMER DATE: SEPT 2025
FILE DATE REVISION DATE PROJECT TITLE: Twin Lakes Road Paving and Drainage Improvements
SCALE IN FEET PLANS DATE: 09/11/2025 REVISION DATE: PROJECT =*: ‘
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: WORK ORDER *#: PI: 0016280 G 1
¢ . v % ITPLaNS DATE: REVISION DATE: REGION: VALDOSTA AREA HQ: VALDOSTA -2 SEOrgIla Power
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: COUNTY: LOWNDES
STANS DATE: SEUTSTON DATES MAP REFERENCE: 0741-0162 DWG #: 0006



JZimmer_17
Text Box
EXHIBIT A


2 SCOTT F. ALDRIDGE
@ o o TAX PARCEL 0196 123
DEED BOOK 2891 PAGE 070
PLAT CABINET A PAGE 2553
BOBBY LAMBERT
BOBBY LAMBERT TAX PARCEL 0196 124
TAX PARCEL 01963 125 DEED BOOK 3924 PAGE 272
DEED BOOK 2891 PAGE 077 PLAT CABINET A PAGE 2553
PLAT CABINET A PAGE 2553
(W9 N
45'-3 45'-3 | 45'-3
45' 8'CcUuT — . | 45 3' CUT S
. 248 45 77 6.5 CUT . -
RP 10
3-795AAC+ @ | @ :
B
' 4/0ACSRN \"II{ 2' { o
# e\ e — i — S E——— S — T T T T TR T T T T I e ——— e g [ T — = — o
T — Fo’ —TFo—_ P ; PA— O_L_?_Fgf_ _Fi—i — jﬁt”_— _Fﬂi%f_ 39 ﬂkggﬁﬁﬁ—_ﬁglor_: Pior_é/ =~ ho— ol ﬂ):”_i LO_—.:‘(R“ ‘.O_L:yi Lo—— __F#EO__ _ﬁi}(i_ L E _ “
>> >> >> >> >> -3% >> >> >> >> >> >> >> > >> >> >> >> >> >> —

MATCH LINE STA: 49+00.00

DRWG 0006

CONTROL POINT 26

DRWG 0008 MATCH

VIRGINIA G. TYSON AND NANCY G. HOBBY

CONTROL POINT 22

TAX PARCEL 0171 90 RP
TWIN LAKES*'ROAD*60' R/W)
ELECTRONIC CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERED BY: JAYDE ZIMMER | ~ DATE: SEPT 2025
FILE DATE REVISION DATE PROJECT TITLE: Twin Lakes Road Paving and Drainage Improvements
. ATE: PROJECT +: .
IN FEET PLANS DATE: 09/11/2025 REVISION D | | ‘
= ; REVISION DATE: WORK ORDER *: P1: 0016280 GeC)rgla Power
LA DATE . A HQ: VALDOSTA PN
0 2 0 8 5 ANS DATE. REVISION DATE: REGION: VALDOSTA ARE
' ' OUNTY: LOWNDES
e oA SN ph ﬁAP REFERENCE: 0741-0162 DWG #: 0007
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE:



JZimmer_18
Text Box
EXHIBIT A


EXHIBIT A - @

(=) Q*@ :\&1483 ‘ -

SCOTT F. ALDRIDGE

AR R S KS e : e
DEED BOOK 2891 PAGE 070 PARCEL 0195 032C : |
PLAT CABINET A PAGE 2553 40' DEED BOOK 6867 PAGE 351 TAX PARCEL 0195 041 TEAUXGEPNAERCDEELV%NWE%R‘&ERB
PLAT CABINET A PAGE 2553 DEED BOOK 4608 PAGE 143
PLAT CABINET B PAGE 346 DEED BOOK 4645 PACE 1T
NSA PLAT CABINET B PAGE 346
- [
K

UNIMPROVED SOIL DRIVE ‘
153 .

405 | AG1483 INV=168.12 @ | ‘ o
LOA 1.5 CUT

MATCH LINE STA: 55+50.00

N KS CONTROL POINT 21
[
N — ™ 45 X | 4 G 45' | ~ 237
() o N e e 3-795AACH
1)\ N _ B W ! !
137 L B i 166, Wl 160" 4 45'  4/0OACSRN
f#:::m—“ = — =T ——"TO———T0— = +— FO-'2FT¥F FO P F0— — Fd— — TFO ¢ — Po— — Fo—FP— 0 —TF0 fo— — % — 7 o ==t l = = — == —_— = e e—
- A >i.——-—>>———i>-———>>——— — == - - —— — —_—— e e = e s < — k= 2 << << << << << << << ;< :< — TS< _r << © =< ég—ro ;FO— 1
o — For bt #-2 | sr=gp -0 e JRCP _JT _______________ T T
P O———g——— - — ﬁ e Vil ————— i v 41715 Sl
B et SO 5L oot 2 S PO Y i o o o o) DR . N: ., IR 61+00 STAG1F86, 62-
CoTTTTT CURVE NAME: CUR-4] 51587 TWIN LAKESRD . .+ o +.40 - N
- - . 12°W 12w o e SRR S S mm——— T Tt - e Wi o 1 T -
8 oW : a1 —————————__ T ——————— T
- — — — — - T T T LS EsEmEmEmEmm—mTEE— — — — - — — — — — — — — — — —<>_——:‘a ——————————————————————————————————
(é L >_> ''''''' >_> ''''''' >_> ''''''' >_> ''''''' >_> IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII < I<-I << << << << - — — § == !< <<' < << <<\ << << << << i
m >>\N W W W T ' W 1 '__w_;'— W %} W W W ' W \&W W W << W << VV<< << w << <<"1'1' << ' << << ™ < ;V :
) 4 e e = - - = - - - - - /- ) - - - - # - - '4 - # - - - -
R 1,=9.480, R=2470.000 I?IW
A=0.2199
Sl EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT
: AND VALVE TO BE

| REMOVED AND CAPPED
INV=167.75

S89° 41' 40.00"E |

23.27
: |
: LUCY HELEN KING REGISTER ETAL
VIRGINIA G. TYSON AND NANCY G. HOBBY - TAX PARCEL 0196 017
\ TAX PARCEL 0171 090 DEED BOOK 5602 PAGE 276
PROPOSED 30' PERMANENT

DEED BOOK 5503 PAGE 75 PLAT BOOK 20 PAGE 249

DRAINAGE EASEMENT
2,904 SF (0.07 AC)

N66° 03' 53.50"W
30.00'

tLECTRONIC CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERED BY: JAYDE ZIMMER DATE: SEPT 2025
FILE DATE REVISION DATE PROJECT TITLE: Twin Lakes Road Paving and Drainage Improvements
SCALE IN FEET PLANS DATE: 09/11/2025 REVISION DATE: PROJECT *: ‘
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: WORK ORDER *: PI: 0016280 G :
o 2 Y 8 5 ANS DATE. REVISION DATE: REGION: VALDOSTA AREA HQ: VALDOSTA PN eOrgla Power
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: COUNTY: LOWNDES
SN ERISEE SRS MAP REFERENCE: 0741-0162 DWG *: 0008

MATCH LINE STA: 62+00.00

DRWG 0009



JZimmer_19
Line

JZimmer_20
Line

JZimmer_21
Line

JZimmer_22
Line

JZimmer_23
Line

JZimmer_24
Line

JZimmer_25
Polygon

JZimmer_26
Text Box
17.02

JZimmer_27
Snapshot

JZimmer_28
Text Box
40'-5

JZimmer_29
Text Box
AG1483
10A
KS
45'

JZimmer_30
Text Box
EXHIBIT A


EXHIBIT A

W

FEUGENE DEVANE RITTER
TAX PARCEL 0195 041B
DEED BOOK 4645 PAGE 111
PLAT CABINET B PAGE 346

]
S 237" : 45
8 a
s 3-795AACH @ @ 45' .
e 4/0ACSRN ~
g; e e - EE———— L E—_—— e e A= eE m T —— e = T T T e T T T T T —_— — —_—— e —_—— T T e e T e e T e e e e e e e e e e e e { S St = =S S 12 e S — i —m i I g

FOHF OHP =L Ot ———0HR — 5P ——O0nF ——o —— — o P 0®® T 10— —F FO— — FO- —|FREns FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— —— FO— —— FO— FO— FO M

Eg g.__ﬂ_:gé_.._£9>,-—u£9-9 —=—f0—=mFO O —— £ . T =T s T2 sl A S —— S — i > ST e
=|_3-795AAC+
T
(@)
=l
<
=

DRWG 0008

UNIMPROVED SOIL DRIVE

LUCY HELEN KING REGISTER ETAL
TAX PARCEL 0196 017/
DEED BOOK 5602 PAGE 276
PLAT BOOK 20 PAGE 249

DRWG 0010 MATCH LINE STA: 68+50.00

SCALE IN FEET

2 0

80

ELECTRONIC CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERED BY: JAYDE ZIMMER DATE: SEPT 2025
FILE DATE REVISION DATE PROJECT TITLE: Twin Lakes Road Paving and Drainage Improvements
PLANS DATE: 09/11/2025 REVISION DATE: PROJECT *:
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: WORK ORDER #: PI: 0016280
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: REGION: VALDOSTA AREA HQ: VALDOSTA
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: COUNTY: LOWNDES
SR YSEE T MAP REFERENCE: 0741-0162 DWG *: 0009

A Georgia Power



JZimmer_31
Text Box
EXHIBIT A


DRWG 0009 MATCH LINE STA: 68+50.00

EXHIBIT A

(%) 4g

)

EUGENE DEVANE RITTER
TAX PARCEL 0195 041B
DEED BOOK 4645 PAGE 111
PLAT CABINET B PAGE 346

CONTROL POINT 19

45

)

(@)
<
(@}
(@}
F
L0
[l
<
i — =t St O =t mvimie ming Off= Ot \wimine S \Viming 19]m1d o™ = —— Om—— i =0 o oI ore O OHT Sini Siklsa ore ot o OHE Sin ™ o —— Sining DHP— O R e— uHr_u7r~ — _r _uHP_ —
FO FO FO /;E) — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— — FO— —— FO— —— FO— —— FO— —KEQ{%/ — FO— — FO— — FO FO-— — FO— —— FO— — FO—— — FO— — FO— —— FO— — FO-— — FO— — ARz — FO~— — FO— — FO— ~ F0 PO~ —Fo— TR0 poot — 10 To— | 3
— FQ) = F0 — FO 0 FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO 0 FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO — F @'f— FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO FO E
______._\—_-— —————— T e e e e e e e e e e e e - - ———,——,——,—,y— — — ———— —— ———e—_—— "7 =
- : E,:é,, ............................................................................................................................................................. =E
70+00 71+00 : \ 72+00 + 4+
+1.406 S89° 41' 40.00"'E 270290 (64) 75100 74100 1=
12"W T 765 12°W B 12w 12"W

SEEEE CEECRE R f— . | — e ' o e by B UL R R R N R L e R e f f f . ] Yl T o — ot = — 12"W
STA:697 S8YTTA0E T2 T703ED TWIN LARES R i mimimmm s mmmm - =
e 7[ / S
@)
mL [ ] =
| 2
A

>?// W W
# # / / #
SAND—CEMENT BAG
HEADWALL EACH END

LUCY HELEN KING REGISTER ETAL
TAX PARCEL 0196 017/
DEED BOOK 5602 PAGE 276
PLAT BOOK 20 PAGE 249

SCALE IN FEET

0 2 0 80

ELECTRONIC CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERED BY: JAYDE ZIMMER DATE: SEPT 2025
FILE DATE REVISION DATE PROJECT TITLE: Twin Lakes Road Paving and Drainage Improvements
PLANS DATE: 09/11/2025 REVISION DATE: PROJECT *: ‘
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: WORK ORDER #: PI: 0016280 G '
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: REGION: VALDOSTA AREA HQ: VALDOSTA = OE0rgla Power
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: COUNTY: LOWNDES
SR YSEE T MAP REFERENCE: 0741-0162 DWG *: 0010



JZimmer_32
Text Box
EXHIBIT A


EXHIBIT A

O

EUGENE DEVANE RITTER
TAX PARCEL 0195 0418B
DEED BOOK 4645 PAGE 111
PLAT CABINET B PAGE 346

CH LINE STA: 75+00.00

MAT

1

45 '3 45l_3
CONTROL POINT 18 45' 1 5' CUT 45' CONTROL POINT 13 8
. -
1@
:
o0
232" 5
___________________________________________________ N
T e T te T e o Tt 0 o ——Fh —H 70 A &
— E
_____________________________________________________________ am
=
@ ___________________ "76'.[_00- ________________________________________________ VF E T 5’762-96; '''''''' 7 9"+'90' L -I-W'I' N‘ -I'—'A'I<'E'S- R'D' '''''''''''''' -8@-+-OO— = ' “%‘:
3
3
(O
=
~
VV:D

DRWG 0010

LUCY HELEN KING REGISTER ETAL
TAX PARCEL 0196 017/
DEED BOOK 5602 PAGE 276
PLAT BOOK 20 PAGE 249

cLECTRONIC CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERED BY: JAYDE ZIMMER DATE: SEPT 2025
FILE DATE REVISION DATE PROJECT TITLE: Twin Lakes Road Paving and Drainage Improvements
SCALE IN FEET PLANS DATE: 09/11/2025 REVISION DATE: PROJECT #:
g 5 5 20 PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: WORK ORDER #: PI: 0016280
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: REGION: VALDOSTA AREA HQ: VALDOSTA
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: COUNTY: LOWNDES
ST ANS DATE. T MAP REFERENCE: 0741-0162 DWG *: 0011

A Georgia Power



JZimmer_33
Text Box
EXHIBIT A


EXHIBIT A °

(o (SR (SN |
|
°
FUGENE DEVANE RITTER T NSA
TAX PARCEL 0195 0418 ' TONY R. CARTER
MARY LOU RITTER DANIEL T. BACON
DEED BOOK 4645 PAGE 111 o crg cuy TAX PARCEL 0196 014 \
PLAT CABINET B PAGE 346 TAX PARCEL 01396 016 ) AKX PARCEL D196 015 DEED BOOK 6429 PAGE 72
DEED BOOK 6250 PAGE 209 DEED BOOK 6398 PAGE 283 S e b et el

PLAT BOOK D PAGE 260 PLAT BOOK D PAGE 260

(16' LF 18" RCP @ 0131%

(n
ROCK DRIVE RAMP
o 7688 o, 32_828 oo (24 LF 1
25-2 A5
45'-3 45' 8889 8889\
UNIMPROVED SOIL DRIVE RAMPS @ S TF IS RCP @ 031%) (16 LF 18" RCP @ 0.51% 25:2 25-2
45 45
UNIMPROVED
o ¢ 1 ¢ 3 \o
3 | 245 ‘ 3
: S
= VN 3-795AAC+ r %
é§ . 5 . — ——— — — I \‘ u-_-l ’ J'ﬁ. ==£1Z!2£§S;§ifigi=1===_=-v ._;\ — == e —_— i E—— e e —_— e  mm—— e = — I éﬁ
o =0 —F0 = F0 [-Q¥ ﬂ @—"FO ' f‘mﬁﬂ%—%&ﬁm—ﬁw@%w F0 — : — — To— o ——T%6 A—r60—= o L0=To —0ro I— FI—I—r0 "L—grga OB 0
Eg S T T e e s e _—— — N T - : —'—fi - _fl_‘és — I::::‘f_f_tiz q;iiiiigg;;i____IE____ — e 2 2 Y = = P M —— z = > > __22_____;2;___};fz_____ZZ_____JE-.:??E:iE?*A gg
E __________ a : ' ' ' : _— —_——————— - — — — — — I ‘, —m—L— l . = + — T TR T e e e e e e e e s e E e e T T e T e e N PN ey E
- — Ao -y ._._.‘ gy Py | ---M-l—-—I-- --------- = — ~ -
Ol o e R A i e T M\ '_J,-) ) o ' e d et e et et et et el ) o ol o= == T TR E— e e — — — 1 — — — — e
e S80°41'4000'E 2702901 TWIN LAKESVR ."_o v =820 — . — Ry ..g" 170.5()'— 36+00 8700 il %
= T — B T e S e —— T — e — S ——— S
= - el e e VTt et et ettt ket et bt bt et St Tttt o
s ————"= il Zi il St i il il il ter . _ . _— _— _ _— _— 1 _ _ JV __________________________________________ S
O == == | << << —\ > 1 >> 1 >> [ >> > >> ] >> ! >> ! >> > >> L >> L >> '>> >> >> L >> ! >> 4'>> O
Eéj ¥y ! ' TWA WL W — 4 . W W lw W W !W 2 W W w5 W ﬁ%
= # # + — , 4 'R , o e —— e — e+ lﬁgﬁg o —T— # a
//' | EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT / W S Lo SE%%RIN - SPHARNER =
r i AND VALVE i > 183.74 CONTROL POINT 8 WOOD PRIVACY FENCE
) - .
/, | UNIMPROVED SOIL DRIVE RAMPS He 2 STAB4+55:
I 164 .36
I SES CORNER
| ] 2
|
| | \ o
\ \
| |
\ o
‘ 827664
\\\\\\\\\\\\ F?A\[)##**ﬂ:
5 37.5-2
(A ()
Y A PARCEL 0195 017 2 N.O
DEED BOOK 5602 PAGE 276 - = | NN
PLAT BOOK 20 PAGE 249 ' /\ U NS
\@31%4 o ? HE?41‘?6A A 20 Fg,; /N W\ ? ?
SES CORNER SES CORNER 211 \
UR
El-l_IEI_%TF[%)%l\TIIEC FEEO\I/\IISSTIE]LI\JIC[T)IAE%% ENGINEERED BY: JAYDE ZIMMER DATE: SEPT 2025
PROJECT TITLE: Twin Lak Road Pavi '
SCALE IN FEET STANS DATE: 091172075 SEUTSION BATE: el win Lakes Roa aving and Drainage Improvements
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: WORK ORDER *#: PI: 001 ‘ :
0 2 0 30 : 6280 G
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: REGION: VALDOSTA AREA HQ: VALDOSTA M eorgla Pcwer
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: COUNTY: LOWNDES
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: MAP REFERENCE: 0/741-0162 DWG #: 0012



JZimmer_34
Text Box
EXHIBIT A


EXHIBIT A

@

RONALD T. PHELPS
TAX PARCEL 0196 013

DEED BOOK 4292 PAGE 130

c’ GREG GREEN
TAX PARCEL 0196 011
DEED BOOK 3109 PAGE 292

24'LF 18" RCP @ 0.21% )

EXISTING UNIMPROVED

D2761 D BG1 SO DRIVE RAMP

= CONTROL POINT 3 45' 5 \
: 242" 231 e
(@}
G 3-795AAC+ <37> <‘”7 O> 3-795AACH N — o NE
. — +
5| e 4/0ACSRN - — - __ - A4QACSRN— [ —— [ T\ S
| i :
Ei N
— =
= - 1z
- et ey — - I —
| e~ — i T~ ATOACSRNy PWIN-LAKES RD— — -0 — - 960 2-T9BAACH 540 =
12"W 12"W 12"W 12°°W AIIOIA\CSI \N 2w 2
N
A L L et et o o e e e  —,————,—,—— —————_—,— — } — — — ——/ —}?/————————————————————— :g
s - - - - e ——_—————————— — ———— = = = = = = = = = = —
O R
' ‘ ' ' ' , ’ ' >> ' >> 4L >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >! >> >> >> ' >> >l >> >> ' >> ' >> =
E E— W >> W _5\/|>§E FEN& >> >> >>W >> w>> >> W >> >V>V >> W >! W W ’ W >‘ W_'* + 4‘ W >‘ WJ— —LW 4‘ W W "f 4'—W W W W W \N|Z#E FEW §
St et 6 b G b b =
- : — WOOD PRIVACY FENCE g
l
|
|
|
l Q.
l
o.l (W (3 - (] (A
: LOT 74
| WALKER RUN SD
I PC. A PAGES 3407—-3409
| LOT 75
I WALKER RUN SD
| /////2*% PC. A PAGES 3407-3409
Q.
| 827665 /*
l
o | o (8 PAD#*** o o
|
i 50-2
| 1/0AXN
I (43
: == '
o | ? ? ? ? ? — | ? ?
74
<\>
Q-
2
N /
ELECTRUNIC CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERED BY: JAYDE ZIMMER DATE: SEPT 2025
FILE DATE REVISION DATE PROJECT TITLE: Twin Lakes Road Paving and Drainage Improvements
SCALE IN FEET PLANS DATE: 09/11/2025 REVISION DATE: PROJECT +:
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: WORK ORDER #: PI: 0016280 ‘ G o
2 0] 80
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: REGION: VALDOSTA AREA HQ: VALDOSTA M eOrgIa Power
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: COUNTY: LOWNDES
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: MAP REFERENCE: 0/741-0162 DWG #*: 0013



JZimmer_35
Text Box
231'

JZimmer_36
Text Box
EXHIBIT A


EXHIBITA
/' 7 \

*
¥

\ o
\ o —

q/ .
?/ 30

NSA KATRINA MOORE

TAX PARCEL 0196 001

(WY IIVAINA 09) il

o oo DEED BOOgsmme PAGE 168 79\
TAX PAR Q196 010 ’_\_/OALTPX 6 o Q2
DEED Bgf PAGE | . 9543 O =
@ k] 1 1\\ 25-2 (24' LF 18" RCP @ 0.11% ) \?3 O
m 84 I \\// 1 \/\ w
30’ = v 40 '», ok
1 " Z ) J I N Yy 8
NSA (56 LF 18" RCP @ 0.216 Z 3% %ST\NG SESIDENCE "= )
o ZH (20
| Hi: &< = O
O I — - -
S < 23
\ A Q O
\ 24' LF 18" RCP @ 0.63% ) % (\LI II| | v %
\
I 40 o
\ EXISTING STOP SIGN 2 V) II 1.5 / o CONCRETE o a
\ = | | CUT T LT -
\ ' EXISTING STREET SIGN = 7S o
\ 40" 40-5 196 =17 S < 7
S \ : OA\—+ WELL R 7N~ ( 22 YKS RIVE ‘ﬁ '™
) Z 5 \ 1/ —_— B / : -
2 o (e (aror JOALN. =<7 45 2,
> contorL RANNSA . ,1— ——————— “ —
< ANl N, T =TT PROPOSED R/ W
C%_ 'g".ﬁ‘— “ 5 | 7\% —
b ’ L N,
“Pe é}- =gl
=y ﬂm\ ) (T :
= -“"‘.‘VM’ -_..‘f‘ . | | o
] A O | e h ol ] —1 ! —-a SR | Ol Do § o g Vi | e § — § e 1 e | o o e o . . . ' \n ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ' | S 1
2] S St it et e et et S et L ) 7 OB O NG PR 10 A T | o
48 N e TWIN LAKES RD
- s ==.== e e e e . e e e
S — i — . A~~~ T - T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T INV=174.50 BM
Te -' [ = ‘ I >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> >> S>> >>
%,’_ A= - — W W g3 W W W W W W o W W —174. - BN ggNNTTR?L
r e - A4S m ——— m - — — = = = = = S = - = T T T -
SES CB%ER ﬁi WOOD PRE/ARRNEENCE NSA °© SN
INV=179.19 74
A 8 o
2 ;
\ ExisTNG FIRE HYDRANT
AND VALVE
\
LOT 118
LOT 117/ WALKER RUN SD
» WALKER RUN SD PC. A PAGES 3407-3409 - ‘
LOT 116 ¢ PC. A PAGES 3407-3409 SES © R1R36 :
PC. XVAFEECEES R3U4N<J787D3409 P - \\‘
Q)
LOT 1
WALKER RUN SD
. PC. A PAGES 3407-3409
(4
Q-
/ S
ELECTRONIC CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERED BY: JAYDE ZIMMER DATE: SEPT 2025
FILE DATE REVISION DATE PROJECT TITLE: Twin Lakes Road Paving and Drainage Improvements
SCALE IN FEET PLANS DATE: 09/11/2025 REVISION DATE: SROJECT #:
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: WORK ORDER *: 51: 0016280 ‘ G o
0 2 0 80
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: REGION: VALDOSTA AREA HQ: VALDOSTA = OE0rgla Power
PLANS DATE: REVISION DATE: COUNTY: LOWNDES
SLANS DATE ~EVISTON DATE. MAP REFERENCE: 0741-0162 DWG #: 0014



JZimmer_37
Polygon

JZimmer_38
Text Box
44.01

JZimmer_39
Text Box
40'-5

JZimmer_40
Text Box
40'

JZimmer_41
Snapshot

JZimmer_42
Snapshot

JZimmer_43
Text Box
EXHIBIT A


LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: P1 0016280 Twin Lakes Road Right of Way Purchases for
Parcels 19 and 20

Work
DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular
Session
BUDGET IMPACT: $4,714.00
FUNDING SOURCE:
() Annual
() Capital
() N/A
() SPLOST
(X) TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Twin Lakes Road Right of Way Purchases

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: Staff has negotiated purchase of the Right of Way for Parcels 19 and 20 for the
Twin Lakes Road TSPLOST project. The attached detailed schedule identifies the property, the grantor, and the
purchase price for each parcel. Lowndes County is purchasing 0.080 acres from Brenda Johnson, Parcel 19, for
$1,714.00 and 0.069 acres from Katrina Moore, Parcel 20, for $3,000.00.

OPTIONS: 1. Approve the acquisitions for Twin Lakes Road from the listed grantors of the identified
properties for the purchase price for each property, as set forth in the attached detailed schedule.
2. Redirect.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Option 1

DEPARTMENT: Engineering DEPARTMENT HEAD: Chad McLeod

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



Return Recorded Document To:
Lowndes County Engineering Dept.
327 N. Ashley Street

Valdosta, GA 31601

Attn: Chad McLeod

RURAL POST ROAD
RIGHT-OF-WAY DEED

Georgia, Lowndes County Project name: Twin Lakes Road
Paving and Drainage Improvements

This conveyance is made and executed as of the day of , 2025.

Witnesseth, that BRENDA JOHNSON the undersigned and Grantor herein, is the owner
of a tract of land in Lowndes County through which a Rural Post Road of Farm to Market Road,
known as P. I. No. 0016280 between Loch Laurel Road and U.S. Highway 41 has been laid out
by the Board of Commissioners of Lowndes County as a part of the Rural Post Road Systems of
Georgia as provided in Acts of the General Assembly of Georgia 1937, said road being more
particularly described in a map and drawing of said road in the Office of the Lowndes County
Engineer, to which reference is hereby made.

Now, therefore, in consideration of ONE THOUSAND SEVEN HUNDRED FOURTEEN
and NO/100’s DOLLARS ($1,714.00 ) in hand paid, together with the benefits to my property by
the construction and/or maintenance of said road, and other good and valuable consideration the
receipt and sufficiency of each of which is hereby acknowledged, the said undersigned Grantor
does hereby grant, bargain, sell and convey to said LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA, a
political subdivision of the State of Georgia, its successors and assigns, and Grantee herein, so
much land in Land Lot No. 62 of the 16! Land District of said County as to make a right-of-way
for the said road as surveyed and measured from the centerline of the road location as follows:

RIGHT OF WAY
A strip of land, variable in width and bounded by the following Stations and

Offsets from the new centerline: From Sta: 94+25.53 (30.00” Left) to Sta:
96+78.67 (30.00 Left) to Sta: 96+60.56 (17.07° Left) to Sta: 94+32.32 (14.52’

-1-



Left) to Sta: 94+25.53 (30.00° Left).

Said right-of-way consists of 0.080 acres, and is more particularly described according to
a plat of the right-of-way, “County Road Right-of-Way For Twin Lakes Road,” prepared by Stan
Folsom, Georgia registered land surveyor No. 2284, Folsom Surveying, LLC, said plat dated the
24th day of April, 2023, and made a part of this description. Said plat is hereto attached or is on
file in the Office of the Lowndes County Engineer.

By signing below, the undersigned Grantor, for myself, my heirs, administrators, executors,
successors, and assigns, hereby additionally remises, releases and forever QUIT-CLAIMS to the
said Grantee, its successors and assigns, all the right, title, interest, claim or demand which the
undersigned Grantor has, may have or ever had to the roadbed of the said road, if any, from the
centerline of said road to and through the common boundary of the right-of-way conveyed hereby
and the undersigned Grantor’s property remaining following the above conveyance.

Conditions and Reservations

The information filled in with ink above, if any, was inserted before the execution hereof
by the Grantor.

To have and to hold the said conveyed premises in FEE SIMPLE.

The undersigned Grantor hereby warrants to Grantee, its successors and assigns, that the
undersigned Grantor has the right to sell and convey said lands of the undersigned Grantor
transferred and conveyed hereby and to bind the undersigned Grantor, her heirs, executors, and
administrators, and the undersigned Grantor shall forever defend Grantee, its successors and
assigns, against any claim or demand of the undersigned Grantor, or any person or persons
claiming by or through said undersigned Grantor, of any right or title to the aforesaid described
lands, or its appurtenances or any part thereof.

[Signature on Next Page]



IN TESTIMONY WHEREOQF, Grantor has hereunto set her hand and seal as of the day

first above written.

Signed, sealed and delivered
in the presence of:

GRANTOR:

(SEAL)

Witness

Notary Public
My commission expires:

(AFFIX SEAL)

BRENDA JOHNSON

ROW Parcel No. 19



\RADIUS ARC LENGTH CHORD BEARING [ CHORD LENGTH
1‘9.93’ 23.61° S54°22'52"W 22.25

LINE BEARING DISTANCE
L1 N23'46'53"W 16.91°

BRENDA JOHNSON
TAX PARCEL 0196 010
GREG GREEN \ \ DEED BOOK 915 PAGE 54

TAX PARCEL 0196 011 \ 0.080 ACRES oern)
DEED BOOK 3109 PAGE 292\  SM 94+2553 3463 SF STA 96+78.67 STA 97+41.67

\ L 5({.00’ L 30.00° L 30.00’
‘ \ N89'54'10"E  253.14’ _ PROPOSED R/W
A

GRID NORTH
WEST ZONE NAD 83

M/d 3JLVAIYd 09
JAINA QOOMNY3A

\ |
\ S89'15'40"W  228.25’

\

G
94+00 95+00 N\ up Lot 6y 96+00 98-+00

\
- I \

' < ! \ ™ STA $6160.56/ ' (
STA 94+32.32’ \ LAND LOT 77 o STA 97+460.15 o9

\ \ ,
1450 T\YVIN LAKES R(\)AD-60 R/W 517

- - Ao -
/7' Ay \

/
/
/
/

LOT 74 / A LOT 117 LOT 11t
/ LOT 75 LOT 116 \

WALKER RUN SD / WALKER RUN SD \\ \ WALKER RUN SD \\\ WALKER RUN SD \\ WALKER RU
\

A PAGES 3407-3409 /// PC. A PAGES 3407-340% \\\ R\C A PAGES 3407-3409 \\\ PC. A PAGES 3407-3409 \PC. A PAGES 3¢

dvOod SIMVT NIML
AVM 40 LHOIY dVvOd ALNNOD

—
>
z
o
—
(@]
_|
o
N
I
o
—
T
—
>
z
(&)
=
n
—
e,
O
—

THE FIELD DATA MEASUREMENTS UPON WHICH THIS PLAT IS BASED HAS A RELATIVE

POSITIONAL PRECISION OF LESS THAN 0.07° AT THE 95% CONFIDENCE INTERVAL.

REDUNDANT MEASUREMENTS MADE TO THE CONTROL POINTS AND THE PROPERTY

CORNER MARKERS. 0 20

BASED UPON THE REDUNDANT MEASUREMENTS THE POSITION

TOLERANCE OF THE PROPERTY CORNER MARKERS WITH RESPECT TO E—
EACH OTHER WITHIN THE SURVEY IS NOT GREATER THAN 0.25" FOR SCALE: 1" = 50’

SUBURBAN SUBDIVISIONS INTERIOR BLOCKS (BOARD RULE 180—7-.03)

THIS PLAT HAS BEEN CALCULATED FOR CLOSURE AND IS FOUND TO AL STAN FOLSOM RPLS 2284
BE ACCURATE WITHIN 1’ IN , X FOLSOM SURVEYING LLC

EQUIPMENT USED: ) COA LSF000218
0 LEICA 1203 ROBOTIC TOTAL STATION . 1309 EDGEWOOD DRIVE

0 JAVAD TRIUMPH — LS PLUS ROVER AND JAVAD TRIUMPH—-3 BASE STATION VALDOSTA, GA. 31601
0 100’ STEEL TAPE J4239—RW DRAWINGS 229_244_2920

¢£20C N¥dv v¢
:3Lva Lvid
¢£20¢ NddV v¢
:d31L31dW0D
31va A3AINS

61 1308Vd — AIAYNS NOILISINOOV AVM 40 LHOIY V 40 1Vv1d



AutoCAD SHX Text
N89°56'24"E  1276.48'

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
N89°54'10"E  2171.20'

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
93+00

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
94+00

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
95+00

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
96+00

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
97+00

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
98+00

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
KATRINA MOORE TAX PARCEL 0196 001 DEED BOOK 950 PAGE 168

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
FERNWOOD DRIVE 60' PRIVATE R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
/

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
STA 97+41.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
L 30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
STA 96+60.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
L 17.07'

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
STA 96+78.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
L 30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
STA 94+32.32

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
L 14.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
STA 94+25.53

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
L 30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
N89°54'10"E  253.14'

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
S89°15'40"W  228.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
BRENDA JOHNSON TAX PARCEL 0196 010 DEED BOOK 915 PAGE 54

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
19

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
N23°46'53"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
16.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
ARC LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
CHORD LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
19.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
23.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
S54°22'52"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
22.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
60' GA. POWER EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
STA 97+60.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
L 18.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
0.080 ACRES 

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
3463 SF 

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
GREG GREEN  TAX PARCEL 0196 011 DEED BOOK 3109 PAGE 292

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
18

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
LOT 118 WALKER RUN SD PC. A PAGES 3407-3409

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
LOT 117 WALKER RUN SD PC. A PAGES 3407-3409

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
LOT 116 WALKER RUN SD PC. A PAGES 3407-3409

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
LOT 75 WALKER RUN SD PC. A PAGES 3407-3409

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
LOT 74 WALKER RUN SD PC. A PAGES 3407-3409

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
SHEET:  1 OF 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
PLAT DATE:  24 APRIL 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
SURVEY DATE  COMPLETED:  24 APRIL 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
PLAT OF A RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION SURVEY - PARCEL 19

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
COUNTY ROAD RIGHT OF WAY  FOR  TWIN LAKES ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
CR#390 LAND LOT 62 - 16TH LAND DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
STAN FOLSOM RPLS 2284 FOLSOM SURVEYING LLC COA LSF000218 1309 EDGEWOOD DRIVE VALDOSTA, GA. 31601 229-244-2920

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
No. 2284

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
U

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
M

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
THE FIELD DATA MEASUREMENTS UPON WHICH THIS PLAT IS BASED HAS A RELATIVE POSITIONAL PRECISION OF LESS THAN 0.07' AT THE 95% CONFIDENCE INTERVAL. REDUNDANT MEASUREMENTS MADE TO THE CONTROL POINTS AND THE PROPERTY  CORNER MARKERS. BASED UPON THE REDUNDANT MEASUREMENTS THE POSITION  TOLERANCE OF THE PROPERTY CORNER MARKERS WITH RESPECT TO  EACH OTHER WITHIN THE SURVEY IS NOT GREATER THAN 0.25' FOR  SUBURBAN SUBDIVISIONS INTERIOR BLOCKS (BOARD RULE 180-7-.03) THIS PLAT HAS BEEN CALCULATED FOR CLOSURE AND IS FOUND TO BE ACCURATE WITHIN 1' IN  EQUIPMENT USED:  O       LEICA 1203 ROBOTIC TOTAL STATION O       JAVAD TRIUMPH - LS PLUS ROVER AND JAVAD TRIUMPH-3  BASE STATION O       100' STEEL TAPE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
GRID NORTH  WEST ZONE NAD 83

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
SCALE: 1" = 50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
J4239-RW DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
LAND LOT 62 LAND LOT 77


Return Recorded Document To:
Lowndes County Engineering Dept.
327 N. Ashley Street

Valdosta, GA 31601

Attn: Chad McLeod

RURAL POST ROAD
RIGHT-OF-WAY DEED

Georgia, Lowndes County Project name: Twin Lakes Road
Paving and Drainage Improvements

This conveyance is made and executed as of the day of , 2025.

Witnesseth, that KATRINA P. MOORE the undersigned and Grantor herein, is the
owner of a tract of land in Lowndes County through which a Rural Post Road of Farm to Market
Road, known as P. 1. No. 0016280 between Loch Laurel Road and U.S. Highway 41 has been
laid out by the Board of Commissioners of Lowndes County as a part of the Rural Post Road
Systems of Georgia as provided in Acts of the General Assembly of Georgia 1937, said road
being more particularly described in a map and drawing of said road in the Office of the
Lowndes County Engineer, to which reference is hereby made.

Now, therefore, in consideration of THREE THOUSAND and NO/100’s DOLLARS
($3,000.00) in hand paid, together with the benefits to my property by the construction and/or
maintenance of said road, and other good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency
of each of which is hereby acknowledged, the said undersigned Grantor does hereby grant, bargain,
sell and convey to said LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA, a political subdivision of the State
of Georgia, its successors and assigns, and Grantee herein, so much land in Land Lot No. 62 of the
16t Land District of said County as to make a right-of-way for the said road as surveyed and
measured from the centerline of the road location as follows:

RIGHT OF WAY
A strip of land, variable in width and bounded by the following Stations and

Offsets from the new centerline: From Sta: 97+41.67 (30.00” Left) to Sta:
100+39.08 (30.00 Left) to Sta: 100+41.37 (21.39’ Left) to Sta: 97+60.15 (18.17°

-1-



Left) to Sta: 97+41.67 (30.00° Left).

Said right-of-way consists of 0.069 acres, and is more particularly described according to
a plat of the right-of-way, “County Road Right-of-Way For Twin Lakes Road,” prepared by Stan
Folsom, Georgia registered land surveyor No. 2284, Folsom Surveying, LLC, said plat dated the
24th day of April, 2023, and made a part of this description. Said plat is hereto attached or is on
file in the Office of the Lowndes County Engineer.

By signing below, the undersigned Grantor, for myself, my heirs, administrators, executors,
successors, and assigns, hereby additionally remises, releases and forever QUIT-CLAIMS to the
said Grantee, its successors and assigns, all the right, title, interest, claim or demand which the
undersigned Grantor has, may have or ever had to the roadbed of the said road, if any, from the
centerline of said road to and through the common boundary of the right-of-way conveyed hereby
and the undersigned Grantor’s property remaining following the above conveyance.

Conditions and Reservations

The information filled in with ink above, if any, was inserted before the execution hereof
by the Grantor.

To have and to hold the said conveyed premises in FEE SIMPLE.

The undersigned Grantor hereby warrants to Grantee, its successors and assigns, that the
undersigned Grantor has the right to sell and convey said lands of the undersigned Grantor
transferred and conveyed hereby and to bind the undersigned Grantor, her heirs, executors, and
administrators, and the undersigned Grantor shall forever defend Grantee, its successors and
assigns, against any claim or demand of the undersigned Grantor, or any person or persons
claiming by or through said undersigned Grantor, of any right or title to the aforesaid described
lands, or its appurtenances or any part thereof.

[Signature on Next Page]



IN TESTIMONY WHEREOQF, Grantor has hereunto set her hand and seal as of the day

first above written.

Signed, sealed and delivered
in the presence of:

GRANTOR:

(SEAL)

Witness

Notary Public
My commission expires:

(AFFIX SEAL)

KATRINA P. MOORE

ROW Parcel No. 20



RADIUS ARC LENGTH CHORD BEARING [ CHORD LENGTH
20.00° 23.23 N57°28'15"W 21.95

ORD LENGTH

22.25 LINE BEARING DISTANCE
3 L1 S1459'41°E 8.91"

%
pb
Q
29
29¢
o, > A
STA 100+39.08 -
3 ﬁ ?r%
KATRINA MOORE L 30.00 222

=
TAX PARCEL 0196 001 2

o r
STA 96+78.67 STA 97+41.67 DEED BOOK 3950 PAGE 168 0.069 ACRES ?OZO

L 30.00° L 30.00’ 3023 SF
PROPOSED R/W N89°54'10”E  297.41

By ; A L1 STA 100+41.37
S8914’'47"W__281.24 % TR
EXISTING R/W .
98+00 99+00 100+00 101+00

97+OO LAND LOT 62 ! | \

) ]
36+60.56/ LAND LOT 77 \ ! NB954'10"E| 2171000 = APPROXIMATE LAND LOT LINE !
L 17.07' STA 5748015 TWIN LAKES ROAD - 60' R/W

GRID NORTH

WEST ZONE NAD 83
M/d ILVAIMd 09
IAMA QOOMN¥3A

L 18.17

——e— - - \
LOT 117 \ LOT 118 | LOT 1

sD WALKER RUN SD WALKER RUN SD | WALKER RUN SD
7-3409>, PC. A PAGES 3407-3409 \PC A PAGES 3407-3409 PC. A PAGES 3407-3409

N \ \
N \

THE FIELD DATA MEASUREMENTS UPON WHICH THIS PLAT IS BASED HAS A RELATIVE

POSITIONAL PRECISION OF LESS THAN 0.07° AT THE 95% CONFIDENCE INTERVAL.

REDUNDANT MEASUREMENTS MADE TO THE CONTROL POINTS AND THE PROPERTY

CORNER MARKERS. 20

BASED UPON THE REDUNDANT MEASUREMENTS THE POSITION

TOLERANCE OF THE PROPERTY CORNER MARKERS WITH RESPECT TO E—
EACH OTHER WITHIN THE SURVEY IS NOT GREATER THAN 0.25" FOR SCALE: 1" = 50’

SUBURBAN SUBDIVISIONS INTERIOR BLOCKS (BOARD RULE 180—7-.03)

dvOod SIMVT NIML
AVM 40 LHOIY dVvOd ALNNOD

—
>
z
o
—
(@]
_|
o
N
I
o
—
T
—
>
z
(&)
=
n
—
e,
O
—

THIS PLAT HAS BEEN CALCULATED FOR CLOSURE AND IS FOUND TO 2 iyl STAN FOLSOM RPLS 2284
BE ACCURATE WITHIN 1° IN | . FOLSOM SURVEYING LLC

EQUIPMENT USED: COA LSF000218
0 LEICA 1203 ROBOTIC TOTAL STATION ., 1309 EDGEWOOD DRIVE

0 JAVAD TRIUMPH — LS PLUS ROVER AND JAVAD TRIUMPH—-3 BASE STATION VALDOSTA, GA. 31601
0 100’ STEEL TAPE J4239—RW DRAWINGS 229_244_2920

:3Lva Lvid
¢£20¢ NddV v¢
:d31L31dW0D
31va A3AINS

0C¢ 1308Vd — A3AYNS NOILISINDOY AVM 40 LHOIY V 40 Lv1d

¢£20C N¥dv v¢



AutoCAD SHX Text_128
N89°54'10"E  2171.20'

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
97+00

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
98+00

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
99+00

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
100+00

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
101+00

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
N89°54'10"E  297.41'

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
S89°14'47"W  281.24'

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
KATRINA MOORE TAX PARCEL 0196 001 DEED BOOK 950 PAGE 168

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
GA. SOUTHERN AND  FLORIDA RAILROAD 100' R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
FERNWOOD DRIVE 60' PRIVATE R/W

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
X

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
M

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
X

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
/

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
P

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
/

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
W

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
CURVE

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
RADIUS

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
ARC LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
CHORD BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
CHORD LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
20.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
23.23'

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
N57°28'15"W

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
21.95'

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
BEARING

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
DISTANCE

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
S14°59'41"E

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
8.91'

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
L1

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
STA 97+41.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
L 30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
STA 96+60.56

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
L 17.07'

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
STA 96+78.67

AutoCAD SHX Text_206
L 30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_207
CHORD LENGTH

AutoCAD SHX Text_208
22.25'

AutoCAD SHX Text_209
STA 97+60.15

AutoCAD SHX Text_210
L 18.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text_211
STA 100+39.08

AutoCAD SHX Text_212
L 30.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text_213
STA 100+41.37

AutoCAD SHX Text_214
L 21.39'

AutoCAD SHX Text_215
0.069 ACRES 

AutoCAD SHX Text_216
3023 SF 

AutoCAD SHX Text_217
LOT 1 WALKER RUN SD PC. A PAGES 3407-3409

AutoCAD SHX Text_218
LOT 118 WALKER RUN SD PC. A PAGES 3407-3409

AutoCAD SHX Text_219
LOT 117 WALKER RUN SD PC. A PAGES 3407-3409

AutoCAD SHX Text_220
LOT 116 WALKER RUN SD PC. A PAGES 3407-3409

AutoCAD SHX Text_221
SHEET:  1 OF 1

AutoCAD SHX Text_222
PLAT DATE:  24 APRIL 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text_223
SURVEY DATE  COMPLETED:  24 APRIL 2023

AutoCAD SHX Text_224
PLAT OF A RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION SURVEY - PARCEL 20

AutoCAD SHX Text_225
COUNTY ROAD RIGHT OF WAY  FOR  TWIN LAKES ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text_226
CR#390 LAND LOT 62 - 16TH LAND DISTRICT

AutoCAD SHX Text_227
STAN FOLSOM RPLS 2284 FOLSOM SURVEYING LLC COA LSF000218 1309 EDGEWOOD DRIVE VALDOSTA, GA. 31601 229-244-2920

AutoCAD SHX Text_228
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_229
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_230
No. 2284

AutoCAD SHX Text_231
U

AutoCAD SHX Text_232
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_233
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_234
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_235
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_236
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_237
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_238
V

AutoCAD SHX Text_239
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_240
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text_241
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_242
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_243
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_244
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_245
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_246
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_247
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_248
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_249
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_250
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_251
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_252
G

AutoCAD SHX Text_253
I

AutoCAD SHX Text_254
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_255
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_256
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_257
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_258
E

AutoCAD SHX Text_259
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_260
M

AutoCAD SHX Text_261
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_262
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_263
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_264
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_265
F

AutoCAD SHX Text_266
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_267
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_268
T

AutoCAD SHX Text_269
S

AutoCAD SHX Text_270
D

AutoCAD SHX Text_271
N

AutoCAD SHX Text_272
A

AutoCAD SHX Text_273
L

AutoCAD SHX Text_274
O

AutoCAD SHX Text_275
R

AutoCAD SHX Text_276
THE FIELD DATA MEASUREMENTS UPON WHICH THIS PLAT IS BASED HAS A RELATIVE POSITIONAL PRECISION OF LESS THAN 0.07' AT THE 95% CONFIDENCE INTERVAL. REDUNDANT MEASUREMENTS MADE TO THE CONTROL POINTS AND THE PROPERTY  CORNER MARKERS. BASED UPON THE REDUNDANT MEASUREMENTS THE POSITION  TOLERANCE OF THE PROPERTY CORNER MARKERS WITH RESPECT TO  EACH OTHER WITHIN THE SURVEY IS NOT GREATER THAN 0.25' FOR  SUBURBAN SUBDIVISIONS INTERIOR BLOCKS (BOARD RULE 180-7-.03) THIS PLAT HAS BEEN CALCULATED FOR CLOSURE AND IS FOUND TO BE ACCURATE WITHIN 1' IN  EQUIPMENT USED:  O       LEICA 1203 ROBOTIC TOTAL STATION O       JAVAD TRIUMPH - LS PLUS ROVER AND JAVAD TRIUMPH-3  BASE STATION O       100' STEEL TAPE 

AutoCAD SHX Text_277
GRID NORTH  WEST ZONE NAD 83

AutoCAD SHX Text_278
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_279
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_280
100

AutoCAD SHX Text_281
SCALE: 1" = 50'

AutoCAD SHX Text_282
J4239-RW DRAWINGS

AutoCAD SHX Text_283
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text_284
LAND LOT 62 LAND LOT 77


Twin Lakes Road TSPLOST Project
Detailed Schedule re: Acquisitions of Parcels
List of Parcels for 12/09/25 BoC Meeting

Parcel Grantor Total Purchase Price
19 Brenda Johnson S 1,714.00
20 Katrina P. Moore S 3,000.00




LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: P1 0016280 Twin Lakes Road Right of Way Purchases for
Parcels 2, 6, and 10
Work
DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular
Session
BUDGET IMPACT: $6,008.00
FUNDING SOURCE:
() Annual
() Capital
() N/A
() SPLOST
(X) TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Twin Lakes Road Right of Way Purchases

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: Staff has negotiated purchase of the Right of Way for Parcels 2, 6, and 10 for the
Twin Lakes Road TSPLOST project. The attached Purchase Agreement identifies the property, the grantor, and
the purchase price and other consideration regarding gates, fencing, trees, access to water, and CUVA
application fees for all three parcels. Lowndes County is purchasing 1.612 acres from L. Warren Turner, Jr. The
purchase price is $6,008.00.

OPTIONS: 1. Approve the acquisitions and Purchase Agreement for Twin Lakes Road from the listed grantors
of the identified properties for the purchase price and other consideration, as set forth in the
attached Purchase Agreement.

2. Redirect.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Option 1

DEPARTMENT: Engineering DEPARTMENT HEAD: Chad McLeod

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



GA DOT Project: Twin Lakes Road
Tax Parcel ID No(s): 0170 076, 0195 031, and 0195 032C

AGREEMENT TO PURCHASE REAL PROPERTY

THIS AGREEMENT TO PURCHASE REAL PROPERTY (this “Agreement”) is made and
entered into effective as of the 9th day of December, 2025 (the “Agreement Date”), by and between L.
WARREN TURNER, JR., an individual resident of the State of Georgia (“Turner”), and LOWNDES
COUNTY, GEORGIA, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia (“Lowndes County™) (individually
a “Party” and collectively the “Parties™).

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the sum of TEN AND NO/100 DOLLARS
($10.00), the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, and subject to the terms and
conditions set forth below, Turner agrees to grant, sell, and convey to Lowndes County those certain
tracts or parcels of land located in Land Lot 63 of the 16" Land District of Lowndes County, Georgia,
and being more particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof by reference
(collectively, the “Property”) in order to add to the right of way (the “Right of Way”) of Twin Lakes
Road (the “Road”) for the purpose of paving the Road (the “Project”).

1. Purchase Price; Conveyance. Lowndes County shall pay Turner the sum of $6,008.00
in cash or other immediately available funds for the Property, which sum shall be paid at closing, the
date and time of which will be determined by mutual agreement of the Parties, but in no event later than
December 19, 2025. Turner agrees to execute and deliver to Lowndes County at closing Right of Way
Deeds in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B.

2. Additional Terms and Conditions.

a. Gates: As of the Agreement Date, Turner has two existing gates located within the Property.
Both gates will be removed by Lowndes County during construction of the Project. Upon
completion or during construction of the Project, the two gates will be reinstalled by
Lowndes County at its sole expense, with such gates being reinstalled on property of Turner
in close proximity to each such gate’s previous location. The exact location of the reinstalled
gates is still to be determined, but it is agreed by the Parties that (a) the gates will be
reinstalled in a recessed position of sufficient distance from the Right of Way to allow a
vehicle pulling a standard sized trailer to turn into Turner’s property at the gate without any
portion of the vehicle or trailer remaining in the Road while the gate is being opened and (b)
notice will be given to Turner prior to reinstallation of the gates so that he can provide input
as to their positioning.

b. Fencing: Interior Pathway:

i. Replacement of Existing Fence: Turner has existing fencing within the Property that will
have to be removed. Lowndes County will pay the cost of replacing such fencing with




new fencing of equivalent materials and quality to be located outside of and parallel to the
Right of Way. To facilitate that payment, Turner will obtain a quote from either Sims
Fence Company or Dixie Fence Company for the required work, and Lowndes County
will either pay the amount of such quote to the applicable fence company directly, or, if
Turner elects to pay the fence company himself, Lowndes County will reimburse Turner
for such expense.

ii. Clearing of Interior Pathway: In connection with the installation of the new fencing
referenced above, Lowndes County agrees, at its expense, to clear a pathway along the
northern side of such replacement fencing by removing trees, brush, and other natural
growth. Said pathway will be of equivalent width to the pathway that Turner currently
maintains on the interior side of his existing fencing. Turner will be solely responsible for
the maintenance of said pathway after its initial clearing by Lowndes County.

c. Removal of Trees: It is understood and agreed that any tree with all or any portion of the
base of the tree trunk within the Right of Way will be removed as part of the Project.

d. Planting New Trees: Lowndes County agrees that within one year of completion of the
Project it will at its sole expense plant four trees of a size and variety to be determined by
Lowndes County in a location or locations within the boundaries of Lowndes County,
Georgia, to be determined by Lowndes County.

e. Access to Water: Lowndes County will install a total of three water taps on Turner’s real
property along Twin Lakes Road, with one tap being installed in each of the three tax parcels
affected by the Project, to wit: tax parcel 0170 076, tax parcel 0195 031, and tax parcel 0195
032C (collectively the “Three Tax Parcels™).

f. Fee to File Application to Reapply for CUVA: Lowndes County shall reimburse Turner the
fee incurred to file with the Clerk of the Superior Court an application to reapply for the
Conservation Use Valuation Assessment (“CUVA”) on the Three Tax Parcels as a result of
the sale of the Property by Turner to Lowndes County.

3. Temporary Construction Easement. Turner hereby grants to Lowndes County a
temporary construction easement over and across other lands of Turner adjacent to the Right of Way to
the extent such easement is reasonably necessary or convenient for Lowndes County to discharge its
obligations under Section 2 above.

4. Representations and Warranties of Turner. Turner represents and warrants to
Lowndes County that Turner has the right, power, and authority to enter into this Agreement and to
grant, sell, and convey the Property to Lowndes County in accordance with the terms hereof and that no
other person or entity holds an interest of any kind in the Property. It is the express intention of the

Z



Parties that this Section 5 shall survive the consummation of this transaction and the completion of all
work contemplated hereby.

5. Miscellaneous. This Agreement supersedes all prior discussions and agreements between
the Parties with respect to the Property and all other matters contained herein, and it constitutes the sole
and entire agreement between the Parties with respect thereto. This Agreement may not be modified or
amended unless such amendment is set forth in writing and signed by both Parties. This Agreement shall
apply to, inure to the benefit of, and be binding upon and enforceable against Turner and Lowndes
County and their respective heirs, administrators, successors, and assigns to the same extent as if
specified at length throughout this Agreement. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts,
each of which shall be deemed an original, and all of such counterparts together shall constitute one and
the same instrument. A facsimile or PDF signature may be relied upon as an original. Time is of the
essence of this Agreement. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed according with the laws
of the State of Georgia, without regard for the choice of law or conflict of law provisions thereof. Any
legal action to enforce the terms of this Agreement or otherwise arising out of this Agreement is to be
brought in the Superior Court of Lowndes County, Georgia, and each of the Parties consent to the
exclusive jurisdiction and venue of such court. No provision of this Agreement shall be construed by
any court or other judicial authority against either Party by reason of such Party being deemed to have
drafted or structured such provision.

It is so agreed.
Lowndes County, Georgia (SEAL)

By:
Bill Slaughter, Chairman

Attest: A
Belinda C. Lovern, Clerk

% e 2=~ / (SEAL)

L. Warren Turner, Jr.




EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

ROW PARCEL No. 2

TRACT 1
LAND LOT 63 — 16™ LAND DISTRICT, LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA

BEGINNING AT APOINT 30.00' RIGHT OF AND OPPOSITE STATION 10+90.19 ON THE
CENTERLINE OF C.R. #390 (TWIN LAKES ROAD) BETWEEN LOCH LAUREL ROAD
AND THE GEORGIA SOUTHERN AND FLORIDA RAILROAD; THENCE NORTH 02
DEGREES 31 MINUTES 55 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 60.07 FEET TO APOINT;
THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 26 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF
545.00 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE WITH A CURVE TURNING TO THE RIGHT WITH
AN ARC LENGTH OF 28.16 FEET, WITH A RADIUS OF 2530.00 FEET, WITH A CHORD
BEARING OF SOUTH 89 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 18 SECONDS EAST, WITH A CHORD
LENGTH OF 28.16 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 06 MINUTES 38
SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 59.79 FEET TO AN IRON ROD; THENCE NORTH 89
DEGREES 50 MINUTES 43 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 137.70 FEET TO A
POINT; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 26 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE
OF 432.69 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; AREA OF SAID DESCRIBED TRACT
OF LAND CONTAINING 0.787 ACRES (34,302 SQUARE FEET).

TRACT 2
LAND LOT 63 - 16™ LAND DISTRICT, LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA

BEGINNING AT A POINT 13.33 FEET LEFT OF AND OPPOSITE STATION 28+82.60 ON
THE CENTERLINE OF C.R. #390 (TWIN LAKES ROAD) BETWEEN LOCH LAUREL
ROAD AND THE GEORGIA SOUTHERN AND FLORIDA RAILROAD; THENCE
NORTH 13 DEGREES 57 MINUTES 17 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 17.17 FEET
TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 35 SECONDS EAST A
DISTANCE OF 669.02 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 01 DEGREES 49 MINUTES
43 SECONDS EAST ADISTANCE OF 17.05 FEET TO A 1/2" CONCRETE REINFORCING
ROD; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 50 MINUTES 43 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE
OF 673.70 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND
CONTAINING 0.260 ACRES (11,314 SQUARE FEET).

ROW PARCEL No. 6

BEGINNING AT A POINT MARKED BY A 1/2" CONCRETE REINFORCING ROD 12.97
FEET LEFT OF AND OPPOSITE STATION 35+56.30 ON THE CENTERLINE OF C.R.
#390 (TWIN LAKES ROAD) BETWEEN LOCH LAUREL ROAD AND THE GEORGIA
SOUTHERN AND FLORIDA RAILROAD; THENCE NORTH 01 DEGREES 49 MINUTES
43 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 17.05 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 89



DEGREES 52 MINUTES 35 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 1196.57 FEET TO A
POINT; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 18 MINUTES 04 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE
OF 17.69 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 50 MINUTES 43
SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 1196.12 FEET TO A 1/2" CONCRETE
REINFORCING ROD AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID DESCRIBED TRACT OF
LAND CONTAINING 0.477 ACRES (20,770 SQUARE FEET).

ROW PARCEL No. 10

BEGINNING AT A 3"X3" CONCRETE MARKER 10.36 FEET LEFT OF AND OPPOSITE
STATION 56+56.19 ON THE CENTERLINE OF C.R. #390 (TWIN LAKES ROAD)
BETWEEN LOCH LAUREL ROAD AND THE GEORGIA SOUTHERN AND FLORIDA
RAILROAD; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 11 SECONDS WEST A
DISTANCE OF 19.64 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE WITH A CURVE TURNING TO THE
RIGHT WITH AN ARC LENGTH OF 23.92 FEET, WITH A RADIUS OF 2530.00 FEET,
WITH A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 89 DEGREES 57 MINUTES 55 SECONDS EAST,
WITH A CHORD LENGTH OF 23.92 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES
41 MINUTES 40 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 227.18 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE
SOUTH 00 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 09 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 11.46 FEET
TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 88 DEGREES 37 MINUTES 26 SECONDS WEST A
DISTANCE OF 190.86 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 87 DEGREES 44 MINUTES
27 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 60.22 FEET TO A 3"X3" CONCRETE MARKER
AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; SAID DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND CONTAINING
0.088 ACRES (3,829 SQUARE FEET).



EXHIBIT B
RIGHT OF WAY DEEDS

[Attached]



Return Recorded Document To:
Elliott Blackburn PC

3016 N. Patterson Street
Valdosta, Georgia 31602

Attn: James R. Miller

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF LOWNDES

RIGHT-OF-WAY DEED

THIS INDENTURE is made this 3 day of December, 2025, by L. WARREN TURNER,
JR., as party of the first part (“Grantor”), in favor of LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA, a political
subdivision of the State of Georgia, as party of the second part (“Grantee™).

WITNESSETH

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the sum of TEN and NO/100’s DOLLARS ($10.00) in hand
paid, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, Grantor does hereby grant, bargain, sell, and convey to Grantee all of Grantor’s
interest in and to those certain tracts or parcels of land described on Exhibit A attached hereto and
made a part hereof, which tracts or parcels of land are further shown and depicted on the maps or
plats of survey attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof.

TOGETHER WITH all the rights, members, and appurtenances to the above-described
premises in anywise appertaining or belonging.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said tract or parcel of land in FEE SIMPLE so that neither
Grantor nor his heirs, executors, administrators, successors, assignees, or any other person claiming
through or under him shall at any time claim or demand any right, title, or interest to the aforesaid
described premises or its appurtenances.

The undersigned Grantor hereby represents and warrants to Grantee, together with its
successors and assigns, that Grantor has the right to sell and convey the lands of the undersigned
Grantor herein transferred, and Grantor covenants to the undersigned Grantee that Grantor shall
forever defend the right and title of Grantee, its successors and assigns, to the subject property
against the lawful claims of all persons claiming by, through, or under Grantor.

-1-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has hereunto set his hand and seal as of the day first

above written.

Signed, sealed and delivered

in the presen{cco

\‘Mtnes&i
Notary Public f
My commission expires: 5-R3 2220

DONNA S CABRAL
Notary Public - State of Georgia
Lowndes County

4 My Commission Expires May 23, 2026

L. WARREN T URNER, JR.

Twin Lakes Road Project
ROW Parcel No. 2



EXHIBIT A TO RIGHT OF WAY DEED

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

TRACT 1
LAND LOT 63 — 16™ LAND DISTRICT, LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA

BEGINNING AT A POINT 30.00' RIGHT OF AND OPPOSITE STATION 10+90.19 ON THE
CENTERLINE OF C.R. #390 (TWIN LAKES ROAD) BETWEEN LOCH LAUREL ROAD
AND THE GEORGIA SOUTHERN AND FLORIDA RAILROAD; THENCE NORTH 02
DEGREES 31 MINUTES 55 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 60.07 FEET TO A POINT,;
THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 26 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 545.00
FEET TO A POINT; THENCE WITH A CURVE TURNING TO THE RIGHT WITH AN ARC
LENGTH OF 28.16 FEET, WITH A RADIUS OF 2530.00 FEET, WITH A CHORD BEARING
OF SOUTH 89 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 18 SECONDS EAST, WITH A CHORD LENGTH OF
28.16 FEET TO A POINT;, THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 06 MINUTES 38 SECONDS WEST
A DISTANCE OF 59.79 FEET TO AN IRON ROD; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 50
MINUTES 43 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 137.70 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE
NORTH 89 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 26 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 432.69 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING; AREA OF SAID DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND
CONTAINING 0.787 ACRES (34,302 SQUARE FEET).

TRACT 2
LAND LOT 63 — 16™ LAND DISTRICT, LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA

BEGINNING AT A POINT 13.33 FEET LEFT OF AND OPPOSITE STATION 28+82.60 ON
THE CENTERLINE OF C.R. #390 (TWIN LAKES ROAD) BETWEEN LOCH LAUREL ROAD
AND THE GEORGIA SOUTHERN AND FLORIDA RAILROAD; THENCE NORTH 13
DEGREES 57 MINUTES 17 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 17.17 FEET TO A POINT;
THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 35 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 669.02
FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 01 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 43 SECONDS EAST A
DISTANCE OF 17.05 FEET TO A 1/2" CONCRETE REINFORCING ROD; THENCE NORTH
89 DEGREES 50 MINUTES 43 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 673.70 FEET TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING, SAID DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND CONTAINING 0.260 ACRES
(11,314 SQUARE FEET).

In further aid of description, it is stated that the above-described tracts or parcels of land constitute
a portion of existing tax parcel 0170 076 according to the present designations of the Lowndes
County Tax Assessor.

Twin Lakes Road Project
ROW Parcel No. 2



ExHIBIT B TO RIGHT OF WAY DEED

PLATS OF RIGHT OF WAY AREAS

[Attached]

Twin Lakes Road Project
ROW Parcel No. 2



0Z6C2—¥¥C—6C¢C

L09Lle VO ‘VLSOGIVA
3ARA dOOM3903 60¢L
8120004S1 YOO

OT1 ONIL3AYNS KOSTO4
¥82C S1dd WOST04 NVIS

08 = .1 TS

e i

001 0S 0

00'0¢ ¥
88°¢Z+Sl VIS

3NIT 107 ONY]

BIZEY M.9Z,6.68N

SONIMVEA MA—6£ZH

SL 39vd €0SS X008 a33d _
060 LZLO 130¥Yd XVL :
A880H "9 AONVYN ONV NOSAL 'O VINIQYIA —

@ 9L M

3dvL T33LS 001 0
NOWVLS 3SVE £—HJWNIML QVAVP ANV ¥3A0Y SNTTd ST — HJANRL QVAVR (o]
NOLLYLS V.1OL OULO080Y £0ZL YOI (&)

*d3sN LN3INJIND3
*,0S8°19Z NI I NIHLW 3LYMNOOV 38
OL ANNO4 SI ANV 3¥NSOTO ¥0d4 QALYINOIVO N338 SVH L1Vid SIHL

(£0'—£-081 TINY QYvVOE) SHOO0TE MHORIALNI SNOISIAIQENS NVENNENS

04 ,SZ°0 NVHL ¥3LV3IN9 LON SI ASA¥NS JHL NIHLM d3HLO HOV3

OL 193dS3¥ HLIM SYINUVA ¥INNOO ALY¥3IdO¥d JHL 40 3ONVHIIOL

NOLLISOd 3HL SLNIWRINSVIN LNVANNGIY IHL NOdN d3sve

SUDVN YINYOD

AL¥3dO¥d IHL ANV SLNIOd TOMLNOD 3HL OL 3QVA SLNIWIUNSYIN LNVANNG3Y
“IVAYALNI 3ON3ALINOD %66 3HL LV ,£0°0 NVHL SS31 40 NOISII¥d TVNOLLISOd
JALYIIY V SVYH Q3svE Si Lvd SIHL HOIHM NOdN SLN3WIMNSYIW Viva 01314 3HL

6L°'16+0L VIS
QNNO4
ONISNOH dWNd — Y3INH0D 107 ONV

3ANN HOLVA

€42 39vd

00°6vS  3,92,6+.68S

LG¢ 3JOvd £989 X008 0330
9/0 0410 1304vd XvL
M H3NINL T N3YIVYM

4S Z20¢Phe
S3WIV LBL'O 9 Sc'ge+ol VIS
ve mm %
Ll X008 Lvid ww c9 M M0 L¥XE
a3 _
O, 8 |

GNNOS Y¥3MYVYA 3L3YONOD — dJWO _

PLAT OF A RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION SURVEY — PARCEL 2

<+
5

M "
p. gl g~

<AN [piN

X |ox
23% 23|

28& |23
T
> O
<t o
-
= ®
a

5 o
< 2
— O

T X M

(@) o
g »n S=x
XXy AF
O v 3#©

Ol o x
Mnu g ©
x Z 3
> 2 e
~ F o
=z ad
2 o
8z
© _




0262—¥vC—62C

109LE VO ‘V1SOQIVA
3ARIA AOOM3Od3 60%L
8120004S7 VOO

OT1 ONILIAINS KWOSTIO
¥82¢ Sdd NOSTO4 NVLS

A0S = .| JWVOS

Eeeeee e ]

00t 0S 0

SONMYHA MA—6ECH!

3dvl 133aLS 00t (o]
NOLLVLIS 3SVE £—HJANIML AVAVF ONV d3A0Y SMd ST — HJWNRIL avAve (o]
NOLLVLS TTV1OL OLLOgOY £0Z1 VOI31 0

:g3sn LN3NdIND3
*0S8°L9Z NI 1 NIHLW 3LV¥NOOV 38
OL GNNO4 SI ONV 3¥NSOTO ¥04 GALVINDTVO N338 SVH LV1id SIHL

(£0°—£~081 3INY QYVOE) SHO0IE HONALNI SNOISIAIQENS NvaNNans

¥04 ,ST'0 NVHL ¥3LVINO LON S| ASANMNS 3HL NIHLM ¥3HIO HOV3

OL 103dS3¥ HLM SYIMUVA ¥INMOOD ALY¥3IdOud JHL 40 IONVNHIIOL

NOLLISOd 3HL SLINIWIYNSVIN LNVONNA3Y JHL NOdN d3sva

'SYINYVN YINHOO

ALY3dO¥d IHL ANV SLNIOd TOMLNOD 3HL OL 3AVA SININIUNSV3IN LNVANNG3Y
TIVAYALNI 30N3ALEINOD %66 JHL LV 00 NVHL SS31 40 NOISIO3¥d TWNOLLISOd
JAUVIZY V SYH 03SvVE SI 1V1d SIHL HOIHM NOdN SINIWIUNSVIN VLVO 013l 3HL

. G/ 39vd £0SS X008 033a
\\ 060 LZLO 130¥Vd XVl
\\ AB80H 'O AONVN ONV NOSAL 'O VINIQYIA

4S 048 66'922-0 @

SOV 0Z0°0 | M.2b.Ll.LoN-g

T \ ve 00°0L¥Z—Y

e 99'92Z~y
e V4
ABS3n igon N2t 0£°8b  3,£4,06.685
T —— M.£0,20.05S
— \Oo+m~f — III,‘.TII )

00+g1

GL 39vd £0SS X008 (J330
060 LZ10 1304vd XVi
ABBOH 'O ADNVN ONV NOSAL 'O VINIDYIA

Ge'ee+910d

ge'er+9l VIS
M,92,6%.68N

1S'85C-V

91'82-0
3.81,0£.685—8

ANM HOLVAN

=0

0t'852-0 mm

M.Zt,15.98N—8 ©

+8v 39vd +6¢ X008 4330 .00°005Z-¥ NB

SL0 010 130¥vd XvL .62,56.6-v1130 73
UL AN 3MIM v1v@ 3A4N0 10 m
® 5
(&}

000862y
Q1'8Z-V £/z 39vd LL 008 Lv1d
00°0¢ 1 LSS 39vd £989 X008 (33C

81°19+91 VIS

940 0Z10 1M30¥vd XVL
UM Y3NINL T N3YYYM

®

PLAT OF A RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION SURVEY — PARCEL 2

<+
m | m|S
282 s2lt
o
MWW TW%
E5« S«
NWON | N
T
M O
o
= o
[
5 o
s £
T
nn.m oz ..Am_
o
© n 8=x
XXy 3k
oY 3o
oL x
AOn J |
x Zz 3
> = -
~ FH o
=z =l
2 o
o =
© S




0Z6C—v¥C—62¢C

L09lE VO ‘VISOQIVA
3ARIG GOOM3OAQ3 60gL
8120004S1 V0O

OT1 ONIAIAYNS WOSTO04
¥822 STdd WOS104 NVIS

0S8 = .l IS

i =

001 0S 0

SONMYAQ

3dv.l 7331S 001 (0]
NOLVIS 3SvE . £—HdANIML AQVAVP ONV ¥3A0Y¥ SNTd ST — HAANRIL QvAVP o
NOWVILS TVLOL JlLO80Y £02L VOIT 0

*d3sn LN3WdIND3
¥89°62Z NI .| NIHLWM 3LV¥NIOOV 38
Ol GNNO4 SI ANV 3¥NSOT0 ¥04 GALYINDTVO N338 SVH LV1id SIHL

(£0'—£-081 FINY Q¥vOE) SHO018 MHOWIALNI SNOISIAIGENS NYENNENS

¥04 ,GZ°0 NVHL ¥3LV3INO LON Si A3A¥NS 3HL NIHLM ¥3HLO HOV3

OL 103dS3Y HLM SYIVA ¥3INNOOD AL¥3dO¥d FHL 4O JONVYIIOL

NOLLISOd 3HL SLNIWNIMNSVIN LNVANNA3IN IHL NOdN d3sve

SYDIYYN YINYOO

AL¥3dO¥d 3HL OGNV SLNIOd TOMLNOD 3HL OL 3AVA SLNINIUNSVIN LNVANNGIY
“IVAYALNI 3ON30LENOD %66 3HL LV ,£0°0 NVHL SS31 4O NOISI¥d TYNOLLISOd
3ALVI3Y V SVYH Q3SvE S| 1V1d SIiHL HOIHM NOdN SLN3IN3Y¥NSV3IN Viva 0131 3HL

S/ 39vd £0GS X008 (4330
060 LZLO 130¥vd XVL
AGE0H 'O AONVN ANV NOSAL 'O VINISYIA

) V3 3¢ 3% V) 3%

V3 vy V3 V3 v 3 - [V Y 3 5% M M- -

3¢

%
N W WA HN——H—H—K
=

M/ ,09 - AVOA SIIVT NIML

[ - |

ANM HOLYN

£8 QVN INOZ 1S3m
HL¥ON QRO

.NO..@,@Q n..w...wn..mn..wmm -
390V _092°0

T T T T
00+0

.00[08

€/Z 39vd Ll H008 1vid
LSE 30vd £989 X008 (330
940 0410 T304vd XVL !
UM Y3NYNL T N3YHYM

!

!

/
1
/

1 ]

7
PV /

/7 o
A5

SURVEY DATE

COMPLETED:

24 APRIL 2023

PLAT DATE:

24 APRIL 2023
SHEET: 3 OF 4

FOR
TWIN LAKES ROAD

V3
a3

CR#390
LAND LOT 63 — 16TH LAND DISTRICT

COUNTY ROAD RIGHT OF WAY

om.Nm+ww vis

! /
bzz 39vd ¢z6e/M008 0330

@ /160 L£10 1304vd XVL

! W 13 AYE3d NvIMIN

PLAT OF A RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION SURVEY — PARCEL 2




0262—¥¥2—62¢C

L09LE VO ‘VLSOQIVA
3ARIA GOOM394d3 60¢L
812000457 VOO

OT1 ONIWIAYNS WOSTOL
$82C STdd WOST04 NVLS

08 = .|l IvOS

R i

001 0S 0

ZL'Lvy  M.SE.2S.68N

SONIMYYHA MY—6£ZH

3dvl 733Ls ,001 0
NOLVLS 3SvE E£—HdWNIML AVAVF ONV 43A0Y SNd ST — HJWNRL QVAVR (o]
NOLWVLS TV1OL 3U080¥ £0ZI VOIF1 0

:03sN LN3IWdIND3
,¥89'62Z NI .} NIHLM 3LvdNOdV 38
OL GNNO4 SI GNV 3¥NSOT0 ¥04 GALYINOIVO N33I8 SVH LVid SIHL

(£0'=£—081 TINY Q¥vVOE) SHO01E HORALNI SNOISNIQENS NVENENS

¥04 ,GT°0 NVHL ¥ILVINO LON S| ASAUNS 3HL NIHLW ¥3HLO HOV3

OL 103dS3¥ HLIM SYIMNVA ¥3NMNOO AL¥3dO¥d 3HL 40 3ONVYII0L

NOLWLISOd 3HL SLNIWI¥NSVIN LNVONNJ3Y 3HL NOdN g3sva

‘SYINYVN UINHOO

ALY¥3dONd 3HL ANV SLNIOd TOMLNOD 3HL OL JAVA SLN3IWIUNSVIN LNVANND3IY
“IVAY3LNI 3ONIALINOD %66 3IHL 1V ,L0°0 NVHL SSIT 4O NOISIO3dd TVNOLLISOd

JALYTIY V SVH 03SvE SI LV1d SIHL HOIHM NOdN SINIWIUNSYIN Viva G131 3HL

9G'86+P¢ VIS

S/ 39vd €0SS X008 (0334
060 LZLO 1304vVd XVL
AB80OH "9 AONVYN OGNV NOSAL O VINIQYIA

00°0¢ ¥

EAR L S vy e B s s e e e e e e ol e L T —— e e .
K961 3,96.£9.68S JASTLLL 3.6€.£7.68N
= M/¥,09 - AVOH SIIVT NIML
_ * - | e i— _ _
) g QT 1 ¥ T
W.£%.05.68N a4 /o 00+9¢ ___00+6¢ S, +0¢ 0L'EL9  M.EV.06.68N

3,6£.26.68S L67ZL /

0¢°96+6¢ VIS

LG¢ 30vd £989 X008 Q330
L€0 G610 130dvd XVL
UM YINYNL T NIUYYM

®

//(hqt

3.£%.64.10S
,00°0¢ 1

2LSS+GE VIS

e s

.£0'699 3,6€,26.68S

3ANN HOLVA

€T 39vd Ll X008 1vid

LG¢ 39vd £989 X008 033a
9.0 010 1304vd XVL
UM Y3INYNL T N3YHYM

O,

£8 OVN 3INOZ 1S3M
HI¥ON Qo

PLAT OF A RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION SURVEY — PARCEL 2

<+
" 3“
poS] 8
<A™ [N
°B2 =2l
X |a
sk
A0d |2&
T
>= O
< x
= 0
(&
5 o
s £
T
T o M
O (@)
= W
O %*©
DFAR
M g 9
x Z 9
> = =
— F o
= ~J
=) =)
3 2
© —

7

s
y”




Return Recorded Document To:
Elliott Blackburn PC

3016 N. Patterson Street
Valdosta, Georgia 31602

Attn: James R. Miller

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF LOWNDES

RIGHT-OF-WAY DEED

THIS INDENTURE is made this 3 day of December, 2025, by L. WARREN TURNER,
JR., as party of the first part (“Grantor™), in favor of LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA, a political
subdivision of the State of Georgia, as party of the second part (“Grantee”).

WITNESSETH

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the sum of TEN and NO/100’s DOLLARS ($10.00) in hand
paid, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, Grantor does hereby grant, bargain, sell, and convey to Grantee all of Grantor’s
interest in and to that certain tract or parcel of land described on Exhibit A attached hereto and
made a part hereof, which tract or parcel of land is further shown and depicted on the map or plats
of survey attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof.

TOGETHER WITH all the rights, members, and appurtenances to the above-described
premises in anywise appertaining or belonging.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said tract or parcel of land in FEE SIMPLE so that neither
Grantor nor his heirs, executors, administrators, successors, assignees, or any other person claiming
through or under him shall at any time claim or demand any right, title, or interest to the aforesaid
described premises or its appurtenances.

The undersigned Grantor hereby represents and warrants to Grantee, together with its
successors and assigns, that Grantor has the right to sell and convey the lands of the undersigned
Grantor herein transferred, and Grantor covenants to the undersigned Grantee that Grantor shall
forever defend the right and title of Grantee, its successors and assigns, to the subject property
against the lawful claims of all persons claiming by, through, or under Grantor.

-1-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has hereunto set his hand and seal as of the day first

above written.

Signed, sealed and delivered
in th/@sence 7/
Wit

Notary Public

My commission expires:3=23 <4 (0

DONNA 'S CABRAL
Notary Public - State of Georgia

Lowndes County
My Commission Expires May 23, 2026

GRANTOR:

L. WARREN TURNER, JR.

Twin Lakes Road Project
ROW Parcel No. 6



EXHIBIT A TO RIGHT OF WAY DEED

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

LAND LOT 63 — 16™ LAND DISTRICT, LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA

BEGINNING AT A POINT MARKED BY A 1/2" CONCRETE REINFORCING ROD 12.97
FEET LEFT OF AND OPPOSITE STATION 35+56.30 ON THE CENTERLINE OF C.R. #390
(TWIN LAKES ROAD) BETWEEN LOCH LAUREL ROAD AND THE GEORGIA
SOUTHERN AND FLORIDA RAILROAD; THENCE NORTH 01 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 43
SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 17.05 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES
52 MINUTES 35 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 1196.57 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE
SOUTH 00 DEGREES 18 MINUTES 04 SECONDS EAST A DISTANCE OF 17.69 FEET TO A
POINT; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 50 MINUTES 43 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF
1196.12 FEET TO A 1/2" CONCRETE REINFORCING ROD AND THE POINT OF
BEGINNING, SAID DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND CONTAINING 0.477 ACRES (20,770
SQUARE FEET).

In further aid of description, it is stated that the above-described tract or parcel of land constitutes
a portion of existing tax parcel 0195 031 according to the present designations of the Lowndes
County Tax Assessor.

Twin Lakes Road Project
ROW Parcel No. 6

4
‘i,
7 Vo or/



ExXHIBIT B TO RIGHT OF WAY DEED

PLATS OF RIGHT OF WAY AREAS

[Attached]

Twin Lakes Road Project
ROW Parcel No. 6

2
Yz



SONMVYA Mu—6EZH!

0Z6C—vvZ—62¢C

1091E VO ‘VLSOUIVA
3ARIG JOOM390d3 60¢L
812000457 VOO

OT1 ONIAIAYNS WOSTO4d
¥822 S7dd WOST04 NVIS

08 <t 3OS

™

00T 0S8 0

.000¢€ ¥

®

V3 "

8C°9%+6£ VIS

3dv.L T33Ls 001 0
NOLLVLS 3SvE S£—HdANRIL QVAVP ANV ¥3A0Y SMId ST — HAANNIL QVAVP (o]
NOILVLS TVLOL JLO€0N €07} YOI *]

*d3sn LN3INdIND3
¥89°6ZZ NI ,1 NIHLM 3LVMNOJV 38
OL ONNO4 SI ANV 3MNSOTO ¥04 JALYINDTVO N338 SVH LV1d SIHL

(c0'~£—-08L TINY QUVOE) SHJ018 HORYALNI SNOISKIQENS NVENNENS

¥04 ST'0 NVHL ¥3LVINO LON SI AJA¥NS 3HL NIHLWM ¥3HLO HOV3

OL 103dS3¥ HLM SHIMNHVI ¥INHMOO AL¥3dO¥d IHL 4O ONVUIIOL

NOLLISOd IHL SINIW3HNSVIN LNVANNG3Y 3HL NOdN d3svE

‘SUDNYN MINYOO

AL¥3dO¥d JHL ANV SLNIOd TOMINOD 3HL OL 3QVA SLNIWNIYNSV3IN LNVANNG3Y
“IVAYALNI 3ON3QLINOD %66 3HL 1V ,£0°0 NVHL SS31 4O NOISI3dd TVYNOLLISOd
JALVYIIY V SVH 03SvA SI LV1d SIHL HOIHM NOdN SLNIW3UNSY3IN viva 013 3HL

S/ 39vd €0SS X008 (d33d
060 L/Z10 130dvd XVl
ABEOH 'O AONVN GNV NOSAL O VINIOYIA

L vy M.SE.ZS.68N

3,22,5%.68S

£ a3 ray 143

T T T T T 961 3,96 .£4.685
M/Y,09 - VO SIIVI NIML
|

ASLL 3.6€.50.68N

L8VL6C m_..mn.Nm.mmm
U 1

T T
00+8 CL'96LL M, £%,0G.68N 00+/¢ DO.aTmM

4S 0£.°'02
SIYIV LLYPO

LG°961L 3,5€,26.68S

0£°'9G+6¢ VIS

ANM HOLVW

®

LGE 39vd £989 X008 4330
L€0 G610 1304vd XVL
UM Y3INYNL T NIYHYM

HLYON Qid9

9.0

£8 QVN 3NOZ 1S3M

/ SO°LL

3.£%,6+.10S

.000¢ 1
CL'SS+GE VIS

®

A RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION SURVEY — PARCEL 6

g,
tgg b

O

£42 F9Yd L1 X008 Lvid .
LG¢ 39¥d L9839 X008 0330
0£10 1304vd XVl
UM JININL T NIYIYM

-
<

.
a

3
| 5|®
m&m W_m.l
-2 |<2|8
£ 2[5
233 |12&
T
M O
(n
= o
e
5 o
= 2
T
T o Mm
O o
== w T
e S
Oy #*©
DFAR
Mu.n g ©
x Z 9
> F =
— F o
pd .
2 o
o =z
o 5




'7¢5;%f

0Z6C—¥Z—62C

L09LE VO ‘VISOQIVA
3ARIA dOOM3OA3 60g1L
812000451 VOO

OT1 ON3IAYNS WOST0d
¥82C Sdd WOST04 NVLS

08 = .l 3JWvOS

e

001 0S 0

SONIMYYA MA—6EZH!

3dvl T33Ls 001 0
NOLLVLS 3SVE £—HJANIML QVAVP ANV H3A0Y SMd ST — HJWNIEL aQVAVP (o]
NOLLVLS TVLOL OL080¥ £0Z} VOIT1 Y

:g3sn LN3NdIND3
*866°966°7 NI 1 NIHLW 3LV¥NOOV 38
OL GNNO4 SI ONV 34NSOT0 304 GALYINOTVO N338 SVH Lvid SIHL

(£0'—£-081L FINY QYvVOE) SHO018 HORIALNI SNOISINIAENS NVENNENS

¥0d4 ,ST'0 NVHL ¥3LVINO LON SI AZAYNS 3HL NIHLW ¥3HLO HOV3

OL 103dS3¥ HLM SYINYVIN ¥INMOO ALNIHO¥d IHL 40 3ONVUIIOL

NOLLISOd 3HL SLNIWIYNSVIN LNVONNG3Y 3IHL NOdN d3sva

'SYIMYYN HINNOO

AL¥3d0¥d 3HL ONV SLNIOd TOMLINOD 3JHL OL 30V SLN3IWIUNSVIN LNVANNQ3Y
“IVAYALNI 30N3ALINOD %66 JHL LV ,L0°0 NVHL SS3T 40 NOISIO3dd TVYNOLLISOd
ALY V SVH a3svE S| LV1d SIHL HOIHM NOdN SLNIWIUNSVIN Viva Q131 3HL

GL 39vd £0SS X008 (330
060 LZLO 130dvd XVL
ABBOH 'O AONVN OGNV NOSAL O VINIOYIA

T

3NM 107 ONYT N 4+-44

A

3NM HOLYN

LS'96lL 3,68£,2G.68S

4S 0.4L02
SOV LLYO

LG¢ 39vd £989 MO08 (33d
L€0 G610 1304Vd XVL
UM U3ININL T NIJHYM

®

£8 QVN 3INOZ LS3Mm
HI¥ON Q4o

3NN HOLVN |

PLAT OF A RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION SURVEY — PARCEL 6

L)
o | m|S
p.S| 8|~
SE°5 [EY
S (32|
FMENE
Lo+ |Se«
NON oo
T
> ©
<C [0
= 0
L o ©
°o Z W
= Q <
5 ol
o
= w0 T
RREwN
O v %0
ol X%
AOn ] |
x Z 3
> 2 e
— F o
= -
2 o)
@) zZ
o S




0Z62—¥+Z—622 SERYEa

L091E VO ‘VISOQIVA
3AINa dOOM39Q3 60¢L
812000457 VOO

OT1 ONIAIAINS WOSTO4
¥8¢¢ S1dd WOST04 NV.S

08 = .1 TIVOS

e i = |

001 0S 0

Mma—egevr 3Advl T3S 001 (o]
NOWLVIS 3SY8 S—HJNNIML QYAVP GNV ¥3A0Y SNId ST — HAWNRIL GVAVE 0
NOLLVLS WLOL JL080d £0ZL VOIF1 0

:g3sn LN3INGIND3
‘865°966'y NI ,l NIHLW 3LViNOOV 38
OL GNNO4 SI ANV 3MNSOT0 304 QALYINDTVI N3IIE SVH LVid SIHL

(£0'—£-081 TINY Q¥VO8) SHO018 HOIALNI SNOISIIQENS NvauNans

¥04 ,SZ°0 NVHL ¥3LVI¥O LON S| AJANNS 3JHL NIHLM ¥3HLO HOV3

OL 103dS3Y HLM SYINMVA YINNOO AL¥3dO¥d 3HL 40 3ONVYIFIOL

NOLLISOd 3HL SLNIW3¥NSV3N LNVANNQ3Y 3HL NOdN @3sva

'SUDIYYN HINYOO

AL¥3d0O¥d 3HL ANV SLNIOd TOMLNOD 3HL OL 3QVA SLN3W3UNSYIN LNVANNQ3N
“IVAYILNI 3ON30IINOD %66 IHL 1V ,£0°0 NVHL SS31 40 NOISIO3dd TYNOLLISOd
3ALVIIY V SVH Q3SvE S| LV1d SIHL HOIHM NOdN SLN3W3¥NSVIN VLIVa Q1314 3HL

SZ 39vd £0SS X008 0330
060 LZ10 1304vd XVL
AB8B0OH 'O AONVN ANV NOSAL ‘O VINIOYHIA

1

| 1

.00:09
E

Qt 0

/..mw.t

£¥'2S+LYy VIS

000¢ 1
62°CS+LY VIS

£GS¢ 39vd ¥V 13INIGVO 1vid

£L0 39Vd 168C X008 Q330

GZl £9610 1304vd XVl
1438NWY1 A8808

©

3.¥0,81.00S

LS°96L1L  3,5%£.26.68S

4S 04202
SIHIV LLY'O

3NN HOLVA

LG¢ 39vd £989 X008 (330
1€0 G610 T130dvd XVl
UM H3NANL T N3YYYM

®

£8 QVN 3NOZ 1S3Mm
HLMON Q49

PLAT OF A RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION SURVEY — PARCEL 6

2]
o | m&
g8 8w
<AN |y
282 <zl;
X o
£3% 35
a8& |28
T
> ©
< x
TI
= »
o
W o
< O
- O Z
T X g
O o
S n S=x
rxL 9
O v H©
0O L < X
% g ©
3
> =
- FH o
=z |
2 a
g8 2
o -




Return Recorded Document To:
Elliott Blackburn PC

3016 N. Patterson Street
Valdosta, Georgia 31602

Attn: James R. Miller

STATE OF GEORGIA
COUNTY OF LOWNDES

RIGHT-OF-WAY DEED

THIS INDENTURE is made this day of December, 2025, by L. WARREN TURNER,
JR., as party of the first part (“Grantor”), in favor of LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA, a political
subdivision of the State of Georgia, as party of the second part (“Grantee”).

WITNESSETH

FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the sum of TEN and NO/100’s DOLLARS ($10.00) in hand
paid, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby
acknowledged, Grantor does hereby grant, bargain, sell, and convey to Grantee all of Grantor’s
interest in and to that certain tract or parcel of land described on Exhibit A attached hereto and
made a part hereof, which tract or parcel of land is further shown and depicted on the plat or map
of survey attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a part hereof.

TOGETHER WITH all the rights, members, and appurtenances to the above-described
premises in anywise appertaining or belonging.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD said tract or parcel of land in FEE SIMPLE so that neither
Grantor nor his heirs, executors, administrators, successors, assignees, or any other person claiming
through or under him shall at any time claim or demand any right, title, or interest to the aforesaid
described premises or its appurtenances.

The undersigned Grantor hereby represents and warrants to Grantee, together with its
successors and assigns, that Grantor has the right to sell and convey the lands of the undersigned
Grantor herein transferred, and Grantor covenants to the undersigned Grantee that Grantor shall
forever defend the right and title of Grantee, its successors and assigns, to the subject property
against the lawful claims of all persons claiming by, through, or under Grantor.

-1-

Znr?



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has hereunto set his hand and seal as of the day first

above written.

Signed, sealed and delivered

in t}(ﬁseme Zj% \ 5\
s L lotn

e
L
Witnéss /)

Notary Public
My commission expires: & 230102 Lo

DONNA S CABRAL
Notary Public - State of Georgia

Lowndes County
My Commission Expires May 23, 2026

//7///“//(SEAL)

LJ. WARREN TURNER, JR. /
P

Twin Lakes Road Project
ROW Parcel No. 10



EXHIBIT A TO RIGHT OF WAY DEED

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

LAND LOT 63 — 16™ LAND DISTRICT, LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA

BEGINNING AT A 3"X3" CONCRETE MARKER 10.36 FEET LEFT OF AND OPPOSITE
STATION 56+56.19 ON THE CENTERLINE OF C.R. #390 (TWIN LAKES ROAD) BETWEEN
LOCH LAUREL ROAD AND THE GEORGIA SOUTHERN AND FLORIDA RAILROAD;
THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 11 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 19.64
FEET TO A POINT; THENCE WITH A CURVE TURNING TO THE RIGHT WITH AN ARC
LENGTH OF 23.92 FEET, WITH A RADIUS OF 2530.00 FEET, WITH A CHORD BEARING
OF SOUTH 89 DEGREES 57 MINUTES 55 SECONDS EAST, WITH A CHORD LENGTH OF
23.92 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 41 MINUTES 40 SECONDS EAST
A DISTANCE OF 227.18 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 08 MINUTES
09 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 11.46 FEET TO A POINT; THENCE SOUTH 88
DEGREES 37 MINUTES 26 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 190.86 FEET TO A POINT;
THENCE SOUTH 87 DEGREES 44 MINUTES 27 SECONDS WEST A DISTANCE OF 60.22
FEET TO A 3"X3" CONCRETE MARKER AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; SAID
DESCRIBED TRACT OF LAND CONTAINING 0.088 ACRES (3,829 SQUARE FEET).

In further aid of description, it is stated that the above-described tract or parcel of land constitutes
a portion of existing tax parcel 0195 032C according to the present designations of the Lowndes
County Tax Assessor.

Twin Lakes Road Project
ROW Parcel No. 10




EXHIBIT B TO RIGHT OF WAY DEED

PLAT OF RIGHT OF WAY AREA

[Attached]

Twin Lakes Road Project
ROW Parcel No. 10



SONMYYA Mi—6£ZHr

026¢—¥¥C—622C

109lE VO ‘VISOQIVA
3JARIG AOOM3Oa3 60t
812000457 VOO

JT1 ONIAIAYUNS WOSTOS
#82¢ S1dd NOST04 NVIS

3dvl T33LS 001 0
NOLLVLS 3SVE E€—HdANL aGVAVE ANV Y¥3A0M SN1d ST — HJWNIEL avAvr o
NOLLVLS TV1OL JU080Y £0TI VOII 0

‘@3sn LNINdIND3
',869'69 NI I NIHLW 3LV3NOOV 38
OL ANNO4 S| NV HNSOTO 404 gALYINOTVO N338 SVH LV1d SIHL

(£0°—£-081L 3INY QYVOE) SMJ078 HOIALNI SNOISINIGANS NvE¥Nans

06 = .1 FWVoS ¥04 ,SZ'0 NVHL ¥3LV3NO LON S| ABANNS 3HL NIHLWM ¥3HLO HOV3
e OL 103dS3N HLIM SNIYNVA M3NNOD AL¥3JONd 3HL 40 3ONVYIIOL
NOLLISOd 3HL SLN3NI¥NSYIN LNVANNG3Y JHL NOdN a3sve
001 0S 0 ‘SUINHVN HINNOD
ALM3dONd IHL ANV SLNIOd TOMLNOO 3HL OL 3GYA SLNIWIUNSYIN LNVONNQ3Y
“IVANILNI 3INIALNOD %56 3HL L1V ,Z0°0 NVHL SST1 40 NOISIINd TYNOLLISOd
JAUVTIN V SVH 03SVE S| 1v1d SIHL HOIHM NOdN SINIWIMNSYIN VLIVA a3l 3HL
96°50L-Y
.56'501~0
S. 39Vd £0SS Mood @3aa M.62.50.685~8 3
060 LZLO 130¥Vd XV 1000052 o
ABG0H 'O AONVN ONV NOSAL "O VINIOYIA M £%.52.2-V1130 + _
Q' vIVG 3A¥N0 N zt
S5'60+6G VIS 1S z8le @ + N e 0008 ¥
* ~ o = M 5
L. T 9/ T SAHQY BERQ - ©  m6250685-8 . 00'?L+SS VIS
‘ agc Z8'6.+9S VIS o 00°0LbZ -4
gl = 89401V €9'L0L MBS
3,50,9%.005 / YL6TT M.Ob,1b.68N 8901 3 ; 8L,
e e ot e e A Grce  3.1%.85.
0z'SL ¥ . L8N
: 5Syee| 3ul2LT . . L8N
2209 98701 1 6 L9l m:wmrum.
82°60+65 VIS . ‘
_ | | m/A ciol.:«d& wm&c I Zberﬁ 8 M.LZHY.L85 T\ /61'95+85 Vg o ; _
e e e i 1 WY S g & Yyt |
00+09 #S8LT  OP+6S oo+mm 2 0 imw 00+95 o ooes T
£0°L0+66, VL : PEEVESRVEIVIES TSt e S A
i QLL2Z 3.00,1%.685 . Z o o o - )
; . . il .00°0€ 1 961
i ,000¢ 1 / 9°lL .00°0¢ ,_\( 8195795 vis MlLLLOON
00°L0+65 VIS M..60.80.00S 4S 6Z8% Z8'6.+9S VIS
| S3¥IV 880°0 26'€2-0
1 €9 T :
' T _ 3,56.£5.685-8
9¥¢ 39vd 8 13INIgVD 1v1d 00°0£52-Y :
vl 39vd 809% X008 033 £65¢ 39vd ¥ LINEVD: Lvld 26°$T-Y £S5z 39vd v 1INIBYD Lv1d

S390148 SLLOd 3NIYIHLYA
GNVY ¥P ‘S3901¥8 'O NHOP

@ |

L¥0 S6L0 T30¥Vd XVL _

LG¢ 39vd £989 X008 (330
0Z¢0 S610 1304vd XvL
HMOYINYNL T NIYHYM

040 39vd L68Z X008 (0330
€2l 9610 T30dvd XVl
3941I3aV "4 L100S

HLMON QR9

£8 QYN 3NOZ 1SaMm

PLAT OF A RIGHT OF WAY ACQUISITION SURVEY — PARCEL 10

-
” M| O
B 8. 8-
<AN mz
O <2|E
YER DWE
La% %z
x= M 7]
20« <+
NON |0
T
> O
<C
= 5
[a)
5 o
< g
— O
T o M
O o
= _wn T
XX JF
O v %#©
DFAR
Mun  ©
x z 3
> 2 e
— F o
=z I
2 (=)
g8  z
o -]




LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Transportation Investment Act (TIA) Local Delivery
Application for Hickory Grove Road Shoulder Widening and Skipper
Bridge Road Shoulder Widening
Work
DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular

Session
BUDGET IMPACT: N/A

FUNDING SOURCE:
() Annual

() Capital

(X) N/A

() SPLOST

() TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: TIA Local Delivery Apllication - Hickory Grove Rd &
Skipper Bridge Rd

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: Hickory Grove Road Shoulder Widening and Skipper Bridge Road Shoulder
Widening are on the TIA Il list to bid in July 2026. The Local Delivery Application starts the process by allowing
Lowndes County to manage the project at the local government level. If approved, the Georgia Department of
Transportation (GDOT) will send an approval letter and agreement to be approved by the Lowndes County
Board of Commissioners. The project will include a 2' widening on each side of the road, resurfacing, new
signage, audible edge rumble strips, and drainage structure improvement, if required. The Hickory Grove
Road project will begin at US Hwy 41 and end at the Echols County/Lowndes County line. The Skipper Bridge
Road project will begin near Bemiss Road and end at Hwy 122.

OPTIONS: 1. Approve the application and authorize the Chairman to sign the application.
2. Redirect.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Option 1

DEPARTMENT: Engineering DEPARTMENT HEAD: Chad McLeod

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



A

TRANSPORTATION INVESTMENT ACT

Transportation Investment Act (TTA) Local Project Delivery Application

Section I — Local Government Applicant Information

Applicant Main Contact
Lowndes County Chad McLeod
Contact Title Phone Number
Director of Engineering [229-671-2424

Local Government Email address

cmcleod@lowndescounty.com

Contact Address

327 N Ashley St

Address Line 2

2nd Floor Engineering Department
City State Zip Code

Valdosta GA 31601

Section II — Project Information

County City Congressional District | GDOT District
Lowndes N/A 8 4

Regional Commission MPO Region (if applicable)
Southern Georgia Valdosta

Regional Commission ID Number/ PI Number/ and Project Name
SG2-185-2-24 /1 0020527 / Hickory Grove Road Widening and Shoulder Paving
SG2-185-2-25 /0020528 / Skipper Bridge Road Widening and Shoulder Paving

Local Government is LAP Certified




TIA Local Delivery Application
Page 2

[

[]
[
[]

Please check all phases of delivery in which the Local Government desires to have responsibility
(PE, ROW, UTL, CST)

Preliminary Engineering (PE)
Right of Way (ROW)
Utilities (UTL)

Construction (CST)

Section ITI-Method of Delivery

The Local Government’s plan for delivering the selected phase(s) of the Project. Include in
this plan the types of resources needed, both inhouse and consultants, and your procedures
for managing project quality, scope, schedule, and budget:

Lowndes County will follow the Lowndes County Procurement Policy in the delivery of
the project. A GDOT pre-qualified engineering firm firm will be hired to provide
surveying, environmental and civil construction plans for the project. A GDOT
pre-qualified real estate negotiator will be hired to negotiate the procurement of the
Right of Way required for this project. Lowndes County currently employs a
professional engineer and multiple engineering technicians that will oversee the
construction of the project.

Please list the Local Government’s previous experience with Project Delivery. List two
projects of similar scope and cost.

Project Name:

|Briggston Road Grading, Drainage Base and Paving

Project Description:

Grading, base, drainage and paving of an existing County Dirt Road. Total length of
the project was 1.56 miles in length

Construction Let Date:

|August 2023

Construction Completion Date:

|September 2025

Initial Cost Estimate:

[$3,900,000

Final Completed Cost:

$3,600,000




TIA Local Delivery Application
Page 3

Project Name:

|Hightower Road and Cooper Road NE Paving Project

Project Description:

Grading, base, drainage and paving of an existing County Dirt Road. Total length of
the project was 3.26 miles in length

Construction Let Date:

lauly 2022

Construction Completion Date:

|February 2024

Initial Cost Estimate:

$3,750,000

Final Completed Cost:

$3,750,000

Is the Project on the State Route System or does it tie to a State Route?

Yes

Procedures in place or that will be in place for regular reporting to GDOT of Project
scope, schedule, and budgets.

Monthly Conference Calls with GDOT TIA Officials

The Local Government’s procedures in place for contract payment validation.

Lowndes County Procurement Policy

The Local Government’s conflict of interest policy.

Lowndes County Procurement Policy




TIA Local Delivery Application
Page 4

Complete the information below and submit to:

Kenneth Franks, State TIA Administrator
Georgia Department of Transportation
600 West Peachtree Street, NW

Atlanta, Georgia 30308

I hereby certify that I am a principle and duly authorized representative of

Lowndes County Board of Commissioners _ . 327 N Ash|ey Street
, Georgia, whose address is
Valodsta ., 31601

LOCAL GOVERNMENT:

(Signature)

Chairman (Title

12-9-25

(Date)




LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Transportation Investment Act (TIA) Local Delivery
Application for Val Del Road Widening
Work
DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular
Session
BUDGET IMPACT: N/A
FUNDING SOURCE:
() Annual
() Capital
(X) N/A
() SPLOST
() TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: TIA Local Delivery Application - Val Del Road Widening

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: Val Del Road Widening is on the TIA Il list to bid in January 2030. The Local
Delivery Application starts the process by allowing Lowndes County to manage the project at the local
government level. If approved, the Georgia Department of Transportation (GDOT) will send an approval letter
and agreement to be approved by the Lowndes County Board of Commissioners. Staff has already started
preliminary programming and traffic studies to help determine the final typical section. The project will begin
at North Valdosta Road and end at McMillian Road with the widening, and the remaining portion being
resurfaced.

OPTIONS: 1. Approve the application and authorize the Chairman to sign the application.
2. Redirect.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Option 1

DEPARTMENT: Engineering DEPARTMENT HEAD: Chad McLeod

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



A

TRANSPORTATION INVESTMENT ACT

Transportation Investment Act (TTA) Local Project Delivery Application

Section I — Local Government Applicant Information

Applicant Main Contact
Lowndes County Chad McLeod
Contact Title Phone Number
Director of Engineering [229-671-2424

Local Government Email address

cmcleod@lowndescounty.com

Contact Address

327 N Ashley St

Address Line 2

2nd Floor Engineering Department
City State Zip Code

Valdosta GA 31601

Section II — Project Information

County City Congressional District | GDOT District
Lowndes N/A 8 4

Regional Commission MPO Region (if applicable)
Southern Georgia Valdosta

Regional Commission ID Number/ PI Number/ and Project Name
SG2-185-2-26 / 0020529 / Val Del Road Widening

Local Government is LAP Certified




TIA Local Delivery Application
Page 2

[

[]
[
[]

Please check all phases of delivery in which the Local Government desires to have responsibility
(PE, ROW, UTL, CST)

Preliminary Engineering (PE)
Right of Way (ROW)
Utilities (UTL)

Construction (CST)

Section ITI-Method of Delivery

The Local Government’s plan for delivering the selected phase(s) of the Project. Include in
this plan the types of resources needed, both inhouse and consultants, and your procedures
for managing project quality, scope, schedule, and budget:

Lowndes County will follow the Lowndes County Procurement Policy in the delivery of
the project. A GDOT pre-qualified engineering firm firm will be hired to provide
surveying, environmental and civil construction plans for the project. A GDOT
pre-qualified real estate negotiator will be hired to negotiate the procurement of the
Right of Way required for this project. Lowndes County currently employs a
professional engineer and multiple engineering technicians that will oversee the
construction of the project.

Please list the Local Government’s previous experience with Project Delivery. List two
projects of similar scope and cost.

Project Name:

|Briggston Road Grading, Drainage Base and Paving

Project Description:

Grading, base, drainage and paving of an existing County Dirt Road. Total length of
the project was 1.56 miles in length

Construction Let Date:

|August 2023

Construction Completion Date:

|September 2025

Initial Cost Estimate:

[$3,900,000

Final Completed Cost:

$3,600,000




TIA Local Delivery Application
Page 3

Project Name:

|Hightower Road and Cooper Road NE Paving Project

Project Description:

Grading, base, drainage and paving of an existing County Dirt Road. Total length of
the project was 3.26 miles in length

Construction Let Date:

lauly 2022

Construction Completion Date:

|February 2024

Initial Cost Estimate:

$3,750,000

Final Completed Cost:

$3,750,000

Is the Project on the State Route System or does it tie to a State Route?

Yes

Procedures in place or that will be in place for regular reporting to GDOT of Project
scope, schedule, and budgets.

Monthly Conference Calls with GDOT TIA Officials

The Local Government’s procedures in place for contract payment validation.

Lowndes County Procurement Policy

The Local Government’s conflict of interest policy.

Lowndes County Procurement Policy




TIA Local Delivery Application
Page 4

Complete the information below and submit to:

Kenneth Franks, State TIA Administrator
Georgia Department of Transportation
600 West Peachtree Street, NW

Atlanta, Georgia 30308

I hereby certify that I am a principle and duly authorized representative of

Lowndes County Board of Commissioners’ Georgia, whose address is 327 N AShIey St
Valdosta ., 31601

LOCAL GOVERNMENT:

(Signature)

Chairman (Title

12-9-25

(Date)




LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Design-Build Contract for Lowndes County Animal Shelter
Work
DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular
Session
BUDGET IMPACT: $5,000,000.00
FUNDING SOURCE:
() Annual
() Capital
() N/A
(X) SPLOST
() TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Contract for Lowndes County Animal Shelter

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: Lowndes County solicited for Design-Build contractors with proposals due on
September 12, 2025. Seven Design-Build firms turned in a proposal. The scoring committee reviewed the
proposals and scored each proposer on the specific information requested. The Design-Build firm of
Kellerman Construction, Inc. lead all firms in scoring from the scoring committee. The breakdown for the
contract is $450,000.00 for sitework, $4,050,000.00 for construction, $200,000.00 for contingency, and
$300,000.00 for Architectural & Engineering. If approved, the design process will begin immediately and the
Design-Builder will submit a final proposal for construction to Lowndes County for approval in April 2026.

OPTIONS: 1. Approve Kellerman Construction Inc as the Design-Build contractor and authorize the Chairman
to sign the contract.
2. Redirect.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Option 1

DEPARTMENT: Engineering DEPARTMENT HEAD: Chad McLeod

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



BB ATA bocument A141° - 2024

Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Design-Builder for a

Traditional Design-Build Project

AGREEMENT made as of the Twenty-fourth day of November in the year Two Thousand

Twenty-Five
(In words, indicate day, month, and year.)

BETWEEN the Owner:
(Name, legal status, address, and other information)

Lowndes County Board of Commissioners
327 N Ashley Street

Valdosta, GA 31601

(229) 671-2400

and the Design-Builder:
(Name, legal status, address, and other information)

Kellerman Construction, Inc.
2717-D Windemere Drive
Valdosta, GA 31602
229-249-5330

for the following Project:
(Name, location, and detailed description)

New Lowndes County Animal Shelter
Valdosta, GA 31602
New Animal Shelter

The Owner and Design-Builder agree as follows.

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS:
The author of this document may
have revised the text of the original
AlA standard form. An Additions
and Deletions Report that notes
revisions to the standard form text
is available from the author and
should be reviewed. A vertical line
in the left margin of this document
indicates where the author has
added to or deleted from the
original AlA text.

This document has important legal
consequences. Consultation with
an attorney is encouraged with
respect to its completion or
modification.

Consultation with an attorney is
also encouraged with respect to
professional licensing requirements
in the jurisdiction where the Project
is located.

ELECTRONIC COPYING of any
portion of this AIA® Document to
another electronic file is prohibited
and constitutes a violation of
copyright laws as set forth in the
footer of this document.

AIA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes:

(691758cd3503¢13618796¢47)



TABLE OF ARTICLES

1 GENERAL PROVISIONS

2  COMPENSATION AND PROGRESS PAYMENTS

3 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS OF THE WORK OF THE DESIGN-BUILD CONTRACT

4 WORK PRIOR TO EXECUTION OF THE DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT

5 WORK FOLLOWING EXECUTION OF THE DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT

6  CHANGES IN THE WORK

7 OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

8 TIME

9  PAYMENT APPLICATIONS AND PROJECT COMPLETION

10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

11 INSURANCE AND BONDS

12 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF CONSTRUCTION WORK

13  COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES

14  TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

15  CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

16  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

17  SCOPE OF THIS AGREEMENT

TABLE OF EXHIBITS

A INSURANCE AND BONDS

B  DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT

C  SUSTAINABLE PROJECTS EXHIBIT

ARTICLE 1 GENERAL PROVISIONS

§ 1.1 Owner’s Criteria

This Agreement is based on the Owner’s Criteria set forth in this Section 1.1. The Owner’s Criteria is fixed as of the date
of this Agreement.

(For each item in Section 1.1.1 through 1.1.10, insert the information or a statement such as “not applicable” or
“unknown at the time of execution.)

§ 1.1.1 The Owner’s program for the Project:

(Identify below, or in an attached exhibit, the documentation in which the program is set forth, or state the manner in
which the program will be developed.)

The project is for the design and construction of a new animal shelter. The program, as understood by the design/build

team includes housing for dogs and cats, adoption service areas and additional support areas including administrative
offices and employee support areas such as locker rooms and showers.

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)



§ 1.1.2 The Owner’s design requirements for the Project:
(Identify below, or in an attached exhibit, the documentation that contains the Owner’s design requirements, including
any performance specifications for the Project.)

Per the Owner's Request for Proposal, the projects scope includes engineering, design services, permitting, procurement,
construction, operation and maintenance (O&M) manual preparation, start-up and commissioning services, and operator
training for the new animal shelter.

§ 1.1.3 The Project’s physical characteristics:

(Identify or describe below, or in an attached exhibit, if appropriate, size, location, dimensions, or other pertinent
information, such as geotechnical or environmental reports; site, boundary, topographic, or existing building surveys;
traffic and utility studies, availability of public and private utilities and services; legal description of the site; Project and
site requirements, etc.)

The project will be located at 337 Gil Harbin Industrial Boulevard in Valdosta, Georgia. The Owner will provide all
pertinent studies or reports as available or required for the Design/Builder. If site surveys, soils reports, geotechnical
reports, or environmental reports are not available and deemed necessary, the Owner will provide, at the Owner's cost, the
required reports/information to the Design/Builder.

§ 1.1.4 The Owner’s anticipated Sustainable Objective for the Project, if any:

(Identify below, or in an attached exhibit, the Owner’s Sustainable Objective for the Project, such as Sustainability
Certification, benefit to the environment, enhancement to the health and well-being of building occupants, or
improvement of energy efficiency. If the Owner identifies a Sustainable Objective, incorporate AIA Document
A141°-2024, Standard Form of Agreement between Owner and Design-Builder for a Traditional Design-Build Project,
Exhibit C, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, into this Agreement to define the terms, conditions, and Work related to the
Owner’s Sustainable Objective.)

Not Applicable

§ 1.1.5 The Owner’s building information modeling requirements for the Project, if any:

(Identify below, or in an attached exhibit, the Owner’s building information modeling requirements for the Project, such
as the requirement that the Design-Builder provide a model for subsequent use by the Owner or share models with the
Owner’s Consultants and Separate Contractors. If the parties agree upon protocols for transmission of, use of, and
reliance on information or documentation in digital form, then identify and attach that document.)

Not Applicable

§ 1.1.6 The Owner’s budget for the Work to be provided by the Design-Builder is set forth below:

(Provide the Owner’s total budget for the Design Services, Construction Work, related services, and reasonable
contingencies, required to fulfill the Design-Builder’s obligations under the Design-Build Documents following execution
of the Design Build Amendment. If known, include a line-item breakdown of costs.)

The Owner's budget for the project is $5,000,000.00. This figure includes the proposed items:
Sitework Allowance: $450,000.00

Building: $4,050,000.00

Construction Contingency: $200,000.00

Architectural/Engineering Fee: $300,000.00

§ 1.1.7 The Owner’s anticipated design and construction milestones:
A Design Builder’s Proposal submission date:
April 06, 2026
.2 Construction commencement date:

May 04, 2026

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)



.3 Substantial Completion date or dates:
May 4, 2027

4 Other milestone dates:
(Include other dates, such as milestones for Evaluation of the Owner’s Criteria, Preliminary Design, the
anticipated start of construction, or phased completion dates.)

Evaluation of Owner's Criteria: December 19, 2025
Preliminary Design: January 16, 2026
Design Builder's Proposal: April 6, 2026

§ 1.1.8 In the event the Owner requires the Design-Builder to retain a specific person or entity to perform a portion of the
Work, such as an architect, consultant, or subcontractor, those persons or entities shall be identified below:
(List name, legal status, address and other information.)

Studio 8 Design, LLC - Architect

§ 1.1.9 Additional Owner’s Criteria upon which this Agreement is based:
(Identify below, or in an attached exhibit, special characteristics or needs of the Project not identified elsewhere.)

Not Applicable

§ 1.1.10 The Owner’s requirements for accelerated or fast-track design and construction, multiple bid packages, or phased
construction are set forth below:
(Identify any requirements for fast-track scheduling, multiple bid packages, or phased construction.)

Not Applicable

§ 1.2 Project Team
§ 1.2.1 The Owner identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 7.1.1:
(List name, address, and other information.)

Chad McLeod

327 N Ashley Street

Valdosta, GA 31601

(229) 671-2428

(229) 561-2639
cmcleod@lowndescounty.com

§ 1.2.2 The Owner will retain the following consultants and Separate Contractors:
(List name, address, and other information.)

1 Land Surveyor:

Not Applicable (or to be hired by the County if required)
.2 Geotechnical Engineer:

Not Applicable (or to be hired by the County if required)

.3 Other consultants:
(List any other consultants, e.g., Cost Consultant, Scheduling Consultant, to be retained by the Owner.)

The following consultants will be hired by the County:
e  Material Testing Consultant
e IBC Special Inspections
e Surveys including Soils Reports, Geotechnical Reports, Environmental Reports

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)



(if applicable)

4 Separate Contractors:
(List any Separate Contractors to be retained by the Owner.)

Not Applicable

§ 1.2.3 The Design-Builder identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 3.1.2:
(List name, address and other information.)

Brahm Kellerman

2717-D Windemere Drive
Valdosta, GA 31602
229-249-5330
kellermanconstruction@gmail.com

§ 1.2.4 In addition to those persons or entities identified in Section 1.1.8, the Design-Builder shall retain the Architect,
Consultants, Subcontractors, and suppliers, identified below:
(List name, discipline, address, and other information.)

Studio 8 Design, LLC - Architect

§ 1.2.5 Neither the Owner’s nor the Design-Builder’s representative shall be changed without ten days’ notice to the other
party.

§ 1.3 Dispute Resolution
§1.3.1 Initial Resolution of Claims. Claims, excluding those where the condition giving rise to the Claim is first
discovered after expiration of the period for correction of the Construction Work set forth in Section 12.2.2, or arising
under Sections 10.3 and 10.4, shall be:
(Check the appropriate box.)

[X] Subject to a Meet and Confer obligation in accordance with Section 15.2.1.

[ 1 Referred to the following Project Neutral for an initial decision in accordance with Section 15.2.2.
(Insert name, address, and contact information for Project Neutral.)

Not Applicable

If the Owner and Design-Builder do not select a Project Neutral above, the Parties shall meet and confer as a condition
precedent to mediation pursuant to Section 15.3.

§ 1.3.2 Binding Dispute Resolution. For any Claim subject to, but not resolved by, mediation pursuant to Section 15.3, the
method of binding dispute resolution shall be the following:
(Check the appropriate box.)

[X] Arbitration pursuant to Section 15.4

[ 1 |Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction

[ 1 Other: (Specify)

If the Owner and Design-Builder do not select a method of binding dispute resolution above, or do not subsequently agree
in writing to a method of binding dispute resolution other than litigation, Claims will be resolved by litigation in a court of
competent jurisdiction.

§ 1.4 Definitions

§ 1.4.1 Architect. The Architect is a person or entity providing Design Services for the Design-Builder for all or a portion
of the Work and is lawfully licensed to practice architecture in the applicable jurisdiction. The Architect is referred to
throughout the Design-Build Documents as if singular in number.

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)



§ 1.4.2 Confidential Information. Confidential Information is information containing confidential or business proprietary
information that is designated as “confidential.”

§ 1.4.3 Consultant. A Consultant is a person or entity providing services for the Design-Builder for all or a portion of the
Work and is referred to throughout the Design-Build Documents as if singular in number. If the Consultant provides
professional services, the Consultant shall be lawfully licensed to provide such services, as required by the applicable
jurisdiction.

§ 1.4.4 The Contract. The Design-Build Documents form the Contract. The Contract represents the entire and integrated
agreement between the parties and supersedes prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral.
The Contract may be amended or modified only by a Modification. The Design-Build Documents shall not be construed
to create a contractual relationship of any kind between any persons or entities other than the Owner and the Design-
Builder.

§ 1.4.5 Contract Sum. The Contract Sum is the amount to be paid to the Design-Builder for performance of the Work after
execution of the Design-Build Amendment, as set forth in the Design-Build Amendment.

§ 1.4.6 Contract Time. The Contract Time is the period of time identified in the Design-Build Amendment, measured from
the date for commencement of the Construction Work, including authorized adjustments, established as the period for the
Design-Builder to achieve Substantial Completion of the Work.

§ 1.4.7 Subcontractor. A Subcontractor is a person or entity performing all or a portion of the construction, required in
connection with the Work, for the Design-Builder. Each Subcontractor shall be lawfully licensed, if required in the
jurisdiction where the Project is located.

§ 1.4.8 Cost of the Work. The Cost of the Work includes all costs reasonably incurred by the Design-Builder in the proper
performance of the Work as described in Article B.6 of the Design-Build Amendment.

§ 1.4.9 Day. The term “day” as used in the Design-Build Documents shall mean calendar day unless otherwise specifically
defined.

§ 1.4.10 Design-Build Documents. The Design-Build Documents consist of this Agreement between Owner and Design-
Builder (hereinafter, this Agreement), other documents listed in this Agreement, and Modifications issued after execution
of this Agreement, all of which form the Contract and are as fully a part of the Contract as if attached to this Agreement
or repeated herein. A Modification is (1) a written amendment to the Contract signed by both parties, including the
Design-Build Amendment, (2) a Change Order, or (3) a Change Directive. The Design-Build Documents will also include
the Drawings, Specifications, and other documents listed in the Design-Build Amendment. If anything in the other
Design-Build Documents, other than a Modification, is inconsistent with this Agreement, this Agreement shall govern.

§ 1.4.11 Design-Builder. The Design-Builder is the person or entity identified as such in this Agreement and is referred to
throughout the Design-Build Documents as if singular in number. The term “Design-Builder” means the Design-Builder
or the Design-Builder’s authorized representative.

§ 1.4.12 Work. “Work” means the (a) services required of the Design-Builder prior to the execution of the Design-Build
Amendment, (b) Design Services, and (c) Construction Work.

§ 1.4.12.1 Design Services. “Design Services” are the professional services, including those services that are rendered by
architects and engineers, which are required to fulfill the Design-Builder’s obligations under the Design-Build
Documents. Design Services do not include professional or other services necessary to support Construction Work which
are provided by Subcontractors engaged by the Design-Builder.

§ 1.4.12.2 Construction Work. “Construction Work™ is the construction, and services to support construction, required by
the Design-Build Documents, whether completed or partially completed, and includes all other labor, materials,
equipment, and services provided, or to be provided, by the Design-Builder to fulfill the Design-Builder’s obligations
under the Design-Build Documents.

§ 1.4.13 Early Release Work. “Early Release Work” is a limited, predetermined portion of the Project or scope of the Work
that the Owner authorizes the Design-Builder to commence before the parties execute the Design-Build Amendment.

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)



§ 1.4.14 Instruments of Service. Instruments of Service are representations, in any medium of expression now known or
later developed, of the tangible and intangible creative work performed by the Design-Builder, Subcontractors, Architect,
or Consultants under their respective agreements. Instruments of Service may include, without limitation, studies,
surveys, models, sketches, drawings, specifications, and other similar materials.

§ 1.4.15 Notice

§ 1.4.15.1 Except as otherwise provided in Section 1.4.15.2, where the Design-Build Documents require one party to
notify or give notice to the other party, such notice shall be provided in writing to the designated representative of the
party to whom the notice is addressed and shall be deemed to have been duly served if delivered in person, by mail, by
courier, or by electronic transmission as set forth below:

(Insert requirements for delivering notice in electronic format such as name, title, and email address of the recipient and
whether and how the system will be required to generate a read receipt for the transmission. If the parties agree upon
protocols for electronic transmission of notice, identify and attach that document.)

Electronic submission via email shall be with a required read receipt for the transmission of the notice with a phone call
follow-up to the recipient to ensure the recipient received the email.

§ 1.4.15.2 Notice of Claims as provided in Section 15.1.3 shall be provided in writing and shall be deemed to have been
duly served only if delivered to the designated representative of the party to whom the notice is addressed by certified or
registered mail, or by courier providing proof of delivery.

§ 1.4.16 Owner. The Owner is the person or entity identified as such in this Agreement and is referred to throughout the
Design-Build Documents as if singular in number. The term “Owner” means the Owner or the Owner’s authorized
representative.

§ 1.4.17 The Project. The Project is comprised of all design and construction, of which the Work performed under the
Design-Build Documents may be the whole or a part, and may include design and construction by the Owner and by
Separate Contractors.

§ 1.5 The Owner and Design-Builder may rely on the Owner’s Criteria set forth in Article 1. If the Owner’s Criteria
materially changes after execution of this Agreement, the Owner and the Design-Builder shall execute a Modification to
adjust the Project schedule, the Design-Builder’s services, and the Design Builder’s compensation. The Owner shall
adjust the Owner’s budget in Section 1.1.6 and the Owner’s anticipated design and construction milestones, as necessary,
to accommodate material changes in the Owner’s Criteria.

ARTICLE 2 COMPENSATION AND PROGRESS PAYMENTS

§ 2.1 Compensation for Work Prior To Execution of Design-Build Amendment

§ 2.1.1 For the Design-Builder’s performance of Work prior to the execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the Owner
shall compensate the Design-Builder as follows:

(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation, or indicate the exhibit in which the information is provided. If there will be
a limit on the total amount of compensation for Work performed prior to the execution of the Design-Build Amendment,
state the amount of the limit.)

Compensation for Architect's Design and Construction Document Services: $270,000.00 (90% of Design Fee) to be paid
prior to execution of the D/B Amendment. Note: Compensation for Architect's Construction Administration Services:
8330,000.00 will be paid during construction.

Pre-Construction Fee: $15,000.00

§ 2.1.2 The hourly billing rates for services of the Design-Builder and the Design-Builder’s Architect, Consultants, and
Subcontractors, if any, are set forth below. The rates shall be adjusted in accordance with the Design-Builder’s,
Architect’s, Consultants’, and Subcontractors’ normal review practices.

(If applicable, attach an exhibit of hourly billing rates or insert them below.)

Will provide hourly rates per job title as required

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)



Individual or Position Rate

§ 2.1.3 Compensation for Reimbursable Expenses Prior To Execution of Design-Build Amendment

§ 2.1.3.1 Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation set forth in Section 2.1.1 and 2.1.2 and include expenses
directly related to the Project incurred by the Design-Builder and the Design-Builder’s Architect, Consultants, and
Subcontractors, as follows:

Transportation and authorized out-of-town travel and subsistence;

Dedicated data and communication services, teleconferences, and Project web sites and cloud services;
Fees paid for securing approval of authorities having jurisdiction over the Project;

Printing, reproductions, plots, and standard form documents;

Postage, handling, and delivery;

Expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates, if authorized in advance by the Owner;
Renderings, physical models, mock-ups, professional photography, and presentation materials requested by
the Owner;

.8 All taxes levied on professional services and on reimbursable expenses; and

.9  Other Project-related expenditures, if authorized in advance by the Owner.

Noubwih=

§ 2.1.3.2 For Reimbursable Expenses, the compensation shall be the expenses the Design-Builder and the Design-
Builder’s Architect, Consultants, and Subcontractors incurred, plus Ten percent ( 10.00 %) of the expenses incurred.

§ 2.1.4 Additional Services. With the Owner’s written approval, the Design-Builder shall provide services not included in
Article 4 for additional compensation. Such services may include
A services necessitated by a change in the Owner’s Criteria, or previous instructions or approvals given by the
Owner;
.2 services necessitated by a material change in the Project made at the Owner’s request, including (1) a
change in Project size, quality, or complexity, or (2) a change in the Owner’s schedule or budget;
.3 changing or editing previously prepared Instruments of Service necessitated by the enactment or revision of
codes, laws or regulations, or official interpretations; and
4 services necessitated by a failure to complete the services under Article 4 within () months of the date of
this Agreement through no fault of the Design-Builder.

§ 2.1.4.5 Compensation for Additional Services. If the Owner authorizes the Design-Builder to perform additional services
under Section 2.1.4, the Owner shall compensate the Design-Builder for such additional services as follows:
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation.)

Owner and Design/Builder will negotiate compensation if additional services are required.

§ 2.1.5 Payments to the Design-Builder Prior To Execution of Design-Build Amendment
§ 2.1.5.1 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for Work prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment shall be made
monthly upon presentation of the Design-Builder’s invoice.

§ 2.1.5.1.1 Amounts unpaid Thirty ( 30 ) days after the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the
absence thereof, at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at the principal place of business of the Design-Builder.
(Insert rate of monthly or annual interest agreed upon.)

1.00 % monthly

§ 2.1.5.2 Records of Reimbursable Expenses and services performed on the basis of hourly rates shall be available to the
Owner at mutually convenient times for a period of two years following execution of the Design-Build Amendment or
termination of this Agreement, whichever occurs first.

§ 2.2 Payment for Early Release Work
For the Design-Builder’s performance of Early Release Work, the Owner shall pay the Design-Builder in accordance with
the authorization for the Early Release Work, unless otherwise agreed to by the parties.

§ 2.3 Compensation for Work Performed After Execution of Design-Build Amendment
§ 2.3.1 For the Design-Builder’s performance of Work after execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the Owner shall

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)



pay to the Design-Builder the Contract Sum as set forth in Article 9 and the Design-Build Amendment.

§ 2.3.2 Liquidated Damages

The Design-Builder’s liability for liquidated damages resulting from the Design-Builder’s failure to achieve Substantial
Completion within the Contract Time shall be as follows:

(For each item in Section 2.3.2.1 through 2.3.2.4, insert the information or a statement such as “not applicable”.)

A Insert the monetary amount of liquidated damages, if any, to be assessed:
(Identify the monetary amount of liquidated damages, the incremental period of time for each assessment,
and whether that amount is uniform or variable over time.)

Not Applicable

.2 Insert the date(s) or event(s), if any, that triggers the commencement of the assessment of liquidated
damages, if other than the date of Substantial Completion of the entire Project:

Not Applicable

.3 Insert the limit, if any, on the total amount of liquidated damages:
No Limit

A4 Insert any other terms for liquidated damages:
Not Applicable

ARTICLE 3 GENERAL REQUIREMENTS OF THE WORK OF THE DESIGN-BUILD CONTRACT

§ 3.1 General

§ 3.1.1 The Design-Builder shall comply with any applicable licensing requirements in the jurisdiction where the Project is
located.

§ 3.1.2 The Design-Builder shall designate in writing a representative who shall have express authority to bind the Design-
Builder with respect to all matters under this Agreement.

§ 3.1.3 The Design-Builder shall perform the Work in accordance with the Design-Build Documents. The Design-Builder
shall not be relieved of its obligations to perform the Work in accordance with the Design-Build Documents by the
activities, tests, inspections, or approvals of the Owner.

§ 3.1.4 If the Design-Builder performs Work contrary to applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations,
or lawful orders of public authorities, the Design-Builder shall assume responsibility for such Work and shall bear the
costs attributable to correction.

§ 3.1.4.1 Neither the Design-Builder nor any Subcontractor, Consultant, or Architect shall be obligated to perform any act
which they believe will violate any applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of
public authorities. If the Design-Builder determines that implementation of any instruction received from the Owner,
including those in the Owner’s Criteria, would cause a violation of any applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules
and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, the Design-Builder shall notify the Owner in writing. Upon
confirmation by the Owner that a change to the Owner’s Criteria is required to remedy the violation, the Owner and the
Design-Builder shall execute a Modification.

§ 3.1.5 The Design-Builder shall be responsible to the Owner for acts and omissions of the Design-Builder’s employees,
Architect, Consultants, Subcontractors, and their agents and employees, and any other persons or entities performing
portions of the Work for, or on behalf of, the Design-Builder.

§ 3.1.6 The Design-Builder shall schedule and conduct periodic meetings with the Owner to review matters such as
procedures, progress, coordination, and scheduling of the Work.

§ 3.1.7 The Design-Builder shall furnish the services of Architects, Consultants, Subcontractors, and suppliers identified in
Article 1 or otherwise required to fulfill its obligations under the Design-Build Documents. The Owner understands and

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)



agrees that the services of such parties are performed in the sole interest of, and for the exclusive benefit of, the Design-
Builder. When applicable law requires that services be performed by licensed professionals, the Design-Builder shall
provide those services through qualified and licensed professionals.

§ 3.1.8 The Design-Builder, with the assistance of the Owner, shall prepare and file documents required to obtain
necessary approvals of authorities having jurisdiction over the Project.

§ 3.1.9 Progress Reports

§ 3.1.9.1 The Design-Builder shall keep the Owner informed of the progress and quality of the Work. On a monthly basis,
or otherwise as agreed to by the Owner and Design-Builder, the Design-Builder shall submit written progress reports to
the Owner, showing estimated percentages of completion and other information identified below:

Work completed for the period,;

Project schedule status;

Submittal schedule and status report, including a summary of outstanding Submittals;

Requests for information to be provided by the Owner, including those that are outstanding;

Approved Change Orders and Change Directives;

Pending Change Order and Change Directive status reports;

Tests and inspection reports;

Status report of Work rejected by the Owner;

Status of submissions and approvals required by authorities having jurisdiction over the Project;

Status of Claims previously submitted in accordance with Article 15;

Cumulative total of the Cost of the Work to date including the Design-Builder’s compensation and
Reimbursable Expenses, if any;

Current Project cash-flow and forecast reports;

A cost summary, comparing actual costs to updated cost estimates, if the Contract Sum is the Cost of the
Work with or without a Guaranteed Maximum Price; and

Additional information as agreed to by the Owner and Design-Builder.

. Lo woNOoOURWNS
W =~o

-
'S

§ 3.1.10 Design-Builder’s Schedule

§ 3.1.10.1 The Design-Builder, as part of the Design-Builder’s evaluation of the Owner’s Criteria, shall prepare and submit
for the Owner’s acceptance a Project schedule, which shall provide for expeditious and practicable execution of the Work.
The Project schedule shall (1) include the time required for design and construction, (2) not exceed time limits set forth
under the Design-Build Documents, (3) be revised at appropriate intervals as required by the conditions of the Work and
the Design-Build Documents, (4) include allowances for periods of time required for the Owner’s review, and (5) include
allowances for approval of submissions by authorities having jurisdiction over the Project.

§ 3.1.10.2 The Design-Builder shall perform the Work in general accordance with the most recent Project schedule
accepted by the Owner.

§ 3.1.11 Standard of Care

The Design-Builder shall perform (a) services required of the Design-Builder prior to the execution of the Design-Build
Amendment, and (b) Design Services consistent with the degree of skill and care ordinarily provided by Design-Builders
performing the same services in the same or similar locality under the same or similar circumstances.

§ 3.1.12 Warranty

The Design-Builder warrants to the Owner that the Construction Work furnished under the Contract will be of good
quality and new unless the Design-Build Documents require or permit otherwise. If required by the Owner, the Design-
Builder shall furnish satisfactory evidence as to the kind and quality of materials and equipment. The Design-Builder
further warrants that the Construction Work will conform to the requirements of the Design-Build Documents and will be
free from defects, except for those inherent in their quality or otherwise expressly permitted by the Design-Build
Documents. Construction Work not conforming to these requirements may be considered defective. The Design-Builder’s
warranty excludes remedy for damage or defect caused by abuse, alterations to the materials, equipment, or construction
not executed by the Design-Builder, improper or insufficient maintenance, improper operation, or normal wear and tear
and normal usage.

§ 3.1.13 Royalties, Patents and Copyrights
§ 3.1.13.1 The Design-Builder shall pay all royalties and license fees for designs, processes, or products, required by the
Design-Build Documents.

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”

“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on 10
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in

accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)



§ 3.1.13.2 The Design-Builder shall defend suits or claims for infringement of copyrights and patent rights and shall hold
the Owner and its Separate Contractors and consultants harmless from loss on account thereof, but shall not be
responsible for defense or loss when a particular design, process, or product of a particular manufacturer or manufacturers
is required by the Owner, or where the copyright violations are contained in the Owner’s Criteria. However, if an
infringement of a copyright or patent is discovered by, or made known to, the Design-Builder, the Design-Builder shall be
responsible for the loss unless such information is promptly furnished to the Owner. If the Owner receives notice from a
patent or copyright owner of an alleged violation of a patent or copyright, attributable to the Design-Builder, the Owner
shall give prompt notice to the Design-Builder.

§ 3.1.14 Indemnification

§ 3.1.14.1 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Design-Builder shall indemnify and hold harmless the Owner, the
Owner’s consultants, and agents and employees of any of them, from and against third-party claims, damages, losses, and
expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the Work, but only
to the extent caused by the negligent acts or omissions of the Design-Builder, a Subcontractor, Architect, consultant,
anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone for whose acts they may be liable, regardless of whether or not
such claim, damage, loss, or expense is caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder. Such obligation shall not be
construed to negate, abridge, or reduce other rights or obligations of indemnity that would otherwise exist as to a party or
person described in this Section 3.1.14. The Design-Builder’s obligation to indemnify and hold the Owner, the Owner’s
consultants, and agents and employees of any of them, harmless does not include a duty to defend.

§ 3.1.14.2 In claims against any person or entity indemnified under this Section 3.1.14 by an employee of the Design-
Builder, a Subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them, or anyone for whose acts they may be liable,
the indemnification obligation under Section 3.1.14 shall not be limited by a limitation on amount or type of damages,
compensation, or benefits payable by or for the Design-Builder or a Subcontractor under workers’ compensation acts,
disability benefit acts, or other employee benefit acts.

§ 3.1.15 Contingent Assignment of Agreements
§ 3.1.15.1 Each agreement for a portion of the Work is assigned by the Design-Builder to the Owner, provided that
1 assignment is effective only after termination of the Contract by the Owner for cause pursuant to Sections
14.1.4 or 14.2.2 and only for those agreements that the Owner accepts by notifying the Design-Builder and
the Architect, Consultants, and Subcontractors whose agreements are accepted for assignment; and
.2 assignment is subject to the prior rights of the surety, if any, obligated under bond relating to the Contract.

When the Owner accepts the assignment of an agreement, the Owner assumes the Design-Builder’s rights and obligations
under the agreement.

§ 3.1.15.2 Upon such assignment, if the Work has been suspended for more than 30 days, the compensation under the
assigned agreement shall be equitably adjusted for increases in cost resulting from the suspension.

§ 3.1.15.3 Upon assignment to the Owner under this Section 3.1.15, the Owner may further assign the agreement to a
successor design-builder or other entity. If the Owner assigns the agreement to a successor design-builder or other entity,
the Owner shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all of the successor design-builder’s or other entity’s
obligations under the agreement.

§ 3.1.16 Design-Builder’s Insurance and Bonds. The Design-Builder shall purchase and maintain insurance and provide
bonds as set forth in Article 11 and AIA Document A141°-2024, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and
Design-Builder for a Traditional Design-Build Project, Exhibit A, Insurance and Bonds.

ARTICLE 4 WORK PRIOR TO EXECUTION OF THE DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT

§ 4.1 General

§ 4.1.1 Any information submitted by the Design-Builder, and any interim decisions made by the Owner, shall be for the
purpose of facilitating the design process and shall not modify the Owner’s Criteria unless the Owner and Design-Builder
execute a Modification.

§ 4.1.2 The Design-Builder shall advise and make recommendations to the Owner on proposed site use and improvements,
selection of materials, building systems, and equipment, and temporary Project facilities. The Design-Builder shall also
provide the Owner with recommendations, consistent with the Owner’s Criteria, on constructability; availability of
materials and labor; time requirements for procurement, installation, and construction; and factors related to construction
cost including, but not limited to, costs of alternative designs or materials, preliminary budgets, life-cycle data, and

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)

11



possible cost reductions.

§ 4.2 Evaluation of the Owner’s Criteria
§ 4.2.1 The Design-Builder shall visit the Project site to become generally familiar with local conditions under which the
Work is to be performed.

§ 4.2.2 The Design-Builder shall schedule and conduct meetings with the Owner and other necessary individuals or
entities to discuss and review the Owner’s Criteria as set forth in Section 1.1.

§ 4.2.3 The Design-Builder shall prepare and submit a written report to the Owner, summarizing the Design-Builder’s
evaluation of the Owner’s Criteria. The report shall also include:

1 A description of local conditions under which the Work is to be performed, including conditions that may
affect performance of the Work;

.2 [Illustrations depicting the scale and relationship of the Project components, including possible alternative
approaches to design and construction of the Project;

.3 Allocations of program functions, detailing each function and their square foot areas, and, if necessary,
recommendations to adjust the Owner’s Criteria to conform to the Owner’s program functions;

4  Recommendations, if any, with regard to accelerated or fast-track scheduling, procurement, or phased
construction;

.5 A preliminary estimate of the Contract Sum, and, if necessary, recommendations to adjust the Owner’s
Criteria to conform to the Owner’s budget for the Work;

.6 A preliminary estimate of the compensation for Design Services to be performed after execution of the
Design Build Amendment;

.7 An evaluation of the compliance of the Owner’s Criteria with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, and, if necessary, recommendations to adjust
the Owner’s Criteria to conform with applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or
lawful orders of public authorities;

.8 A Project schedule, which shall include proposed dates for (i) design milestones; (ii) receiving additional
information from, or for work to be completed by, the Owner; (iii) submission of the Design-Builder’s
Proposal; (iv) the Owner’s review and approval of Design Phase submissions; and (v) review and approval
of submissions by authorities having jurisdiction;

.9  If necessary, recommendations to adjust the Owner’s Criteria to conform to the Owner’s schedule; and

A0  The following:

(List additional information, if any, to be included in the Design-Builder’s written report.)

Not Applicable

§ 4.2.4 The Owner shall review the Design-Builder’s written report and, if acceptable, provide the Design-Builder with
written consent to proceed to the development of the Preliminary Design as described in Section 4.3.

§ 4.2.5 If the Owner’s consent granted pursuant to Section 4.2.4 includes any changes to the Owner’s Criteria, then the
Owner and the Design-Builder shall execute a Modification pursuant to Article 6.

§ 4.3 Preliminary Design

§ 4.3.1 Upon the Owner’s issuance of a written consent to proceed under Section 4.2.4, the Design-Builder shall prepare
and submit a Preliminary Design to the Owner. The Preliminary Design shall include a report identifying any deviations
from the Owner’s Criteria, and shall include the following:

Confirmation of the allocations of program functions;

Site plan;

Building plans, sections, and elevations;

Structural system;

Selections of major building systems, including but not limited to mechanical, electrical, and plumbing
systems; and

.6 Outline specifications or sufficient drawing notes describing construction materials.

ahrwih=a

The Preliminary Design may include some combination of physical study models, perspective sketches, or digital
modeling.

§ 4.3.2 The Owner shall review the Preliminary Design and, if acceptable, provide the Design-Builder with written

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)

12



consent to proceed to development of the Design-Builder’s Proposal. The Preliminary Design shall not modify the
Owner’s Criteria unless the Owner and Design-Builder execute a Modification.

§ 4.4 Design-Builder’s Proposal

§ 4.4.1 Upon the Owner’s issuance of a written consent to proceed under Section 4.3.2, the Design-Builder shall prepare
and submit the Design-Builder’s Proposal to the Owner with a written statement of its basis, which shall include the
following:

A A list of the Drawings and Specifications, including all Addenda thereto;

.2 A list of all Submittals that will be submitted to the Owner in accordance with Section 5.3.2;

.3 Alist of the clarifications and assumptions made by the Design-Builder in the preparation of the Design-
Builder’s Proposal,;

4 The proposed Contract Sum, including the compensation method and, if based upon the Cost of the Work
plus a Fee, a written statement of estimated cost organized by trade categories, allowances, contingencies,
Design-Builder’s Fee, and other items that comprise the Contract Sum;

.5  The Design-Builder’s Project schedule for the Work, showing the anticipated date of Substantial
Completion upon which the Design-Builder’s Proposal is based;

.6 A list of the Design-Builder’s key personnel, Subcontractors, and suppliers; and

.T A date by which the Owner must accept the Design-Builder’s Proposal.

§ 4.4.2 The Design-Builder shall meet with the Owner to review the Design-Builder’s Proposal. In the event that the
Owner discovers any inconsistencies or inaccuracies in the information presented, the Owner shall promptly notify the
Design-Builder, who shall make appropriate adjustments to the Design-Builder’s Proposal, its basis, or both.

§ 4.4.3 Submission of the Design-Builder’s Proposal shall constitute a representation by the Design-Builder that it has
visited the site and become familiar with local conditions under which the Work is to be completed.

§ 4.5 Design-Build Amendment

§ 4.5.1 If the Owner and Design-Builder agree on the Design-Builder’s Proposal, the Owner and Design-Builder shall
execute the Design-Build Amendment setting forth the Contract Sum with the information and assumptions upon which it
is based, the Contract Time, and the terms of their agreement.

§ 4.5.2 The Design-Builder shall not incur any cost to be paid as part of the Contract Sum prior to the execution of the
Design-Build Amendment, unless the Owner provides prior written authorization for such costs.

§ 4.5.3 Any agreement to commence Early Release Work shall not waive the Owner’s right to reject the Design-Builder’s
Proposal.

ARTICLE 5 WORK FOLLOWING EXECUTION OF THE DESIGN-BUILD AMENDMENT

§ 5.1 Construction Documents

§ 5.1.1 Upon the execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the Design-Builder shall prepare Construction Documents.
The Construction Documents shall establish the quality levels of materials and systems required. The Construction
Documents shall be consistent with the Design-Build Documents.

§ 5.1.2 The Design-Builder shall provide the Construction Documents to the Owner for the Owner’s information. If the
Owner discovers any deviations between the Construction Documents and the Design-Build Documents, the Owner shall
promptly notify the Design-Builder of such deviations in writing. The Construction Documents shall not modify the
Design-Build Documents unless the Owner and Design-Builder execute a Modification. The failure of the Owner to
discover any such deviations shall not relieve the Design-Builder of the obligation to perform the Work in accordance
with the Design-Build Documents.

§ 5.2 Construction Work
§ 5.2.1 Commencement. Except for any Early Release Work described in Section 5.2.2, the date of commencement of the
Construction Work shall be the date identified in the Design-Build Amendment.

§ 5.2.2 Early Release Work

§ 5.2.2.1 The Design-Builder shall prepare, for the Owner’s review and acceptance, a procurement proposal for Early
Release Work which includes (a) portions of the Design Services or Construction Work that will be issued for
procurement and construction in advance of the Design-Build Amendment, and (b) materials or equipment that must be
procured prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment.

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”

“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on 13
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in

accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)




§5.2.2.2 If the Owner accepts the Design-Builder’s procurement proposal for Early Release Work, the Design-Builder
shall prepare, for the Owner’s review and acceptance, an authorization to proceed with Early Release Work describing the
scope, schedule for performance, compensation, payments, retainage, insurance and bonds, and other terms and
conditions applicable to procurement and performance of the Early Release Work. The Design-Builder has no obligation
to commence procurement and performance of Early Release Work until the Owner and Design-Builder execute such
authorization.

§ 5.2.2.3 Following execution of the authorization, the Design-Builder shall expedite and coordinate the procurement and
performance of Early Release Work in accordance with this Agreement and such authorization. Following execution of
the Design-Build Amendment, compensation for the Early Release Work shall be included in the Contract Sum and the
time for performing the Early Release Work shall be included in the Contract Time.

§ 5.2.2.4 Early Procurement of Materials or Equipment by Owner

§ 5.2.2.4.1 If the Owner agrees to procure any materials or equipment prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment,
the Owner shall procure the materials or equipment on terms and conditions acceptable to the Design-Builder. After
execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the Owner shall assign all contracts for these materials or equipment to the
Design-Builder and the Design-Builder shall thereafter accept responsibility for them.

§ 5.2.3 Supervision. The Design-Builder shall supervise and direct the Construction Work, using the Design-Builder’s best
skill and attention. The Design-Builder shall be solely responsible for, and have control over, construction means,
methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures, and for coordinating all portions of the Construction Work under the
Contract, unless the Design-Build Documents provide other specific instructions concerning these matters.

§ 5.3 Submittals
§ 5.3.1 Submittals consist of Shop Drawings, Product Data, and Samples.

.1 Shop Drawings. Shop Drawings are drawings, diagrams, schedules, calculations, and other data specially
prepared for the Construction Work by the Design-Builder or a Subcontractor, Sub-subcontractor,
manufacturer, supplier, or distributor, to illustrate some portion of the Construction Work.

.2 Product Data. Product Data are illustrations, standard schedules, performance charts, instructions,
brochures, diagrams, and other information furnished by the Design-Builder to illustrate materials or
equipment for some portion of the Construction Work.

.3 Samples. Samples are physical examples that illustrate materials, equipment, or workmanship, and establish
standards by which the Construction Work will be judged.

§ 5.3.1.4 Submittals are not Design-Build Documents. Their purpose is to demonstrate how the Design-Builder proposes
to conform to the information given and the design concept expressed in the Design-Build Documents for those portions
of the Construction Work for which the Design-Build Documents require submittals. Review by the Owner is subject to
the limitations of Section 5.3.3.1. Informational submittals upon which the Owner is not expected to take responsive
action may be so identified in the Design-Build Documents. Submittals that are not required by the Design-Build
Documents may be returned by the Owner without action.

§ 5.3.1.5 Submittal Schedule. If the Design-Build Documents require the Design-Builder to submit Submittals to the
Owner during performance of the Construction Work, the Design-Builder, prior to submitting any submittals, and
thereafter as necessary to maintain a current submittal schedule, shall provide a submittal schedule for the Owner’s
approval. The Owner’s approval shall not be unreasonably delayed or withheld. The submittal schedule shall (1) be
coordinated with the Design-Builder’s construction schedule, and (2) allow the Owner reasonable time to review
submittals. If the Design-Builder fails to submit a submittal schedule or fails to provide submittals in accordance with the
approved submittal schedule, the Design-Builder shall not be entitled to any increase in the Contract Sum or extension of
Contract Time based on the time required for review of submittals.

§ 5.3.1.6 Documents and Submittals at the Site

The Design-Builder shall make available, at the Project site, the Design-Build Documents, including Change Orders,
Change Directives, and other Modifications, in good order and marked currently to indicate field changes and selections
made during performance of the Construction Work, and the approved Submittals. These shall be in electronic form or
paper copy, available to the Owner, and delivered to the Owner upon completion of the Work as a record of the
Construction Work as constructed.

§ 5.3.2 Design-Builder’s Submittal Responsibilities

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)

14



§ 5.3.2.1 The Design-Builder shall review for compliance with the Design-Build Documents, approve, and submit to the
Owner, Submittals required by the Design-Build Documents, in accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the
Owner or, in the absence of an approved submittal schedule, with reasonable promptness and in such sequence as to cause
no delay in the Construction Work or in the activities of the Owner or of Separate Contractors.

§ 5.3.2.2 By submitting Submittals, the Design-Builder represents to the Owner that the Design-Builder has (1) reviewed
and approved them, (2) determined and verified materials, field measurements, and field construction criteria related
thereto, or will do so, and (3) checked and coordinated the information contained within such submittals with the
requirements of the Construction Work and of the Design-Build Documents.

§ 5.3.2.3 The Design-Builder shall perform no portion of the Construction Work for which the Design-Build Documents
require submittal and review of Submittals, until the respective submittal has been approved by the Owner.

§ 5.3.2.4 The Construction Work shall be in accordance with approved submittals except that the Design-Builder shall not
be relieved of responsibility for deviations from the requirements of the Design-Build Documents by the Owner’s
approval of Submittals, unless the Design-Builder has specifically notified the Owner of such deviation at the time of
submittal and (1) the Owner has given written approval to the specific deviation as a minor change in the Work, or (2) a
Change Order or Change Directive has been issued authorizing the deviation. The Design-Builder shall not be relieved of
responsibility for errors or omissions in Submittals by the Owner’s approval thereof.

§ 5.3.2.5 The Design-Builder shall direct specific attention, in writing or on resubmitted Submittals, to revisions other than
those requested by the Owner on previous submittals. In the absence of such notice, the Owner’s approval of a
resubmission shall not apply to such revisions.

§ 5.3.3 Owner’s Submittal Responsibilities

§ 5.3.3.1 The Owner will review, approve, or take other appropriate action upon, the Design-Builder’s Submittals, but only
for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with the information and design concept expressed in the Design-
Build Documents. The Owner’s action will be taken in accordance with the submittal schedule approved by the Owner or,
in the absence of an approved submittal schedule, with reasonable promptness while allowing sufficient time to permit
adequate review. Review of such submittals is not conducted for the purpose of determining the accuracy and
completeness of other details such as dimensions and quantities, or for substantiating instructions for installation or
performance of equipment or systems, all of which remain the responsibility of the Design-Builder as required by the
Design-Build Documents. The Owner’s review of the Design-Builder’s Submittals shall not relieve the Design-Builder of
the obligations under Sections 3.1.3, 3.1.11, and 5.3.2. The Owner’s review shall not constitute approval of safety
precautions or of any construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures. The Owner’s approval of a
specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of which the item is a component.

§ 5.3.3.2 Upon review of the submittals required by the Design-Build Documents, the Owner shall notify the Design-
Builder of any non-conformance with the Design-Build Documents the Owner discovers.

§ 5.3.3.3 The persons or entities, in addition to the Owner’s representative, who are required to review the Design-
Builder’s Submittals are as follows:
(List name, address, and other information.)

Local Authorities Having Jurisdiction as required by the Owner.

§ 5.4 Services Necessary to Support Construction Work

§ 5.4.1 The Design-Builder shall provide the services required to complete the Construction Work including services
required to carry out the Design-Builder’s responsibilities for construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, and
procedures. The Design-Builder shall perform such services in compliance with applicable law.

§ 5.4.2 If the Design-Build Documents require services, certifications, or approvals by a licensed design professional
during Construction, the drawings, calculations, specifications, certifications, Shop Drawings, and other Submittals
prepared under the Design-Build Documents shall be signed and sealed by such design professional.

§ 5.4.3 The Owner shall be entitled to rely upon the services, certifications, and approvals provided by the design
professionals under Section 5.4.2. The Owner shall provide prompt notice to the Design-Builder if the Owner observes or
otherwise becomes aware of any errors, omissions, or inconsistencies in such services or information. The Owner is not
required to ascertain that the services, certifications, and approvals performed or provided by the Design-Builder or the

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)

15



licensed design professional in connection with the Construction Work are in accordance with applicable laws, statutes,
ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of public authorities, but the Owner shall promptly report to the
Design-Builder any nonconformity discovered by, or made known to, the Owner.

§ 5.5 Labor and Materials

§ 5.5.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder shall provide and pay for labor,
materials, equipment, tools, construction equipment and machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other
facilities and services, necessary for proper execution and completion of the Construction Work, whether temporary or
permanent, and whether or not incorporated or to be incorporated in the construction.

§ 5.5.2 When a material or system is specified in the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder may make
substitutions only with the consent of the Owner and in accordance with a Change Order or Change Directive.

§ 5.5.3 The Design-Builder shall enforce strict discipline and good order among the Design-Builder’s employees and other
persons carrying out the Construction Work. The Design-Builder shall not permit employment of unfit persons or persons
not properly skilled in tasks assigned to them.

§ 5.6 Taxes

The Design-Builder shall pay sales, consumer, use and similar taxes, for the Construction Work provided by the Design-
Builder, that are legally enacted when the Design-Build Amendment is executed, whether or not yet effective or merely
scheduled to go into effect.

§ 5.7 Permits, Fees, Notices and Compliance with Laws

§ 5.7.1 Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder shall secure and pay for the
building permit as well as any other permits, fees, licenses, and inspections by government agencies, necessary for proper
execution of the Construction Work and Substantial Completion of the Project.

§ 5.7.2 The Design-Builder shall comply with and give notices required by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities, applicable to performance of the Construction Work.

§ 5.7.3 Concealed or Unknown Conditions. If the Design-Builder encounters conditions at the site that are (1) subsurface or
otherwise concealed physical conditions that differ materially from those indicated in the Design-Build Documents or (2)
unknown physical conditions of an unusual nature that differ materially from those ordinarily found to exist and generally
recognized as inherent in construction activities of the character provided for in the Design-Build Documents, the Design-
Builder shall promptly provide notice to the Owner before conditions are disturbed and in no event later than 14 days after
the conditions are first observed. The Owner shall promptly investigate such conditions and, if the Owner determines that
they differ materially and cause an increase or decrease in the Design-Builder’s cost of, or time required for, performance
of any part of the Work, the Contract Sum or Contract Time, or both, shall be equitably adjusted. If the Owner determines
that the conditions at the site are not materially different from those indicated in the Design-Build Documents and that no
change in the terms of the Contract is justified, the Owner shall promptly notify the Design-Builder, stating the reasons. If
the Design-Builder disputes the Owner’s determination, the Design-Builder may submit a Claim as provided in Article

15.

§ 5.7.4 If, in the course of the Construction Work, the Design-Builder encounters human remains, or recognizes the
existence of burial markers, archacological sites, or wetlands, not indicated in the Design-Build Documents, the Design-
Builder shall immediately suspend any operations that would affect them and shall notify the Owner. Upon receipt of
such notice, the Owner shall promptly take any action necessary to obtain governmental authorization required to resume
the operations. The Design-Builder shall continue to suspend such operations until otherwise instructed by the Owner but
shall continue with all other operations that do not affect those remains or features. Requests for adjustments in the
Contract Sum and Contract Time arising from the existence of such remains or features may be made as provided in
Article 15.

§ 5.8 Allowances

§ 5.8.1 The Design-Builder shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the Design-Build Documents. Items
covered by allowances shall be supplied for such amounts, and by such persons or entities as the Owner may direct, but
the Design-Builder shall not be required to employ persons or entities to whom the Design-Builder has reasonable
objection.

§ 5.8.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents,

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)

16



.1 allowances shall cover the cost to the Design-Builder of materials and equipment delivered at the site and
all required taxes, less applicable trade discounts;

.2 the Design-Builder’s costs for unloading and handling at the site, labor, installation costs, overhead, profit,
and other expenses contemplated for stated allowance items, shall be included in the Contract Sum but not
in the allowances; and

.3 whenever costs are more than or less than allowances, the Contract Sum shall be adjusted accordingly by
Change Order. The amount of the Change Order shall reflect (1) the difference between actual costs and
the allowances under Section 5.8.2.1 and (2) changes in Design-Builder’s costs under Section 5.8.2.2.

§ 5.8.3 The Owner shall make selections of materials and equipment with reasonable promptness for allowances requiring
Owner selection.

§ 5.9 Subcontracts and Other Agreements

§ 5.9.1 Those portions of the Construction Work that the Design-Builder does not customarily perform with the Design-
Builder’s own personnel shall be performed under subcontracts or other appropriate agreements with the Design-Builder.
The Owner may designate specific persons from whom, or entities from which, the Design-Builder shall obtain bids. The
Design-Builder shall obtain bids from subcontractors, and from suppliers of materials or equipment fabricated especially
for the Construction Work, who are qualified to perform that portion of the Construction Work in accordance with the
requirements of the Design-Build Documents. The Design-Builder shall deliver such bids to the Owner with an indication
as to which bids the Design-Builder intends to accept. The Owner then has the right to review the Design-Builder’s list of
proposed subcontractors and suppliers and, subject to Section 5.9.1.1, to object to any subcontractor or supplier. Any
approval or objection by the Owner shall not relieve the Design-Builder of its responsibility to perform the Construction
Work in accordance with the Design-Build Documents. The Design-Builder shall not be required to contract with anyone
to whom the Design-Builder has reasonable objection.

§ 5.9.1.1 When a specific subcontractor or supplier (1) is recommended to the Owner by the Design-Builder; (2) is
qualified to perform that portion of the Construction Work; and (3) has submitted a bid that conforms to the requirements
of the Design-Build Documents without reservations or exceptions, but the Owner requires that another bid be accepted,
then the Design-Builder may require that a Change Order be issued to adjust the Contract Sum by the difference between
the bid of the person or entity recommended to the Owner by the Design-Builder and the amount of the subcontract or
other agreement actually signed with the person or entity designated by the Owner.

§ 5.9.2 Subcontracts or other agreements shall conform to the applicable payment provisions of this Agreement and shall
not be awarded on the basis of cost plus a fee without the Owner’s prior written approval. If a subcontract is awarded on
the basis of cost plus a fee, the Design-Builder shall provide in the Subcontract for the Owner to receive the same audit
rights with regard to the Subcontractor as the Owner receives with regard to the Design-Builder in Article 9.

§ 5.10 Use of Site

The Design-Builder shall confine operations at the site to areas permitted by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
rules and regulations, lawful orders of public authorities, and the Design-Build Documents, and shall not unreasonably
encumber the site with materials or equipment.

§ 5.11 Cutting and Patching

The Design-Builder shall not cut, patch, or otherwise alter fully or partially completed construction by the Owner or a
Separate Contractor except with written consent of the Owner and Separate Contractor. Consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld. The Design-Builder shall not unreasonably withhold, from the Owner or Separate Contractor, its consent to
cutting or otherwise altering the Construction Work.

§ 5.12 Cleaning Up

§ 5.12.1 The Design-Builder shall keep the premises and surrounding area free from accumulation of waste materials and
rubbish caused by operations under the Contract. At completion of the Construction Work, the Design-Builder shall
remove waste materials, rubbish, the Design-Builder’s tools, construction equipment, machinery and surplus materials
from and about the Project.

§ 5.12.2 If the Design-Builder fails to clean up as provided in the Design-Build Documents, the Owner may do so and the
Owner shall be entitled to reimbursement from the Design-Builder.

§ 5.13 Access to Construction Work
The Design-Builder shall provide the Owner and its Separate Contractors and consultants with access to the Construction

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”

“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on 17
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in

accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)



Work in preparation and progress wherever located. The Design-Builder shall notify the Owner regarding Project safety
criteria and programs, which the Owner, and its Separate Contractors and consultants, shall comply with while at the site.

§ 5.14 Construction Work by Owner or by Separate Contractors

§ 5.14.1 Owner’s Right to Perform Construction and to Award Separate Contracts

§ 5.14.1.1 The term “Separate Contractor(s)”” shall mean contractors retained by the Owner under separate agreements.
The Owner reserves the right to perform construction or operations related to the Project with the Owner’s own forces,
and with Separate Contractors retained under provisions substantially similar to those of this Agreement. The Owner will
identify in the Design-Build Amendment the extent of construction or operations related to the Project that will be
performed by Separate Contractors, and will notify the Design-Builder promptly after execution of any agreement with a
Separate Contractor.

§ 5.14.1.2 The Owner shall coordinate the activities of the Owner’s own forces, and of each Separate Contractor, with the
Construction Work of the Design-Builder, who shall cooperate with them. The Design-Builder shall participate in a joint
review of the construction schedules of the Owner and any Separate Contractors and after mutual agreement the Design-
Builder shall revise its construction schedule. The construction schedules shall then constitute the schedules to be used by
the Design-Builder, Separate Contractors, and the Owner until subsequently revised.

§ 5.14.1.3 Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, when the Owner performs construction or
operations related to the Project with the Owner’s own forces or with Separate Contractors, the Owner or its Separate
Contractors shall have the same obligations and rights that the Design-Builder has under the Contract.

§ 5.15 Owner’s Right to Clean Up

If a dispute arises among the Design-Builder, Separate Contractors, and the Owner as to the responsibility under their
respective contracts for maintaining the premises and surrounding area free from waste materials and rubbish, the Owner
may clean up and will allocate the cost among those responsible.

§ 5.16 Mutual Responsibility

§ 5.16.1 The Design-Builder shall afford the Owner and Separate Contractors reasonable opportunity for introduction and
storage of their materials and equipment and performance of their activities, and shall connect and coordinate the Design-
Builder’s construction and operations with theirs as required by the Design-Build Documents.

§ 5.16.2 If part of the Design-Builder’s Construction Work depends for proper execution or results upon construction or
operations by the Owner or a Separate Contractor, the Design-Builder shall, prior to proceeding with that portion of the
Construction Work, promptly notify the Owner of apparent discrepancies or defects in the construction or operations by
the Owner or Separate Contractor that would render it unsuitable for proper execution and results of the Design-Builder’s
Construction Work. Failure of the Design-Builder to notify the Owner of apparent discrepancies or defects prior to
proceeding with the Construction Work shall constitute an acknowledgment that the Owner’s or Separate Contractor’s
completed or partially completed construction or operations is fit and proper to receive the Design-Builder’s Construction
Work. The Design-Builder shall not be responsible for discrepancies or defects in the construction or operations by the
Owner or Separate Contractor that are not apparent.

§ 5.16.3 The Design-Builder shall reimburse the Owner for costs the Owner incurs that are payable to a Separate
Contractor because of the Design-Builder’s delays, improperly timed activities, or defective Construction Work. The
Owner shall be responsible to the Design-Builder for costs the Design-Builder incurs because of a Separate Contractor’s
delays, improperly timed activities, damage to the Construction Work or defective Construction Work.

§ 5.16.4 The Design-Builder shall promptly remedy damage that the Design-Builder causes to completed or partially
completed Construction Work or to property of the Owner or Separate Contractors as provided in Section 10.2.5.

§ 5.16.5 The Owner and each Separate Contractor shall have the same responsibilities for cutting and patching the

Construction Work as the Design-Builder has with respect to the Construction Work of the Owner or Separate
Contractors in Section 5.11.

§ 5.16.5.1 The Owner shall be responsible for failures by its Separate Contractors to comply with the obligations in this
Agreement.

ARTICLE 6 CHANGES IN THE WORK

§ 6.1 General
AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on 18

11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)



§ 6.1.1 Changes in the Work may be accomplished after execution of the Contract, and without invalidating the Contract,
by Change Order or Change Directive, subject to the limitations stated in this Article 6 and elsewhere in the Design-Build
Documents.

§ 6.1.2 A Change Order shall be based upon agreement between the Owner and Design-Builder. The Owner may issue a
Change Directive without agreement by the Design-Builder.

§ 6.1.3 Changes in the Work shall be performed under applicable provisions of the Design-Build Documents. The Design-

Builder shall proceed promptly with changes in the Work, unless otherwise provided in the Change Order or Change
Directive.

§ 6.2 Change Orders
A Change Order is a written instrument signed by the Owner and Design-Builder stating their agreement upon all of the
following:
A The change in the Work;
.2 The amount of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build
Amendment, the adjustment in the Design-Builder’s compensation; and
.3 The extent of the adjustment, if any, in the Contract Time.

§ 6.3 Change Directives

§ 6.3.1 A Change Directive is a written order signed by the Owner directing a change in the Work prior to agreement on
adjustment, if any, in the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the adjustment in the
Design-Builder’s compensation, Contract Time, or both. The Owner may by Change Directive, without invalidating the
Contract, order changes in the Work within the general scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions, or other
revisions. The Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the Design-Builder’s
compensation, or Contract Time, or both, shall be adjusted accordingly.

§ 6.3.2 A Change Directive shall be used in the absence of total agreement on the terms of a Change Order.

§ 6.3.3 If the Change Directive provides for an adjustment to the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-
Build Amendment, an adjustment in the Design-Builder’s compensation, the adjustment shall be based on one of the
following methods:

.1 Mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to
permit evaluation;

.2 Unit prices stated in the Design-Build Documents or subsequently agreed upon;

.3 Cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by the parties and a mutually acceptable fixed or percentage
fee. The Design-Builder shall keep and present, in such form as the Owner may prescribe, an itemized
accounting together with appropriate supporting data; or

4 Asprovided in Section 6.3.4.

§ 6.3.4 If the Design-Builder does not respond promptly or disagrees with the method for adjustment in the Contract Sum
or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the method for adjustment in the Design-Builder’s
compensation, the Owner shall determine the adjustment on the basis of reasonable expenditures and savings of those
performing the Work attributable to the change, including, in case of an increase, an amount for overhead and profit as set
forth in this Agreement, or if no such amount is set forth in this Agreement, a reasonable amount. In such case, the
Design-Builder shall keep and present, in such form as the Owner may prescribe, an itemized accounting together with
appropriate supporting data. Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, costs for the purposes of this
Section 6.3.4 shall be limited to the following:
1 Additional costs of professional services;
.2 Costs of labor, applicable payroll taxes, fringe benefits required by agreement or custom, workers’
compensation insurance, and other employee costs approved by the Owner;
.3 Costs of materials, supplies, and equipment, including cost of transportation, whether incorporated or
consumed,;
4 Rental costs of machinery and equipment, exclusive of hand tools, whether rented from the Design-Builder
or others;
.5 Costs of premiums for all bonds and insurance, permit fees, and sales, use, or similar taxes, directly related
to the change; and
.6 Costs of supervision and field office personnel directly attributable to the change.

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)

19



§ 6.3.5 Upon receipt of a Change Directive, the Design-Builder shall promptly proceed with the change in the Work
involved and advise the Owner of the Design-Builder’s agreement or disagreement with the method, if any, provided in
the Change Directive for determining the proposed adjustment in the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-
Build Amendment, the adjustment in the Design-Builder’s compensation, or Contract Time.

§ 6.3.6 A Change Directive signed by the Design-Builder prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment indicates the
Design-Builder’s agreement therewith, including adjustment in compensation and schedule, or the method for
determining them. A Change Directive signed by the Design-Builder after the execution of the Design-Build Amendment
indicates the Design-Builder’s agreement therewith, including adjustment in Contract Sum and Contract Time, or the
method for determining them. Any such agreement shall be effective immediately and shall be recorded as a Change
Order.

§ 6.3.7 If the Design-Builder disagrees with the adjustment in Contract Time, the Design-Builder may make a Claim in
accordance with the applicable provisions of Article 15.

§ 6.3.8 The amount of credit to be allowed by the Design-Builder to the Owner for a deletion or change that results in a net
decrease in the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, in the Design-Builder’s
compensation, shall be actual net cost. When both additions and credits covering related Work or substitutions are
involved in a change, the allowance for overhead and profit shall be figured on the basis of net increase, if any, with
respect to that change.

§ 6.3.9 Pending final determination of the total cost of a Change Directive to the Owner, the Design-Builder may request
payment for Work completed under the Change Directive in Applications for Payment. The Owner will make an interim
determination for purposes of certification for payment for those costs deemed to be reasonably justified. The Owner’s
interim determination of cost shall adjust the Contract Sum or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the
Design-Builder’s compensation, on the same basis as a Change Order, subject to the right of Design-Builder to disagree
and assert a Claim in accordance with Article 15.

§ 6.3.10 When the Owner and Design-Builder agree with a determination concerning the adjustments in the Contract Sum
or, if prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the adjustment in the Design-Builder’s compensation and
Contract Time, or otherwise reach agreement upon the adjustments, such agreement shall be effective immediately and
the Owner and Design-Builder shall execute a Change Order. Change Orders may be issued for all or any part of a
Change Directive.

ARTICLE 7 OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

§ 7.1 General

§ 7.1.1 The Owner shall designate in writing a representative who shall have express authority to bind the Owner with
respect to all matters requiring the Owner’s approval or authorization.

§ 7.1.2 The Owner shall render decisions in a timely manner and in accordance with the Design-Builder’s schedule. The
Owner shall furnish to the Design-Builder, within 15 days after receipt of a written request, information necessary and
relevant for the Design-Builder to evaluate, give notice of, or enforce mechanic’s lien rights. Such information shall
include a correct statement of the record legal title to the property on which the Project is located, usually referred to as
the site, and the Owner’s interest therein.

§ 7.1.3 The Owner shall furnish and coordinate the services of the Owner’s consultants and Separate Contractors with
those services provided by the Design-Builder. Upon the Design-Builder’s request, the Owner shall furnish copies of the
scope of services in the contracts between the Owner and the Owner’s consultants or Separate Contractors. The Owner
shall require that its consultants and contractors maintain insurance, including professional liability insurance, as
appropriate to the services or work provided.

§ 7.1.4 The Owner shall furnish the services of consultants required by a material change in the Owner’s Criteria or
authorize the Design-Builder to furnish them pursuant to a Change Order or Change Directive.

§ 7.1.5 If the Owner identifies a Sustainable Objective, the Owner shall fulfill its responsibilities as required in AIA
Document A141-2024 Exhibit C, attached to this Agreement.

§ 7.1.6 Except as otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents or when direct communications have been specially
authorized, the Owner shall communicate through the Design-Builder with persons or entities employed or retained by the

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)

20



Design-Builder, including the Architect and Subcontractors.

§ 7.1.7 The Owner shall purchase and maintain insurance as set forth in Article 11 and AIA Document A141-2024 Exhibit
A.

§ 7.1.8 Visits to the site by the Owner shall not be construed to create an obligation on the part of the Owner to make on-
site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. The Owner shall not have control over, charge of, or
responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures, or for the safety precautions and
programs in connection with the Work.

§ 7.1.9 The Owner shall not be responsible for the Design-Builder’s failure to perform the Work in accordance with the
requirements of the Design-Build Documents. The Owner shall not have control over or charge of, and will not be
responsible for, acts or omissions of the Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, Subcontractors, or their agents or
employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work.

§ 7.1.10 The Owner may reject Work that does not conform to the Design-Build Documents. The Owner may require
inspection or testing of the Construction Work in accordance with Section 16.5.2, whether or not the Construction Work
is fabricated, installed, or completed. However, neither this authority of the Owner nor a decision made in good faith
either to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Owner to the Design-
Builder.

§ 7.1.11 The Owner shall determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion in accordance with Section 9.8 and the
date of final completion in accordance with Section 9.10.

§ 7.1.12 The Owner acknowledges that accelerated or fast-track design and construction, or phased construction, provides
a benefit, but also carries with it associated risks. Such risks include the Owner incurring costs for the Design-Builder to
coordinate and redesign portions of the Project affected by procuring or installing elements of the Project prior to the
completion of all relevant Design-Build Documents, and costs for the Design-Builder to remove and replace previously
installed Construction Work. If the Owner approves accelerated or fast-track design and construction, or phased
construction, the Owner agrees to include in the budget for the Work sufficient contingencies to cover such costs.

§ 7.2 Information and Services Required of the Owner
§ 7.2.1 The Owner shall furnish information or services required of the Owner by the Design-Build Documents with
reasonable promptness.

§ 7.2.2 The Owner shall provide, to the extent under the Owner’s control and if not required by the Design-Build
Documents to be provided by the Design-Builder, the results and reports of prior tests, inspections, or investigations
conducted for the Project involving structural or mechanical systems; chemical, air and water pollution; hazardous
materials; or environmental and subsurface conditions and information regarding the presence of pollutants at the Project
site.

§ 7.2.3 The Owner shall promptly obtain easements, zoning variances, and legal authorizations or entitlements regarding
site utilization where essential to the execution of the Project.

§ 7.2.4 The Owner shall cooperate with the Design-Builder in securing building and other permits, licenses, and
inspections.

§ 7.2.5 The services, information, surveys, and reports required to be provided by the Owner under this Agreement, shall
be furnished at the Owner’s expense. Except as otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement or elsewhere in the
Design-Build Documents or to the extent the Owner advises the Design-Builder to the contrary in writing, the Design-
Builder shall be entitled to rely on, and shall not be responsible for, the accuracy, completeness, and timeliness of,
services, information, surveys, and reports furnished by the Owner.

§ 7.2.6 If the Owner observes or otherwise becomes aware of a fault or defect in the Work or non-conformity with the
Design-Build Documents, the Owner shall give prompt notice thereof to the Design-Builder.

§ 7.2.7 Evidence of the Owner’s Financial Arrangements
§ 7.2.7.1 Prior to execution of the Design-Build Amendment, the Design-Builder may request that the Owner furnish
reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill the Owner’s obligations under the

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)

21



Contract.

§ 7.2.7.2 Following the execution of the Design-Build Amendment and upon written request by the Design-Builder, the
Owner shall furnish to the Design-Builder reasonable evidence that the Owner has made financial arrangements to fulfill
the Owner’s obligations under the Contract only if (1) the Owner fails to make payments to the Design-Builder as the
Design-Build Documents require; (2) the Design-Builder identifies in writing a reasonable concern regarding the Owner’s
ability to make payment when due; or (3) a change in the Work materially changes the Contract Sum. If the Owner fails
to provide such evidence, as required, within fourteen days of the Design-Builder’s request, the Design-Builder may
immediately stop the Work and, in that event, shall notify the Owner that the Work has stopped. However, if the request
is made because a change in the Work materially changes the Contract Sum under (3) above, the Design-Builder may
immediately stop only that portion of the Work affected by the change until reasonable evidence is provided. If the Work
is stopped under this Section 7.2.7, the Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be
increased by the amount of the Design-Builder’s reasonable costs of shutdown, delay and start-up, plus interest as
provided in the Design-Build Documents.

§ 7.2.7.3 After the Owner furnishes evidence of financial arrangements under this Section 7.2.7, the Owner shall not
materially vary such financial arrangements without prior notice to the Design-Builder.

§ 7.2.7.4 Where the Owner has designated information furnished under this Section 7.2.7 as “confidential,” the Design-
Builder shall keep the information confidential as set forth in Article 16.

§ 7.2.8 Unless required by the Design-Build Documents to be provided by the Design-Builder, the Owner shall furnish the
services of geotechnical engineers or other consultants when such services are reasonably necessary to properly carry out
the Design Services furnished by the Design-Builder. Such services may include, but are not limited to, test borings, test
pits, determinations of soil bearing values, percolation tests, evaluations of hazardous materials, ground corrosion and
resistivity tests, and necessary operations for anticipating subsoil conditions. The services of geotechnical engineer(s) or
other consultants shall include preparation and submission of all appropriate reports and professional recommendations.

§ 7.2.9 The Owner shall furnish surveys to describe physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for the
site of the Project, and a written legal description of the site. The surveys and legal information shall include, as
applicable, grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, and adjoining property and structures; designated wetlands;
adjacent drainage; rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning or deed restrictions, and boundaries and
contours of the site; locations, dimensions, and other necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other
improvements and trees; and information concerning available utility services and lines, both public and private, above
and below grade, including inverts and depths. All the information on the survey shall be referenced to a Project
benchmark.

§ 7.2.10 Unless required by the Design-Build Documents to be provided by the Design-Builder, the Owner shall, upon
request from the Design-Builder, furnish the services of other consultants when such services are reasonably necessary to
properly carry out the Design Services furnished by the Design-Builder. In such event, the Design-Builder shall identify
the services required.

§ 7.2.11 The Owner shall furnish all legal, insurance, and accounting services, including auditing services, that may be
reasonably necessary at any time for the Project to meet the Owner’s needs and interests.

§ 7.3 Owner’s Right to Stop Construction Work

If the Design-Builder fails to correct Construction Work which is not in accordance with the requirements of the Design-
Build Documents as required by Section 12.2 or persistently fails to carry out Construction Work in accordance with the
Design-Build Documents, the Owner may issue a written order to the Design-Builder to stop the Construction Work, or
any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been eliminated; however, the right of the Owner to stop the
Construction Work shall not give rise to a duty on the part of the Owner to exercise this right for the benefit of the
Design-Builder or any other person or entity, except to the extent required by Section 5.14.1.2.

§ 7.4 Owner’s Right to Carry Out the Construction Work

If the Design-Builder defaults or neglects to carry out the Construction Work in accordance with the Design-Build
Documents and fails within a ten-day period after receipt of notice from the Owner to commence and continue correction
of such default or neglect with diligence and promptness, the Owner may, without prejudice to other remedies the Owner
may have, correct such default or neglect. The Owner may, pursuant to Section 9.5.1, withhold or nullify a Certificate for
Payment in whole or in part, to the extent reasonably necessary to reimburse the Owner for the reasonable cost of

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)

22



correcting such deficiencies. If current and future payments are not sufficient to cover such amounts, the Design-Builder
shall pay the difference to the Owner. If the Design-Builder disagrees with the actions of the Owner, or the amounts
claimed as costs to the Owner, the Design-Builder may file a claim pursuant to Article 15.

ARTICLE 8 TIME

§ 8.1 Progress and Completion

§ 8.1.1 Time limits stated in the Design-Build Documents are of the essence of the Contract. By executing the Design-
Build Amendment, the Design-Builder confirms that the Contract Time is a reasonable period for performing the Work.

§ 8.1.2 The Design-Builder shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve Substantial Completion
within the Contract Time.

§ 8.2 Delays and Extensions of Time

§ 8.2.1 If the Design-Builder is delayed at any time in the commencement or progress of the Work by (1) an act or neglect
of the Owner or consultant, or of a Separate Contractor; (2) changes ordered in the Work; (3) labor disputes, fire, unusual
delay in deliveries, unavoidable casualties, adverse weather conditions documented in accordance with Section 15.1.6.2,
unusual delays by public authorities related to permits, licenses, and inspections, or other causes beyond the Design-
Builder’s control; (4) delay authorized by the Owner pending mediation and binding dispute resolution; or (5) other
causes that the Owner determines justify delay, then the Contract Time shall be extended for such reasonable time as the
Owner may determine.

§ 8.2.2 Claims relating to time shall be made in accordance with applicable provisions of Article 15.

§ 8.2.3 This Section 8.2 does not preclude recovery of damages for delay by either party under other provisions of the
Design-Build Documents.

ARTICLE 9 PAYMENT APPLICATIONS AND PROJECT COMPLETION
§ 9.1 Contract Sum
The Contract Sum is stated in the Design-Build Amendment.

§ 9.1.1 If unit prices are stated in the Design-Build Amendment or subsequently agreed upon, and if quantities set forth in
the Design-Build Amendment are materially changed in a proposed Change Order or Change Directive, the applicable
unit prices shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 9.2 Schedule of Values or Control Estimate

Where the Contract Sum is based on a stipulated sum or Guaranteed Maximum Price, the Design-Builder shall submit a
schedule of values to the Owner prior to the first Application for Payment after execution of the Design-Build
Amendment, allocating the entire Contract Sum to the various portions of the Work. The schedule of values shall be
prepared in the form, and supported by the data to substantiate its accuracy, required by the Owner. This schedule, unless
objected to by the Owner, shall be used as a basis for reviewing the Design-Builder’s Applications for Payment. Any
changes to the schedule of values shall be submitted to the Owner and supported by such data to substantiate its accuracy
as the Owner may require, and unless objected to by the Owner, shall be used as a basis for reviewing the Design-
Builder’s subsequent Applications for Payment.

§ 9.2.1 Where the Contract Sum is the Cost of the Work plus the Design-Builder’s Fee without a Guaranteed Maximum
Price, the Design-Builder shall prepare and submit to the Owner a Control Estimate within 14 days of executing this
Agreement. The Control Estimate shall include the estimated Cost of the Work plus the Design-Builder’s Fee.

§9.2.2 The Control Estimate shall include:

A1 The documents enumerated in Article 17, including all Modifications thereto;

.2 A list of the assumptions made by the Design-Builder in the preparation of the Control Estimate to
supplement the information provided by the Owner and contained in the Design-Build Documents;

.3 A statement of the estimated Cost of the Work organized by trade categories or systems and the Design-
Builder’s Fee;

4 A project schedule upon which the Control Estimate is based, indicating proposed architects,
subcontractors, and consultants, activity sequences and durations, milestone dates for receipt and approval
of pertinent information, schedule of shop drawings and samples, procurement and delivery of materials or
equipment, the Owner’s occupancy requirements, and the date of Substantial Completion; and

.5 A list of any contingency amounts included in the Control Estimate for further development of design and

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”

“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on 23
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in

accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)



construction.

§ 9.2.3 When the Control Estimate is acceptable to the Owner, the Owner shall acknowledge it in writing. The Owner’s
acceptance of the Control Estimate does not imply that the Control Estimate constitutes a Guaranteed Maximum Price.

§ 9.2.4 The Design-Builder shall develop and implement a detailed system of cost control that will provide the Owner with
timely information as to the anticipated total Cost of the Work. The cost control system shall compare the Control
Estimate with the actual cost for activities in progress and estimates for uncompleted tasks and proposed changes. This
information shall be reported to the Owner, in writing, no later than the Design-Builder’s first Application for Payment
and shall be revised and submitted with each Application for Payment.

§9.2.5 The Owner shall authorize the Design-Builder to prepare revisions to the Design-Build Documents that incorporate
the agreed-upon assumptions contained in the Control Estimate. Based upon the Owner’s authorization, the Design-
Builder shall revise the Design-Build Documents to incorporate the agreed-upon assumptions contained in the Control
Estimate.

§ 9.3 Applications for Payment

§ 9.3.1 At least ten days before the date established for each progress payment, the Design-Builder shall submit to the
Owner an itemized Application for Payment for completed portions of the Work. The Application for Payment shall be
notarized, if required, and supported by all data substantiating the Design-Builder’s right to payment that the Owner
requires, such as copies of requisitions, and releases and waiver of liens from the Architect, Consultants, Subcontractors,
and suppliers, and shall reflect retainage if provided for in the Design-Build Documents.

§9.3.1.1 As provided in Section 6.3.9, Applications for Payment may include requests for payment on account of changes
in the Work that have been properly authorized by Change Directives, or by interim determinations of the Owner, but not
yet included in Change Orders. As provided in Section 2.1, compensation for Work prior to execution of the Design-Build
Amendment may include payment on account of changes in the Work that have been properly authorized by Change
Directives, or by interim determinations of the Owner, but not yet included in Change Orders.

§9.3.1.2 Applications for Payment shall not include requests for payment for portions of the Work for which the Design-
Builder does not intend to pay the Architect, a Consultant, a Subcontractor, or a supplier, unless such Work has been
performed by others whom the Design-Builder intends to pay.

§ 9.3.2 Unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build Documents, payments shall be made for services provided as well
as materials and equipment delivered and suitably stored at the site for subsequent incorporation in the Work. If approved
in advance by the Owner, payment may similarly be made for materials and equipment suitably stored off the site at a
location agreed upon in writing. Payment for materials and equipment stored on or off the site shall be conditioned upon
compliance by the Design-Builder with procedures satisfactory to the Owner to establish the Owner’s title to such
materials and equipment or otherwise protect the Owner’s interest, and shall include the costs of applicable insurance,
storage, and transportation to the site, for such materials and equipment stored off the site.

§ 9.3.3 The Design-Builder warrants that title to all Work, other than Instruments of Service, covered by an Application
for Payment will pass to the Owner no later than the time of payment. The Design-Builder further warrants that, upon
submittal of an Application for Payment, all Work for which Certificates for Payment have been previously issued and
payments received from the Owner shall, to the best of the Design-Builder’s knowledge, information, and belief, be free
and clear of liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances, in favor of the Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants,
Subcontractors, suppliers, or any other persons or entities that provided labor, materials, and equipment relating to the
Work.

§ 9.4 Certificates for Payment

The Owner shall, within seven days after receipt of the Design-Builder’s Application for Payment, either (1) issue to the
Design-Builder a Certificate for Payment in the full amount of the Application for Payment; (2) issue to the Design-
Builder a Certificate for Payment for such amount the Owner determines is properly due, and notify the Design-Builder of
the Owner’s reasons for withholding certification in part as provided in Section 9.5.1; or (3) withhold certification of the
entire Application for Payment, and notify the Design-Builder of the Owner’s reason for withholding certification in
whole as provided in Section 9.5.1.

§ 9.5 Decisions to Withhold Certification
§ 9.5.1 The Owner may withhold a Certificate for Payment in whole or in part to the extent reasonably necessary to protect

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)

24



the Owner due to the Owner’s determination that the Work has not progressed to the point indicated in the Design-
Builder’s Application for Payment, or the quality of the Work is not in accordance with the Design-Build Documents. If
the Owner is unable to certify payment in the amount of the Application for Payment, the Owner will notify the Design-
Builder as provided in Section 9.4. If the Design-Builder and Owner cannot agree on a revised amount, the Owner will
promptly issue a Certificate for Payment for the amount that the Owner deems to be due and owing. The Owner may also
withhold a Certificate for Payment or, because of subsequently discovered evidence, may nullify the whole or a part of a
Certificate for Payment previously issued to such extent as may be necessary to protect the Owner from loss for which the
Design-Builder is responsible because of
A Failure to perform Work in accordance with the Design-Build Documents;
.2 Third-party claims filed or reasonable evidence indicating probable filing of such claims, unless security
acceptable to the Owner is provided by the Design-Builder;
.3 Failure of the Design-Builder to make payments properly to the Architect, Consultants, Subcontractors,
suppliers, or others, for services, labor, materials, or equipment;
4  Reasonable evidence that the Work cannot be completed for the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum;
Damage to the Owner or a Separate Contractor; or
.6 Reasonable evidence that the Work will not be completed within the Contract Time, and that the unpaid
balance would not be adequate to cover actual or liquidated damages for the anticipated delay.

2

§9.5.2 If the Design-Builder disputes the Owner’s decision regarding a Certificate for Payment under Section 9.5.1, in
whole or in part, the Design-Builder may submit a Claim in accordance with Article 15.

§ 9.5.3 When the above reasons for withholding certification are removed, the Owner shall certify amounts previously
withheld.

§ 9.5.4 If the Owner withholds certification for payment under Section 9.5.1.3, the Owner may, at its sole option, issue
joint checks to the Design-Builder and to any other persons or entities providing Work for the Design-Builder to whom
the Design-Builder failed to make payment for Work properly performed or material or equipment suitably delivered.

§ 9.6 Progress Payments
§9.6.1 After the Owner has issued a Certificate for Payment, the Owner shall make payment in the manner and within the
time provided in the Design-Build Documents.

§ 9.6.2 In taking action on the Design-Builder’s Applications for Payment, the Owner shall be entitled to rely on the
accuracy and completeness of the information furnished by the Design-Builder, and such action shall not be deemed to be
a representation that (1) the Owner has made a detailed examination, audit, or arithmetic verification, of the
documentation submitted in accordance with Section 9.3.1 or other supporting data; (2) that the Owner has made
exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections; or (3) that the Owner has made examinations to ascertain how or for what
purposes the Design-Builder has used amounts previously paid on account of the Contract. Such examinations, audits, and
verifications, if required by the Owner, will be performed by the Owner’s auditors acting in the sole interest of the Owner.

§ 9.6.3 The Design-Builder shall pay each person or entity providing Work for the Design-Builder, no later than seven
days after receipt of payment from the Owner. Payment shall be the amount to which the person or entity providing Work
for the Design-Builder is entitled, reflecting percentages actually retained from payments to the Design-Builder on
account of the portion of the Work performed by the person or entity. The Design-Builder shall, by appropriate agreement
with each person or entity providing Work for the Design-Builder, require each person or entity providing Work for the
Design-Builder to make payments to subconsultants and subcontractors in a similar manner.

§ 9.6.4 The Owner will, on request and if practicable, furnish to the person or entity providing Work for the Design-
Builder, information regarding percentages of completion or amounts applied for by the Design-Builder and action taken
thereon by the Owner on account of portions of the Work done by such person or entity providing Work for the Design-
Builder.

§ 9.6.5 The Owner has the right to request written evidence from the Design-Builder that the Design-Builder has properly
paid any other persons or entities providing Work for the Design-Builder, amounts paid by the Owner to the Design-
Builder for the Work. If the Design-Builder fails to furnish such evidence within seven days, the Owner shall have the
right to contact the other person or entity providing Work for the Design-Builder to ascertain whether they have been
properly paid. The Owner shall have no obligation to pay, or to see to the payment of money to any other person or entity
providing services or Work for the Design-Builder, except as may otherwise be required by law.

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)

25



§ 9.6.6 The Design-Builder’s payments to suppliers shall be treated in a manner similar to that provided in Sections 9.6.3,
9.6.4 and 9.6.5.

§ 9.6.6.1 Except with the Owner’s prior written approval, the Design-Builder shall not make advance payments to
suppliers for materials or equipment.

§ 9.6.7 A Certificate for Payment, a progress payment, or partial or entire use or occupancy of the Project by the Owner
shall not constitute acceptance of Work not in accordance with the Design-Build Documents.

§ 9.6.8 Unless the Design-Builder provides the Owner with a payment bond in the full penal sum of the Contract Sum,
payments received by the Design-Builder for Work properly performed by the Architect, Consultants, Subcontractors, and
other persons or entities providing Work for the Design-Builder, shall be held by the Design-Builder for the Architect and
those Consultants, Subcontractors, or other persons or entities. Nothing contained herein shall require money to be placed
in a separate account and not commingled with money of the Design-Builder, create any fiduciary liability or tort liability
on the part of the Design-Builder for breach of trust, or entitle any person or entity to an award of punitive damages
against the Design-Builder for breach of the requirements of this provision.

§ 9.6.9 Provided the Owner has fulfilled its payment obligations under the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder
shall defend and indemnify the Owner from all loss, liability, damage or expense, including reasonable attorney’s fees and
litigation expenses, arising out of any lien claim or other claim for payment by any Architect, Consultant, Subcontractor,
or any other person or entity providing Work for the Design-Builder. Upon receipt of notice of a lien claim or other claim
for payment, the Owner shall notify the Design-Builder. If approved by the applicable court, when required, the Design-
Builder may substitute a surety bond for the property against which the lien or other claim for payment has been asserted.

§9.6.10 The Owner and Design-Builder shall agree upon (1) a mutually acceptable procedure for review and approval of
payments to the Architect, Consultants, and Subcontractors, and (2) the percentage of retainage held on agreements with
the Architect, Consultants, and Subcontractors, and the Design-Builder shall execute subcontracts in accordance with
those agreements.

§ 9.7 Failure of Payment

If, through no fault of the Design-Builder, the Owner fails to issue a Certificate for Payment or make payment of the
certified amount within the time required by the Design-Build Documents, then the Design-Builder may, upon seven
additional days’ notice to the Owner, stop the Work until payment of the amount owing has been received. The Contract
Time shall be extended appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount of the Design-Builder’s
reasonable costs of shutdown, delay, and start-up, plus interest as provided for in the Design-Build Documents.

§ 9.8 Substantial Completion

§ 9.8.1 Substantial Completion is the stage in the progress of the Construction Work when the Construction Work or
designated portion thereof is sufficiently complete in accordance with the Design-Build Documents so that the Owner can
occupy or utilize the Construction Work for its intended use. The date of Substantial Completion is the date certified by
the Owner in accordance with this Section 9.8.

§ 9.8.2 When the Design-Builder considers that the Construction Work, or a portion thereof which the Owner agrees to
accept separately, is substantially complete, the Design-Builder shall prepare and submit to the Owner a comprehensive
list of items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment. Failure to include an item on such list does not alter the
responsibility of the Design-Builder to complete all Work in accordance with the Design-Build Documents.

§ 9.8.3 Upon receipt of the Design-Builder’s list, the Owner shall make an inspection to determine whether the
Construction Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete. If the Owner’s inspection discloses any item,
whether or not included on the Design-Builder’s list, which is not sufficiently complete in accordance with the Design-
Build Documents so that the Owner can occupy or utilize the Construction Work or designated portion thereof for its
intended use, the Design-Builder shall, before issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion, complete or correct
such item upon notification by the Owner. In such case, the Design-Builder shall then submit a request for another
inspection by the Owner to determine Substantial Completion.

§ 9.8.4 Prior to issuance of the Certificate of Substantial Completion under Section 9.8.5, the Owner and Design-Builder
shall discuss and then determine the parties’ obligations to obtain and maintain property insurance following issuance of
the Certificate of Substantial Completion.

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”

“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on 26
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in

accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)



§ 9.8.5 When the Construction Work or designated portion thereof is substantially complete, the Design-Builder will
prepare for the Owner’s signature a Certificate of Substantial Completion that shall, upon the Owner’s signature, establish
the date of Substantial Completion; establish responsibilities of the Owner and Design-Builder for security, maintenance,
heat, utilities, damage to the Construction Work, and insurance; and fix the time within which the Design-Builder shall
finish all items on the list accompanying the Certificate. Warranties required by the Design-Build Documents shall
commence on the date of Substantial Completion of the Construction Work or designated portion thereof unless otherwise
provided in the Certificate of Substantial Completion.

§ 9.8.6 The Certificate of Substantial Completion shall be submitted by the Design-Builder to the Owner for written
acceptance of responsibilities assigned to it in the Certificate. Upon the Owner’s acceptance, and consent of surety if any,
the Owner shall make payment of retainage applying to the Work or designated portion thereof. Payment shall be adjusted
for Construction Work that is incomplete or not in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents.

§ 9.9 Partial Occupancy or Use

§ 9.9.1 The Owner may occupy or use any completed or partially completed portion of the Construction Work at any stage
when such portion is designated by separate agreement with the Design-Builder, provided such occupancy or use is
consented to, by endorsement or otherwise, by the insurer providing property insurance and authorized by authorities
having jurisdiction over the Project. Such partial occupancy or use may commence whether or not the portion is
substantially complete, provided the Owner and Design-Builder have accepted in writing the responsibilities assigned to
each of them for payments, retainage, if any, security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Construction Work, and
insurance, and have agreed in writing concerning the period for correction of the Work and commencement of warranties
required by the Design-Build Documents. When the Design-Builder considers a portion substantially complete, the
Design-Builder shall prepare and submit a list to the Owner as provided under Section 9.8.2. Consent of the Design-
Builder to partial occupancy or use shall not be unreasonably withheld. The stage of the progress of the Construction
Work shall be determined by written agreement between the Owner and Design-Builder.

§ 9.9.2 Immediately prior to such partial occupancy or use, the Owner and Design-Builder shall jointly inspect the area to
be occupied, or portion of the Construction Work to be used, in order to determine and record the condition of the
Construction Work.

§ 9.9.3 Unless otherwise agreed upon, partial occupancy or use of a portion or portions of the Construction Work shall not
constitute acceptance of Construction Work not complying with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents.

§ 9.10 Final Completion and Final Payment

§ 9.10.1 Upon receipt of the Design-Builder’s notice that the Construction Work is ready for final inspection and
acceptance, and upon receipt of a final Application for Payment, the Owner will promptly make such inspection. When
the Owner finds the Construction Work acceptable under the Design-Build Documents and the Contract fully performed,
the Owner will, subject to Section 9.10.2 and 9.10.3, promptly issue a final Certificate for Payment.

§ 9.10.2 Neither final payment nor any remaining retained percentage shall become due until the Design-Builder submits
to the Owner (1) an affidavit that payrolls, bills for materials and equipment, and other indebtedness connected with the
Construction Work, for which the Owner or the Owner’s property might be responsible or encumbered, (less amounts
withheld by Owner) have been paid or otherwise satisfied, (2) a certificate evidencing that insurance required by the
Design-Build Documents to remain in force after final payment is currently in effect, (3) a written statement that the
Design-Builder knows of no reason that the insurance will not be renewable to cover the period required by the Design-
Build Documents, (4) consent of surety, if any, to final payment, (5) an as-constructed record copy of the Construction
Documents marked to indicate field changes and selections made during construction, (6) documentation of any special
warranties, such as manufacturer’s warranties, product data, and maintenance and operations manuals, and (7) if required
by the Owner, other data establishing payment or satisfaction of obligations, such as receipts, and releases and waivers of
liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances, arising out of the Contract, to the extent and in such form as may be
designated by the Owner. If an Architect, Consultant, Subcontractor, or any other person or entity providing services,
labor, materials, or equipment relating to the Construction Work, refuses to furnish a release or waiver required by the
Owner, the Design-Builder may furnish a bond satisfactory to the Owner to indemnify the Owner against such liens,
claims, security interests, or encumbrances. If a lien, claim, security interest, or encumbrance remains unsatisfied after
payments are made, the Design-Builder shall refund to the Owner all money that the Owner may be compelled to pay in
discharging such liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances, including all costs and reasonable attorneys’ fees.

§ 9.10.3 If, after Substantial Completion of the Construction Work, final completion thereof is materially delayed through
no fault of the Design-Builder or by issuance of Change Orders affecting final completion, the Owner shall, upon

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)

27



application by the Design-Builder, and without terminating the Contract, make payment of the balance due for that
portion of the Construction Work fully completed, corrected, and accepted. If the estimated cost to complete or correct the
Construction Work is less than retainage stipulated in the Design-Build Documents, and if bonds have been furnished, the
written consent of the surety to payment of the balance due for that portion of the Construction Work fully completed and
accepted shall be submitted by the Design-Builder to the Owner prior to issuance of payment. Such payment shall be
made under terms and conditions governing final payment, except that it shall not constitute a waiver of Claims.

§ 9.10.4 The making of final payment shall constitute a waiver of Claims by the Owner except those arising from
A liens, Claims, security interests or encumbrances arising out of the Contract and unsettled;
.2 failure of the Work to comply with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents;
.3 terms of special warranties required by the Design-Build Documents; or
4 audits performed by the Owner, if permitted by the Design-Build Documents, after final payment.

§ 9.10.5 Acceptance of final payment by the Design-Builder shall constitute a waiver of claims by the Design-Builder
except those previously made in writing and identified by the Design-Builder as unsettled at the time of final Application
for Payment.

§ 9.1 Interest

Payments due and unpaid under the Contract shall bear interest from the date payment is due at the rate stated below, or in
the absence thereof, at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at the place where the Project is located.

(Insert rate of interest agreed upon, if any.)

1.00 % monthly

ARTICLE 10 PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY

§ 10.1 Safety Precautions and Programs

The Design-Builder shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in
connection with the performance of the Construction Work.

§ 10.2 Safety of Persons and Property
§ 10.2.1 The Design-Builder shall be responsible for precautions for the safety of, and reasonable protection to prevent
damage, injury, or loss to

employees and persons performing the Construction Work and others who may be affected thereby;

.2 the Construction Work and materials and equipment to be incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off
the site, under care, custody, or control of the Design-Builder, a Subcontractor, or any other person or
entity; and

.3 other property at the site or adjacent thereto, such as trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavements, roadways, or
structures, and utilities not designated for removal, relocation, or replacement in the course of construction.

§ 10.2.2 The Design-Builder shall comply with, and give notices required by, applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes,
rules and regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities, bearing on the safety of persons or property, or their
protection from damage, injury, or loss.

§ 10.2.3 The Design-Builder shall implement, erect, and maintain, as required by existing conditions and performance of
the Contract, reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings against
hazards; promulgating safety regulations; and notifying the owners and users of adjacent sites and utilities of the
safeguards.

§ 10.2.4 When use or storage of explosives or other hazardous materials or equipment, or unusual methods, are necessary
for execution of the Construction Work, the Design-Builder shall exercise utmost care, and carry on such activities under
supervision of properly qualified personnel.

§ 10.2.5 The Design-Builder shall promptly remedy damage and loss (other than damage or loss insured under property
insurance required by the Design-Build Documents) to property referred to in Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3, caused in
whole or in part by the Design-Builder, the Architect, a Consultant, a Subcontractor, or anyone directly or indirectly
employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts they may be liable and for which the Design-Builder is responsible
under Sections 10.2.1.2 and 10.2.1.3. The Design-Builder may make a Claim for the cost to remedy damage or loss to the
extent such damage or loss is attributable to acts or omissions of the Owner, or anyone directly or indirectly employed by
the Owner, or by anyone for whose acts the Owner may be liable, and not attributable to the fault or negligence of the

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)

28



Design-Builder. The foregoing obligations of the Design-Builder are in addition to the Design-Builder’s obligations under
Section 3.1.14.

§ 10.2.6 The Design-Builder shall designate a responsible member of the Design-Builder’s organization, at the site, whose
duty shall be the prevention of accidents. This person shall be the Design-Builder’s superintendent unless otherwise
designated by the Design-Builder in writing to the Owner.

§ 10.2.7 The Design-Builder shall not permit any part of the construction or site to be loaded so as to cause damage or
create an unsafe condition.

§ 10.2.8 Injury or Damage to Person or Property. If the Owner or Design-Builder suffers injury or damage to person or
property because of an act or omission of the other, or of others for whose acts such party is legally responsible, notice of
the injury or damage, whether or not insured, shall be given to the other party within a reasonable time not exceeding 21
days after discovery. The notice shall provide sufficient detail to enable the other party to investigate the matter.

§ 10.3 Hazardous Materials

§ 10.3.1 The Design-Builder is responsible for compliance with any requirements included in the Design-Build
Documents regarding hazardous materials or substances. If the Design-Builder encounters a hazardous material or
substance not addressed in the Design-Build Documents and if reasonable precautions will be inadequate to prevent
foreseeable bodily injury or death to persons resulting from a material or substance, including but not limited to asbestos
or polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), encountered on the site by the Design-Builder, the Design-Builder shall, upon
recognizing the condition, immediately stop Construction Work in the affected area and notify the Owner of the
condition.

§ 10.3.2 Upon receipt of the Design-Builder’s notice, the Owner shall obtain the services of a licensed laboratory to verify
the presence or absence of the material or substance reported by the Design-Builder and, in the event such material or
substance is found to be present, to cause it to be rendered harmless. Unless otherwise required by the Design-Build
Documents, the Owner shall furnish in writing to the Design-Builder the names and qualifications of persons or entities
who are to perform tests verifying the presence or absence of the material or substance or who are to perform the task of
removal or safe containment of the material or substance. The Design-Builder will promptly reply to the Owner in writing
stating whether or not the Design-Builder has reasonable objection to the persons or entities proposed by the Owner. If the
Design-Builder has an objection to a person or entity proposed by the Owner, the Owner shall propose another to whom
the Design-Builder has no reasonable objection. When the material or substance has been rendered harmless,
Construction Work in the affected area shall resume upon written agreement of the Owner and Design-Builder. By
Change Order, the Contract Time shall be extended appropriately and the Contract Sum shall be increased by the amount
of the Design-Builder’s reasonable additional costs of shutdown, delay, and start-up.

§ 10.3.3 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Owner shall indemnify and hold harmless the Design-Builder, the
Architect, Consultants, and Subcontractors, and employees of any of them, from and against claims, damages, losses, and
expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees, arising out of or resulting from performance of the Construction
Work in the affected area, if in fact the material or substance presents the risk of bodily injury or death as described in
Section 10.3.1 and has not been rendered harmless, provided that such claim, damage, loss, or expense is attributable to
bodily injury, sickness, disease or death, or to injury to, or destruction of, tangible property (other than the Construction
Work itself), except to the extent that such damage, loss, or expense is due to the fault or negligence of the party seeking
indemnity.

§ 10.3.4 The Owner shall not be responsible under this Section 10.3 for hazardous materials or substances the Design-
Builder brings to the site unless such materials or substances are required by the Owner’s Criteria. The Owner shall be
responsible for hazardous materials or substances required by the Owner’s Criteria, except to the extent of the Design-
Builder’s fault or negligence in the use and handling of such materials or substances.

§ 10.3.5 The Design-Builder shall reimburse the Owner for the cost and expense the Owner incurs (1) for remediation of

hazardous materials or substances the Design-Builder brings to the site and negligently handles, or (2) where the Design-
Builder fails to perform its obligations under Section 10.3.1, except to the extent that the cost and expense are due to the

Owner’s fault or negligence.

§ 10.3.6 If, without negligence on the part of the Design-Builder, the Design-Builder is held liable by a government
agency for the cost of remediation of a hazardous material or substance solely by reason of performing Construction
Work as required by the Design-Build Documents, the Owner shall reimburse the Design-Builder for all cost and expense

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)

29



thereby incurred.

§ 10.4 Emergencies
In an emergency affecting safety of persons or property, the Design-Builder shall act, at the Design-Builder’s discretion,
to prevent threatened damage, injury, or loss.

ARTICLE 11 INSURANCE AND BONDS

§ 11.1 Design-Builder’s Insurance and Bonds

§ 11.1.1 The Design-Builder shall purchase and maintain insurance of the types and limits of liability, containing the
endorsements, and subject to the terms and conditions, as described in this Agreement or elsewhere in the Design-Build
Documents. Prior to commencement of the Work, the Design-Builder shall purchase and maintain the required insurance
from an insurance company or insurance companies lawfully authorized to issue insurance in the jurisdiction where the
Project is located. The Owner shall be named as an additional insured under the Design-Builder’s commercial general
liability policy or as otherwise described in the Design-Build Documents.

§ 11.1.2 The Design-Builder shall provide surety bonds of the types, for such penal sums, and subject to such terms and
conditions as required by the Design-Build Documents. The Design-Builder shall purchase and maintain the required
bonds from a company or companies lawfully authorized to issue surety bonds in the jurisdiction where the Project is
located.

§ 11.1.3 Upon the request of any person or entity appearing to be a potential beneficiary of bonds covering payment of
obligations arising under the Design-Build Contract, the Design-Builder shall promptly furnish a copy of the bonds or
shall authorize a copy to be furnished.

§ 11.1.4 Notice of Cancellation or Expiration of Design-Builder’s Required Insurance. Within three (3) business days of the
date the Design-Builder becomes aware of an impending or actual cancellation or expiration of any insurance required by
the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder shall provide notice to the Owner of such impending or actual
cancellation or expiration. Upon receipt of notice from the Design-Builder, the Owner shall, unless the lapse in coverage
arises from an act or omission of the Owner, have the right to stop the Work until the lapse in coverage has been cured by
the procurement of replacement coverage by the Design-Builder. The furnishing of notice by the Design-Builder shall not
relieve the Design-Builder of any contractual obligation to provide any required coverage.

§ 11.2 Owner’s Insurance

§ 11.2.1 The Owner shall purchase and maintain insurance of the types and limits of liability, containing the endorsements,
and subject to the terms and conditions, as described in this Agreement or elsewhere in the Design-Build Documents. The
Owner shall purchase and maintain the required insurance from an insurance company or insurance companies lawfully
authorized to issue insurance in the jurisdiction where the Project is located.

§ 11.2.2 Failure to Purchase Required Property Insurance. If the Owner fails to purchase and maintain the required property
insurance, with all of the coverages and in the amounts described in this Agreement or elsewhere in the Design-Build
Documents, the Owner shall inform the Design-Builder in writing prior to commencement of the Construction Work.
Upon receipt of notice from the Owner, the Design-Builder may delay commencement of the Construction Work and may
obtain insurance that will protect the interests of the Design-Builder, Subcontractors, and Sub-Subcontractors in the
Construction Work. When the failure to provide coverage has been cured or resolved, the Contract Sum and Contract
Time shall be equitably adjusted. In the event the Owner fails to procure coverage, the Owner waives all rights against the
Design-Builder, Subcontractors, and Sub-subcontractors to the extent the loss to the Owner would have been covered by
the insurance to have been procured by the Owner. The cost of the insurance shall be charged to the Owner by a Change
Order. If the Owner does not provide written notice, and the Design-Builder is damaged by the failure or neglect of the
Owner to purchase or maintain the required insurance, the Owner shall reimburse the Design-Builder for all reasonable
costs and damages attributable thereto.

§ 11.2.3 Notice of Cancellation or Expiration of Owner’s Required Property Insurance. Within three (3) business days of the
date the Owner becomes aware of an impending or actual cancellation or expiration of any property insurance required by
the Design-Build Documents, the Owner shall provide notice to the Design-Builder of such impending or actual
cancellation or expiration. Unless the lapse in coverage arises from an act or omission of the Design-Builder: (1) the
Design-Builder, upon receipt of notice from the Owner, shall have the right to stop the Construction Work until the lapse
in coverage has been cured by the procurement of replacement coverage by either the Owner or the Design-Builder; (2)
the Contract Time and Contract Sum shall be equitably adjusted; and (3) the Owner waives all rights against the Design-
Builder, Subcontractors, and Sub-subcontractors to the extent any loss to the Owner would have been covered by the

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”

“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on 30
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in

accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)



insurance had it not expired or been cancelled. If the Design-Builder purchases replacement coverage, the cost of the
insurance shall be charged to the Owner by an appropriate Change Order. The furnishing of notice by the Owner shall not
relieve the Owner of any contractual obligation to provide required insurance.

§ 11.3 Waivers of Subrogation

§ 11.3.1 The Owner and Design-Builder waive all rights against (1) each other and any of their consultants,
subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, agents, and employees, each of the other; and (2) Separate Contractors, if any, and
any of their subcontractors, sub-subcontractors, agents, and employees, for damages caused by fire, or other causes of
loss, to the extent those losses are covered by property insurance required by this Agreement or other property insurance
applicable to the Project, except such rights as they have to proceeds of such insurance. The Owner or Design-Builder, as
appropriate, shall require similar written waivers in favor of the individuals and entities identified above from the
Separate Contractors, consultants, subcontractors, and sub-subcontractors. The policies of insurance purchased and
maintained by each person or entity agreeing to waive claims pursuant to this Section 11.3.1 shall not prohibit this waiver
of subrogation. This waiver of subrogation shall be effective as to a person or entity (1) even though that person or entity
would otherwise have a duty of indemnification, contractual or otherwise, (2) even though that person or entity did not
pay the insurance premium directly or indirectly, or (3) whether or not the person or entity had an insurable interest in the
damaged property.

§ 11.3.2 If, during construction of the Project, the Owner insures properties, real or personal or both, at or adjacent to the
site by property insurance under policies separate from those insuring the Project, or if after final payment property
insurance is to be provided on the completed Project through a policy or policies other than those insuring the Project
during the construction period, to the extent permissible by such policies, the Owner waives all rights in accordance with
the terms of Section 11.3.1 for damages caused by fire or other causes of loss covered by this separate property insurance.

§ 11.4 Loss of Use, Business Interruption, and Delay in Completion Insurance

The Owner, at the Owner’s option, may purchase and maintain insurance that will protect the Owner against loss of use of
the Owner’s property, or the inability to conduct normal operations, due to fire or other causes of loss. The Owner waives
all rights of action against the Design-Builder for loss of use of the Owner’s property, due to fire or other hazards
however caused.

§ 11.5 Adjustment and Settlement of Insured Loss

§ 11.5.1 A loss insured under the property insurance required by this Agreement shall be adjusted by the Owner as
fiduciary and made payable to the Owner as fiduciary for the insureds, as their interests may appear, subject to
requirements of any applicable mortgagee clause and of Section 11.5.2. The Owner shall pay the Design-Builder its just
share of insurance proceeds received by the Owner, and by appropriate agreement the Design-Builder shall make
payments to its consultants and Subcontractors in similar manner.

§ 11.5.2 Prior to settlement of an insured loss, the Owner shall notify the Design-Builder of the terms of the proposed
settlement as well as the proposed allocation of the insurance proceeds. The Design-Builder shall have 14 days from
receipt of notice to object to the proposed settlement or allocation of the proceeds. If the Design-Builder does not object,
the Owner shall settle the loss, and the Design-Builder shall be bound by the settlement and allocation. Upon receipt, the
Owner shall deposit the insurance proceeds in a separate account and make the appropriate distributions. Thereafter, if no
other agreement is made or the Owner does not terminate the Design-Build Contract for convenience, the Owner and
Design-Builder shall execute a Change Order for reconstruction of the damaged or destroyed Construction Work in the
amount allocated for that purpose. If the Design-Builder timely objects to either the terms of the proposed settlement or
the allocation of the proceeds, the Owner may proceed to settle the insured loss, and any dispute between the Owner and
Design-Builder arising out of the settlement or allocation of the proceeds shall be resolved pursuant to Article 15. Pending
resolution of any dispute, the Owner may issue a Change Directive for the reconstruction of the damaged or destroyed
Construction Work.

ARTICLE 12 UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF CONSTRUCTION WORK

§ 12.1 Uncovering of Construction Work

The Owner may request to examine a portion of the Construction Work that the Design-Builder has covered to determine
if the Construction Work has been performed in accordance with the Design-Build Documents. If such Construction
Work is in accordance with the Design-Build Documents, the Design-Builder shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment
to the Contract Sum and Contract Time as may be appropriate. If such Construction Work is not in accordance with the
Design-Build Documents, the costs of uncovering the Construction Work, and the cost of correction, shall be at the
Design-Builder’s expense and shall not result in a change in the Contract Time except as otherwise permitted in this
Agreement.

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”

“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on 31
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in

accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)



§ 12.2 Correction of Construction Work

§ 12.2.1 Before Substantial Completion. The Design-Builder shall promptly correct Construction Work rejected by the
Owner or failing to conform to the requirements of the Design-Build Documents, discovered before Substantial
Completion, and whether or not fabricated, installed, or completed. Costs of correcting such rejected Construction Work,
including additional testing and inspections and the cost of uncovering and replacement, and compensation for any
consultant employed by the Owner whose expenses and compensation were made necessary thereby, shall be at the
Design-Builder’s expense and shall not result in a change in the Contract Time except as otherwise permitted in this
Agreement.

§ 12.2.2 After Substantial Completion

§12.2.2.1 In addition to the Design-Builder’s obligations under Section 3.1.12, if, within one year after the date of
Substantial Completion of the Construction Work or designated portion thereof or after the date for commencement of
warranties established under Section 9.9.1, or by terms of any applicable special warranty required by the Design-Build
Documents, any of the Construction Work is discovered not to be in accordance with the requirements of the Design-
Build Documents, the Design-Builder shall correct it promptly after receipt of notice from the Owner to do so unless the
Owner has previously given the Design-Builder a written acceptance of such condition. The Owner shall give such notice
promptly after discovery of the condition. During the one-year period for correction of the Construction Work, if the
Owner fails to notify the Design-Builder of the condition and give the Design-Builder an opportunity to make the
correction, the Owner waives the rights to require correction by the Design-Builder and to make a claim for breach of
warranty and breach of the standard of care for that condition. If the Design-Builder fails to correct nonconforming or
defectively designed Construction Work within a reasonable time during that period after receipt of notice from the
Owner, the Owner may correct it in accordance with Section 7.4.

§ 12.2.2.2 The one-year period for correction of Construction Work shall be extended with respect to portions of
Construction Work first performed after Substantial Completion by the period of time between Substantial Completion
and the actual completion of that portion of the Construction Work.

§ 12.2.2.3 The one-year period for correction of Construction Work shall not be extended by corrective Construction Work
performed by the Design-Builder pursuant to this Section 12.2.

§ 12.2.3 The Design-Builder shall remove from the site portions of the Construction Work that are not in accordance with
the requirements of the Design-Build Documents and are neither corrected by the Design-Builder nor accepted by the
Owner.

§ 12.2.4 The Design-Builder shall be liable for the cost of correcting destroyed or damaged construction of the Owner or
Separate Contractors, whether completed or partially completed, caused by the Design-Builder’s correction or removal of
Construction Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents except as otherwise
permitted in this Agreement.

§ 12.2.5 Nothing contained in this Section 12.2 shall be construed to establish a period of limitation with respect to other
obligations the Design-Builder has under the Design-Build Documents. Establishment of the one-year period for
correction of Construction Work as described in Section 12.2.2 relates only to the specific obligation of the Design-
Builder to correct the Construction Work, and has no relationship to the time within which the obligation to comply with
the Design-Build Documents may be sought to be enforced, nor to the time within which proceedings may be commenced
to establish the Design-Builder’s liability with respect to the Design-Builder’s obligations other than specifically to
correct the Construction Work.

§ 12.3 Acceptance of Nonconforming Construction Work

If the Owner prefers to accept Construction Work that is not in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build
Documents, the Owner may do so instead of requiring its removal and correction, in which case the Contract Sum will be
reduced as appropriate and equitable. Such adjustment shall be effected whether or not final payment has been made.

ARTICLE 13 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES

§ 13.1 Drawings, specifications, and other documents furnished by the Design-Builder, including those in electronic form,
are Instruments of Service. The Design-Builder, and the Architect, Consultants, Subcontractors, and any other person or
entity providing Work for any of them, shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective Instruments of Service,
including the Drawings and Specifications, and shall retain all common law, statutory and other reserved rights, including
copyrights. Submission or distribution of Instruments of Service to meet official regulatory requirements, or for similar

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)

32



purposes in connection with the Project, is not to be construed as publication in derogation of the reserved rights of the
Design-Builder and the Architect, Consultants, and Subcontractors, and any other person or entity providing Work for any
of them.

§ 13.2 The Design-Builder and the Owner warrant that in transmitting Instruments of Service, or any other information,
the transmitting party is the copyright owner of such information or has permission from the copyright owner to transmit
such information for its use on the Project.

§ 13.3 The Design-Builder grants to the Owner a nonexclusive license to use the Design-Builder’s Instruments of Service
solely and exclusively for purposes of constructing, using, maintaining, altering, and adding to the Project. The license
granted in this Section 13.3 shall terminate only if (1) the Design-Builder terminates this Agreement in accordance with
Sections 14.1.1, 14.1.3, 14.1.4, or 14.2.1 or (2) the Owner terminates this Agreement for convenience as provided in
Section 14.1.5 and does not compensate the Design-Builder as required under Sections 14.1.6 and 14.1.7. The license
granted under this section permits the Owner to authorize the Owner’s consultants to reproduce applicable portions of the
Instruments of Service, subject to any protocols established pursuant to Section 1.1.5, solely and exclusively for use in
performing services for the Project.

§ 13.3.1 In the event the Owner uses the Instruments of Service (1) for purposes inconsistent with Section 13.3, (2) after
completion of the Project for purposes of altering or adding to the Project without retaining the authors of the Instruments
of Service for such purposes, (3) after the Owner terminates this Agreement for convenience, or (4) after the Design-
Builder terminates this Agreement in accordance with Sections 14.1.1, 14.1.3, 14.1.4, or 14.2.1, the Owner releases the
Design-Builder from all claims and causes of action arising from such uses. The Owner, to the extent permitted by law,
further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Design-Builder from all costs and expenses, including the cost of
defense, related to claims and causes of action asserted by any third person or entity to the extent such costs and expenses
arise from the Owner’s use of the Instruments of Service under this Section 13.3.1. The terms of this Section 13.3.1 shall
not apply if the Owner terminates this Agreement for cause under Section 14.1.4 or 14.2.2. The payment of a Termination
Fee or Licensing Fee under Section 14.1.7 shall not relieve the Owner of the release or indemnity obligations of this
Section 13.3.1.

§ 13.3.2 The Design-Builder shall obtain non-exclusive licenses from the Architect, Consultants, and Subcontractors, that
will allow the Design-Builder to satisfy its obligations to the Owner under this Article 13. The Design-Builder’s licenses
from the Architect and its Consultants and Subcontractors shall also allow the Owner, in the event this Agreement is
terminated for any reason other than the default of the Owner or in the event the Design-Builder’s Architect, Consultants,
or Subcontractors terminate their agreements with the Design-Builder for cause, to obtain a non-exclusive license solely
and exclusively for purposes of constructing, using, maintaining, altering and adding to the Project, provided that the
Owner (1) agrees to pay to the Architect, Consultant or Subcontractor all amounts due, and (2) provides the Architect,
Consultant or Subcontractor with the Owner’s written agreement to indemnify and hold harmless the Architect,
Consultant, or Subcontractor from all costs and expenses, including the cost of defense, related to claims and causes of
action asserted by any third person or entity to the extent such costs and expenses arise from the Owner’s alteration or use
of the Instruments of Service.

§ 13.3.3 Except as otherwise stated in this Section 13.3, the provisions of this Article 13 shall survive the termination of
this Agreement.

ARTICLE 14 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION

§ 14.1 Termination or Suspension Prior to Execution of the Design-Build Amendment

§ 14.1.1 If the Owner fails to make payments to the Design-Builder for Work prior to execution of the Design-Build
Amendment in accordance with this Agreement, such failure shall be considered substantial nonperformance and cause
for termination under Section 14.1.4 or, at the Design-Builder’s option, cause for suspension of performance of services
under this Agreement. If the Design-Builder elects to suspend the Work, the Design-Builder shall give seven days’ notice
to the Owner before suspending the Work. In the event of a suspension of the Work, the Design-Builder shall have no
liability to the Owner for delay or damage caused by the suspension of the Work. Before resuming the Work, the Design-
Builder shall be paid all sums due prior to suspension and any expenses incurred in the interruption and resumption of the
Design-Builder’s Work. The Design-Builder’s compensation for, and time to complete, the remaining Work shall be
equitably adjusted.

§ 14.1.2 If the Owner suspends the Project, the Design-Builder shall be compensated for the Work performed prior to
notice of such suspension. When the Project is resumed, the Design-Builder shall be compensated for expenses incurred
in the interruption and resumption of the Design-Builder’s Work. The Design-Builder’s compensation for, and time to

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)

33



complete, the remaining Work shall be equitably adjusted.

§ 14.1.3 If the Owner suspends the Project for more than 90 cumulative days for reasons other than the fault of the Design-
Builder, the Design-Builder may terminate this Agreement by giving not less than seven days’ notice.

§ 14.1.4 Either party may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ notice should the other party fail
substantially to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party initiating the
termination.

§ 14.1.5 The Owner may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days’ notice to the Design-Builder for the
Owner’s convenience and without cause.

§ 14.1.6 In the event of termination not the fault of the Design-Builder, the Design-Builder shall be compensated for Work
performed prior to termination, together with Reimbursable Expenses then due and any other expenses directly
attributable to termination for which the Design-Builder is not otherwise compensated. In no event shall the Design-
Builder’s compensation under this Section 14.1.6 be greater than the compensation set forth in Section 2.1.

§ 14.1.7 In addition to any amounts paid under Section 14.1.6, if the Owner terminates this Agreement for its convenience
pursuant to Section 14.1.5, or the Design-Builder terminates this Agreement pursuant to Sections 14.1.3 or 14.1.4, the
Owner shall pay to the Design-Builder the following fees:

(Set forth below the amount of any termination or licensing fee, or the method for determining any termination or
licensing fee.)

1 Termination Fee:

Builder's Termination Fee: $70,000.00
Designer's Termination Fee: $270,000.00

.2 Licensing Fee if the Owner intends to continue using the Design-Builder’s Instruments of Service:
To be negotiated if applicable

§ 14.2 Termination or Suspension Following Execution of the Design-Build Amendment

§ 14.2.1 Termination by the Design-Builder

§ 14.2.1.1 The Design-Builder may terminate this Agreement if the Work is stopped for a period of 30 consecutive days
through no act or fault of the Design-Builder, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work, for any of
the following reasons:

A Issuance of an order of a court or other public authority having jurisdiction that requires all Work to be
stopped;

.2 Anact of government, such as a declaration of national emergency that requires all Work to be stopped;

.3 Because the Owner has not issued a Certificate for Payment and has not notified the Design-Builder of the
reason for withholding certification as provided in Section 9.5.1, or because the Owner has not made
payment on a Certificate for Payment within the time stated in the Design-Build Documents; or

4 The Owner has failed to furnish to the Design-Builder reasonable evidence as required by Section 7.2.7.

§ 14.2.1.2 The Design-Builder may terminate this Agreement if, through no act or fault of the Design-Builder, or any other
persons or entities performing portions of the Work, repeated suspensions, delays, or interruptions of the entire Work by
the Owner as described in Section 14.2.3, constitute in the aggregate more than 100 percent of the total number of days
scheduled for completion, or 120 days in any 365-day period, whichever is less.

§ 14.2.1.3 If one of the reasons described in Section 14.2.1.1 or 14.2.1.2 exists, the Design-Builder may, upon seven days’
notice to the Owner, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner payment for Work executed, as well as
reasonable overhead and profit on Work not executed, or the Design-Builder’s Fee on Work not executed if the Contract
Sum is based upon the Cost of the Work plus a Fee with or without a Guaranteed Maximum Price, and costs incurred by
reason of such termination.

§ 14.2.1.4 1f the Work is stopped for a period of 60 consecutive days through no act or fault of the Design-Builder, or any
other persons or entities performing portions of the Work because the Owner has repeatedly failed to fulfill the Owner’s
obligations under the Design-Build Documents with respect to matters important to the progress of the Work, the Design-

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)

34



Builder may, upon seven additional days’ notice to the Owner, terminate the Contract and recover from the Owner as
provided in Section 14.2.1.3.

§ 14.2.2 Termination by the Owner for Cause
§ 14.2.2.1 The Owner may terminate this Agreement if the Design-Builder:
A fails to submit the Proposal by the date required by this Agreement, or if no date is indicated, within a
reasonable time consistent with the date of Substantial Completion;
.2 repeatedly refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials;
.3 repeatedly refuses or fails to supply a qualified architect, consultant, or subcontractor, where required,;
4 fails to make payment to the Architect, Consultants, Subcontractors, or suppliers in accordance with their
respective agreements with the Design-Builder;
.5 repeatedly disregards applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations, or lawful orders of
a public authority; or
.6 is otherwise in breach of a material provision of the Design-Build Documents.

§ 14.2.2.2 When any of the reasons described in Section 14.2.2.1 exist, the Owner may, without prejudice to any other
rights or remedies of the Owner and after giving the Design-Builder and the Design-Builder’s surety, if any, seven days’
notice, terminate employment of the Design-Builder and may, subject to any prior rights of the surety:
1 Exclude the Design-Builder from the site and take possession of all materials, equipment, tools, and
construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by the Design-Builder;
.2 Accept assignment of the Architect, Consultant, and Subcontractor agreements pursuant to Section 3.1.15;
and
.3 Finish the Work by whatever reasonable method the Owner may deem expedient. Upon written request of
the Design-Builder, the Owner shall furnish to the Design-Builder a detailed accounting of the costs
incurred by the Owner in finishing the Work.

§ 14.2.2.3 When the Owner terminates this Agreement for one of the reasons stated in Section 14.2.2.1, the Design-Builder
shall not be entitled to receive further payment until the Work is finished.

§ 14.2.2.4 1f the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum exceeds costs of finishing the Work and other damages incurred by
the Owner and not expressly waived, such excess shall be paid to the Design-Builder. If such costs and damages exceed
the unpaid balance, the Design-Builder shall pay the difference to the Owner. The obligation for such payments shall
survive termination of this Agreement.

§ 14.2.3 Suspension by the Owner for Convenience
§ 14.2.3.1 The Owner may, without cause, order the Design-Builder in writing to suspend, delay, or interrupt the Work in
whole or in part for such period of time as the Owner may determine.

§ 14.2.3.2 The Contract Sum and Contract Time shall be adjusted for increases in the cost and time caused by suspension,
delay, or interruption under Section 14.2.3.1. Adjustment of the Contract Sum shall include profit. No adjustment shall be
made to the extent
A that performance is, was, or would have been, so suspended, delayed, or interrupted, by another cause for
which the Design-Builder is responsible; or
.2 that an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision of the Contract.

§ 14.2.4 Termination by the Owner for Convenience
§ 14.2.4.1 The Owner may, at any time, terminate this Agreement for the Owner’s convenience and without cause.

§ 14.2.4.2 Upon receipt of notice from the Owner of such termination for the Owner’s convenience, the Design-Builder
shall
1 cease operations as directed by the Owner in the notice;
.2 take actions necessary, or that the Owner may direct, for the protection and preservation of the Work; and,
.3 except for Work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of termination stated in the notice,
terminate all existing Project agreements, including agreements with the Architect, Consultants,
Subcontractors, and purchase orders, and enter into no further Project agreements and purchase orders.

§ 14.2.4.3 In case of such termination for the Owner’s convenience, the Owner shall pay the Design-Builder for: Work
properly executed; Termination and Licensing Fees set forth in Section 14.1.7; and any other costs incurred by reason of
the termination, including costs attributable to termination of Subcontracts.

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)

35



ARTICLE 15 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES

§ 15.1 Claims

§ 15.1.1 Definition. A Claim is a demand or assertion by one of the parties seeking, as a matter of right, payment of money,
a change in the Contract Time, or other relief with respect to the terms of the Contract. The term “Claim” also includes
other disputes and matters in question between the Owner and Design-Builder arising out of or relating to the Contract.
The responsibility to substantiate Claims shall rest with the party making the Claim. This Section 15.1.1 does not require
the Owner to file a Claim in order to impose liquidated damages in accordance with the Contract Documents.

§ 15.1.2 Time Limits on Claims. The Owner and Design-Builder shall commence all claims and causes of action against the
other and arising out of or related to the Contract, whether in contract, tort, breach of warranty or otherwise, in accordance
with the requirements of the binding dispute resolution method selected in Section 1.3, within the time period specified by
applicable law, but, in any case, not more than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work. The Owner
and Design-Builder waive all claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with this Section 15.1.2.

§ 15.1.3 Notice of Claims

§ 15.1.3.1 Prior To Final Payment. Prior to final payment, Claims by either the Owner or Design-Builder must be initiated
by notice to the other party within 21 days after occurrence of the event giving rise to such Claim or within 21 days after
the claimant first recognizes the condition giving rise to the Claim, whichever is later.

§ 15.1.3.2 Claims Arising After Final Payment. After final payment, Claims by either the Owner or Design-Builder that have
not otherwise been waived pursuant to Sections 9.10.4 or 9.10.5, must be initiated by prompt notice to the other party.
The notice requirement in Section 15.1.3.1 and the provisions for Initial Resolution of Claims in Section 15.2 shall not be
required as a condition precedent to mediation in Section 15.3.

§ 15.1.4 Continuing Contract Performance. Pending final resolution of a Claim, except as otherwise agreed in writing or as
provided in Section 9.7 and Article 14, the Design-Builder shall proceed diligently with performance of the Contract and
the Owner shall continue to make payments in accordance with the Design-Build Documents.

§ 15.1.5 Claims for Additional Cost. If the Design-Builder wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Sum,
notice as provided in Section 15.1.3 shall be given before proceeding to execute the portion of the Work that is the subject
of the Claim. Prior notice is not required for Claims relating to an emergency endangering life or property arising under
Section 10.4.

§ 15.1.6 Claims for Additional Time

§ 15.1.6.1 If the Design-Builder wishes to make a Claim for an increase in the Contract Time, notice as provided in
Section 15.1.3 shall be given. The Design-Builder’s Claim shall include an estimate of cost and of the probable effect of
delay on progress of the Work. In the case of a continuing delay, only one Claim is necessary.

§ 15.1.6.2 If adverse weather conditions are the basis for a Claim for additional time, such Claim shall be documented by
data substantiating that weather conditions were abnormal for the period of time, could not have been reasonably
anticipated, and had an adverse effect on the scheduled construction.

§ 15.1.7 Waiver of Claims for Consequential Damages
The Design-Builder and Owner waive Claims against each other for consequential damages arising out of or relating to
this Contract. This mutual waiver includes
.1 damages incurred by the Owner for rental expenses, for losses of use, income, profit, financing, business,
and reputation, and for loss of management or employee productivity or of the services of such persons;
and
.2 damages incurred by the Design-Builder for principal office expenses including the compensation of
personnel stationed there, for losses of financing, business, and reputation, and for loss of profit except
anticipated profit arising directly from the Work.

This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential damages due to either party’s termination in
accordance with Article 14. Nothing contained in this Section 15.1.7 shall be deemed to preclude assessment of liquidated
damages, when applicable, in accordance with the requirements of the Design-Build Documents.

§ 15.2 Initial Resolution of Claims
§ 15.2.1 Meet and Confer

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)

36



§ 15.2.1.1 If the parties select Meet and Confer as the initial method of dispute resolution, the Owner and Design-Builder
shall endeavor to resolve Claims subject to the meet and confer session. The meet and confer session shall be attended by
representatives who have the authority to bind the Owner and Design-Builder. The Owner or Design-Builder may request
senior representatives from the Architect, Subcontractors, or other interested parties to attend the meet and confer session.
The meet and confer session shall take place within thirty (30) days after a request by either party to this Agreement
unless the parties mutually agree otherwise.

§ 15.2.1.2 Discussions held during the meet and confer process shall be treated as settlement discussions and, as such, will
be confidential.

§ 15.2.1.3 If the Owner and Design-Builder reach a mutually acceptable resolution, appropriate documentation
memorializing the resolution shall be prepared. If the resolution results in a change to the Contract Sum or the Contract
Time, the parties shall execute a Change Order.

§ 15.2.1.4 If the Owner and Design-Builder cannot reach a mutually acceptable resolution at the meet and confer session,
or if the meet and confer session does not take place within the time specified in Section 15.2.1, either party may proceed
to mediation in accordance with Section 15.3.

§ 15.2.2 Project Neutral
§ 15.2.2.1 If the parties select a Project Neutral to serve as an initial decision maker of Claims, the Owner and Design-
Builder shall share the expense of the Project Neutral.

§ 15.2.2.2 The Project Neutral will review Claims and, within ten days of the receipt of a Claim, take one or more of the
following actions: (1) request additional supporting data from the claimant or a response with supporting data from the
other party, (2) reject the Claim in whole or in part, (3) approve the Claim in whole or in part, (4) suggest a compromise,
or (5) advise the parties that the Project Neutral is unable to resolve the Claim if the Project Neutral lacks sufficient
information to evaluate the merits of the Claim or if the Project Neutral concludes that, in the Project Neutral’s sole
discretion, it would be inappropriate for the Project Neutral to resolve the Claim.

§ 15.2.2.3 In evaluating Claims, the Project Neutral may, but shall not be obligated to, consult with or seek information
from persons with special knowledge or expertise who may assist the Project Neutral in rendering a decision. The
retention of such persons shall be a shared expense of the Owner and Design-Builder.

§ 15.2.2.4 If the Project Neutral requests either party to provide a response to a Claim or to furnish additional supporting
data, such party shall respond within ten days after receipt of the request and shall either (1) provide a response or the
requested supporting data, (2) advise the Project Neutral when the response or supporting data will be furnished or (3)
advise the Project Neutral that no response or supporting data will be furnished. Upon receipt of the response or
supporting data, if any, the Project Neutral will take one of the actions described in Section 15.2.2.2(2)~(5).

§ 15.2.2.5 Pursuant to Sections 15.2.2.2 through 15.2.2.4 the Project Neutral will render an initial decision approving or
rejecting the Claim in whole or in part or indicating that the Project Neutral is unable to resolve the Claim. The initial
decision shall (1) be in writing, (2) state the reasons therefore, and (3) identify any change in the Contract Sum or
Contract Time or both. The initial decision shall be binding on the parties, but subject to mediation in accordance with the
process set forth in Section 15.3 and, if the parties fail to resolve their dispute through mediation, subject to binding
dispute resolution in accordance with Section 15.4.

§ 15.2.2.5.1 If an initial decision has not been rendered within 30 days after the Claim has been referred to the Project
Neutral, the party asserting the Claim may demand mediation and binding dispute resolution without a decision having
been rendered. Unless the Project Neutral and all affected parties agree, the Project Neutral will not decide disputes
between the Design-Builder and persons or entities other than the Owner.

§ 15.2.2.6 Either party may file for mediation of an initial decision at any time, subject to the terms of Section 15.3.

§ 15.2.2.7 Either party may, within 30 days from the date of a Project Neutral’s initial decision, demand in writing that the
other party file for mediation within 60 days of the initial decision. If such a demand is made and the party receiving the
demand fails to file for mediation within the time required, then both parties waive their rights to mediate or pursue

binding dispute resolution proceedings with respect to the initial decision.

§ 15.2.3 In the event of a Claim against the Design-Builder, the Owner may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety, if

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)

37



any, of the nature and amount of the Claim. If the Claim relates to a possibility of a Design-Builder’s default, the Owner
may, but is not obligated to, notify the surety, and request the surety’s assistance in resolving the controversy.

§ 15.2.4 If a Claim relates to or is the subject of a mechanic’s lien, the party asserting such Claim may proceed in
accordance with applicable law to comply with the lien notice or filing deadlines.

§ 15.3 Mediation

§ 15.3.1 Claims, disputes, or other matters in controversy arising out of or related to the Contract, except those waived as
provided for in Sections 9.10.4, 9.10.5, 15.1.7, and 15.2.2.7, shall be subject to mediation as a condition precedent to
binding dispute resolution.

§ 15.3.2 The Parties shall endeavor to resolve their Claims by mediation which, unless the Parties mutually agree
otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry
Mediation Procedures in effect on the date of this Agreement. A request for mediation shall be made in writing, delivered
to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the mediation. The request may be
made concurrently with the filing of binding dispute resolution proceedings but, in such event, mediation shall proceed in
advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending mediation for a period of 60 days from
the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the Parties or court order. If an arbitration proceeding
is stayed pursuant to this Section 15.3.2, the Parties may nonetheless proceed to the selection of the arbitrator(s) and agree
upon a schedule for later proceedings.

§ 15.3.3 Either Party may, within 30 days from the date that mediation has been concluded without resolution of the
dispute or 60 days after mediation has been demanded without resolution of the dispute, demand in writing that the other
party file for binding dispute resolution. If such a demand is made and the Party receiving the demand fails to file for
binding dispute resolution within 60 days after receipt thereof, then both Parties waive their rights to binding dispute
resolution proceedings with respect to the initial decision rendered by the Project Neutral or with respect to Claims that
were the subject of the Meet and Confer process.

§ 15.3.4 The Parties shall share the mediator’s fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the place
where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall be
enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction.

§ 15.4 Arbitration

§ 15.4.1 If the parties have selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in Section 1.3, any Claim
subject to, but not resolved by, mediation shall be subject to arbitration which, unless the parties mutually agree
otherwise, shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry
Arbitration Rules in effect on the date of this Agreement. The Arbitration shall be conducted in the place where the
Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. A demand for arbitration shall be made in writing,
delivered to the other party to the Contract, and filed with the person or entity administering the arbitration. The party
filing a notice of demand for arbitration must assert in the demand all Claims then known to that party on which
arbitration is permitted to be demanded.

§ 15.4.1.1 A demand for arbitration shall be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing of a request for mediation,
but in no event shall it be made after the date when the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on the Claim
would be barred by the applicable statute of limitations or statute of repose. For statute of limitations or statute of repose
purposes, receipt of a written demand for arbitration by the person or entity administering the arbitration shall constitute
the institution of legal or equitable proceedings based on the Claim.

§ 15.4.2 The award rendered by the arbitrator or arbitrators shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in
accordance with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction.

§ 15.4.3 The foregoing agreement to arbitrate, and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity duly
consented to by parties to this Agreement, shall be specifically enforceable under applicable law in any court having
jurisdiction thereof.

§ 15.4.4 Consolidation or Joinder

§ 15.4.4.1 Subject to the rules of the American Arbitration Association or other applicable arbitration rules, either party
may consolidate an arbitration conducted under this Agreement with any other arbitration to which it is a party provided
that (1) the arbitration agreement governing the other arbitration permits consolidation, (2) the arbitrations to be

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503¢13618796¢47)

38



consolidated substantially involve common questions of law or fact, and (3) the arbitrations employ materially similar
procedural rules and methods for selecting arbitrator(s).

§ 15.4.4.2 Subject to the rules of the American Arbitration Association or other applicable arbitration rules, either Party
may include by joinder persons or entities substantially involved in a common question of law or fact whose presence is
required if complete relief is to be accorded in arbitration, provided that the Party sought to be joined consents in writing
to such joinder. Consent to arbitration involving an additional person or entity shall not constitute consent to arbitration of
any claim, dispute or other matter in question not described in the written consent.

§ 15.4.4.3 The Owner and Design-Builder grant to any person or entity made a party to an arbitration conducted under this
Section 15.4, whether by joinder or consolidation, the same rights of joinder and consolidation as those of the Owner and
Design-Builder under this Agreement.

§ 15.5 The provisions of this Article 15 shall survive the termination of this Agreement.

ARTICLE 16 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

§ 16.1 Governing Law

The Contract shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located excluding that jurisdiction’s choice of
law rules. If the parties have selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute resolution, the Federal Arbitration Act
shall govern Section 15.4.

§ 16.2 Successors and Assigns

§ 16.2.1 The Owner and Design-Builder, respectively, bind themselves, their partners, successors, assigns, and legal
representatives to the covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in the Design-Build Documents. Except as
provided in Section 16.2.2, neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract as a whole without written consent of
the other. If either party attempts to make an assignment without such consent, that party shall nevertheless remain legally
responsible for all obligations under the Contract.

§ 16.2.2 The Owner may, without consent of the Design-Builder, assign the Contract to a lender providing construction
financing for the Project, if the lender assumes the Owner’s rights and obligations under the Design-Build Documents.
The Design-Builder shall execute all consents reasonably required to facilitate the assignment.

§ 16.2.3 Certifications. If the Owner requests the Design-Builder to execute certificates, the proposed language of such
certificates shall be submitted to the Design-Builder for review at least 21 days prior to the requested dates of execution.
If the Owner requests the Design-Builder to execute consents reasonably required to facilitate assignment to a lender, the
Design-Builder shall execute all such consents that are consistent with this Agreement, provided the proposed consent is
submitted to the Design-Builder for review at least 21 days prior to execution. The Design-Builder shall not be required to
execute any certificates or consents that would require knowledge, services, or responsibilities beyond the scope of this
Agreement.

§ 16.3 The Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, Subcontractors, or their agents, or any other persons or entities
performing portions of the Work, shall have the right to include video, photographic, or artistic representations of the
design of the Project among their respective promotional and professional materials. The Design-Builder, Architect,
Consultants, Subcontractors, or their agents or employees, or any other persons or entities performing portions of the
Work, shall be given reasonable access to the completed Project to make such representations. However, such material
shall not include the Owner’s confidential or proprietary information if the Owner has previously advised the Design-
Builder in writing of the specific information considered by the Owner to be confidential or proprietary. The Owner shall
provide professional credit for the Design-Builder, Architect, Consultants, Subcontractors, or their agents or employees,
or any other persons or entities performing portions of the Work, in the Owner’s promotional materials for the Project.
This Section 16.3 shall survive the termination of this Agreement unless the Owner terminates this Agreement for cause
pursuant to Section 14.2.2.

§ 16.4 Rights and Remedies

§ 16.4.1 Duties and obligations imposed by the Design-Build Documents, and rights and remedies available thereunder,
shall be in addition to and not a limitation of duties, obligations, rights, and remedies otherwise imposed or available by
law.

§ 16.4.2 No action or failure to act by the Owner or Design-Builder shall constitute a waiver of a right or duty afforded
them under the Contract, nor shall such action or failure to act constitute approval of or acquiescence in a breach

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”

“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on 39
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in

accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)



thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed upon in writing.

§ 16.5 Tests and Inspections

§ 16.5.1 Tests, inspections, and approvals of portions of the Construction Work shall be made as required by the Design-
Build Documents and by applicable laws, statutes, ordinances, codes, rules and regulations or lawful orders of public
authorities. Unless otherwise provided, the Design-Builder shall make arrangements for such tests, inspections, and
approvals with an independent testing laboratory or entity acceptable to the Owner, or with the appropriate public
authority, and shall bear all related costs of tests, inspections, and approvals, unless otherwise provided in the Design-
Build Amendment. The Design-Builder shall give the Owner timely notice of when and where tests and inspections are to
be made so that the Owner may be present for such procedures. The Owner shall bear costs of tests, inspections, or
approvals that do not become requirements until after execution of the Design-Build Amendment. The Owner shall
directly arrange and pay for tests, inspections, or approvals where building codes or applicable laws or regulations so
require.

§ 16.5.2 If the Owner determines that portions of the Construction Work require additional testing, inspection, or approval
not included under Section 16.5.1, the Owner will instruct the Design-Builder to make arrangements for such additional
testing, inspection, or approval, by an entity acceptable to the Owner, and the Design-Builder shall give timely notice to
the Owner of when and where tests and inspections are to be made so that the Owner may be present for such procedures.
Such costs, except as provided in Section 16.5.3, shall be at the Owner’s expense, unless otherwise provided in the
Design-Build Amendment.

§ 16.5.3 If procedures for testing, inspection, or approval under Sections 16.5.1 and 16.5.2 reveal failure of the portions of
the Construction Work to comply with requirements established by the Design-Build Documents, all costs made
necessary by such failure shall be at the Design-Builder’s expense, unless otherwise provided in the Design-Build
Amendment.

§ 16.5.4 Required certificates of testing, inspection, or approval shall, unless otherwise required by the Design-Build
Documents, be secured by the Design-Builder and promptly delivered to the Owner.

§ 16.5.5 If the Owner is to observe tests, inspections, or approvals required by the Design-Build Documents, the Owner
will do so promptly and, where practicable, at the normal place of testing.

§ 16.5.6 Tests or inspections conducted pursuant to the Design-Build Documents shall be made promptly to avoid
unreasonable delay in the Work.

§ 16.6 Confidential Information

§ 16.6.1 If the Design-Builder or Owner receives information specifically designated as “confidential” or “business
proprietary,” the receiving party shall keep such information strictly confidential and shall not disclose it to any other
person except as set forth in Section 16.6.2. The obligations in this Section 16.6 shall survive the termination of this
Agreement.

§ 16.6.2 The receiving party may disclose “confidential” or “business proprietary” information after 7 days’ notice to the
other party, when required by law, arbitrator’s order, or court order, including a subpoena or other form of compulsory
legal process issued by a court or governmental entity, or to the extent such information is reasonably necessary for the
receiving party to defend itself in any dispute. The receiving party may also disclose such information to its employees,
consultants, contractors, or subcontractors in order to perform services or work solely and exclusively for the Project,
provided those employees, consultants, contractors, and subcontractors are subject to the restrictions on the disclosure and
use of such information as set forth in this Section 16.6. In the event either party knows or reasonably believes that
“confidential” or “business proprietary” information received from the other party has been subject to any circumstance
where the security, integrity, or confidentiality of any of the “confidential” or “business proprietary” information has been
compromised, damaged, lost, corrupted, destroyed, or the “confidential” or “business proprietary” information has been
accessed, acquired, modified, used, disclosed, or rendered inaccessible, by any unauthorized person, by any person in an
unauthorized manner, or for an unauthorized purpose, the party experiencing the breach will provide written notice to the
other party as soon as reasonably possible after it becomes aware of any breach.

§ 16.6.3 “Confidential” or “business proprietary” information shall not include information:
A in the public domain, or which later enters the public domain, through no action on the receiving party’s
part in violation of this Agreement;
.2 already in the receiving party’s possession and not marked as “confidential” or “business proprietary” when

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)

40



received;

.3 obtained by the receiving party on a non-confidential basis from a third party not known by the receiving
party to be under an obligation of confidentiality; or

4 thatis independently developed by the receiving party without access to, or use of, any “confidential” or
“business proprietary” information.

§ 16.7 Capitalization
Terms capitalized in the Contract include those that are (1) specifically defined, (2) the titles of numbered articles, or
(3) the titles of other ATA Contract Documents.

§ 16.8 Interpretation

§ 16.8.1 In the interest of brevity the Design-Build Documents frequently omit modifying words such as “all” and “any’
and articles such as “the” and “an,” but the fact that a modifier or an article is absent from one statement and appears in
another is not intended to affect the interpretation of either statement.

1)

§ 16.8.2 Unless otherwise stated in the Design-Build Documents, words which have well-known technical or construction
industry meanings are used in the Design-Build Documents in accordance with such recognized meanings.

§ 16.9 The invalidity of any provision of this Agreement shall not invalidate this Agreement or its remaining provisions. If
it is determined that any provision of this Agreement violates any law, or is otherwise invalid or unenforceable, then that
provision shall be revised to the extent necessary to make that provision legal and enforceable. In such case this
Agreement shall be construed, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to give effect to the parties’ intentions and purposes
in executing this Agreement.

§ 16.10 In accordance with Section 1.1.5, the Design-Builder shall coordinate with the Owner in establishing building
information modeling and digital data protocols for the Project governing the development, use, transmission, and
exchange of, and reliance on, digital data.

§ 16.10.1 Any use of, or reliance on, all or a portion of a building information model without agreement to written
protocols governing the use of, and reliance on, the information contained in the model shall be at the using or relying
party’s sole risk and without liability to the other party and its subcontractors or consultants, the authors of, or
contributors to, the building information model, and each of their agents and employees.

ARTICLE 17 SCOPE OF THIS AGREEMENT
§ 17.1 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents:
1 AIA Document A1419-2024, Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Design-Builder for a
Traditional Design-Build Project
AIA Document A141©-2024, Exhibit A, Insurance and Bonds
AIA Document A141°-2024, Exhibit B, Design-Build Amendment, if executed
AIA Document A141°-2024, Exhibit C, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, if completed
Other documents, if any, listed below:

ok wio

Not Applicable

This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above.

OWNER (Signature) DESIGN-BUILDER (Signature)
BY: Lowndes County Board of Commissioners BY: Brahm Kellerman, Kellerman Construction
(Printed name and title) (Printed name and title)

AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”

“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on 41
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in

accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)



AlA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,” “American Institute of Architects,”
“AlA,” the AlA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was produced at 08:43:02 EST on
11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used in
accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes:

(691758cd3503¢13618796¢47)

42



Adgitions and Deéetions Report for
AIA” Document A141 - 2024

This Additions and Deletions Report, as defined on page 1 of the associated document, reproduces below all text the author has
added to the standard form AIA document in order to complete it, as well as any text the author may have added to or deleted from
the original AIA text. Added text is shown underlined. Deleted text is indicated with a horizontal line through the original AIA text.

Note: This Additions and Deletions Report is provided for information purposes only and is not incorporated into or constitute any
part of the associated AIA document. This Additions and Deletions Report and its associated document were generated
simultaneously by AlA software at 08:43:02 EST on 11/20/2025.

Changes to original AIA text

PAGE 4

Variable Information
PAGE 1

AGREEMENT made as of the Twenty-fourth day of November in the year Two Thousand Twenty-Five
(In words, indicate day, month, and year.)

Lowndes County Board of Commissioners

327 N Ashley Street
Valdosta, GA 31601

(229) 671-2400

Kellerman Construction, Inc.

2717-D Windemere Drive
Valdosta, GA 31602

229-249-5330

New Lowndes County Animal Shelter
Valdosta, GA 31602

New Animal Shelter

PAGE 2

The project is for the design and construction of a new animal shelter. The program, as understood by the
design/build team includes housing for dogs and cats, adoption service areas and additional support areas including
administrative offices and employee support areas such as locker rooms and showers.

PAGE 3

Per the Owner's Request for Proposal, the projects scope includes engineering, design services, permitting,
procurement, construction, operation and maintenance (O&M) manual preparation, start-up and commissioning

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,”
“American Institute of Architects,” “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was
produced at 08:43:02 EST on 11/20/2025 under Subscription N0.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only,
and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796¢47)



services, and operator training for the new animal shelter.

The project will be located at 337 Gil Harbin Industrial Boulevard in Valdosta, Georgia. The Owner will provide all
pertinent studies or reports as available or required for the Design/Builder. If site surveys, soils reports, geotechnical
reports, or environmental reports are not available and deemed necessary, the Owner will provide, at the Owner's
cost, the required reports/information to the Design/Builder.

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

The Owner's budget for the project is $5.000,000.00. This figure includes the proposed items:
e Sitework Allowance: $450,000.00
e Building: $4,050,000.00
e  Construction Contingency: $200,000.00
L)

Architectural/Engineering Fee: $300,000.00

April 06, 2026

May 04, 2026
PAGE 4

May 4. 2027

Evaluation of Owner's Criteria: December 19, 2025

Preliminary Design: January 16, 2026
Design Builder's Proposal: April 6, 2026

Studio 8 Design, LLC - Architect

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Chad McLeod

327 N Ashley Street
Valdosta, GA 31601

(229) 671-2428
(229) 561-2639

cmcleod@lowndescounty.com

Not Applicable (or to be hired by the County if required)

Not Applicable (or to be hired by the County if required)

The following consultants will be hired by the County:
e  Material Testing Consultant
o IBC Special Inspections
e Surveys including Soils Reports, Geotechnical Reports, Environmental Reports (if

applicable)

PAGE 5

Not Applicable

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,”
“American Institute of Architects,” “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was
produced at 08:43:02 EST on 11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only,
and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)



Brahm Kellerman

2717-D Windemere Drive
Valdosta, GA 31602

229-249-5330

kellermanconstruction@gmail.com

Studio 8 Design, LLC - Architect

[X ] Subject toa Meet and Confer obligation in accordance with Section 15.2.1.
Not Applicable
[X ] Arbitration pursuant to Section 15.4

[ ] |Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction

[ ] Other: (Specify)

PAGE 7

Electronic submission via email shall be with a required read receipt for the transmission of the notice with a phone
call follow-up to the recipient to ensure the recipient received the email.

Compensation for Architect's Design and Construction Document Services: $270,000.00 (90% of Design Fee) to be
paid prior to execution of the D/B Amendment. Note: Compensation for Architect's Construction Administration
Services: $30.000.00 will be paid during construction.

Pre-Construction Fee: $15,000.00

Will provide hourly rates per job title as required

PAGE 8
§ 2.1.3.2 For Reimbursable Expenses, the compensation shall be the expenses the Design-Builder and the Design-
Builder’s Architect, Consultants, and Subcontractors incurred, plus Ten percent ( 10.00 %) of the expenses

incurred.

Owner and Design/Builder will negotiate compensation if additional services are required.

§ 2.1.5.1.1 Amounts unpaid Thirty (30 ) days after the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or
in the absence thereof, at the legal rate prevailing from time to time at the principal place of business of the Design-
Builder.
(Insert rate of monthly or annual interest agreed upon.)
1.00 % monthly
PAGE 9

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,”
“American Institute of Architects,” “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was
produced at 08:43:02 EST on 11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only,
and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.
User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)



No Limit

Not Applicable
PAGE 12

Not Applicable
PAGE 15

Local Authorities Having Jurisdiction as required by the Owner.

PAGE 28

1.00 % monthly

PAGE 34
Builder's Termination Fee: $70.000.00
Designer's Termination Fee: $270,000.00
To be negotiated if applicable

PAGE 41

Not Applicable

Additions and Deletions Report for AIA Document A141 — 2024. Copyright © 2004, 2014, and 2024. All rights reserved. “The American Institute of Architects,”
“American Institute of Architects,” “AlA,” the AIA Logo, and “AlA Contract Documents” are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This draft was 4
produced at 08:43:02 EST on 11/20/2025 under Subscription No.20250126534 which expires on 05/23/2026, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only,

and may only be used in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com.

User Notes: (691758cd3503c13618796c47)



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Quit Claim Deed (QCD) for Navigable Waters, LLC at 4939

Bemiss Road
Work

DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular
Session

BUDGET IMPACT: N/A
FUNDING SOURCE:
() Annual

() Capital

(X) N/A

() SPLOST

() TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: QCD for Navigable Waters, LLC

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: Parcel 0145B 185B, owned by Navigable Waters LLC on Bemiss Road, shows a
drainage easement on plats dating back to 1968. Lowndes County does not have any record of any rights to
the drainage easement. The owner has requested a Quit Claim Deed from Lowndes County stating that
Lowndes County has not had or claimed, and does not now have or claim, any interest in said described
property, including any interest in the "25' drainage easement".

OPTIONS: 1. Approve and authorize the Chairman to sign the Quit Claim Deed.
2. Redirect.

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Option 1

DEPARTMENT: Engineering DEPARTMENT HEAD: Chad McLeod

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



............... DOVER MILLER KARRAS LANGDALE & BRANTLEY

ATTORNEYS AT LAW
A PROFESSIONAL CORPORATION

1{- lt’l,ic_ha;} DCOVCT " 701 North Patterson Street Willis (1}.9]:(/17’.][;(;212[),
atricia McCorvey Karras : .
Jsckson R, Langdule Valdosta, Georgia 31601-4526

Nathanael D. Brantley

Jennifer Stakich Walker* Mailing Address:

Charles A. Shenton IV Post Office Box 729 *licensed in Georgia and Florida
W. Cavan Perry .

Taylor Thomas Young Valdosta, Georgia 31603-0729

Matthew P. Smith Telephone:

229-242-0314

November 10, 2025

Lowndes County Board of Commissioners
c/o Mike Fletcher, County Engineer

327 North Ashley Street

Valdosta, GA 31601

RE: Drainage Easement on enclosed plat titled Pine Grove Townhomes for Navigable Waters,
LLC

Dear Mike:

Please accept this as our formal request, on behalf of Navigable Waters, LLC, the owner of the
property depicted on the above-referenced plat for Lowndes County to abandon and relinquish any
right, title, and interest to the above-referenced Drainage Easement as it is no longer in use by
Lowndes County, adjacent landowners, or other residents, and it currently serves no
purpose. Please let me know if I can provide additional information.

We appreciate your consideration of this matter.

Sincerely,

Jackson R. Langdale
JRL:bt

Enclosure



50° 25 51W

50730 26°W

[GWNER NOW OR FORMERLY
NAVIGABLE WATERS, LLC
PARCEL AREA: 6.347 ACRES
MAP/PARCEL:1458-1858
ZONINGP-D

EASEMENT TO SE ABANDONED.
. (SERVES NO PURPOSE)

s:

780
L2 3rg
il

OWHER

CHARLES . D

4560-F Valnorth Drive
Valdosta, GA 31602
(229) 2920756
matt@phelps-companies.com

=PACE

[
Vi, ENGINCERRG - OCHERAL CONTRACTIG

PINE GROVE TOWNHOMES
NAVIGABLE WATERS, LLC

IF YOU DIG GEORGIA...
CALL US FIRST!
UTILITIES PROTECTION CENTER
IT'S THE LAW
www.gaupc.cam

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

HAHH




After recording, please return to:

Dover Miller Karras Langdale & Brantly, P.C.
701 North Patterson Street

Valdosta, Georgia 31601

File No. 0718834

QUIT-CLAIM DEED

STATE OF GEORGIA,
COUNTY OF LOWNDES

THIS INDENTURE is made as of the 9" day of December, 2025, between LOWNDES
COUNTY, GEORGIA, as party of the first part, hereinafter called Grantor, and NAVIGABLE
WATERS, LLC, a Georgia limited liability company, as party of the second part, hereinafter
called Grantee (the words “Grantor” and “Grantee” to include their respective heirs, successors,
administrators, and assigns and the singular or plural number and proper gender where the context
requires or permits).

WITNESSETH: That Grantor does by these presents quit-claim to Grantee all the right,
title, interest, claim, or demand which the Grantor has or may have had in and to the following
described real property, to wit:

" See Exhibit “A”

The sole purpose of this quit-claim deed is to confirm that Grantor has not heretofore
had or claimed, and does not now have or claim, any interest in said described property,
including any interest in that “25° DRAINAGE EASEMENT” depicted on that Plat of
Survey for Nijem and Nijem, A Partnership, dated September 15, 1988, and recorded in Plat
Book 33 at page 111 of the Lowndes County, Georgia public records.

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the said tract or parcel of land, with all and singular the rights,
improvements and appurtenances thereof, to the same being, belonging, or in anywise
appertaining, to the only proper use, benefit, and behoof of the said Grantee forever so that neither
Grantor nor anyone claiming under Grantor shall have, claim, or demand any right, title, or interest
in said property.

-1-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Grantor has signed and sealed this deed the day and year
above written.

LOWNDES COUNTY, GEORGIA

(SEAL)

Bill Slaughter
Chair

Signed, sealed, and delivered in the
presence of:

Witness

Notary Public



Exhibit “A”

All that tract or parcel of land situate lying and being located in Land Lot 145 of the 11th Land
District, Lowndes County, Georgia, containing 6.343 acres and being more particularly
described as follows: For a POINT OF BEGINNING, begin at a point located at the intersection
of the northwesterly r/w margin of Bemiss Road (said road having a variable r/w) with the
southerly r/w margin of Pine Grove Road (said road having a r/w of 78.74 feet) at the
southerly end of the mitered intersection; thence proceed along said westerly r/w margin of
Bemiss Road south 35 degrees 39 minutes 28 seconds west for a distance of 45.93 feet to a point;
thence continue along said r/w margin south 31 degrees 46 minutes 43 seconds west for a
distance of 97.02 feet to a point; thence continue along said r/w margin south 35 degrees 39
minutes 26 seconds west for a distance of 181.43 feet to an iron pin; thence proceed north 78
degrees 38 minutes 22 seconds west for a distance of 457.04 feet to a 1/2" iron pin; thence
proceed north 00 degrees 29 minutes 11 seconds east for a distance of 171.05 feet to a 1/2" iron
pin; thence proceed north 00 degrees 29 minutes 11 seconds east a distance of 255.75 feet to a
1/2" iron pin; thence proceed south 89 degrees 02 minutes 49 seconds east for a distance of
208.59 feet to a 1/2" iron pin; thence proceed north 00 degrees 28 minutes 37 seconds east for a
distance of 154.65 feet to a point located on the southerly r/w of Pine Grove Road; thence
proceed along said r/w margin along the arc of a clockwise curve for a distance of 217.51
feet (said curve having a radius of 551.18 feet and being subtended by a chord having a bearing
of south 55 degrees 38 minutes 53 seconds east for a distance of 216.10 feet) to a point; thence
continue along said r/w margin south 44 degrees 20 minutes 33 seconds east for a distance of
334.03 feet to a point; thence continue along said r/w margin south 09 degrees 04 minutes 03
seconds east for a distance of 40.44 feet to THE POINT OF BEGINNING.



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Adoption of 2027 Budget Calendar
Work

DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular
Session

BUDGET IMPACT:

FUNDING SOURCE:

() Annual
() Capital
() N/A
() SPLOST
() TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Adoption of the 2027 Budget Calendar

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: Attached for your review is the proposed budget calendar for Fiscal Year

2027. Preparations have already begun and packages have already been sent to departments and outside
agencies. The calendar is a guideline for the process and milestones leading up to adoption of the final budget
in June. The final budget must be approved by June 30, 2026 by the Board of Commissioners.

OPTIONS: 1. Adopt the Fiscal Year 2027 Budget Calendar.
2. Board's Pleasure

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt

DEPARTMENT: Finance DEPARTMENT HEAD: Stephanie Black

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



Budget Calendar
Fiscal Year 2026 - 2027

Personnel Requests Forms Sent to Elected Officials and
Department Heads

Manager's Budget Letter to Elected Officials, Department Heads
and Outside Agencies

Finance Issues Budget Packages Electronically to Elected
Officials, Department Heads and Outside Agencies

Finance Offers Preliminary Budget Meetings to Answer Questions

Regarding Completion of Budget Packages

Personnel Requests Including New Positions and Upgrades Due
to Human Resources

Human Resources Determines the Cost of Any Personnel
Requests

Packages Due Back to Finance
Commission Planning Retreat

Finance Enters All Requests into the Budgeting Software and
Clarifies Any Requests

Human Resources Prepares a Payroll Budget Based on Position
Requests and Direction from the Board

Finance Makes the Initial Revenue Projections

Budget Committee Meets With All Elected Officials, Department
Heads and Outside Agencies to Discuss Their Budgets

Budget Committee Finalizes Budget Recommendations

Board of Commissioners Hold Work Sessions to Review the
Proposed Budgets and Make Recommendations

Public Hearing on the Budget

Adoption of the Budget

12/01/25

12/01/25

12/01/25

January 2026

01/16/26

02/20/26
02/20/26

March 2026

02/27/26

03/02/26

03/06/26

March - April 2026

05/01/26

05/01/26

06/09/26

06/23/26



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: 2026 Public Defender Contracts
Work
DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular
Session
BUDGET IMPACT:
FUNDING SOURCE:
() Annual
() Capital
(X) N/A
() SPLOST
() TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: 2026 Public Defender Contracts

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: The attached contract for 2026CY ongoing public defender services and 2026CY
administration of operating expenses contract for the Valdosta office are the same as have been presented
annually for several years with no changes.

OPTIONS: 1. Approve the request and authorize Chairman to sign both contracts.
2. Board's Pleasure

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve

DEPARTMENT: Public Defender DEPARTMENT HEAD: Wade Krueger

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



AMENDMENT TO THE INDIGENT DEFENSE SERVICES
AGREEMENT AMONG THE CIRCUIT PUBLIC DEFENDER OFFICE OF THE
SOUTHERN JUDICIAL CIRCUIT AND THE GOVERNING AUTHCRITIES OF

BROOKS, CCLQUITT, ECHOLS, LOWNDES, AND THOMAS COUNTIES

THE AGREEMENT entered on January 31, 2007, among the Circuit
Public Defender Office of the Southern Judicial Circuit (herein
referred to as “the Public Defender Office”), the governing
authority of Brooks County, a body politic and a subdivision of
the State of Georgia (herein referred to as “Brooks County”},
the governing authority of Colquitt County, a body politic and a
subdivision of the State of Georgia (herein referred to as
“Colquitt County”}, the governing authority of Echols County, a
body politic and a subdivision of the State of Georgia (herein
referred tc as “Echols County”), the governing authority of
Lowndes County, a body politic and a subdivision of the State of
Georgia (herein referred to as “Lowndes County”), and the
governing authority of Thomas County, a body politic and a
subdivision of the State of Georgia (herein referred to as
“Thomas County”), is hereby amended pursuant to Section 6.06 of
the agreement by striking in its entirety Section 6.01 relating
to Term of the agreement and inserting in lieu thereof the
following:

Section 6.01 Term. The term of this agreement is 1 year
beginning January 1, 2026 and ending December 31, 2026. This
agreement may be renewed by the Public Defender Office by
providing written notice to each of the county representatives
designated in Section 6.05 within 30 days prior to the
expiration of the agreement in accordance with Section 6.06.
This agreement may also be renewed when the annual budget has
been agreed to by all parties. Notice of the renewal will be
sent by the Public Defender to the representatives of the
parties identified in Section 6,05,

In addition, the parties to this agreement acknowledge and
consent to the continued rollover of the county’s surplus sent
to the GPDC in calendar year 2025, if any, from the previous
calendar year budgets to be retained on behalf of the Public
Defender Program for FY 2025-2026. These funds are specific to
personnel and operating expenses for the Valdosta office from
Lowndes, Brooks and Echols Counties and the personnel budget
from Colguitt and Thomas Counties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have each here unto affixed
their signatures.



ATTEST: LOWNDES COUNTY

BY:

Belinda C. Lovern Bill Slaughter, Chairman
County Clerk Board of Commissioners

Date



AMENDMENT TO THE GEORGIA INDIGENT DEFENSE
SERVICES AGREEMENT FOR THE ADMINISTRATION OF
OPERATING EXPENSES

THE AGREEMENT entered on the 317 day of January, 2011, among the Georgia Public
Defender Standards Council, now revised to the Georgia Public Defender Council (herein referred
to as “GPDC?”}, the Circuit Public Defender Office of the Southern Judicial Circuit ¢(herein referred
to as “the Public Defender Office”), the governing authority of Brooks County, a body politic and
a subdivision of the State of Georgia (herein referred to as “Brooks County™), the governing
authority of Echols County, a body politic and a subdivision of the State of Geotgia (herein referred
to as “Echols County”), and the governing authority of Lowndes County, a body politic and a
subdivision of the State of Georgia (hetein referred to as “Lowndes County”), Brooks, Echols and
Lowndes Counties are herein referred to collectively as “the Counties,” is hereby amended pursuant
to Section 2.01 of the agreement by striking in its entirety Section 2.01 relating to Term of the
agreement and inserting in lieu thereof the following:

Section 2:01 Term, The tetm of this agreement is 1 yeat beginning Januaty 1, 2026 and ending
December 31, 2026. This agreement may be renewed when the annual budget has been agreed to by
all parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have each hete uato affixed their signatutes.

ATTEST: Circuit Public Defender
Southern Judicial Circuit

BY:
Wade Krueger
Circuit Public Defendes
Date
ATTEST: Geozrgia Public Defender Council
BY:

Omotayo B. Alli
Executive Director

Date



ATTEST: LOWNDES COUNTY

BY:

Belinda C. Lovern Bill Slaughter, Chairman
County Clerk Board of Commissioners

Date



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: 2026 ACCG Workers' Compensation Insurance Renewal
Work
DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular
Session
BUDGET IMPACT: $280,452.00
FUNDING SOURCE:
(X) Annual
() Capital
() N/A
() SPLOST
() TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Approve 2026 ACCG Workers' Compensation Insurance
Renewal

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: Lowndes County participates in the ACCG-GSIWCF (Group Self Insurance
Workers' Compensation Fund) Insurance Program. This non-profit program began with 11 counties on July 1,
1982, with Lowndes County joining on July 22, 1982. The program has now grown to 166 counties and
authorities throughout the State of Georgia. The ACCG-GSIWCF Board of Trustees has recently approved an
overall 11.4% rate decrease for 2026.

The 2026 renewal premium for Lowndes County is $301,680.00. However, due to a dividend credit of
$21,228.00, the total premium due is $280,452.00. It should also be noted that Lowndes County's Safety/Loss
Control Program has also contributed to a 7.5% reduction on our premium, which is equal to a savings of
$24,461.00.

OPTIONS: 1. Approve 2026 ACCG Workers' Compensation Insurance Renewal
2. Board's Pleasure

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Board's Pleasure

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources DEPARTMENT HEAD: Kevin Beals

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



GROUP SELF-INSURANCE WORKERS’ COMPENSATION FUND
2026 ESTIMATED CONTRIBUTION INVOICE

Insurance Programs

PLEASE MAKE CHECK PAYABLE TO THE ACCG-GSIWCF.
MAIL PAYMENT AND ONE COPY OF INVOICE TO:

Truist Trust Dept — Income Processing 1
ACCG - GSIWCF #0384
P.O. Box 896741
Charlotte, NC 28289-6741

MEMBER 3905
Lowndes County INVOICE NO.:  1-3905-2026
PO Box 1349 AMOUNT: $280,452
Valdosta, GA 31602 DUE DATE: 1/1/2026
INSURANCE DESCRIPTION DEPARTMENT
WORKERS’ COMPENSATION ACCG INSURANCE & RISK MANAGEMENT SERVICES
COVERAGE PERIOD
DESCRIPTION AMOUNT DUE
EFFECTIVE EXPIRATION
1/1/2026 1/1/2027 ACCG - GROUP SELF-INSURANCE
WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND
FUND DATES FROM
1/1/2026 TO 1/1/2027
DEDUCTIBLE PROGRAM: $250,000
2026 ESTIMATED CONTRIBUTION $301,680
2026 DIVIDEND CONTRIBUTION CREDIT ($21,228)
280,452
AMOUNT DUE ACCG 3 ’

The ACCG-GSIWCEF is non-profit and member-owned. Prompt payment of your contribution is necessary to keep the cost of coverage
down for all members. A finance charge of 7% annual, pro-rated daily interest will be assessed on any contributions over 30 days past
due. Should you have any questions about this invoice, please call Lisa Wood at ACCG at (404) 589-7874 or (404) 308-5760.

WE APPRECIATE YOUR PARTICIPATION IN THE
ACCG - GROUP SELF-INSURANCE WORKERS’ COMPENSATION FUND

Date: 12/1/2025



ASSOCIATION COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF GEORGIA
GROUP SELF-INSURANCE WORKERS’ COMPENSATION FUND
ESTIMATED CONTRIBUTION STATEMENT
1/1/2026 TO 1/1/2027

Lowndes County MEMBER NO. 3905
CODE CLASSIFICATION RATE ESTIMATED ESTIMATED
PAYROLL CONTRIBUTION
5506 STREET OR ROAD CONSTRUCTION 6.59 $2,182,352 $143,817
7520 WATERWORKS OPERATIONS & DRIVERS 3.07 $1,550,658 $47,605
7710 FIREFIGHTERS & DRIVERS - PAID 2.59 $3,812,823 $98,752
7720 POLICE OFFICERS & DRIVERS 3.26 $13,164,783 $429,172
8380 AUTO REPAIR SHOP & DRIVERS 1.98 $588,563 $11,654
8810 CLERICAL 0.27 $12,374,315 $33,411
8831 HOSPITAL - VETERINARY & DRIVERS 0.96 $827,720 $7,946
9015 BUILDINGS NOC OPERATIONS BY OWNER 4.48 $838,597 $37,569
9102 PARK MAINTENANCE 2.66 $94,012 $2,501
9410 MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES 2.52 $2,947.864 $74,286
7711 FIREFIGHTERS & DRIVERS - VOLUNTEERS 2.59 $3,832 $99
$38,385,519 $886,812
EXPERIENCE MODIFICATION 1.3700 X 1.3700
VOLUME DISCOUNT -21.00% X 0.7900
SAFETY DISCOUNT -0.075 0.925
SCHEDULED MODIFIER -10.00% X 0.9000
$799,030
ESTIMATED LARGE DEDUCTIBLE CONTRIBUTION $250,000 DEDUCTIBLE $301,680
2026 DIVIDEND ($21,228)
I 2026 ESTIMATED CONTRIBUTION DUE 1/1/2026 $280,452 I

THE ANNUAL CONTRIBUTION IS DUE ON 1/1/2026. PROMPT PAYMENT OF THE CONTRIBUTION IS NECESSARY TO KEEP
THE COST OF COVERAGE DOWN FOR ALL MEMBERS. A FINANCE CHARGE OF 7% ANNUAL PRO-RATED DAILY INTEREST
WILL BE ASSESSED ON ANY CONTRIBUTIONS NOT RECEIVED WHEN DUE.

CONGRATULATIONS ON MEETING THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE SAFETY DISCOUNT PROGRAM FOR 2026.
YOUR EFFORTS HAVE RESULTED IN A 7.5% REDUCTION ON YOUR 2026 PREMIUM OR A SAVINGS OF:
$24,461

Date: 12/1/2025



= 191 Peachtree Street
ACCG %

Insurance Programs Atlanta, Georgia 30303
= p 800.858.2224
fx 404.522.1897

accg.org
MEMORANDUM
TO: Members of the ACCG Workers’ Compensation Program
FROM: Ashley Abercrombie, CPCU, Director of Property & Casualty Programs
DATE: December 1, 2025

SUBJECT: 2026 Workers' Compensation Renewal and Dividend Distribution

Thank you for your continued support of the ACCG member-owned insurance programs.
Enclosed is the 2026 invoice, an Evidence of Coverage, and supporting documentation for
renewal in the Association County Commissioners of Georgia - Group Self-Insurance Workers'
Compensation Fund (ACCG-GSIWCF).

The ACCG-GSIWCF continues to be financially strong, supplying stable workers’
compensation coverage in a cost-effective manner to 166 Georgia counties and authorities.
This non-profit program has provided quality service at affordable prices since 1982, when
Georgia county representatives asked the legislature for a group self-insurance alternative
due to the rising cost of commercial insurance.

Rates have decreased by 49.1% over the last ten years due to improvements in the
members’ overall loss experience. Due to a significant increase in payrolls and stable claims
and operating costs, the ACCG-GSIWCF Board of Trustees recently approved an overall
11.4% rate decrease for 2026. Each member is individually rated and may receive an
increase or a decrease, based on their specific payroll, claims history, and other factors.

The ACCG-GSIWCF Board also voted to return a dividend in the amount of $4.5 million to
those members who were in the Fund in fiscal years 1998 to 2016, the years from which the
surplus is returned. The dividend will be credited to the 20246 billed premiums, reducing the
members’ premiums by an average of 14%. Unlike commercial insurers, which would retain
any underwriting or investment income, the Fund regularly returns such income to the
membership in the form of dividends, which reduces the overall cost for workers’
compensation coverage. Inclusive of this dividend, the Fund has returned over $132 million
in dividends since its inception.

When risk pools such as ACCG-GSIWCF experience lower-than-expected losses and/or
favorable financial performance, excess funds can be distributed back to members. This
encourages risk management and provides financial benefits to the membership. Please
see the enclosed report showing your organization’s Cash Returns, Employee Safety Grants,
the Law Enforcement Driving Grant, and Dividend Credits, where applicable.

Protecting Georgia’s Counties.



December 1, 2025
Page 2

If you see a change from the 2025 estimated premium, it could be due to one or more of
the following factors:

¢ Change in Employees/Payroll — Workers’ compensation premium is based on your
organization's payroll, so a change in payroll affects premium. (Your initial invoice is
based upon the estimated annual payroll submitted. ACCG will conduct an audit after
the term expires and send you an invoice/refund based on the actual, audited payroll.)

¢ Adjustments in Rates/Payroll - While the overall rates decreased 11.4%, some individual
class code rates were adjusted more or less than others based on the claims experience
in the related occupations. If your organization has changes in payroll within class codes
that had substantive rate adjustments, that will impact your premium.

e Change in Experience Modification - As is standard in the insurance industry, an
experience modifier is calculated annually for each member and is used in the premium
calculation. This modifier provides equity in pricing because it predicts the member’s
future losses based on their 3-year claims history, not including the current year. Some
members have an increase in premium because their actual losses for that 3-year period
are more than expected based on their payroll by class code. Other members have a
reduced premium because their actual losses are less than expected. Your workers’
compensation claims or lack thereof has a direct impact on your future premiums, so it is
extremely important to implement and maintain an effective safety program.

¢ Change in Safety Discount — You have the ability to reduce your workers’ compensation
premium by earning the 7.5% Safety Discount. Most members earned the discount for
2026 by meeting the requirements in 2025. Not only does the discount lower your
organization’s future premium and make it eligible for the 2026 Employee Safety Grant
Program, but most importantly, it may also prevent serious injury or save the life of an
employee or volunteer! Again, premiums are affected by your claims experience, so
preventing claims should result in lower premiums in future years.

Safety should be supported by management and encouraged among all employees. In
the short term, please contact Local Government Risk Management Services (LGRMS) at
800-650-3120 if you need help establishing or improving your safety program. LGRMS has
extensive resources available at no additional charge - online, onsite, regionally, and
through periodicals. More information will come on ACCG Risk Control soon!

If you have any questions about your 2026 premium, please call me or Matt Autry at
404-522-5022. On behalf of the ACCG-GSIWCF Board of Trustees and the ACCG team, we
express our appreciation for your continued support of the ACCG Insurance Programs. The
success of the ACCG-GSIWCEF is directly attributable to your organization's long-term
commitment to the program.



o Financials

ASSOCIATION COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF GEORGIA

Group Self-Insurance Workers’ Compensation Fund
BALANCE SHEET
30 September 2025

ADMITTED ASSETS

Bonds, amortized cost $201,009,939
Stocks, market value 85,767,471
Investment in County Re Limited 1,975,241
Cash and short-term investments 15,966,181

Total cash and invested assets 304,718,832
Contribution receivable 170,660
Pendng trade receivable 4,779,213
Deductible receivable 723,791
Reinsurance recoverables on paid claims 326,047
Accrued interest and dividends receivable 1,962,265
Other Assets 37,944

Total admitted assets $312,718,752

RESERVES, LIABILITIES AND MEMBERS' FUND BALANCE

Open claims reserves $27,973,115
Incurred but not reported claims reserves (IBNR) 47,972,010
Unallocated loss adjustment expenses (ULAE) 5,787,765
Unearned contributions 7,371,285
Advanced funding 827,199
Pending trade payables 6,882,338
Accrued expenses and payables 1,473,056

Total reserves and liabilities 98,286,768

MEMBERS' STATUTORY FUND BALANCE

Statutory surplus 200,000
Reserve for security deposit 3,527,061
Reserve for extraordinary loss 4,086,645
Safety grants 1,608,305
GA Sheriffs’ loss control grant reserves 115,912
Net unrealized gain 54,160,140
Undesignated members' fund balance 150,733,921
Total members' fund balance 214,431,984

Total reserves, liabilities and members' fund balance $312,718,752



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: 2026 Stop Loss Insurance Coverage Renewal
Work
DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular
Session
BUDGET IMPACT: $1,929,379.00
FUNDING SOURCE:
(X) Annual
() Capital
() N/A
() SPLOST
() TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Approve Stop Loss Insurance Coverage through Swiss
Re for the 2026 Plan Year

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: The Lowndes County Health Benefit Plan is a self-funded program that is
administered through Allied Benefits (third party administrator) using the Blue Bross Blue Shield Network of
Georgia (Anthem). Stop loss insurance is a form of excess risk coverage that provides protection for Lowndes
County against a high claim on any one individual.

EPIC Brokers & Consultants represents Lowndes County as our Health Insurance Broker. Each year EPIC
markets the County's Stop Loss Insurance Coverage in an effort to capture the best available rates for the
employee health benefit plan. Marketing results indicated that Swiss Re is currently offering the lowest
available rates for the upcoming 2026 plan year.

OPTIONS: 1. Approve Stop Loss Insurance Coverage through Swiss Re with a "Spec Coverage" level of
$150,000.00 for the 2026 plan year.
2. Board's Pleasure

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Board's Pleasure

DEPARTMENT: Human Resources DEPARTMENT HEAD: Kevin Beals

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



Lowndes County BOC
Self-Insured Health Benefits - Stop Loss Cost Analysis
Effective January 01, 2026
Current, Renewal and Alternatives

E|P|1|C]

Insurance Brokers and Consultants

Current (2025) Year Renewal (2026) Year Alternative (2026) Year Alternative (2026) Alternative (2026)
HM HM HM

Swiss Re Swiss Re
Firm Firm Firm Firm
ENROLLMENT
Single 324 324 324 324 324
Family 304 304 304 304 304
Total Enrolled Employees + Retirees 628 628 628 628 628
SPECIFIC & AGGREGATE STOPLOSS
Specific Level $135,000 $135,000 $150,000 $135,000 $150,000
Contract Type 48/12 60/12 60/12 36/12 36/12
Annual/Lifetime Maximum Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited Unlimited
Benefits Covered Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx
Monthly Premium: Single $117.75 $176.29 $160.85 $160.67 $145.87
Monthly Premium: Employee + Spouse
Monthly Premium: Employee + Child(ren) $327.25 $491.20 $452.80 $409.70 $373.42
Monthly Premium: Family
Specific Estimated Annual Cost $1,651,620 $2,477,313 $2,277,199 $2,119,271 $1,929,379
Aggregate Attachment Point 125% 125% 125% 125% 125%
Contract Type 48/12 60/12 60/12 36/12 36/12
Contract Maximum $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000
Benefits Covered Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx Medical & Rx
Monthly Aggregate Premium $3.32 $3.57 $3.66 $4.20 $4.33
Aggregate Estimated Annual Cost $25,020 $26,904 $27,582 $31,651 $32,631
STOPLOSS TOTAL
Combined Spec/Agg Estimated Total Annu $1,676,640 $2,504,217 $2,304,781 $2,150,922 $1,962,010
IPercentage Change from 2025 49.36% 37.46% 28.29% 17.02%
IDoIIar Change from 2025 $827,577 $628,141 $474,282 $285,370
Attachment Point - Single $809.25 $898.56 $908.44 $791.91 $820.58
Attachment Point - Family $1,942.21 $2,156.53 $2,180.25 $2,180.91 $2,258.23
Estimated Annual Attachment Point $10,231,546 $11,360,623 $11,485,567 $11,034,906 $11,428,438
ANNUAL MAXIMUM PLAN COST $11,908,186 $13,864,839 $13,790,348 $13,185,828 $13,390,448
Percentage Change from 2025 16.43% 15.81% 10.73% 12.45%
|DoIIar Change from 2025 $1,956,654 $1,882,162 $1,277,642 $1,482,262
Footnotes:
1. lllustrative Stop Loss quotes are subject to further underwriting based on updated claims.
2. Prior year headcounts adjusted to current for total premium comparisons.
11/24/2025

Proprietary and Confidential - Edgewood Partners Insurance Center




LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Enhancement and Innovation/Law Enforcement Grant
Work

DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular
Session

BUDGET IMPACT: Less than or equal to $2,828.00
FUNDING SOURCE:

() Annual
() Capital
() N/A
() SPLOST
() TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Acceptance of Expected Enhancement and
Innovation/Law Enforcement Grant Juv. Acct. Court

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: Match funding requested for EXPECTED enhancement and innovation grant
award not to exceed $2,828.

1. Law Enforcement Officer Grant - $3,000
This request covers continued funding for field supervision services through the Lowndes County Sheriff’s
Office. No county match is required, so there is no anticipated impact on the county budget.

2. Enhancement and Innovation Grant

This application includes:
- $3,600 to continue and expand contracted case-management services
- $12,870 for laboratory-based drug testing
- $2,383 for onsite instant screening devices

The total request is $18,853. Based on the standard 15% match requirement, the county’s match—if the full
amount is awarded—would be $2,828. The match will not exceed this amount.

| plan to use the match funds to purchase additional drug testing supplies to support participant monitoring
and program compliance.

If the Board prefers, | am also able to request a match waiver from CACJ.

Note: Final award TBD

OPTIONS: 1. Approve
2. Board's Pleasure

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Board's Pleasure



DEPARTMENT: Juvenile Accountability Court DEPARTMENT HEAD: Geoffrey Martin

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



Form Name:
Submission Time:
Browser:

IP Address: 24.170.201.100
Unique ID: 1384447003
Location:

Court or Agency Name
Point of Contact
Contact Number

Address

Email

Name of Accountability Court(s)
and Grant Number(s)

Check all that apply
Name of Judicial Circuit

Project Description

FY'26 Enhancement and Innovative Application
September 26, 2025 2:46 pm
Chrome 140.0.0.0 / OS X

Lowndes County Juvenile Accountability Court
Geoffrey Martin
2294748739

327 N Ashley St
Valdosta, GA 31601

gpm@accountabilitycourt.org

Lowndes County Juvenile Accountability Court
AW-ACFP-26-425-120

Juvenile Court
Southern Judicial Circuit

Applicant: Lowndes County Juvenile Accountability Court Agency
Type: Juvenile Drug Court

Founded: September 2020

Geographic Area: Lowndes County, Georgia (Southern Judicial
Circuit)

Target Population: Youth participants (ages 13-17) enrolled in the
Juvenile Accountability Court program

Estimated Number Served (Grant Period): 15-20 active
participants (January 1, 2026 - June 30, 2026)

The Lowndes County Juvenile Accountability Court (LCJAC) serves
juveniles ages 13-17 who have been adjudicated delinquent and
assessed at moderate to high risk levels for re-offending. These
youth often present with multiple criminogenic needs, including
substance use, negative peer associations, poor academic
engagement, and family instability.



Needs Statement

LCJAC serves justice-involved youth (ages 13-17) in Lowndes
County. During Jan 1-Jun 30, 2026, the program expects ~10
youth active at any given time (total served 15-20 due to
entries/exits). Two local operational gaps limit LCJAC's ability to
meet supervision and monitoring expectations: (1) insufficient
case-management capacity and (2) inadequate, dedicated
drug-testing resources.

Case Management Services (gap)

From July-December 2025, LCJAC used $2,100 in local match at
$15/hour (= 140 hours) to purchase limited case-management
coverage. Those funds will be fully expended by Dec 31, 2025,
shifting coordination tasks (school/treatment contacts, parent
engagement, reminders, transportation/problem-solving, and
court preparation) back to the single coordinator. With ~10 active
youth, the absence of dedicated hours reduces timely follow-up
on violations, slows referrals, and increases the risk that minor
issues escalate between hearings. To close this gap, LCJAC seeks
$3,600 to secure ~40 hours per month of case management
through June 30, 2026 (= 240 hours total) to maintain weekly
touchpoints, support drug screening logistics, and enable rapid
responses to school/treatment concerns.

2) Drug Testing Supplies (gap)

LCJAC is sharing testing supplies with other programs in the
circuit and must secure dedicated onsite supplies. The FY26
operating grant includes no funding for drug-testing supplies.
Program standards require two tests per week for approximately
10 active participants, totaling 520 tests over the 26-week period.
Contracted lab services requested with this grant will provide one
test per participant per week (260 tests total), leaving 260 tests
to be completed onsite. Planned LCJAC purchases-250
sixteen-panel urine cups ($1,312.50) and 200 twelve-panel
oral-fluid screens ($1,110.00), with shipping covered by
match-will provide 450 onsite tests, fully covering the onsite
requirement and creating a buffer of ~190 onsite tests. This
ensures capacity for invalid/adulterated collections, rescheduled
windows, and mid-period admissions without interruptions.

3) Laboratory Services (need and rationale)

In addition to onsite supplies, laboratory testing services are
necessary to reliably maintain twice-weekly screening. Lab
capacity addresses common juvenile barriers-parent/guardian
availability, transportation, and scheduling constraints-that can
otherwise prevent timely onsite collections. Lab testing also
provides confirmations when results are disputed or observed



urine collections are not feasible. This combined lab + onsite
approach is the most practical way for LCJAC to meet the required
testing frequency for the local caseload while reducing burdens
on families and court staff and maintaining consistent monitoring
of participant substance use or abstinence.



Project Goals

Goal 1 - Maintain required testing frequency (behavior/condition)
Objective. Ensure each active participant is tested twice per week
throughout the project period using a combined lab + onsite
approach.

Performance indicators.

Testing schedules reflect 2 tests per active youth per week, with
exceptions documented.

Missed tests (without approved reason) are made up as soon as
feasible.

Monitoring. Onsite logs, lab reports, and CaseWorx entries are
reviewed on an ongoing basis, with discrepancies addressed as
they arise.

Goal 2 - Strengthen case-management engagement
(skills/behaviors)

Objective. Provide regular, meaningful case-management contact
for each youth to support testing logistics, treatment
participation, and school

coordination.

Performance indicators.

Each youth has documented CM contacts throughout participation
(in-person/phone/virtual).

Follow-up after testing/treatment issues is documented within 2
business

days.

Monitoring. CaseWorx notes are monitored continuously;
supervisors spot-check records and resolve gaps promptly.

Goal 3 - Improve treatment engagement (attitudes/behaviors)
Objective. Support consistent participation in scheduled group
and individual treatment through reminders and

coordination.

Performance indicators.

Attendance is tracked and reasons for misses are documented.
Missed sessions are rescheduled within 7 calendar days when
possible.

Monitoring. Provider attendance and CaseWorx records are
reconciled on an ongoing basis; barriers are addressed
immediately.

Goal 4 - Data quality & timeliness (skills/behaviors)
Objective. Maintain complete and timely entry for all testing and
CM



activities.

Performance indicators.

Testing events and CM contacts are entered in CaseWorx within
72 hours.

Reconciliation confirms alignment between onsite logs and lab
reports; chain-of-custody is complete for all lab

shipments.

Monitoring. CaseWorx exports, lab reports, and QA checklists are
reviewed continuously, with corrections made in real time.

How These Goals Meet the Local Need

LCJAC's youth (ages 13-17) face practical barriers-parent/guardian
availability, transportation, and shifting schedules-that make
consistent testing, treatment, and school coordination difficult. At
the same time, the court's FY26 operating grant does not include
drug-testing supplies, and current sharing across programs will
need to be addressed. The approved case-management match is
exhausted by December 2025, leaving a capacity gap that would
fall back on a single coordinator. The project goals directly target
these local conditions:

Maintain required testing frequency (Goal 1): The lab-plus-onsite
model sustains twice-weekly testing for ~10 active youth
providing reliable, timely information about substance
use/abstinence and enabling responses.

Strengthen case-management engagement (Goal 2): Dedicated
CM hours convert into regular, meaningful contacts with youth
and caregivers, resolving logistics (reminders, transportation
problem-solving, school/treatment coordination) in real time. This
reduces missed tests/sessions and prevents small issues from
escalating between hearings.

Improve treatment engagement (Goal 3): Focused CM support
and scheduling help stabilize participation in group and individual
services. This promotes changes in attitudes and skills (readiness
for change, coping strategies), and behaviors (showing up,
completing assignments), improving short-term outcomes for
youth and families in Lowndes County.

Data quality & timeliness (Goal 4): Ongoing, accurate entry and
reconciliation of testing and CM activity give the court team
current, trustworthy information for decisions, and strengthen
accountability -improving conditions for participants and the
broader service system.



Together, these goals translate the requested resources (CM
hours, dedicated supplies, and lab capacity) into continuous
supervision, faster problem-solving, and steadier engagement-all
tailored to LCJAC's local caseload and operational realities.



Project activities and services

The Lowndes County Juvenile Accountability Court (LCJAC) will
achieve its project goals through a structured service plan that
combines case management, onsite and laboratory drug testing,
treatment coordination, and accurate data reporting. Requested
grant funds will support the Case Manager position and
contracted laboratory services, both of which are essential to
maintaining program fidelity and accountability.

Services will be provided by three key partners. The Case
Manager, a funded position, will conduct regular
case-management contacts, administer one onsite drug test per
week per youth, coordinate with treatment providers, and ensure
that all activities are entered into CaseWorx within 72 hours.
Treatment staff, supported through existing resources, may assist
in administering onsite tests when youth are present at treatment
facilities and will help track attendance in counseling sessions.
Contract laboratory staff, also funded through this grant, will
provide weekly testing for each participant and confirm results
when necessary.

Together, these partners will deliver a consistent package of
services. Each active participant will undergo two drug tests per
week-one onsite through the Case Manager or treatment staff and
one through the contracted laboratory. The Case Manager will
provide weekly or more frequent contacts with youth and
caregivers to coordinate testing logistics, support school
engagement, and strengthen treatment participation. Treatment
coordination will ensure consistent attendance in weekly group
and individual counseling sessions at Legacy Behavioral Health,
with case-management support addressing barriers such as
transportation or scheduling. All services will be documented
promptly, with reconciliation occurring continuously to guarantee
accuracy in reporting.

The service plan will be implemented on an ongoing basis from
January 1 through June 30, 2026. Drug testing will occur twice
weekly per participant, case-management contacts will occur at
least weekly, treatment engagement will be supported
continuously, and data will be entered within 72 hours of
collection. Services will be delivered at the LCJAC office, at
treatment provider sites, within schools and community settings
as appropriate, and through the contract laboratory facility.

These activities are necessary to maintain accountability,
promote rehabilitation, and ensure timely and accurate
information for judicial decision-making. Twice-weekly testing
provides reliable, current data on abstinence and use.
Case-management addresses barriers that often prevent youth
from succeeding in treatment, including inconsistent caregiver



support, transportation challenges, and shifting school demands.
Data reconciliation strengthens accountability by ensuring that
program responses are based on accurate information.

This plan directly meets the needs of the target population-youth
in LCJAC who are adjudicated delinquent and assessed at
moderate to high risk of reoffending. Without dedicated case
management, these youth often miss critical tests and treatment
sessions, undermining both accountability and progress. In
addition, FY26 operating funds do not include drug-testing
supplies, and the approved case-management match ends in
December 2025, leaving a significant gap in supervision capacity.
By funding the Case Manager and contracted laboratory services,
this project ensures that approximately 10 active participants at
any given time will receive uninterrupted monitoring, consistent
support, and strengthened treatment engagement.

The activities outlined translate directly into measurable
outcomes: increased accountability through reliable testing,
improved problem-solving and life skills through
case-management support, stronger treatment participation
through coordinated services, and higher-quality data to guide
judicial decision-making. Collectively, these services address the
gaps identified in the needs statement and support improved
outcomes for youth and families in Lowndes County.



Resources Needed

Is there a MOU agreement in
place?

The successful delivery of LCJAC's service plan depends on
dedicated personnel, contracted services, and testing supplies.
Requested grant funds total $18,853 and are allocated to the
following essential resources:

Contract Services ($16,470) - $3,600 will support the Case
Manager position, ensuring consistent case-management
contacts, onsite drug testing, and coordination with treatment
providers. $12,870 will fund contracted laboratory services to
provide weekly participant testing and confirmation not covered
under the program's operating grant.

Drug Testing Supplies ($2,383) - $1,312.50 will purchase 16-panel
onsite testing cups, and $1,070.00 will purchase 12-panel saliva
screens. These supplies are essential to implementing the
twice-weekly testing model and providing reliable, immediate
results to guide Court decisions.

Other Resources - The FY26 Operating Grant supports core
activities such as treatment services through Legacy Behavioral
Health, field supervision, and Court coordination. However, it does
not include laboratory testing or drug-testing supplies, and the
case-management match funding ends in December 2025. This
request addresses those gaps to ensure uninterrupted
case-management supervision and reliable testing capacity for
approximately 10 active participants at any given time.

By enhancing the existing foundation with these targeted
resources, LCJAC will sustain consistent drug testing, strengthen
engagement in treatment, and provide accurate, timely data to
support judicial decision-making and improved youth outcomes.

Yes



Explanation of MOU

Upload Detailed Budget
Worksheet

The Memorandum of Understanding between the Lowndes County
Juvenile Accountability Court (LCJAC) and the Case Manager
establishes a six-month agreement, effective July 1 through
December 31, 2025, for the provision of case management
services. Under this agreement, the Case Manager will strengthen
program operations by attending court hearings, staffings, and
treatment team meetings, coordinating referrals, monitoring
participant progress, and supporting accountability. The Case
Manager is also responsible for documentation and participation
in reviews or trainings as requested. Compensation is set at $15
per hour. The Case Manager functions as an independent
contractor, responsible for taxes and insurance, and will submit
monthly invoices by the fifth business day. Either party may
terminate the agreement with fifteen days' notice, and no
additional services will be compensated once the funding cap is
reached unless a written amendment is executed. This MOU
represents the complete understanding between the Court and
the Case Manager and will be amended as necessary based on
the outcome of the grant request.

The Memorandum of Understanding between the Court and the
laboratory contractor will be developed based on the information
outlined in the grant request and will be formally created to
reflect the outcome of the grant award.

https://www.formstack.com/admin/download/file/18557703984


https://www.formstack.com/admin/download/file/18557703984

I

FY25 Budget Detail Request Worksheet

Court Name

Lowndes County Juvenile Accountabil

ity Court

|

Budget Worksheet Category Line Item Total Requested

Personnel $0

Contract Services Case Management 3600 $16,470
Lab Services 12870

Drug Testing Supplies 16 Panel Onsite Cups 1,312.50 $2,383
12 Panel Saliva Screen 1,070.00

Supplies /Other Costs $0

Equipment

In State Training and Travel

Transportation Funding $0

Total Budget Request: $18,853

Match: $3,327

Instructions:

Add the request in column b and requested amount in column c

The itemized requests will automatically calculate in column d




Form Name: FY26 Accountability Court LEO Grant

Submission Time: September 26, 2025 12:08 pm
Browser: Chrome 140.0.0.0 / OS X

IP Address: 24.170.201.100

Unique ID: 1384391438

Location:

Agency Name
Point of Contact
Contact Number

Address

Email

Name of Accountability Court(s)
Check all that apply

Name of Judicial Circuit

Project Description

Lowndes County Juvenile Accountability Court
Geoffrey Martin
2294748739

327 N Ashley St
Valdosta, GA 31601

gpm@accountabilitycourt.org

Lowndes County Juvenile Accountability Court
Juvenile Court

Southern Judicial Circuit

Applicant: Lowndes County Juvenile Accountability Court

Agency Type: Juvenile Drug Court

Founded: September 2020

Geographic Area: Lowndes County, Georgia (Southern Judicial
Circuit)

Target Population: Youth participants (ages 13-17) enrolled in the
Juvenile Accountability Court program

Estimated Number Served (Grant Period): 15-20 active
participants (January 1, 2026 - June 30, 2026)

The Lowndes County Juvenile Accountability Court (LCJAC) serves
juveniles ages 13-17 who have been adjudicated delinquent and
assessed at moderate to high risk levels for re-offending. These
youth often present with multiple criminogenic needs, including
substance use, negative peer associations, poor academic
engagement, and family instability.



Needs Statement

The ability of the Lowndes County Juvenile Accountability Court
(LCJAC) to fund field supervision through the Lowndes County
Sheriff's Office is critical to program effectiveness and directly
supports the Court's capacity to provide supervision and services
at the level indicated by the Risk-Need-Responsivity (RNR) Model.
By aligning supervision intensity with assessed risk, targeting
criminogenic needs, and tailoring oversight to individual
circumstances, the Court promotes accountability and
rehabilitation for youth participants.

In FY26, the Court received $2,700 through the Operating Grant
Award to provide field supervision. However, LCJAC typically
expends approximately $1,500 per quarter on these services,
creating a funding gap that threatens the Court's ability to sustain
consistent supervision at current levels. With supplemental
funding requested through the Law Enforcement Officer Grant,
LCJAC will be able to continue providing supervision at the rate of
1-2 field contacts per participant per month.

At present, LCJAC supervises 11 youth participants adjudicated
delinquent and assessed at moderate to high risk of re-offending.
These youth often present with:

Substance use challenges

Unstable family structures

Poor academic performance

Association with antisocial peers

To address these risks, LCJAC relies on field supervision
conducted by the Lowndes County Sheriff's Office. Field
supervision provides:

Accountability outside of the courtroom

Documentation of curfew and program noncompliance
Reinforcement of school attendance and treatment participation
Increased substance use screening

Positive, structured contact between youth and law enforcement
FY25 program data demonstrate the effectiveness of these
services: participants averaged 1 field contact per month,

ensuring ongoing compliance monitoring. Violations such as
curfew breaches and substance use were detected that would



otherwise have gone undocumented, allowing for timely Court
response and intervention.

Without supplemental funding, LCJAC cannot maintain this level of
field supervision. A reduction in contacts would undermine the
Court's ability to detect noncompliance, reinforce pro-social
behavior, and protect community safety. Sustaining field
supervision at current levels is therefore essential to both
program success and public safety in Lowndes County.



Project Goals

Project Activities and Services

Resources Needed

Is there a MOU agreement in
place?

Maintain current level of field supervision through June 30, 2026
Indicator: Each participant will receive one or more random field
contacts each month.

Support compliance monitoring through continued field
supervision involvement

Indicator: Deputies will document and report all violations of
program rules identified during visits.

Improve overall quality of participants' circumstances
Indicator: Positive reports from guardians, schools, probation
officers, treatment professionals, and participants themselves.

Field Supervision: Deputies assigned to LCJAC will conduct
random curfew checks, home visits, and substance use
screenings.

Documentation & Reporting: All contacts will be logged into
CaseWorx and reported weekly to the Court team.

Court Team Coordination: Weekly staffing reports will integrate
supervision findings into treatment planning.

Timeline: January 1, 2026 - June 30, 2026 (continuation of existing
supervision schedule).

This grant request covers overtime for deputies providing field
supervision. The $3,000 request includes:

Hourly overtime wages

Employer tax contributions
Workers' compensation coverage
Retirement contributions

These represent the fully loaded hourly rate for deputies.

No funds are requested for disallowed expenses (administrative
overhead, cell phone charges, or general office costs). Grant
funds will supplement county resources and Accountability Court
funding, ensuring continuity of services rather than replacing
existing allocations.

Yes



Explanation of MOU

Upload Detailed Budget
Worksheet

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) establishes an agreement
between the Lowndes County Juvenile Accountability Court
(LCJAC) and the Lowndes County Sheriff's Office (LCSO) for the
provision of field supervision services during Fiscal Year 2026. The
MOU defines the purpose, scope of services, compensation,
invoicing procedures, and termination terms.

Purpose: LCSO will provide structured field supervision to support
LCJAC participant compliance and program goals.

Scope of Services: Includes drug screening, home visits,
accountability checks, and participation in staffing or treatment
team meetings if needed.

Compensation: The Court has allocated $2,704.00 for up to 104
hours of service, plus $3,000.00 in supplemental funding from the
FY26 Law Enforcement Officer Funding Grant (January 1 - June 30,
2026). Total compensation shall not exceed $5,704.00.

Invoicing: LCSO will submit monthly invoices with hours, dates,
and duties performed; payments will follow County financial
procedures.

Termination: Either party may end the agreement with 15 days'
written notice; payment is limited to verified services rendered
before termination.

Entire Agreement: This MOU combines the original allocation and

the supplemental grant into one agreement. Changes must be
made in writing and signed by both parties.

https://www.formstack.com/admin/download/file/18556929038


https://www.formstack.com/admin/download/file/18556929038

LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: Motorola Migration Assurance Plan (MAP)
Work
DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular
Session
BUDGET IMPACT: Total budget impact is $5,039,730, split into five
annual payments.
FUNDING SOURCE:
() Annual
(X) Capital
() N/A
(X) SPLOST
() TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: Motorola Migration Assurance Plan

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES:

The Motorola Migration Assurance Plan (MAP) is a continuation of our existing evergreen agreement that
provides the ongoing maintenance, upgrades, and system enhancements required to sustain the Public Safety
Radio System. Our current agreement expires in August 2027. The agreement presented for consideration
allows us to secure pricing at current rates, with the new term beginning in September 2027 and extending
through August 2032.

Over the five-year term, the plan includes the replacement of the current prime site with a virtual prime site,
adding redundancy as the existing site reaches end of life in 2028. It also provides for the replacement of 12
radio consoles at the 911 Center, which will reach end of life in 2030. In addition to these major upgrades, the
agreement continues to deliver the benefits we rely on today, including maintenance and repair of subscriber
radios, network monitoring and remediation, annual preventative maintenance, security monitoring and
routine updates, and discounted pricing on future end-user radio purchases. The plan also enables newer
radios to seamlessly leverage LTE connectivity as a backup communication path.

SPLOST funds will be used to cover the equipment replacement portion of the agreement.

OPTIONS: 1. Approve
2. Board's Pleasure

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve

DEPARTMENT: E911 DEPARTMENT HEAD: Tonya Davis

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



Docusign Envelope ID: CC41C4A6-86A2-4DD8-95C2-3F8426589E37

m MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS

Proposal

Lowndes County Board of Commissioners

Lowndes County-MAP
(ASTRO NEXT)

September 10, 2025

The design, technical, and price information furnished with this proposal is proprietary information of Motorola Solutions, Inc. (Motorola). Such information
is submitted with the restriction that it is to be used only for the evaluation of the proposal, and is not to be disclosed publicly or in any manner to anyone
other than those required to evaluate the proposal, without the express written permission of Motorola Solutions, Inc.

MOTOROLA, MOTO, MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS, and the Stylized M Logo are trademarks or registered trademarks of Motorola Trademark Holdings,
LLC and are used under license. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners. © 2025 Motorola Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.



Lowndes County Board of Commissioners
Lowndes County-MAP (ASTRO NEXT)

Section 5

Docusign Envelope ID: CC41C4A6-86A2-4DD8-95C2-3F8426589E37

Pricing Summary

5.1

Pricing Summary

September 9, 2025

This pricing table hereby replaces the pricing table in the proposal dated September 9, 2025. Motorola is
pleased to provide the following equipment and services as part of this proposal.

MAP (Migration Assurance Program) Components and Pricing Breakdown

Maintenance & Support Years 1-5

Before 12/19/2025

System Maintenance | Sep 2025- | Sep 2026 - | Sep 2027 - | Sep 2028 - Sep 2029 - Sep 2030 - Sep 2031 | Total 5Year

Contracts Aug 2026 | Aug2027 | Aug 2028 Aug 2029 Aug 2030 Aug 2031 -Aug Cost
2032

SUA (System Existing Existing $507,307 $592,317 $610,243 $622,864 | $643,184 $2,975,915

Upgrade

Agreement) &

Maintenance

Out-Year System Upgrade Projects

Virtual Prime $837,264 $837,264

E911 AXS Consoles $1,225,822 $1,225,822

Total System $507,307 $1,429,581 $1,836,065 $622,864 | $643,184 $5,039,001

Upgrade Projects,

SUA/Maintenance

TOTAL 5 YEAR COST OF SYSTEM OWNERSHIP with 2025 Georgia State Contract, 10% MAP Discount, & Purchase $5,039,001

written notice

* Pricing is contingent of sale as proposed
* Pricing includes the 2025 Sourcewell Georgia State Contract Pricing Discounts
* Pricing includes the additional 10% MAP Discount
* Pricing includes additional discounts for a purchase before 12/19/2025
* Pricing is valid for 90 days.

* Purchase Order should mirror MAP Pricing page indicating the total contract value of $5,038,999 with 2027, 2028,
2029, 2030, and 2031 Annual Payments identified.

* SUA Il Covers Software and Hardware Upgrades based on the current purchased platform
* The MAP contract can be cancelled in whole or in part by Lowndes County Board of Commissioners with 60 Days

* After contract execution, Motorola Solutions will provide Lowndes County Radio System users with an additional
5% off of GA Sourcewell Contract Pricing on all Radios purchased throughout the term of the MAP.

* After contract execution, Motorola Solutions will enable SmartConnect on the Lowndes County Radio System.

Due to significant market and tariff volatility, as well as fluctuations in the cost of energy and raw materials

including, but not limited to, steel, copper, finished wood, and concrete, Motorola Solutions reserves the right to

Pricing Summary

Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject to the restrictions on the cover page.
Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted

Page 29

@ MOTOROLA SOLUTIONS




Docusign Envelope ID: CC41C4A6-86A2-4DD8-95C2-3F8426589E37
equitably adjust the contract price, completion schedule, and/or contract requirements. Additionally, Motorola
Solutions reserves the right to apply a fuel surcharge to quoted freight rates based on the prevailing diesel cost
at the time of shipment.

Except for a payment that is due on the Effective Date, Customer will make payments to Motorola
within thirty (30) days after the date of each invoice. Customer will make payments when due in the
form of a check, cashier’s check, or wire transfer drawn on a U.S. financial institution. Payment for the
System purchase will be in accordance with the following milestones.

Motorola will invoice Customer annually in advance of each year of the MAP.

Pricing Summary Q) mororoLa soLuTions

Use or disclosure of this proposal is subject to the restrictions on the cover page.
Motorola Solutions Confidential Restricted

Page 30



LOWNDES COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM

SUBJECT: LAS Pump Station Upgrade
Work
DATE OF MEETING: December 9, 2025 Session/Regular

Session
BUDGET IMPACT: $2,565,305.44

FUNDING SOURCE:
() Annual

() Capital

(X) ARPA

() SPLOST

() TSPLOST

COUNTY ACTION REQUESTED ON: LAS Pump Station Upgrade

HISTORY, FACTS AND ISSUES: The next step in upgrading the LAS and increasing the permit capacity is
replacing the existing pump station. The current station has three pumps, with additional fields under
irrigation; the new station will have four pumps. Additionally, we will be installing a back-up generator to
provide emergency power to the pump station. The project was advertised, and three bids were received.
Doyle Hancock and Sons Construction Company, Inc. $3,487,498.00, RPI Underground, Inc. $3,700,144.00,
and James Warren & Associates, $3,932,804.15. Bids included an alternate manufacturer, USEMCO, for the
pump station. After consultation with the engineer and references staff chose the alternate manufacturer,
resulting in a $922,192.56 savings. Staff recommends approval and authorize the Chairman to sign the
agreement with Doyle Hancock and Sons Construction Company, Inc. for $2,565,305.44.

OPTIONS: 1. Approve
2. Board's Pleasure

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve

DEPARTMENT: Utilities DEPARTMENT HEAD: Steve Stalvey

ADMINISTRATIVE COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS:



SECTION 00510-1

NOTICE OF AWARD
SECTION 00510
NOTICE OF AWARD

Date of [ssuance:

Lowndes County Board of
Owner: Commissioners Engineer’s Project No.: L8400.069
Engineer: Carter & Sloope, Inc.

South Lowndes LAS Phase I Expansion - Contract B: Irrigation Pump
Project: Station Upgrades
Bidder: Doyle Hancock and Sons Construction, Inc.

Bidder’s Address: 4182 GA Highway 33, Doerun, Georgia 31744,

You are notified that Owner has accepted your Bid dated Tuesday, November 25, 2025 for the
above Contract, and that you are the Successful Bidder and are awarded a Contract for:

South Lowndes LAS Phase I Expansion - Contract B: Irrigation Pump Station Upgrades

The Contract Price of the awarded Contract is $2,565,305.44. Contract Price is subject to
adjustment based on the provisions of the Contract, including but not limited to those governing
changes, Unit Price Work, and Work performed on a cost-plus-fee basis, as applicable.

Four (4) unexecuted counterparts of the Agreement accompany this Notice of Award, and one
copy of the Contract Documents accompanies this Notice of Award, or has been transmitted or
made available to Bidder electronically.

Drawings will be delivered separately from the other Contract Documents.

You must comply with the following conditions precedent within 15 days of the date of receipt of
this Notice of Award:

1. Deliver to Owner four (4) counterparts of the Agreement, signed by Bidder (as Contractor).

2. Deliver with the signed Agreement(s) the Contract security (such as required performance
and payment bonds) and insurance documentation, as specified in the Instructions to
Bidders and in the General Conditions, Articles 2 and 6.

3. Deliver the Certificate of Insurance as specified in the General Conditions (Article 6.03)
and amended by the Supplementary Conditions.

4. Section 00484 — Subcontractor Affidavit & Agreement for any subcontractors.

Failure to comply with these conditions within the time specified will entitle Owner to consider
you in default, annul this Notice of Award, and declare your Bid security forfeited.

Within 10 days after you comply with the above conditions, Owner will return to you one fully
signed counterpart of the Agreement, together with any additional copies of the Contract
Documents as indicated in Paragraph 2.02 of the General Conditions.

This document is a MODIFIED version of EXCDC® C-510, Copyright© 2018 by the National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council
of Engineering Companies, and American Society of Civil Engineers, or is based in part on excerpts from copyrighted EJCDC documents. All
rights reserved. Those portions of the text that originated in copyrighted EJCDC documents remain subject to the copyright.

Lowndes County Board of Commissioners C&S Project No:. L8400.069

South Lowndes LAS Phase | Expansion - Contract B October 2025
[rrigation Pump Station Upgrades Revision 0



SECTION 00510-2
NOTICE OF AWARD

Owner: Lowndes County Board of Commissioners

By (signature):

Name
(printed):

Title:

ACCEPTANCE OF NOTICE

Receipt of the above Notice of Award
is hereby acknowledged by.

Contractor: Doyle Hancock and Sons Construction, Inc.

By (signature):

Name (printed):
Title:

Copy: Engineer

END OF SECTION

This document is a MODIFIED version of EJICDC® C-510, Copyright© 2018 by the National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council
of Engineering Companies, and American Society of Civil Engineers, or is based in part on excerpts from copyrighted EJCDC documents. All
rights reserved. Those portions of the text that originated in copyrighted EJCDC documents remain subject to the copyright.

Lowndes County Board of Commissioners C&S Project No:. L8400.069

South Lowndes LAS Phase I Expansion - Contract B October 2025
Irrigation Pump Station Upgrades Revision 0



SECTION 00500-1
AGREEMENT

SECTION 00500
AGREEMENT

This Agreement is by and between Lowndes County Board of Commissioners (“Owner”) and
Doyle Hancock and Sons Construction, Inc. (“Contractor”).

Terms used in this Agreement have the meanings stated in the General Conditions and the
Supplementary Conditions.

Owner and Contractor hereby agree as follows:
ARTICLE 1—WORK

Contractor shall complete all work as specified or indicated in the contract documents. The
work is generally described as follows: The work shall generally consist of furnishing all
products and performing all labor necessary to perform the following (see Plans and
Specifications for complete details and description): Work to be done shall consist of
furnishing all materials and equipment and performing all necessary labor to install a new
pre-fabricated irrigation pump station, including associated piping, valving, site
improvements, concrete foundations, mechanical, electrical, and yard piping components.
Major work includes the installation of pumps, motors, and control systems, construction
of a reinforced concrete equipment pad, installation of electrical panels, conduit, wiring,
and generator and piping and valving connections to the irrigation header force main.
Additional work includes site grading, erosion control, utility coordination to ensure
functionality and accessibility, mobilization and demobilization, bonds, insurance and all
appurtenances necessary for the completion of the Work as shown on the Drawings and as
specified in the Contract Documents.

ARTICLE 2—THE PROJECT

2.01 The Project, of which the Work under the Contract Documents is a part, is generally
described as follows:

South Lowndes LAS Phase I Expansion - Contract B: Irrigation Pump Station Upgrades
ARTICLE 3—ENGINEER

3.01 The Owner has retained Carter & Sloope, Inc. (“Engineer”) to act as Owner’s
representative, assume all duties and responsibilities of Engineer, and have the rights and
authority assigned to Engineer in the Contract.

This document is a MODIFIED version of EICDC® C-520, Copyright© 2018 by the National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council
of Engineering Companies, and American Society of Civil Engineers, or is based in part on excerpts from copyrighted EJCDC documents. All
rights reserved. Those portions of the text that originated in copyrighted EICDC documents remain subject to the copyright.

Lowndes County Board of Commissioners C&S Project No:. L.8400.069

South Lowndes LAS Phase I Expansion - Contract B October 2025
Irrigation Pump Station Upgrades Revision 1



SECTION 00500-2
AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 4—CONTRACT TIMES
4.01 Time is of the Essence

A. All time limits for Milestones, if any, Substantial Completion, and completion and
readiness for final payment as stated in the Contract Documents are of the essence of
the Contract.

4.02  Contract Times: Days

A. The Work will be substantially complete within 240 days after the date when the
Contract Times commence to run as provided in Paragraph 4.01 of the General
Conditions, and completed and ready for final payment in accordance with
Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions within 240 days after the date when the
Contract Times commence to run.

4.03 Liquidated Damages

A. Contractor and Owner recognize that time is of the essence as stated in Paragraph 4.01
above and that Owner will suffer financial and other losses if the Work is not
completed and Milestones not achieved within the Contract Times, as duly modified.
The parties also recognize the delays, expense, and difficulties involved in proving, in
a legal or arbitration proceeding, the actual loss suffered by Owner if the Work is not
completed on time. Accordingly, instead of requiring any such proof, Owner and
Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for delay (but not as a penalty):

1. Substantial Completion: Contractor shall pay Owner $500 for each day that expires
after the time (as duly adjusted pursuant to the Contract) specified above for
Substantial Completion, until the Work is substantially complete.

B. 1If Owner recovers liquidated damages for a delay in completion by Contractor, then
such liquidated damages are Owner’s sole and exclusive remedy for such delay, and
Owner is precluded from recovering any other damages, whether actual, direct, excess,
or consequential, for such delay, except for special damages (if any) specified in this
Agreement.

ARTICLE 5—CONTRACT PRICE

5.01  Owner shall pay Contractor for completion of the Work in accordance with the Contract
Documents, the amounts that follow, subject to adjustment under the Contract:

A. For performance of the Work, the amount to be charged by the Contractor shall not,
except for by mutually approved written change order, exceed the Contractor’s Bid
(attached hereto as an exhibit), $2,565.305.44 .

This document is a MODIFIED version of EXCDC® C-520, Copyright© 2018 by the National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council
of Engineering Companies, and American Society of Civil Engineers, or is based in part on excerpts from copyrighted EJCDC documents. All
rights reserved. Those portions of the text that originated in copyrighted EJCDC documents remain subject to the copyright.

Lowndes County Board of Commissioners C&S Project No:. L8400.069
South Lowndes LAS Phase I Expansion - Contract B October 2025
Irrigation Pump Station Upgrades Revision 1



SECTION 00500-3
AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 6—PAYMENT PROCEDURES
6.01  Submittal and Processing of Payments

A. Contractor shall submit Applications for Payment in accordance with Article 15 of the
General Conditions. Applications for Payment will be processed by Engineer as
provided in the General Conditions.

6.02  Progress Payments, Retainage

A. Owner shall make progress payments on the basis of Contractor’s Applications for
Payment on or about the 30" day of each month during performance of the Work as
provided in Paragraph 6.02.A.1 below, provided that such Applications for Payment
have been submitted in a timely manner and otherwise meet the requirements of the
Contract. All such payments will be measured by the Schedule of Values established
as provided in the General Conditions (and in the case of Unit Price Work based on
the number of units completed) or, in the event there is no Schedule of Values, as
provided elsewhere in the Contract.

1. Prior to Substantial Completion, progress payments will be made in an amount
equal to the percentage indicated below but, in each case, less the aggregate of
payments previously made and less such amounts as Owner may withhold,
including but not limited to liquidated damages, in accordance with the Contract.

a. 95 percent of the value of the Work completed (with the balance being
retainage).

b. 95 percent of cost of materials and equipment not incorporated in the Work
(with the balance being retainage).

B. Upon Substantial Completion, Owner shall pay an amount sufficient to increase total
payments to Contractor to 100 percent of the Work completed, less such amounts set
off by Owner pursuant to Paragraph 15.01.E of the General Conditions, and less 200
percent of Engineer’s estimate of the value of Work to be completed or corrected as
shown on the punch list of items to be completed or corrected prior to final payment.

6.03  Final Payment

A. Upon final completion and acceptance of the Work, Owner shall pay the remainder of
the Contract Price in accordance with Paragraph 15.06 of the General Conditions.

6.04 Consent of Surety

A. Owner will not make final payment or return or release retainage at Substantial
Completion or any other time, unless Contractor submits written consent of the surety
to such payment, return, or release.

This document is a MODIFIED version of EJCDC® C-520, Copyright© 2018 by the National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council
of Engineering Companies, and American Society of Civil Engineers, or is based in part on excerpts from copyrighted EJCDC documents. All
rights reserved. Those portions of the text that originated in copyrighted EJCDC documents remain subject to the copyright.

Lowndes County Board of Commissioners C&S Project No:. 1L.8§400.069
South Lowndes LAS Phase 1 Expansion - Contract B October 2025
Irrigation Pump Station Upgrades Revision 1



SECTION 00500-4
AGREEMENT

6.05 Interest

A. All amounts not paid when due will bear interest at the maximum legal rate per annum.

ARTICLE 7—CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

7.01 Contents

A. The Contract Documents consist of all of the following:

1.
2.

AN

10.

This Agreement.

Bonds:

a. Performance bond (together with power of attorney).

b. Payment bond (together with power of attorney).

General Conditions.

Supplementary Conditions.

Specifications contained within, or referenced by, the project manual.

Drawings (not attached but incorporated by reference) consisting of 14 sheets with
each sheet bearing the following general title: South Lowndes LAS Phase I
Expansion - Contract B: Irrigation Pump Station Upgrades

Addenda (numbers 1 to 3 inclusive).
Exhibits to this Agreement (enumerated as follows):
a. Contractor’s Bid

The following which may be delivered or issued on or after the Effective Date of
the Contract and are not attached hereto:

a. Notice to Proceed.

b. Work Change Directives.
¢. Change Orders.

d. Field Orders.

e. Warranty Bond, if any.

B. The Contract Documents listed in Paragraph 7.01.A are attached to this Agreement
(except as expressly noted otherwise above).

C. There are no Contract Documents other than those listed above in this Article 7.

D. The Contract Documents may only be amended, modified, or supplemented as
provided in the Contract.

This document is a MODIFIED version of EJCDC® C-520, Copyright© 2018 by the National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council
of Engineering Companies, and American Society of Civil Engineers, or is based in part on excerpts from copyrighted EJCDC documents. All
rights reserved. Those portions of the text that originated in copyrighted EJCDC documents remain subject to the copyright.

Lowndes County Board of Commissioners C&S Project No:. 1.8400.069
South Lowndes LAS Phase I Expansion - Contract B October 2025
Irrigation Pump Station Upgrades Revision 1



SECTION 00500-5
AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 8—REPRESENTATIONS, CERTIFICATIONS, AND STIPULATIONS

8.01  Contractor’s Representations

A. In order to induce Owner to enter into this Contract, Contractor makes the following
representations:

1.

Contractor has examined and carefully studied the Contract Documents, including
Addenda.

Contractor has visited the Site, conducted a thorough visual examination of the Site
and adjacent areas, and become familiar with the general, local, and Site conditions
that may affect cost, progress, and performance of the Work.

Contractor is familiar with all Laws and Regulations that may affect cost, progress,
and performance of the Work.

Contractor has carefully studied the reports of explorations and tests of subsurface
conditions at or adjacent to the Site and the drawings of physical conditions relating
to existing surface or subsurface structures at the Site that have been identified in
the Supplementary Conditions, with respect to the Technical Data in such reports
and drawings.

Contractor has carefully studied the reports and drawings relating to Hazardous
Environmental Conditions, if any, at or adjacent to the Site that have been identified
in the Supplementary Conditions, with respect to Technical Data in such reports
and drawings.

Contractor has considered the information known to Contractor itself; information
commonly known to contractors doing business in the locality of the Site;
information and observations obtained from visits to the Site; the Contract
Documents; and the Technical Data identified in the Supplementary Conditions or
by definition, with respect to the effect of such information, observations, and
Technical Data on (a) the cost, progress, and performance of the Work; (b) the
means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction to be
employed by Contractor; and (c) Contractor’s safety precautions and programs.

Based on the information and observations referred to in the preceding paragraph,
Contractor agrees that no further examinations, investigations, explorations, tests,
studies, or data are necessary for the performance of the Work at the Contract Price,
within the Contract Times, and in accordance with the other terms and conditions
of the Contract.

Contractor is aware of the general nature of work to be performed by Owner and
others at the Site that relates to the Work as indicated in the Contract Documents.

Contractor has given Engineer written notice of all conflicts, errors, ambiguities, or
discrepancies that Contractor has discovered in the Contract Documents, and of

This document is a MODIFIED version of EXCDC® C-520, Copyright© 2018 by the National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council
of Engineering Companies, and American Society of Civil Engineers, or is based in part on excerpts from copyrighted EJCDC documents. All
rights reserved. Those portions of the text that originated in copyrighted EJCDC documents remain subject to the copyright.

Lowndes County Board of Commissioners C&S Project No:. L.8400.069

South Lowndes LAS Phase [ Expansion - Contract B October 2025
Irrigation Pump Station Upgrades Revision 1



SECTION 00500-6
AGREEMENT

discrepancies between Site conditions and the Contract Documents, and the written
resolution thereof by Engineer is acceptable to Contractor.

10. The Contract Documents are generally sufficient to indicate and convey

understanding of all terms and conditions for performance and furnishing of the
Work.

11. Contractor’s entry into this Contract constitutes an incontrovertible representation

by Contractor that without exception all prices in the Agreement are premised upon
performing and furnishing the Work required by the Contract Documents.

8.02  Contractor’s Certifications

A. Contractor certifies that it has not engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, or coercive
practices in competing for or in executing the Contract. For the purposes of this
Paragraph 8.02:

1.

“corrupt practice” means the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting of anything
of value likely to influence the action of a public official in the bidding process or
in the Contract execution;

“fraudulent practice” means an intentional misrepresentation of facts made (a) to
influence the bidding process or the execution of the Contract to the detriment of
Owner, (b) to establish Bid or Contract prices at artificial non-competitive levels,
or (c) to deprive Owner of the benefits of free and open competition;

“collusive practice” means a scheme or arrangement between two or more Bidders,
with or without the knowledge of Owner, a purpose of which is to establish Bid
prices at artificial, non-competitive levels; and

“coercive practice” means harming or threatening to harm, directly or indirectly,
persons or their property to influence their participation in the bidding process or
affect the execution of the Contract.

8.03  Standard General Conditions

A. Owner stipulates that if the General Conditions that are made a part of this Contract
are EJCDC® C-700, Standard General Conditions for the Construction Contract
(2018), published by the Engineers Joint Contract Documents Committee, and if
Owner is the party that has furnished said General Conditions, then Owner has plainly
shown all modifications to the standard wording of such published document to the
Contractor, through a process such as highlighting or “track changes”
(redline/strikeout), or in the Supplementary Conditions.

This document is a MODIFIED version of EJCDC® C-520, Copyright© 2018 by the National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council
of Engineering Companies, and American Society of Civil Engineers, or is based in part on excerpts from copyrighted EJCDC documents. All
rights reserved. Those portions of the text that originated in copyrighted EJCDC documents remain subject to the copyright.

Lowndes County Board of Commissioners C&S Project No:. L8400.069

South Lowndes LAS Phase I Expansion - Contract B October 2025
Irrigation Pump Station Upgrades Revision 1



SECTION 00500-7
AGREEMENT

ARTICLE 9—MISCELLANEOUS

9.01

9.02

9.03

Assignment of Contract

A.

No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interests in the Contract will
be binding on another party hereto without the written consent of the party sought to
be bound; and, specifically but without limitation, moneys that may become due and
moneys that are due may not be assigned without such consent (except to the extent
that the effect of this restriction may be limited by law), and unless specifically stated
to the contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will release or
discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under the Contract Documents.

Successors and Assigns

A. Owner and Contractor each binds itself, its partners, successors, assigns, and legal
representatives to the other party hereto, its partners, successors, assigns, and legal
representatives in respect to all covenants, agreements, and obligations contained in
the Contract Documents.

Severability

A. Any provision or part of the Contract Documents held to be void or unenforceable

under any Law or Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions
shall continue to be valid and binding upon Owner and Contractor, who agree that the
Contract Documents shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part
thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to
expressing the intention of the stricken provision.

This document is a MODIFIED version of EXCDC® C-520, Copyright© 2018 by the National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council
of Engineering Companies, and American Society of Civil Engineers, or is based in part on excerpts from copyrighted EJCDC documents. All
rights reserved. Those portions of the text that originated in copyrighted EJCDC documents remain subject to the copyright.

Lowndes County Board of Commissioners C&S Project No:. L8400.069
South Lowndes LAS Phase I Expansion - Contract B October 2025
Irrigation Pump Station Upgrades Revision 1



SECTION 00500-8
AGREEMENT

IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, Owner and Contractor have signed this Agreement.

This Agreement will be effective on

(which is the Effective Date

of the Contract).

Owner:

Lowndes County Board of Commissioners

Contractor:

Doyle Hancock and Sons Construction, Inc.

(typed or printed name of organization)

By:
(individual's signature)
Date:
(date signed)
Name:
(tvped or printed)
Title:
(tvped or printed)
Attest:
(individual's signature)
Title:

(typed or printed)

Address for giving notices:
327 N. Ashley Street

(typed or printed name of organization)

By:
(individual’s signature)
Date:
(date signed)

Name:

(typed or printed)
Title:

(typed or printed)

(If Contractor is a corporation, a partnership, or a
Joint venture, attach evidence of authority to sign.)

Attest:

(individual's signature)

Title:

(typed or printed)

Address for giving notices:
4182 GA Highway 33

Valdosta, GA 31601

Doerun, GA 31744

Designated Representative:

Name:

(typed or printed)
Title:

(typed or printed)
Address:

Designated Representative:

Name:

(typed or printed)
Title:

(typed or printed)
Address:

This document is a MODIFIED version of EICDC® C-520, Copyright© 2018 by the National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council
of Engineering Companies, and American Society of Civil Engineers, or is based in part on excerpts from copyrighted EJCDC documents. All
rights reserved. Those portions of the text that originated in copyrighted EJCDC documents remain subject to the copyright.

Lowndes County Board of Commissioners

South Lowndes LAS Phase I Expansion - Contract B

Irrigation Pump Station Upgrades

C&S Project No:. L8400.069
October 2025
Revision 1



SECTION 00500-9

AGREEMENT
Phone: Phone:
Email: Email:
(If Owner is a corporation, attach evidence of . .
authority to sign. If Owner is a public body, attach License No.: Ther Ticabl
evidence of authority to sign and resolution or (where applicable)
other documents authorizing execution of this State:

Agreement.)

END OF SECTION

This document is a MODIFIED version of EJCDC® C-520, Copyright© 2018 by the National Society of Professional Engineers, American Council
of Engineering Companies, and American Society of Civil Engineers, or is based in part on excerpts from copyrighted EJCDC documents. All
rights reserved. Those portions of the text that originated in copyrighted EJCDC documents remain subject to the copyright.

Lowndes County Board of Commissioners C&S Project No:. L.8400.069

South Lowndes LAS Phase I Expansion - Contract B October 2025
Irrigation Pump Station Upgrades Revision 1



Mpc8erd H'd ‘fuzopm paze(

,.\ %mj ,Aiéff

$Z0T ‘ST JPqUIDAON ‘ABPSOn |, PAAIAOAI SPIQ JO UOHR[NGR ] PlE 91eINd0 pue onn &SI 1wy AFnreo 4qeroy |

9L'966°091°1 $ | 9L'966°091°1 $

09'168°L¥0°T §

09'168°Ly0°T §

09'1SP°SS0°T §

09°15¥°SS0°1$

"oU] ‘ODNESN [1RIMORINUBIA 9)RWIdNY

LE9TS9LOT S | LEITSOLOT S

9T vP9°LL6'T §
o,

91 bv9°LL6'T §

9L vP9LL6T §
L]

9T HV9°LLE'TS
3dpa g iup

"JU] O] {0IOUAS :12INJORINUBIA PIWEN SY

ST'P08'ZE6'E S $

00'PF100L'E

00°86F'L8Y'E

$

A1 ASVH TVIOL

00°000°6L  § | 00°000SL  §

00000°SL _ §

00000°SL  §

00°000°¢L  §

00°000°SL _ §

S

I

UBMO[IY JIoA [RIUdWR[ddng

SI'P08°LS8'C S | S1+08°LS8 €S

00¥r1°629°C §

00'PY1°6T9°CS

00'867°CIYE $

0086V T1¥°CS

S1

oA Y3 Jo uonepdwiod 10§ Aressaosu seoueusundde
13410 [{B pUB ‘SaXE] ‘S[ELISIRW JO AIOAI[IP ‘SouInsul
‘SpUOq ‘UOHEZI[IGOWAP/UCIIRZI{IqOL ‘UOIIRIUSWNIISUI
1801110913 “[edtuRydaW ‘soaleA ‘Suidid p1ek ‘uontjowsap
sapnjour osje JIop, sjuswasedal el apifs [suueyo
pue ‘1oje1susd dn-yoeq 1amod LousBiows Suroeidor
2IN30011S [jom Jom Sunsixa syl 03 suoneoyIpow
‘uonejjeisul satjquiasse ssedAq Aousdious

pue Swidid ‘sjonuoo pue [es113d9(e uonels dumd
uonesiu ‘voness dwnd uvone3uu ay) Jo Juswadeidol
[y 2y apajour jjeys Yiom 2y, ‘suonesyisads osa
Ul paquiosap se pue sSulmel(] dY) U0 UMOLS S8 ‘Uolje)s
duind vonediur Sunsxe sy AJIpow 03 A18SS09U
10qe] [je wojiad o pue sjeralew pue Juawdinba

[1e Suiysiuing Jo 1s1suod [[eys pais[dwod 3q 01 JIom
oy, — 93114 pig sepesdd uoneys duing uonjedrriy

<

1091€ VO ®BISOpIeA
SNUIAY YeuueaeS ‘M 100C

SIIBIIOSSY PUE UILIBAY Sowep

1091€ VD @ISopEA

19211§ pleoued 611

Uy .mz._:OLw.-omu:D I

ypL1€ VO “uniso(

€€ AM[ e13109D 781y
-4 ‘Auedwo)) uoydnisuo)
Suog pue y20dusH iLoQ

690°00¥8°T "ON TOUd S®O

SAAVIODIN NOLLVLS dIANd NOILVOIYYI ‘4 LOVULNOD - NOISNVIXA 1 ASVHJ SVT SHANAMOT HLNO0S *LOArodd

$707 ‘ST HAAIWIAON NO

SUINOISSININOD 4O QU VOd ALNNOD STANMOT HHL A AUATHIOTT

Sdid TTV 40d NOLLVINgV.L dld



CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER

CONTRACT FOR: Lowndes County Board of Commissioners {PROJECT NO.: 1.8400.069
South Lowndes LAS Phase I Expansion - Contract B:
Irrigation Pump Station Upgrades ORDER NO.: 1 - Pre-Award
OWNER: Lowndes County Board of Commissioners DATE: 12/2/2025
TO: Doyle Hancock and Sons Construction, Inc. STATE: Georgia
COUNTY: Lowndes

You are hereby requested to comply with the following changes from the contract plans and specifications:

Description of Changes DECREASE INCREASE

in Contract Price

in Contract Price

As Named Manufacturer: Syncroflo, Inc.
Alternate Manufacturer; USEMCO, Inc.

$1,977,644.16

$1,055,451.60

TOTALS $1,977,644.16

$1,055,451.60

NET CHANGE IN CONTRACT PRICE $922,192.56

Justification:

Owner selected alternate pre-fabricated irrigation pump station manufacturer in lieu of the base bid manufacturer prior to Award of Contract.

The amount of the contract prior to this change order:

Three million, four hundred eighty-seven thousand, four hundred ninety-eight and 00/100

Dollars

( $3,487,498.00)

The amount of the contract will decrease by the sum of:
Nine hundred twenty-two thousand, one hundred ninety-two and 56/100

Dollars

( $922,192.56 )

The contract total will be:
Two million, five hundred sixty-five thousand, three hundred five and 44/100

Dollars

( $2,565,305.44 )
This document will become a supplement to the contract and all provisions will apply hereto.

Requested:

Doyle Hancock and Sons Construction, Inc.

Recommended: X"'““}\ L&)}@,uau C)

Carter & Sloope, Inc.

Accepted:

County of Lowndes

(Date)

12/2/2025

(Date)

(Date)




	1. Call To Order
	2. Invocation
	3. Pledge Of Allegiance To The Flag
	4. Presentations
	a. GFOA Distinguished Budget Presentation Award
	Agenda Item Report

	b. Georgia Firefighters Burn Foundation Check Present
	c. Historic Preservation Award Presentation by Daught
	d. Recognition of EMA Director Ashley Tye for receivi
	Recognition of EMA Director Ashley Tye


	5. Minutes For Approval
	a. Work Session & Regular Session - November 12, 2025

	6. Appointment
	a. Greater Lowndes Planning Commission
	Greater Lowndes Planning Commission Appointment
	Tommy Willis GLPC Information Form
	John McCall GLPC Information Form

	b. Lowndes County Board of Assessors
	Lowndes County Tax Assessors
	Gretchen Quarterman Appointee Information Form for Board of Assessors
	Felicia Williams Appointee Information Form for Board of Assessors

	c. Lowndes County Library Board
	Lowndes County Library Board Appointment
	Dr. Kendal Crawford Appointee Information Form
	Dean Poling Appointee Information Form
	Gary Wisenbaker Appointee Information Form

	d. Valdosta-Lowndes County Conference Center and Tour
	Valdosta-Lowndes County Conference Center and Tour
	Donald Spiller III Appointee Information Form


	7. Public Hearing
	a. Basic Decorative Street Lighting Districts – Grove
	Agenda Item Report
	Sixteenth Amendment Ordinance - 2025-12-09
	Attachment I
	Attachment II
	Attachment III
	Attachment IV

	b. REZ-2025-16 Copeland Road Subdivision, ​2480 Copel
	Agenda Item Report
	Letter of Intent_signed
	Site Plan
	REZ-2025-16Z
	REZ-2025-16F
	REZ-2025-16W

	c. REZ-2025-17 Shiloh Road, ~8.2 ac 6641 Shiloh Road,
	Agenda Item Report
	REZ-2025-17 LOI
	REZ-2025-17 Survey
	REZ-2025-17Z
	REZ-2025-17F
	REZ-2025-17W


	8. For Consideration
	a. FY2027 5311 Rural Transit Authorizing Resolution
	Agenda Item Report
	05_FY_27_5311_Authorizing_Resolution

	b. Abandonment of Grice Road
	Agenda Item Report
	Grice Road Letter from Dale Grice
	Grice Road Aerial Map

	c. PI# 0016280 Twin Lakes Road Paving and Drainage Im
	Agenda Item Report
	PI 0016280 Twin Lakes Road Paving and Drainage Improvements agreement

	d. PI 0016280 Twin Lakes Road Right of Way Purchases 
	Agenda Item Report
	ROW Deed - Parcel 19
	PARCEL 19 plat w station numbers
	ROW deed - Parcel 20
	PARCEL 20 plat with station numbers
	Detailed Schedule for BOC Meeting showing purchase prices

	e. PI 0016280 Twin Lakes Road Right of Way Purchases 
	Agenda Item Report
	Agreement to Purchase Real Property - Signed by Warren Turner

	f. Transportation Investment Act (TIA) Local Delivery
	Agenda Item Report
	TIA Local Project Managment Application Hickory Grove & Skipper Bridge

	g. Transportation Investment Act (TIA) Local Delivery
	Agenda Item Report
	TIA Local Project Managment Application Val Del Road

	h. Design-Build Contract for Lowndes County Animal Sh
	Agenda Item Report
	AIA A141 Draft 2025.11.19.Draft by MT (1)

	i. Quit Claim Deed (QCD) for Navigable Waters, LLC at
	Agenda Item Report
	Executed Ltr to Board of Commissioners re Drainage Easement 11.10.2025
	Quit Claim Deed (with Exhibit A) 12.04.2025

	j. Adoption of 2027 Budget Calendar
	Agenda Item Report
	Budget Calendar 2027

	k. 2026 Public Defender Contracts
	Agenda Item Report
	2026 Public Defender Contracts

	l. 2026 ACCG Workers' Compensation Insurance Renewal
	Agenda Item Report
	2026 Est. Contribution Invoice (Lowndes County)
	ACCG-GSIWCF 2026 Renewal Proposal Memo

	m. 2026 Stop Loss Insurance Coverage Renewal
	Agenda Item Report
	Lowndes County - 1.1.26 Stop Loss Rnwl - Cost Analysis

	n. Enhancement and Innovation/Law Enforcement Grant
	Agenda Item Report
	FY26_InnovationGrant
	FY26AccountabilityCourtLEOGrant_Submission_1384391438

	o. Motorola Migration Assurance Plan (MAP)
	Agenda Item Report
	Lowndes County-MAP (ASTRO NEXT)_Final Proposal_9-10-25.docm
	Tower Top Amp Replacement Letter 2025


	9. Bid
	a. LAS Pump Station Upgrade
	Agenda Item Report
	LAS Pump Station Notice of Award
	LAS Pump Station Contract Agreement
	LAS Pump Station Bid Tab and CO


	10. Reports - County Manager
	11. Citizens Wishing To Be Heard - Please State Your Name and Address
	12. Adjournment

	Applicant Organization: 
	Resolution - Designated Official: Southern Georgia Regional Commission
	Transit Agency: 
	Day_0: 
	Month_0: 
	Authorized Official - Name and Title: 
	Day_1: 
	Month_1: 
	Notary Public: 
	Attesting Official - Title: 
	Applicant Organization_2: 
	Month_2: 
	Attesting Officer - Name: 
	Attesting Officer - Title: 
	Notary Seal_af_image: 
	Applicant Organization_1: 
	Day_2: 
	Applicant: Lowndes County
	Main Contact: Chad McLeod
	Contact Title: Director of Engineering
	Phone Number: 229-671-2424
	Local Government Email address: cmcleod@lowndescounty.com
	Contact Address: 327 N Ashley St
	Address Line 2: 2nd Floor Engineering Department
	City: Valdosta
	State: GA
	Zip Code: 31601
	County: Lowndes
	City_2: N/A
	Congressional District: 8
	GDOT District: 4
	Regional Commission: Southern Georgia
	MPO Region if applicable: Valdosta
	Regional Commission ID Number PI Number and Project Name: SG2-185-2-24 / 0020527 / Hickory Grove Road Widening and Shoulder Paving
SG2-185-2-25 / 0020528 / Skipper Bridge Road Widening and Shoulder Paving
	Local Government is LAP Certified: 
	undefined: Off
	Project Name: Briggston Road Grading, Drainage Base and Paving
	Project Description: Grading, base, drainage and paving of an existing County Dirt Road.  Total length of the project was 1.56 miles in length
	Construction Let Date: August 2023
	Construction Completion Date: September 2025
	Initial Cost Estimate: $3,900,000
	Final Completed Cost: $3,600,000
	Project Name_2: Hightower Road and Cooper Road NE Paving Project
	Project Description_2: Grading, base, drainage and paving of an existing County Dirt Road.  Total length of the project was 3.26 miles in length
	Construction Let Date_2: July 2022
	Construction Completion Date_2: February 2024
	Initial Cost Estimate_2: $3,750,000
	Final Completed Cost_2: $3,750,000
	scope schedule and budgets: Monthly Conference Calls with GDOT TIA Officials
	The Local Governments procedures in place for contract payment validation: Lowndes County Procurement Policy
	The Local Governments conflict of interest policy: Lowndes County Procurement Policy
	GA: Valodsta
	Title: Chairman
	Date: 12-9-25
	PE: Yes
	ROW: Yes
	UTL: Yes
	CST: Yes
	Delivery: Lowndes County will follow the Lowndes County Procurement Policy in the delivery of the project.  A GDOT pre-qualified engineering firm firm will be hired to provide surveying, environmental and civil construction plans for the project.  A GDOT pre-qualified real estate negotiator will be hired to negotiate the procurement of the Right of Way required for this project.  Lowndes County currently employs a professional engineer and multiple engineering technicians that will oversee the construction of the project.
	Dropdown10: [Yes]
	County/City: Lowndes County Board of Commissioners
	Address of Local: 327 N Ashley Street
	zip2: 31601
	Applicant1: Lowndes County
	Main Contact1: Chad McLeod
	Contact Title1: Director of Engineering
	Phone Number1: 229-671-2424
	Local Government Email address1: cmcleod@lowndescounty.com
	Contact Address1: 327 N Ashley St
	Address Line 21: 2nd Floor Engineering Department
	City1: Valdosta
	State1: GA
	Zip Code1: 31601
	County1: Lowndes
	City_21: N/A
	Congressional District1: 8
	GDOT District1: 4
	Regional Commission1: Southern Georgia
	MPO Region if applicable1: Valdosta
	Regional Commission ID Number PI Number and Project Name1: SG2-185-2-26 / 0020529 / Val Del Road Widening

	Local Government is LAP Certified1: 
	undefined1: Off
	Project Name1: Briggston Road Grading, Drainage Base and Paving
	Project Description1: Grading, base, drainage and paving of an existing County Dirt Road.  Total length of the project was 1.56 miles in length
	Construction Let Date1: August 2023
	Construction Completion Date1: September 2025
	Initial Cost Estimate1: $3,900,000
	Final Completed Cost1: $3,600,000
	Project Name_21: Hightower Road and Cooper Road NE Paving Project
	Project Description_21: Grading, base, drainage and paving of an existing County Dirt Road.  Total length of the project was 3.26 miles in length
	Construction Let Date_21: July 2022
	Construction Completion Date_21: February 2024
	Initial Cost Estimate_21: $3,750,000
	Final Completed Cost_21: $3,750,000
	scope schedule and budgets1: Monthly Conference Calls with GDOT TIA Officials
	The Local Governments procedures in place for contract payment validation1: Lowndes County Procurement Policy
	The Local Governments conflict of interest policy1: Lowndes County Procurement Policy
	GA1: Valdosta
	Title1: Chairman
	Date1: 12-9-25
	PE1: Yes
	ROW1: Yes
	UTL1: Yes
	CST1: Yes
	Delivery1: Lowndes County will follow the Lowndes County Procurement Policy in the delivery of the project.  A GDOT pre-qualified engineering firm firm will be hired to provide surveying, environmental and civil construction plans for the project.  A GDOT pre-qualified real estate negotiator will be hired to negotiate the procurement of the Right of Way required for this project.  Lowndes County currently employs a professional engineer and multiple engineering technicians that will oversee the construction of the project.
	Dropdown101: [Yes]
	County/City1: Lowndes County Board of Commissioners
	Address of Local1: 327 N Ashley St
	zip21: 31601


